
Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee

Monday 19 February 2018
7.00 pm

Ground Floor Meeting Room G02 - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Membership Reserves

Councillor Paul Fleming (Chair)
Councillor James Barber (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Catherine Dale
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor David Hubber
Councillor Andy Simmons

Councillor Evelyn Akoto
Councillor Nick Dolezal
Councillor Karl Eastham
Councillor Sarah King
Councillor Hamish McCallum
Councillor Rosie Shimell
Councillor Cleo Soanes

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as 
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, 
you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact: Virginia Wynn-Jones on 020 7525 7055  or email: virginia.wynn-
jones@southwark.gov.uk  

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 9 February 2018

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx


Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
Monday 19 February 2018

7.00 pm
Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

The chair would like to remind members that prior to the meeting they 
have the opportunity to inform officers of particular areas of interest 
relating to reports on the agenda, in order for officers to undertake 
preparatory work to address matters that may arise during debate.

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS

A representative of each political group will confirm the voting members of 
the committee.

3. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda 
within five clear days of the meeting.

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any personal interests and dispensation in respect of 
any item of business to be considered at this meeting.

5. MINUTES 1 - 4

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the open section of the 
meeting held on 22 November 2017. 



Item No. Title Page No.

6. GOVERNANCE TOPIC: UPDATE ON HR 5 - 10

To note the progress in delivery against the workforce strategy since the 
last update in March 2017 and the current areas of activity.

7. INTERNAL AUDIT OPERATIONAL PLAN 2018-19 AND STRATEGIC 
PLAN 2018-19 TO 2020-21

11 - 46

To approve the internal audit plan for 2018-19 attached as Appendix A of 
the report.

8. GRANT THORNTON - INFORMING THE AUDIT RISK ASSESSMENT 
FOR SOUTHWARK COUNCIL AND SOUTHWARK PENSION FUND

47 - 65

To note the Grant Thornton’s report on informing the audit risk 
assessment for Southwark Council and the Pension Fund, including the 
management comments, and to consider whether these responses are 
consistent with the committee’s understanding and whether there are any 
further comments the committee wishes to make.

9. GRANT THORNTON - EXTERNAL AUDIT CERTIFICATION LETTER 66 - 70

To note the External Audit Certification Letter for Southwark Council 
attached as Appendix A of the report.

10. GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PLANS FOR SOUTHWARK COUNCIL 
AND SOUTHWARK PENSION FUND 2017-18

71 - 104

To note Grant Thornton’s audit plan for Southwark Council and draft audit 
Southwark Pension Fund 2017-18 (as attached as Appendices A and B of 
the report).

11. INTERNAL AUDIT AND ANTI-FRAUD UPDATE 105 - 141

1. To note the update on internal audit work attached as Appendix A 
of the report.

2. To note the update on anti-fraud work attached as Appendix B of 
the report.

12. ANNUAL REPORT ON THE COUNCIL'S RISK REGISTER AND 
REFRESH OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT AND 
STRATEGY

142 - 155



Item No. Title Page No.

1. To note the annual report on the council’s risk register and 
consider whether it would wish to propose any amendments for 
consideration.

2. To note the refresh of the risk management policy statement and 
strategy.

13. SOUTHWARK MEMBER INDUCTION PROGRAMME 2018 156 - 181

1. To note the progress which has been made in the implementation of 
Electronic Summons.

2. To note the completion of the project to roll out mobile technology to 
all Members.

3. To note and agree the draft Southwark Member Induction 
Programme 2018.

14. DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2018-19 182 - 192

1. To consider the proposed draft work programme for 2018-19 and 
whether the committee would wish to make amendments to 
arrangements as set out in paragraphs 8 and 9 of this report, or in 
respect of any other matters.

2. To agree, subject to any requested changes, the work programme 
for 2018-19 set out in Appendix 2 of the report. 

OTHER ITEMS

The following items are also scheduled for consideration at this meeting:

15. ANNUAL REPORT OF AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE

To follow. 

16. APPOINTMENT OF NON-VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS OF THE 
CIVIC AWARDS SUB-COMMITTEE FOR 2017-18

To follow.

ANY OTHER OPEN BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF THE 
MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT



Item No. Title Page No.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information:

“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to Information 
Procedure rules of the Constitution.”

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information:

  “That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to Information 
Procedure rules of the Constitution.”

Date:  9 February 2018



1

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee - Wednesday 22 November 2017

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 
held on Wednesday 22 November 2017 at 7.00 pm at Ground Floor Meeting Room 
G01A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 

PRESENT: Councillor Paul Fleming (Chair)
Councillor James Barber (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE
Councillor Andy Simmons

OFFICER
SUPPORT:

Duncan Whitfield (Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance) 
David Quirke-Thornton (Strategic Director of Children's and 
Adults Services)
Emma Marinos (Director of Modernise)
Jennifer Seeley (Director of Finance)
Jo Anson (Head of Financial and Information Governance)
Mark Compton-James (Head of IT & Digital Services)
Norman Coombe (Head of Corporate Legal Team)
Virginia Wynn-Jones (Constitutional Officer) 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Catherine Dale and David Hubber, 
and the independent members Bill Dee and Charles Wynn-Evans.

2. CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS 

The members present were confirmed as the voting members. 

3. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 

The chair agreed to accept a verbal update on independent members from Norman 
Coombe. 

1
Agenda Item 5



2

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee - Wednesday 22 November 2017

RESOLVED:

1. That a report be brought to the committee in February 2018 on the independent 
members.

2. That the civic awards sub-committee be given authority to agree independent 
members of the audit, governance and standards committee. 

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 

There were none. 

5. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meetings of 13 September 2017 and 18 September 2017 were agreed 
as a correct record and signed by the chair. 

6. GOVERNANCE TOPIC: IT 

The committee heard from Mark Compton-James Head of IT and Digital Services, and 
Emma Marinos, Director of Modernise. Members asked questions of the officers.

RESOLVED:

1. That further data on the number of IT incidents logged and resolved be circulated by 
officers to the committee in early 2018.

2. That a more detailed view of the finance and costs breakdown of the IT support 
contract be circulated by officers to the committee in early 2018.

7. GOVERNANCE TOPIC: BCF 

The committee heard from David Quirke-Thornton, Strategic Director of Children's and 
Adults' Services, and Duncan Whitfield, Strategic Director of Finance and Governance. 
Members asked questions of the officers.

RESOLVED:

That the audit and governance committee consider the business recovery board 
model and its use in other departments at a later meeting, potentially in 2018-19.

8. OUTCOMES OF THE WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY 

The committee heard from officers.  The committee had no questions.  

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

2



3

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee - Wednesday 22 November 2017

9. REPORT ON RETROSPECTIVE DECISION FOR THE CHARTER SCHOOL EAST 
DULWICH (TCSED) - ENABLING WORKS 

Officers presented the report.  Members had questions of the officers.

RESOLVED:

1. That the audit, governance and standards committee noted the retrospective 
contract decisions detailed in the report.

2. That the audit, governance and standards committee noted the actions taken to 
ensure that the risk of future retrospective contract decisions is minimised for the 
future, as set out in paragraph 19 of the report.

10. PROGRESS REPORT ON THE WORK OF INTERNAL AUDIT AND ANTI-FRAUD 

Officers presented the report to the committee.  The committee had questions of the 
officers.

RESOLVED:

1. That the audit, governance and standards committee noted the Internal Audit 
Progress report, attached as Appendix A to the report. 

2. That an update on corporate health and safety be brought to the committee in 
February 2018.

3. That the committee consider whether an interim audit into corporate health and 
safety is required before April 2018.

11. UPDATE ON CHIEF AUDIT EXECUTIVE 

Officers updated the committee on the chief audit executive.  

RESOLVED:

That the committee note the update.

12. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR SOUTHWARK COUNCIL AND SOUTHWARK PENSION 
FUND 2016-17 

Officers introduced the report.  Members had questions for the officers.

RESOLVED:

That the audit, governance and standards committee noted the final Annual Audit 
Letter for Southwark Council and Southwark Pension Fund, attached as Appendix A 
to the report.

3



4

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee - Wednesday 22 November 2017

13. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2018-19 INCLUDING: ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY, PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS, AND MINIMUM REVENUE 
PROVISION STATEMENT 

Officer introduced the report.  Members had questions of the officers.

RESOLVED:

That the audit, governance and standards committee:

1. Noted that the proposed 2018-19 treasury management strategy is to be managed 
by the strategic director of finance and governance under financial delegation.

2. Noted the proposed annual investment strategy 2018-19 as referred to in 
paragraph 13 to 19 of the report and set out at Appendix A of the report.

3. Noted the prudential indicators covering capital finance and treasury management 
for the years 2018-19 to 2020-21 set out at Appendix B of the report.   

4. Noted the minimum revenue provision statement, as unchanged from 2017-18, for 
setting aside prudent sums to reduce debt and long term liabilities set out at 
Appendix C of the report.

Meeting ended at 9.25 pm

CHAIR:

DATED:

4



Item No. 
6.

Classification:
Open

Date:
19 February 2018

Meeting Name:
Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee

Report title: Governance Topic: Update on HR

Ward(s) or groups affected All wards

From: Head of Human Resources
 

 
RECOMMENDATION

1. That the audit and governance committee notes the progress in delivery 
against the workforce strategy since the last update in March 2017 and the 
current areas of activity.

BACKGROUND

2. On 1 November 2016, Cabinet agreed a new workforce strategy for the Council 
as part of its modernisation programme. The strategy aims to develop the 
culture, skills, processes and management capability to support a productive, 
motivated and high performing workforce and identifies nine delivery areas in 
order to achieve our ambitions:

 New ways of working 
 Recruitment and retention 
 Management and leadership
 Learning and development 
 HR management and policies
 Pay and reward 
 Equality and diversity 
 Job design and organisational structure 
 Wellbeing and engagement.

3. Since the introduction of the Modernise division, this work is jointly led by the 
human resources and organisation transformation teams, who have been 
developing a work programme to deliver against this ambitious strategy. 

4. Through its governance framework the council can monitor performance and 
the achievement of strategic objectives. At its meeting in March 2017, the audit 
and governance committee received a report on human resources as a 
governance theme setting out achievements and future activities in line with the 
workforce strategy. The committee asked for a further update on progress in a 
year’s time. A summary of activity against each area is set out below.

New ways of working 

5. The council has a number of large scale projects underway to improve the 
office accommodation that houses services to some of our most vulnerable 
residents. In order to maximise the efficiency of our buildings, we are 
implementing new ways of working starting with Children’s Social Care to look 
at making better use of our systems, using less paper, and improving digital 
skills.

5
Agenda Item 6



6. The council has a well-established employee and manager self-service HR and 
Payroll system (SAP), which has now been upgraded, allowing opportunities 
for improvements. New processes will reduce duplicate activity such as 
rekeying of data and allow faster processing of payroll transactions. 

7. Mobile working support has been delivered to councillors with all now having 
an iPad and iPhone to undertake their duties and access to tailored support. 

8. We have started to pilot quarterly narrative HR workforce reports developing 
better skills in using an evidence base to inform workforce priorities.

Recruitment and retention

9. Following a review of recruitment, a detailed action plan has been developed 
and is currently being delivered. Improvements in the past year include a new 
look and feel jobs site (www.jobsatsouthwark.co.uk) and improvements to our 
recruitment system, allowing candidates to apply via any smart mobile device 
and managers to check and progress recruitment on the go via iPhone and 
iPad.

10. We are actively using the council’s website and social media pages to improve 
the profile of the organisation as an employer by placing positive articles.  The 
number of followers has increased and we can now create in-house microsites 
for campaigns, significantly reducing the cost of advertising for the council.

11. We continue to improve our approach to employment vetting and our recent 
DBS compliance check made recommendations aligned to our existing work 
programme around regulated activity. The recruitment system is being 
improved to assist in the assessment and scrutiny of the declaration of criminal 
convictions, DBS disclosures and disability declarations to ensure that those 
candidates recruited can fulfil the role and meet the organisation’s 
requirements. 

12. Our time to hire new recruits remains stable with data showing that the average 
time to hire is 26 days (below our target of within 30), including all safeguarding 
checks. 93% of recruitment campaigns resulted in a successful appointment, 
up from 72% last year.

13. A consistent, council-wide approach to apprenticeships has been agreed and 
communicated across the council, maximising our use of the government’s 
apprenticeship levy. Training providers have been retendered under the new 
system and will be added to depending on demand. New higher apprenticeship 
schemes were introduced for graduate apprentices with first cohorts recruited. 

14. We met our Council Plan target of 3% of the workforce being apprentices or 
first entry level in November 2017.  Managers across the organisation have 
taken on a cumulative total over the year of 94 apprentices to end of January.

15. Southwark is the only London Borough on the national top 100 apprentice 
employers list and remains in the top quartile for apprentices at London 
Councils.

6

http://www.jobsatsouthwark.co.uk/


Management and leadership

16. Our recent staff survey showed that the view from staff about line managers is 
overwhelmingly positive; results showed that we are 16-32% above the CIPD 
benchmark on questions where we can compare ourselves to other 
organisations. 

17. A Southwark manager programme is being implemented to cover behaviours, 
learning and development, pay and reward, performance management and 
equalities, with a clearly articulated toolkit to guide managers on each element.

18. All of our L&D activity has been grouped by staff member, manager and senior 
manager to support our managers in undertaking their responsibility. New 
courses include our leadership and management offer, e.g. managing change; 
managing a mobile workforce, courageous conversations and managing 
performance. Our Institute of Leadership and Management (ILM) Development 
Programme continues to have positive outcomes, with 86 employees starting 
the programme this year, at a variety of levels. 

Learning and development (L&D)

19. A new structure within the L&D team has been implemented that increases the 
focus on business partnering across the organisation and brings in a dedicated 
digital learning partner. 

20. Southwark council’s new L&D plan has been launched, which establishes the 
principle of a 70:20:10 approach to learning at the council where 70% of 
learning is experiential, 20% is from exposure to networks, coaching and 
sharing experience and 10% comes from formal learning. Further initiatives to 
embed this within the council will take place in 2018. 

21. A full L&D procurement programme has been completed and resulting courses 
implemented.  This includes the roll out of information governance training 
across the council and the development and approval of the Adults and 
Children’s safeguarding L&D plan.

22. A new Professional Qualification Scheme (PQS) application and approval 
process has been successfully launched. This has brought consistency in how 
the scheme is accessed and approved across the council, enabling staff and 
managers to make better L&D and budget decisions and ensure appropriate 
strategic oversight. This has improved equal access to professional 
qualifications within the council and increased transparency to how PQS 
decisions are made. 

23. A new learning management system (LMS) was implemented on 22 January 
2018. The system provides details of all learning interventions across the 
organisation, whether they are classroom based, e-learning modules, webinars 
or video clips. The LMS will keep records of Continuous Professional 
Development (CPD) and Personal Development Plans (PDP) for all users. 
Details of external courses attended and associated documentation such as 
completed assignments will also be captured on the system, providing a holistic 
record of learning for each user.

7



HR management and policies

24. Consultation with the recognised trade unions is underway across the key 
employee relations areas: disciplinary, grievance and capability (performance 
and absence), with a view to modernising our policies and procedures and 
ensuring they are short and easy to read, create consistency and promote a 
culture and framework for managers to take responsibility for managing their 
staff professionally and fairly. 

25. We are working in collaboration with our trade union colleagues to develop 
guidance around gender identity and transition. 

26. We are reviewing our approach to supporting parents with premature births.

Pay and reward 

27. We are placing a strong focus on pay and performance. Our benefits packages 
need to ensure that the rewards of working for Southwark are attractive, 
modern, and relevant to the aspirations of our workforce. This will include 
making sure that our employment package is consistent where it needs to be, 
but offers flexibility to be tailored to meet different business or individual needs, 
while ensuring value for money in difficult financial times. 

28. Our suite of benefits facilitates employment for parent-carers and addresses 
our ambitions for a greener borough through supporting sustainable travel e.g. 
season ticket loans, cycle scheme and childcare support.

29. A behaviours framework has been developed and will be implemented in 
March 2018. This sets out our expectations of staff and managers at 
Southwark to promote consistency and allow people to see the ways of working 
that they will need to demonstrate to progress in the council. This will help 
managers embed behaviourally based performance management across the 
council. 

30. Changes were introduced in April 2017 to the tax legislation (IR35) which affect 
workers who choose to operate through a limited company vehicle. A project 
was carried out to review all consultants and agency workers to ensure 
compliance with the HMRC’s checklist for employment status and taxation.

Equality and diversity 

31. Our annual workforce report shows that the demographics of our workforce 
have remained stable over the past few years, despite the significant staffing 
reductions as a result of our financial challenges; for example 51% of our staff 
are female, 49% from a black or minority ethnic background, both of which are 
very similar to the percentages in the Southwark community. 3.3% have 
declared a disability. 

32. New requirements for Gender Pay Gap reporting on pay and bonuses came into 
force this year and we published our data in accordance with statutory 
calculations as part of our annual workforce report to Cabinet. The data shows 
that the average pay for female staff is above the average pay for male staff. 
This is predominantly driven by the fact that we have a large in-house street 
cleaning service where roles are at the lower grades in our structure. The 
majority of that staff group is male. Bonuses are only in place within our traded 

8



service, e.g. for electricians and plumbers. This is almost entirely a male 
staffed service and the average bonus pay is higher for men. This is influenced 
by the additional shifts they carry out which the legislation requires us to 
include. The scheme is under review.

33. We have successfully achieved stage one of Disability confident reaccreditation 
and have delivered training with an experienced barrister to our top 100 
managers to help them to deliver their equalities responsibilities.

34. We are developing a workforce equality plan in consultation with recognised 
groups such as the Women’s Network.

Job design and organisational structure 

35. The organisational structure change within Modernise has been implemented 
creating a new change team within HR, and a new Organisation 
Transformation team covering learning and development, organisational 
development, business transformation and workplace planning. 

36. HR have completed the retendering of our agency contract with a view to 
continuing to improve our approach to resource planning and reduce our 
reliance on agency workers in certain areas.

37. The enhanced voluntary redundancy (EVR) scheme ended in March 2017. 
Improvements to organisational change planning allow managers to better 
prepare for individuals leaving the Council, allowing for better knowledge 
transfer.

Wellbeing and engagement

38. We already hold the middle level of the London Healthy Workplace Charter in 
recognition of our employee health and well-being initiatives and will continue 
to work with our Health and Safety teams towards excellence.

39. Sickness absence stands at 6.3 days per employee, in the lowest quartile when 
compared with other London boroughs at 7.8 days. We are looking to refine our 
categorisation of sickness absence reasons to allow us to better target health 
and wellness initiatives for staff in partnership with our occupational health 
provider. We recently piloted some mental health sessions.

40. We refreshed our intranet to enable easier access to key information and 
launched a ‘Fit for the future’ manager email to update the top 500 managers 
on progress and new initiatives, encouraging them to cascade this to their staff. 

41. The Top 100 leaders programme was launched to bring together senior 
managers across the council and improve information sharing and planning.

42. The staff survey results and action plan have been communicated across the 
council within senior management team meetings, department meetings and 
directorate conferences. 

43. We continue to offer excellent flexible working arrangements with 13% of staff 
working part-time and many others able to work in less formal flexible ways 
such as home working and flexible start and finish times.

9



Policy implications

44. This update report is not considered to have direct policy implications.

Community impact statement

45. This update report is not considered to have a direct impact on local people 
and communities.

Resource implications

46. This update report is not considered to have any direct impact on resources.

Consultation

47. There has not been any consultation in relation the content of this update 
report.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

48. Not required.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Background Papers Held At Contact
None   

APPENDICES

No Title 
None 

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Julie Foy, Head of Human Resources
Report Author Julie Foy, Head of Human Resources

Version Final
Dated 7 February 2018

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance No No

Director of Law and Democracy No No
Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 7 February 2017

10



Item No:
7.

Classification:
Open

Date:
19 February 2018

Meeting Name:
Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee  

Report title: Internal Audit Operational Plan 2018-19 and 
Strategic Plan 2018-19 to 2020-21

Wards or Groups affected: All

From: Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the audit, governance and standards committee approve the internal audit 
plan for 2018-19 attached as Appendix A.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

2. The role of internal auditors is to provide independent, objective assurance 
designed to add value and improve the council’s performance.  It assists the 
council to achieve its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes.

3. The strategy for internal audit resource allocation is aimed at:

 Allocating internal audit resource against those areas that are high risk or 
where management have a particular need or requirement for internal audit 
coverage

 Determining priorities and establish the most cost-effective means of 
providing the organisation with assurances

 Ensuring that adequate attention is devoted to critical areas where assurance 
is required.

Community impact statement

4. This report is not considered to have a direct impact on local people and 
communities. 

Resource implications

5. The cost of the internal audit service are contained within existing budgets for 
2018-19.

Consultation

6. There has been consultation with strategic directors, directors and key staff in 
developing the plan, and with the audit panel, corporate governance panel, chief 
officers team and directors forum on the draft plan.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

7. None required.

11
Agenda Item 7



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held at Contact
None. 

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix A Internal Audit Operational Plan 2018-19 and Strategic Plan 

2018-19 to 2020-21 

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Jennifer Seeley, Director of Finance
Report Author Jennifer Seeley, Director of Finance

Version Final
Version Date 6 February 2018
Key Decision No

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /
 CABINET MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included
Director of Law and 
Democracy

N/A N/A

Strategic Director of 
Finance and Governance

N/A N/A

Cabinet Member N/A N/A
Final report sent to the Constitutional Team 7 February 2018

12



  

    

 
 
 

 
 

 

   LO
N

D
O

N
 B

O
RO

U
G

H
 O

F 
SO

U
TH

W
A

RK
 

IN
TE

RN
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 P

LA
N

  

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 P
la

n 
20

18
-1

9 
an

d 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 2
01

8-
19

 t
o 

20
20

-2
1 

 

A
ud

it
, 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e 
 

19
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
18

 

APPENDIX A13



Pa
ge
 |
 2
  

CO
N

TE
N

TS
 

 
Pa

ge
 

1.
 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 a

t 
th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f 

So
ut

hw
ar

k 
3 

2.
 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

 a
llo

ca
ti

on
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

   
   

  
4 

3.
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 s

ta
ff

in
g 

5 

4.
 

Au
di

t 
ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

6 

5.
 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 o

pe
ra

ti
on

al
 p

la
n 

20
18

-1
9 

8 

6.
 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 o

pe
ra

ti
on

al
 p

la
n 

da
ys

 s
um

m
ar

y 
by

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

18
 

7.
 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

20
18

-1
9 

to
 2

02
0-

21
 

19
 

Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 

 

I –
 In

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 c
ha

rt
er

 
31

 

14



Pa
ge
 |
 3
  

1.
 IN

TE
RN

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 A
T 

LO
N

D
O

N
 B

O
RO

U
G

H
 O

F 
SO

U
TH

W
A

RK
 

In
tr

od
uc

ti
on

 

O
ur

 r
ol

e 
as

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
or

s 
is

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t,

 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 t

o 
ad

d 
va

lu
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
. 

O
ur

 r
em

it
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ac
h,

 a
s 

se
t 

ou
t 

in
 t

he
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 c
ha

rt
er

 (
at

ta
ch

ed
 a

t 
ap

pe
nd

ix
 I)

 a
nd

 t
he

 B
D

O
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 m
an

ua
l,

 is
 t

o 
he

lp
 y

ou
 a

cc
om

pl
is

h 
yo

ur
 o

bj
ec

ti
ve

s 
by

 b
ri

ng
in

g 
a 

sy
st

em
at

ic
, 

di
sc

ip
lin

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t,
 c

on
tr

ol
 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

. 

O
ur

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
co

m
pl

ie
s 

w
it

h 
be

st
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l p

ra
ct

ic
e,

 
in

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r,

 t
he

 P
ub

lic
 S

ec
to

r 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it

 
St

an
da

rd
s.

 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
's 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 a

re
 t

o:
 

• 
Re

m
ai

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

in
 t

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
to

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

Au
di

t,
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e 
• 

Fo
rm

ul
at

e 
an

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 t

hr
ee

 y
ea

r 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

 
an

d 
an

nu
al

 o
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 p
la

n,
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
re

gu
la

r 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 

• 
Re

sp
on

d 
to

 n
ew

 a
nd

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 r

is
ks

 t
hr

ou
gh

 o
n 

go
in

g 
lia

is
on

 w
it

h 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

ad
eq

ua
te

 c
on

ti
ng

en
cy

 
• 

U
se

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

om
pa

ri
so

n 
to

 id
en

ti
fy

 w
id

er
 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 t

he
 s

ec
to

r 
• 

W
or

k 
cl

os
el

y 
w

it
h 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
to

 o
pt

im
is

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e,

 d
ev

el
op

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 

co
nc

lu
si

on
s 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
• 

W
or

k 
w

it
h 

th
e 

an
ti

-f
ra

ud
 s

er
vi

ce
 t

o 
op

ti
m

is
e 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
co

ve
ra

ge
, 

pr
om

ot
e 

go
od

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
an

d 
fr

au
d 

pr
ev

en
ti

on
s 

an
d 

ai
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t.

  

 
In

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 a
t 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
So

ut
hw

ar
k 

BD
O

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ap

po
in

te
d 

as
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

or
s 

to
 t

he
 L

on
do

n 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
of

 S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
w

it
h 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
on

 t
he

 a
de

qu
ac

y 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

. 
O

ur
 r

ol
e 

at
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 a

im
ed

 a
t 

he
lp

in
g 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t,
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
, 

so
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 a

ny
 s

ig
ni

fi
ca

nt
 r

is
ks

 
fa

ci
ng

 t
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n.
 

W
e 

re
po

rt
 t

o 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

di
re

ct
or

 o
f 

fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
, 

as
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

se
ct

io
n 

15
1 

of
fi

ce
r,

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 f
in

an
ce

 o
n 

an
 o

pe
ra

ti
on

al
 b

as
is

. 
Si

nc
e 

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
17

, 
th

e 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t 
Pa

rt
ne

r,
 G

re
g 

Ru
bi

ns
, 

is
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

Ch
ie

f 
Au

di
t 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e.
 

Re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 r

em
ai

ns
 f

ul
ly

 w
it

h 
m

an
ag

em
en

t,
 w

ho
 s

ho
ul

d 
re

co
gn

is
e 

th
at

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 c

an
 o

nl
y 

pr
ov

id
e 

‘r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e’
 a

nd
 c

an
no

t 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

y 
gu

ar
an

te
e 

ag
ai

ns
t 

m
at

er
ia

l e
rr

or
s,

 
lo

ss
 o

r 
fr

au
d.

  

In
 p

ro
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 in
te

rn
al

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

 p
er

io
d 

to
 2

02
0-

21
 (

w
hi

ch
 

al
ig

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 o
ur

 c
ur

re
nt

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
w

it
h 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l o

n 
30

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

20
) 

an
d 

th
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

 o
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 a
ud

it
 p

la
n 

fo
r 

20
18

-1
9,

 w
e 

ha
ve

 s
ou

gh
t 

to
 f

ur
th

er
 

cl
ar

if
y 

ou
r 

in
it

ia
l u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l w
it

h 
it

s 
ri

sk
 

pr
of

ile
 in

 t
he

 c
on

te
xt

 o
f:

 
• 

Th
e 

ov
er

al
l o

bj
ec

ti
ve

s 
of

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

th
os

e 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
  

• 
Th

e 
ke

y 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
w

is
h 

to
 m

on
it

or
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 t

he
 

m
an

ne
r 

in
 w

hi
ch

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 m

ea
su

re
d 

• 
Th

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 n

on
-f

in
an

ci
al

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 o
f 

su
ch

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

• 
Th

e 
ke

y 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 f
ac

in
g 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
fi

na
nc

ia
l p

re
ss

ur
e 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

 c
on

st
ra

in
ts

 
• 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
fa

ir
er

 f
ut

ur
e 

pr
om

is
es

. 

W
e 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
th

at
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
io

ri
ti

es
 m

ay
 c

ha
ng

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

el
ec

ti
on

 o
f 

a 
ne

w
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
in

 M
ay

 2
01

8 
an

d 
as

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il’

s 
ne

xt
 f

ou
r 

ye
ar

 p
la

n 
is

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

 W
e 

w
ill

 f
or

m
al

ly
 r

ev
is

it
 t

he
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 p
la

n 
in

-y
ea

r 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
it

 c
on

ti
nu

es
 t

o 
be

 a
lig

ne
d 

to
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

ke
y 

pr
io

ri
ti

es
 a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
ri

sk
s.

 

15



Pa
ge
 |
 4
  

2.
 IN

TE
RN

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 S
TR

A
TE

G
Y 

A
N

D
 R

ES
O

U
RC

E 
A

LL
O

CA
TI

O
N

 
In

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 s
tr

at
eg

y 

Th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 a
t 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
ba

se
d 

up
on

: 

1.
 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e,

 w
hi

ch
 e

ns
ur

es
 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 o
bj

ec
ti

vi
ty

 o
f 

th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 s

ta
ff

 

2.
 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
sy

st
em

at
ic

 a
pp

ro
ac

h,
 c

ov
er

in
g 

ke
y 

ar
ea

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
• 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
w

or
k 

on
 k

ey
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s 
• 

Ri
sk

 b
as

ed
 a

ud
it

s 
to

 c
on

fi
rm

 a
ct

io
ns

 t
o 

m
it

ig
at

e 
ri

sk
s 

• 
Sp

ec
ia

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
lin

ki
ng

 w
it

h 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

o 
he

lp
 p

ro
vi

de
 t

he
m

 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
a 

pe
ri

od
 o

f 
ch

an
ge

 
• 

Jo
in

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 w

it
h 

th
e 

an
ti

-f
ra

ud
 a

nd
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 
sp

ec
ia

lis
m

s 
to

 h
el

p 
se

rv
ic

es
 p

ro
te

ct
 r

es
ou

rc
es

  
• 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 a
ud

it
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

on
 k

ey
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

• 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
au

di
ts

 t
o 

co
ve

r 
a 

cy
cl

e 
of

 t
hr

ee
 y

ea
rs

 
• 

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

to
 a

llo
w

 r
es

po
ns

iv
en

es
s 

to
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 r
is

ks
. 

3.
 

Pr
om

ot
in

g 
go

od
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

in
: 

• 
Ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
• 

Co
nt

ro
l a

nd
 f

ra
ud

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

• 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e.
 

4.
 

Ad
di

ng
 v

al
ue

 b
y:

 
• 

W
or

ki
ng

 w
it

h 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 t
he

 m
os

t 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
• 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

• 
Be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 B

D
O

 n
et

w
or

k,
 L

on
do

n 
Au

di
t 

G
ro

up
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
ou

rc
es

. 

5.
   

 O
pt

im
is

in
g 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
by

: 
• 

W
or

ki
ng

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
it

h 
ot

he
r 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 t
o 

op
ti

m
is

e 
co

ve
ra

ge
 

• 
U

ti
lis

in
g 

th
e 

th
re

e 
lin

es
 o

f 
de

fe
nc

e 
m

od
el

 t
o 

dr
aw

 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

fr
om

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
so

ur
ce

s.
 

 
Re

so
ur

ce
 a

llo
ca

ti
on

 s
tr

at
eg

y 

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 f
or

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

al
lo

ca
ti

on
 is

 a
im

ed
 a

t:
 

• 
Al

lo
ca

ti
ng

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
os

e 
ar

ea
s 

th
at

 a
re

 
hi

gh
 r

is
k 

or
 w

he
re

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ha
ve

 a
 p

ar
ti

cu
la

r 
ne

ed
 o

r 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
• 

D
et

er
m

in
in

g 
pr

io
ri

ti
es

 a
nd

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
th

e 
m

os
t 

co
st

-e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 

m
ea

ns
 o

f 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

ti
on

 w
it

h 
as

su
ra

nc
es

 
• 

En
su

ri
ng

 t
ha

t 
ad

eq
ua

te
 a

tt
en

ti
on

 is
 d

ev
ot

ed
 t

o 
cr

it
ic

al
 a

re
as

 
w

he
re

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d.
 

W
e 

w
ill

 u
pd

at
e 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 r
em

ai
ns

 r
el

ev
an

t 
as

 t
he

 r
is

ks
 f

ac
in

g 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l c
ha

ng
e.

 A
ny

 s
ig

ni
fi

ca
nt

 c
ha

ng
es

 m
ad

e 
to

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
ar

e 
di

sc
us

se
d 

w
it

h 
ke

y 
co

nt
ac

ts
 a

nd
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

au
di

t,
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
st

an
da

rd
s 

co
m

m
it

te
e.

 

Th
e 

ch
ie

f 
au

di
t 

ex
ec

ut
iv

e’
s 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 j
ud

ge
m

en
t 

ha
s 

be
en

 
ap

pl
ie

d 
in

 a
ss

es
si

ng
 t

he
 le

ve
l o

f 
re

so
ur

ce
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 t

he
 

st
ra

te
gy

. 

Th
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

re
so

ur
ce

 a
pp

lie
d 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 t

he
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

is
 a

 p
ro

du
ct

 o
f:

 
• 

Th
e 

co
m

pl
ex

it
y 

of
 t

he
 a

re
as

 t
o 

be
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 
• 

Th
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
th

at
 t

he
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

pl
ac

es
 r

el
ia

nc
e 

on
 in

 
or

de
r 

to
 m

it
ig

at
e 

it
s 

ri
sk

s 
• 

Fa
ct

or
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 lo

ca
ti

on
s,

 n
um

be
r 

an
d 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
of

 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 

• 
As

su
ra

nc
e 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

br
ou

gh
t 

fo
rw

ar
d 

fr
om

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
au

di
ts

. 

In
 li

ne
 w

it
h 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
, 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
sk

ill
s 

an
d 

de
liv

er
y 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

au
di

t 
pl

an
: 

• 
Th

e 
Ch

ie
f 

Au
di

t 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

is
 C

IP
FA

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
• 

BD
O

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
fl

ex
ib

ili
ty

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
m

ix
 o

f 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
ly

 
qu

al
if

ie
d 

st
af

f 
w

it
h 

sp
ec

ia
lis

m
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
fi

na
nc

e,
 IT

 a
nd

 
co

nt
ra

ct
. 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 t

he
 p

la
n 

fo
r 

20
18

-1
9.

 

16



Pa
ge
 |
 5
  

3.
 P

RO
PO

SE
D

 R
ES

O
U

RC
ES

 A
N

D
 S

TA
FF

IN
G

 
Th

e 
co

re
 t

ea
m

 t
ha

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

in
g 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

to
 y

ou
 is

 s
ho

w
n 

be
lo

w
: 

 

N
am

e 
G

ra
de

 
Te

le
ph

on
e 

Em
ai

l 

G
re

g 
Ru

bi
ns

 
CP

FA
 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t 

pa
rt

ne
r 

an
d 

ch
ie

f 
au

di
t 

ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
 0

77
10

 7
03

44
1 

G
re

g.
Ru

bi
ns

@
bd

o.
co

.u
k 

An
ge

la
 M

as
on

-B
el

l 
CP

FA
, 

CI
A 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t 

m
an

ag
er

 
 0

78
13

 0
00

31
9 

An
ge

la
.M

as
on

-B
el

l@
bd

o.
co

.u
k 

  

Ia
n 

W
ilt

sh
ir

e 
As

si
st

an
t 

M
an

ag
er

 
 0

78
13

 0
00

31
8 

Ia
n.

W
ilt

sh
ir

e@
bd

o.
co

.u
k 

 

 

Th
e 

co
re

 t
ea

m
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 s

pe
ci

al
is

ts
 f

ro
m

 o
ur

 n
at

io
na

l R
is

k 
an

d 
Ad

vi
so

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Te
am

 a
nd

 t
he

 w
id

er
 f

ir
m

 a
s 

an
d 

w
he

n 
re

qu
ir

ed
. 

O
ur

 in
di

ca
ti

ve
 s

ta
ff

 m
ix

 t
o 

de
liv

er
 t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r 
20

18
-1

9 
is

 s
ho

w
n 

be
lo

w
: 

G
ra

de
 

A
nn

ua
l d

ay
s 

G
ra

de
 M

ix
 (

%
) 

Pa
rt

ne
r 

(i
nc

lu
di

ng
 c

hi
ef

 a
ud

it
 e

xe
cu

ti
ve

 r
ol

e)
 

10
3 

10
 

Au
di

t 
M

an
ag

er
 

20
6 

20
 

As
si

st
an

t 
M

an
ag

er
 

20
6 

20
 

Au
di

to
rs

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

Q
ua

lif
ie

d)
 &

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t 

St
af

f 
51

5 
50

 

To
ta

l 
10

30
 

10
0 

 
 

 
 

17



Pa
ge
 |
 6
  

4.
 A

U
D

IT
 R

IS
K 

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T 

A
N

D
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 

Th
e 

ex
te

nt
 t

o 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ca
n 

re
ly

 o
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t’

s 
ow

n 
pe

rc
ep

ti
on

 o
f 

ri
sk

 la
rg

el
y 

de
pe

nd
s 

on
 t

he
 m

at
ur

it
y 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il’

s 
ow

n 
ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. 

 

O
ur

 r
is

k 
ba

se
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
o 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 u

se
s 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
ow

n 
ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pr

oc
es

s 
an

d 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

as
 a

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
po

in
t 

fo
r 

au
di

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

s 
th

is
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

ow
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 

th
e 

ri
sk

s 
to

 it
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 it
s 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

. 

In
 e

st
im

at
in

g 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

au
di

t 
re

so
ur

ce
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 

th
e 

m
os

t 
si

gn
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s,

 w
e 

ha
ve

 a
ls

o 
so

ug
ht

 s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t’

s 
ow

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
of

 r
is

k.
 

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 p

la
n 

fo
r 

20
18

-1
9 

is
 s

ho
w

n 
fr

om
 p

ag
e 

ei
gh

t,
 w

it
h 

an
 in

di
ca

ti
ve

 t
hr

ee
 y

ea
r 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
 f

or
 t

he
 p

er
io

d 
to

 2
02

0-
21

 s
ho

w
n 

fr
om

 p
ag

e 
20

. 

Th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 p

la
ns

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

an
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
co

rp
or

at
e 

fr
am

ew
or

k,
 c

ul
tu

re
, 

an
d 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ta

l 
sy

st
em

s,
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

s,
 o

pe
ra

ti
on

s,
 a

nd
 r

is
ks

. 

In
 c

om
pi

lin
g 

th
es

e 
pl

an
s 

w
e 

ha
ve

 m
et

 w
it

h 
th

e 
ch

ie
f 

ex
ec

ut
iv

e,
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

or
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
se

ni
or

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

te
am

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

ke
y 

su
pp

or
t 

fu
nc

ti
on

s.
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

• 
Ar

ea
s 

of
 c

on
ce

rn
 o

r 
re

qu
es

ts
 f

or
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

fr
om

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

au
di

t,
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
st

an
da

rd
s 

co
m

m
it

te
e 

• 
An

y 
re

ce
nt

 s
ig

ni
fi

ca
nt

 c
ha

ng
es

 w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l a

nd
 it

s 
op

er
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 f
un

ct
io

ns
 

• 
Re

gu
la

to
ry

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 f

or
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
• 

Em
er

gi
ng

 is
su

es
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
an

y 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 r
is

ks
 t

ha
t 

do
 n

ot
 

ap
pe

ar
 o

n 
th

e 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
rs

 b
ut

 m
ay

 m
er

it
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 
co

ve
ra

ge
 

• 
Re

su
lt

s 
of

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 w
or

k 
 

 
  

1
•

Ag
re

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

w
ith

 d
ie

ct
or

 o
f f

in
an

ce

2
•

M
et

 w
ith

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

or
s,

 d
ire

ct
or

s 
an

d 
ke

y 
st

af
f

3 
•C

on
si

de
re

d 
cl

ie
nt

/s
ec

to
r r

is
ks

 a
nd

 a
ud

it 
pl

an
s 

ac
ro

ss
 o

ur
 

po
rtf

ol
io

4
•R

ev
ie

w
ed

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 c
or

po
ra

te
 a

nd
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

s 
an

d 
co

rp
or

at
e 

pl
an

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es

5

•C
irc

ul
at

ed
 d

ra
ft 

pl
an

 fo
r c

om
m

en
t t

o 
th

e 
au

di
t p

an
el

, 
co

rp
or

at
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 p

an
el

, c
hi

ef
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 te

am
 a

nd
 

di
re

ct
or

s 
fo

ru
m

6
•P

re
se

nt
ed

 th
e 

dr
af

t p
la

n 
to

 th
e 

au
di

t, 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
nd

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

co
m

m
itt

ee

7
•A

fte
r a

pp
ro

va
l /

 u
pd

at
es

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
au

di
t, 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 

st
an

da
rd

s 
co

m
m

itt
ee

, t
he

 fi
na

l p
la

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
ci

rc
ul

at
ed

 to
 th

e 
ch

ie
f o

ffi
ce

rs
 te

am
 a

nd
 d

ire
ct

or
s 

fo
ru

m
.

18



Pa
ge
 |
 7
  

4.
 A

U
D

IT
 R

IS
K 

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T 

A
N

D
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 

In
di

vi
du

al
 a

ud
it

s 

Th
os

e 
au

di
t 

ar
ea

s 
th

at
 d

o 
no

t 
fe

at
ur

e 
in

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
ar

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r 
an

d 
m

ay
 r

et
ur

n 
to

 t
he

 a
ud

it
 p

la
n 

in
 f

ut
ur

e 
ye

ar
s.

 A
re

as
 

su
ch

 a
s 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 r

is
ks

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

 m
ay

 
be

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 o

th
er

 s
pe

ci
fi

c 
au

di
ts

 r
at

he
r 

th
an

 
en

co
m

pa
ss

in
g 

an
 o

ve
ra

rc
hi

ng
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 

W
he

n 
w

e 
sc

op
e 

ea
ch

 r
ev

ie
w

, 
w

e 
w

ill
 r

ec
on

si
de

r 
ou

r 
es

ti
m

at
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 d

ay
s 

ne
ed

ed
 t

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

w
or

k 
an

d 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
it

 t
o 

a 
sa

ti
sf

ac
to

ry
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

in
 li

gh
t 

of
 t

he
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l.
  W

he
re

 
re

vi
si

on
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 w
e 

w
ill

 o
bt

ai
n 

ap
pr

ov
al

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 d

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 

fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

or
 p

ri
or

 t
o 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 
fi

el
dw

or
k.

 

In
 d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

th
e 

ti
m

in
g 

of
 o

ur
 in

di
vi

du
al

 a
ud

it
s 

w
e 

w
ill

 s
ee

k 
to

 
ag

re
e 

a 
da

te
 w

hi
ch

 is
 c

on
ve

ni
en

t 
to

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 e

ns
ur

es
 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 k

ey
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
st

af
f 

an
d 

to
 m

ax
im

is
e 

th
e 

be
ne

fi
t 

of
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
   

Va
ri

at
io

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
au

di
t 

pl
an

 

W
e 

w
ill

 k
ee

p 
th

e 
pl

an
 f

or
 2

01
8-

19
 u

nd
er

 c
on

ti
nu

ou
s 

re
vi

ew
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 w

ill
 in

tr
od

uc
e 

to
 t

he
 p

la
n 

an
y 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

ar
ea

s 
of

 r
is

k 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 b
y 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

du
ri

ng
 t

ha
t 

pe
ri

od
. 

  

Re
po

rt
in

g 

Th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
is

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 o
f 

fi
nd

in
gs

 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s.
 T

hi
s 

is
 d

on
e 

th
ro

ug
h:

 

• 
Re

gu
la

r 
up

da
te

s 
to

 a
ud

it
ee

s,
 m

an
ag

er
s,

 d
ir

ec
to

rs
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ex
it

 
m

ee
ti

ng
s,

 d
ra

ft
 a

nd
 f

in
al

 r
ep

or
ts

. 

• 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt

s 
su

m
m

ar
is

in
g 

fi
nd

in
gs

 a
nd

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
in

g 
ke

y 
is

su
e 

to
 t

he
 a

ud
it

 a
nd

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e.

 

• 
An

 a
nn

ua
l o

pi
ni

on
 d

ra
w

in
g 

to
ge

th
er

 k
ey

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 t

he
m

es
. 

Th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

is
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 c
o-

op
er

at
io

n 
an

d 
ag

re
em

en
t.

 
Th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

, 
ho

w
ev

er
, 

al
so

 a
ff

or
de

d 
un

fe
tt

er
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
es

ca
la

ti
on

 o
f 

m
at

te
rs

 w
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. 

Re
po

rt
in

g 
to

 t
he

 a
ud

it
, 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 c
om

m
it

te
e 

W
e 

w
ill

 s
ub

m
it

 t
he

 d
ra

ft
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it

 P
la

n 
fo

r 
di

sc
us

si
on

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
th

e 
Au

di
t,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e 
in

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
8.

  

W
e 

w
ill

 li
ai

se
 w

it
h 

th
e 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

en
io

r 
of

fi
ce

rs
 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 r
ep

or
ts

 s
um

m
ar

is
in

g 
th

e 
re

su
lt

s 
of

 o
ur

 v
is

it
s 

ar
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 t
he

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 A
ud

it
, 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e 
m

ee
ti

ng
. 

 

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 t
he

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r 

w
e 

w
ill

 p
ro

du
ce

 a
n 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

su
m

m
ar

is
in

g 
ou

r 
ke

y 
fi

nd
in

gs
 a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
in

g 
ou

r 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
it

h 
ag

re
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
. 

  
  

 

  
 

19



Pa
ge
 |
 8
  

5.
 I

N
TE

RN
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 O

PE
RA

TI
O

N
A

L 
PL

A
N

 2
01

8-
19

 
Re

f.
 

A
ud

it
 A

re
a 

Li
nk

 t
o 

Co
un

ci
l/

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

Ri
sk

 R
eg

is
te

rs
 

A
ud

it
 S

po
ns

or
 

Pl
an

ne
d 

D
ay

s 
In

di
ca

ti
ve

 
Ti

m
in

g 
O

ut
lin

e 
Sc

op
e 

Ch
ie

f 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e’

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

CX
04

 
Bu

ild
in

g 
co

nt
ro

l 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
re

f 
D

CE
X0

12
6 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 C
R8

 
an

d 
CR

15
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

10
 

Q
3 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

th
e 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Co
nt

ro
l R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

re
sp

on
se

 t
o 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

om
 t

he
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

bu
ild

in
g 

re
gu

la
ti

on
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 D
am

e 
Ju

di
th

 H
ac

ke
tt

. 

Ch
ild

re
n’

s 
an

d 
A

du
lt

s’
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

CA
S0

1 
Ad

ul
t 

da
y 

ca
re

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
re

f 
CA

S0
02

1 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ad

ul
t 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

 
10

 
Q

4 
Fo

cu
s 

on
 t

he
 F

re
d 

Fr
an

ci
s 

D
ay

 C
en

tr
e 

- 
po

st
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 r

ev
ie

w
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 t

o 
re

du
ce

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 f

ro
m

 7
 d

ay
s 

to
 5

, 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
e 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 b
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
 a

nd
 

id
en

ti
fy

 a
ny

 le
ss

on
s 

to
 b

e 
le

ar
ne

d 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g.
 

CA
S0

5 
Be

tt
er

 c
ar

e 
fu

nd
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

or
 c

on
ce

rn
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

or
 

ch
ild

re
ns

’ 
an

d 
ad

ul
ts

 s
er

vi
ce

s 

15
 

Q
1 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

BC
F 

fr
om

 a
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 
pe

rs
pe

ct
iv

e,
 w

ha
t 

fu
nd

in
g 

is
 r

ec
ei

ve
d,

 w
ha

t 
it

 is
 

be
in

g 
us

ed
 o

n 
an

d 
ho

w
 t

ha
t 

su
pp

or
ts

 t
he

 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
. 

CA
S1

0 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 –

 
ad

ul
ts

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
re

f 
CA

S 
00

30
 a

nd
 

CA
S0

03
4 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 C
R2

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
ad

ul
t 

so
ci

al
 

ca
re

 

15
 

Q
1 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

ad
ul

ts
 w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

ca
re

 a
re

 p
ro

pe
rl

y 
sa

fe
gu

ar
de

d 
an

d 
st

at
ut

or
y 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 a
re

 
m

et
. 

Th
e 

fo
cu

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
on

 ‘
fr

on
t 

do
or

’ 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
, 

ho
w

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 a

re
 r

ef
er

re
d 

in
to

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il’

s 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

an
d 

th
e 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 

pa
th

w
ay

s,
 p

lu
s 

ca
se

 c
lo

su
re

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

n 
ca

se
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
r 

de
at

hs
. 

CA
S2

5 
Pl

ac
em

en
ts

 –
 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

CA
S 

00
30

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

20
 

La
te

 Q
2 

/ 
ea

rl
y 

Q
3 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

ls
 o

n 
pl

ac
in

g 
ch

ild
re

n 
in

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 c
ar

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g,

 a
pp

ro
va

l,
 f

in
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

20



Pa
ge
 |
 9
  

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
Li

nk
 t

o 
Co

un
ci

l/
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
Ri

sk
 R

eg
is

te
rs

 

A
ud

it
 S

po
ns

or
 

Pl
an

ne
d 

D
ay

s 
In

di
ca

ti
ve

 
Ti

m
in

g 
O

ut
lin

e 
Sc

op
e 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 C
R2

 
an

d 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
he

ld
 o

n 
M

os
ai

c.
 

CA
S2

8 
Le

ga
l f

ee
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

Re
f 

CA
S 

00
21

 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 C

R2
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ch

ild
re

ns
’ 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

/ 
di

re
ct

or
 o

f 
la

w
 

an
d 

de
m

oc
ra

cy
 

15
 

Q
1 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
up

on
 w

hi
ch

 le
ga

l f
ee

s 
re

la
ti

ng
 t

o 
ch

ild
re

ns
’ 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

ca
se

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d,

 a
pp

ro
va

l p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 

CA
S3

0 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
of

 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
re

f 
CA

S 
00

21
 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 C
R2

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
15

 
Q

4 
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
an

d 
de

ci
si

on
 

m
ak

in
g 

w
it

h 
re

ga
rd

s 
to

 t
he

 a
w

ar
d 

of
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
s.

 

CA
S4

0 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

bu
dg

et
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

CA
S 

00
21

 
Co

un
ci

l R
is

k 
Re

gi
st

er
 R

ef
 C

R2
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

or
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

ns
 a

nd
 

ad
ul

ts
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

/ 
di

re
ct

or
 o

f 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

15
 

Q
2 

In
 li

gh
t 

of
 t

he
 d

ef
ic

it
 f

or
ec

as
t 

fo
r 

20
17

-1
8 

an
d 

se
tt

in
g 

up
 o

f 
a 

bu
dg

et
s 

re
co

ve
ry

 b
oa

rd
, 

w
e 

w
ou

ld
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

he
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 t

he
 p

la
ns

 in
 p

la
ce

 
to

 b
ri

ng
 t

he
 e

du
ca

ti
on

 b
ud

ge
t 

ba
ck

 t
o 

a 
br

ea
k 

ev
en

 p
os

it
io

n.
 

CA
S4

1 
Ad

ul
t 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
re

f 
CA

S 
00

21
 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 C
R8

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

15
 

Q
3 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

ls
 in

 p
la

ce
 

ov
er

 t
he

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 o

n 
w

hi
ch

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 o
ff

er
, 

is
 

th
e 

ri
gh

t 
au

di
en

ce
 b

ei
ng

 t
ar

ge
te

d 
an

d 
is

 t
he

 
le

ve
l o

f 
ta

ke
 u

p 
be

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 w

he
n 

de
ci

si
on

s 
ar

e 
m

ad
e 

al
on

gs
id

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l v

ia
bi

lit
y.

 

CA
S4

4 
M

us
ic

 S
er

vi
ce

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
re

f 
CA

S 
00

21
 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 C
R2

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

15
 

Q
2 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

fr
om

 a
 v

al
ue

 f
or

 m
on

ey
 

pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
e,

 is
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 e
ff

ic
ie

nt
, 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 d
if

fe
re

nt
 m

od
el

s 
of

 d
el

iv
er

y 
by

 c
om

pa
ri

so
n 

to
 

ot
he

r 
co

un
ci

ls
, 

is
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f 
re

se
rv

es
 p

la
nn

ed
 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e,
 a

re
 c

os
ts

 b
ei

ng
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 
ca

pi
ta

lis
ed

. 

CA
S6

2 
M

os
ai

c 
op

er
at

io
na

l a
ud

it
 

/ 
pa

ym
en

ts
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

CA
S 

00
21

 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 o

f 
ad

ul
t 

so
ci

al
 

ca
re

 a
nd

 
ch

ild
re

ns
 s

oc
ia

l 

20
 

Q
3 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

ls
 le

ad
in

g 
to

 t
he

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 g

en
er

at
ed

 v
ia

 M
os

ai
c,

 a
nd

 t
he

 
co

m
pl

et
en

es
s 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
he

ld
 o

n 
th

e 
sy

st
em

. 
Sp

ec
if

ic
 a

re
as

 o
f 

co
ve

ra
ge

 t
o 

be
 

21



Pa
ge
 |
 1
0 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
Li

nk
 t

o 
Co

un
ci

l/
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
Ri

sk
 R

eg
is

te
rs

 

A
ud

it
 S

po
ns

or
 

Pl
an

ne
d 

D
ay

s 
In

di
ca

ti
ve

 
Ti

m
in

g 
O

ut
lin

e 
Sc

op
e 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 C
R2

 
ca

re
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
ti

m
e 

of
 s

co
pi

ng
. 

CA
S6

4 
Bu

dg
et

 r
ec

ov
er

y 
bo

ar
d 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

CA
S 

00
21

 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 C

R2
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

or
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

ns
 a

nd
 

ad
ul

ts
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

15
 

Q
2 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 t
he

 b
ud

ge
t 

re
co

ve
ry

 b
oa

rd
, 

an
d 

th
e 

ro
bu

st
ne

ss
 o

f 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 t

he
 b

oa
rd

, 
e.

g.
 S

AP
 

sa
vi

ng
s 

re
po

rt
s 

an
d 

th
e 

tr
aj

ec
to

ry
  

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

ES
R1

5 
Yo

ut
h 

an
d 

pl
ay

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
re

f 
EL

01
10

, 
EL

01
11

, 
EL

01
12

 a
nd

 
EL

01
02

 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 

CR
12

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
le

is
ur

e 
10

 
Q

1 
An

 a
ud

it
 o

f 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l m
an

ag
em

en
t 

co
nt

ro
ls

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
an

ag
em

en
t’

s 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e,

 a
nd

 a
 

re
vi

si
t 

of
 is

su
es

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 in
 t

he
 a

ud
it

 c
ar

ri
ed

 
ou

t 
in

 2
01

6-
17

. 

ES
R1

6 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 
of

 C
ul

tu
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
re

f 
EL

00
93

 a
nd

 
EL

01
04

 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 

CR
12

 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

or
 /

 
di

re
ct

or
 o

f 
le

is
ur

e 

[1
5]

 
[Q

4]
 

Sh
ou

ld
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
be

 a
w

ar
de

d 
th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
of

 C
ul

tu
re

 –
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 

pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pl
us

 a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 

af
fo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

sc
he

m
es

 c
on

si
de

ri
ng

 c
or

po
ra

te
 

sp
on

so
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
fu

nd
in

g 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

  

ES
R2

1 
CC

TV
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

EL
01

11
, 

EL
01

03
 

an
d 

EL
00

94
 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 
CR

14
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
10

 
Q

1 
In

 li
gh

t 
of

 t
he

 n
ew

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
 p

la
ce

, 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
co

nt
ro

ls
 

an
d 

sh
ar

ed
 p

ro
to

co
ls

 [
w

it
h 

th
e 

po
lic

e]
, 

to
 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

re
gu

la
ti

on
s.

 

ES
R2

4 
Pa

rk
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

EL
01

04
, 

EL
01

02
, 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
10

 
Q

1 
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

 
ca

r 
pa

rk
in

g 
fe

es
, 

an
d 

de
bt

 m
an

ag
em

en
t.

 

22



Pa
ge
 |
 1
1 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
Li

nk
 t

o 
Co

un
ci

l/
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
Ri

sk
 R

eg
is

te
rs

 

A
ud

it
 S

po
ns

or
 

Pl
an

ne
d 

D
ay

s 
In

di
ca

ti
ve

 
Ti

m
in

g 
O

ut
lin

e 
Sc

op
e 

EL
00

95
 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 
CR

12
 

ES
R4

3 
So

ut
hw

ar
k 

bu
ild

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
re

f 
EL

01
11

, 
EL

01
10

 
an

d 
EL

01
12

 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 

CR
13

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
20

 
Q

4 
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
tr

an
sf

er
 b

ac
k 

in
 h

ou
se

 o
f 

th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

 f
or

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il,

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
ac

ti
on

s 
pe

r 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
pl

an
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

d 
ea

rl
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 t

he
 n

ew
 c

on
tr

ol
 f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
is

 a
de

qu
at

e 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e.

 

ES
R4

6 
M

ar
ke

ts
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

Re
f 

EL
01

04
 a

nd
 

EL
01

02
 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 
CR

12
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
15

 
Q

3 
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
co

nt
ro

ls
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
m

ar
ke

ts
, 

fo
cu

ss
in

g 
up

on
 f

ee
 in

co
m

e.
 

ES
R4

7 
Es

ta
te

s 
cl

ea
ni

ng
 

an
d 

gr
ou

nd
s 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

EL
01

11
, 

EL
00

94
 

an
d 

EL
00

93
 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 
CR

13
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
10

 
Q

4 
Th

e 
Co

un
ci

l m
us

t 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 t
ha

t 
co

st
s 

ch
ar

ge
d 

to
 le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 a

re
 a

cc
ur

at
e 

an
d 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e.

 T
hi

s 
re

vi
ew

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 

ov
er

 t
he

 a
cc

ur
ac

y 
an

d 
co

m
pl

et
en

es
s 

of
 c

os
ts

 
be

in
g 

ch
ar

ge
d 

to
 le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 f

or
 e

st
at

e 
cl

ea
ni

ng
 a

nd
 g

ro
un

ds
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f 
co

di
ng

 u
se

d 
an

d 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

fo
r 

ov
er

he
ad

 a
pp

or
ti

on
m

en
t 

to
 a

re
as

 s
uc

h 
as

 f
ly

-
ti

pp
in

g,
 g

ra
ff

it
i a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t.
 

ES
R5

1 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 w

as
te

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
re

f 
EL

01
11

, 
EL

00
94

, 
EL

01
12

 a
nd

 
EL

00
93

 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
15

 
Q

3 
A 

re
vi

ew
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
e,

 t
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

an
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

to
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 is
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
it

s 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

, 
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 c

os
ts

, 
ge

ne
ra

ti
on

 o
f 

su
rp

lu
s,

 
ba

ck
 o

ff
ic

e 
co

st
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
fo

r 
ch

ar
gi

ng
. 

It
 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
co

ns
id

er
 w

he
th

er
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
is

 
ex

pl
oi

ti
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ti

es
 f

or
 c

ha
rg

in
g,

 w
he

th
er

 

23



Pa
ge
 |
 1
2 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
Li

nk
 t

o 
Co

un
ci

l/
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
Ri

sk
 R

eg
is

te
rs

 

A
ud

it
 S

po
ns

or
 

Pl
an

ne
d 

D
ay

s 
In

di
ca

ti
ve

 
Ti

m
in

g 
O

ut
lin

e 
Sc

op
e 

CR
13

 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

sy
st

em
s 

m
ee

t 
cu

st
om

er
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
re

tu
rn

 t
o 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l.

 

ES
R5

5 
W

as
te

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
/ 

PF
I 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

EL
01

00
, 

EL
01

10
 

an
d 

EL
00

95
 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 
CR

12
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
10

 
Q

3 
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 a

nd
 f

in
an

ci
al

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
PF

I,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

m
on

it
or

in
g 

of
 w

as
te

 h
au

la
ge

s 
an

d 
m

on
ey

 
pa

id
 b

ac
k 

to
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il.
 

ES
R6

2 
Pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lt
h 

– 
he

al
th

 in
 a

ll 
po

lic
ie

s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

EL
00

90
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 

20
 

Q
1 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 a
nd

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 o

f 
th

e 
ne

w
 d

el
iv

er
y 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

in
 t

hi
s 

ar
ea

 v
ia

 
th

e 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 h
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 p

ol
ic

ie
s.

  

ES
R6

3 
Pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lt
h 

– 
pr

io
ri

ty
 a

re
a 

re
vi

ew
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

EL
00

90
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 

20
 

Q
4 

An
nu

al
 a

ud
it

 a
s 

a 
pr

io
ri

ty
 f

or
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lt
h,

 t
hi

s 
ye

ar
 w

ill
 f

oc
us

 o
n 

ch
ild

ho
od

 o
be

si
ty

. 
Th

e 
re

vi
ew

 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
s 

de
liv

er
in

g 
ag

ai
ns

t 
it

s 
pr

om
is

es
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

is
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l.
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

FG
07

 
M

em
be

rs
 

al
lo

w
an

ce
s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
re

qu
es

t,
 c

yc
lic

al
 

re
vi

ew
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 la
w

 
an

d 
de

m
oc

ra
cy

 
10

 
Q

2 
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 a
nd

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 p

ro
ce

ss
, 

bu
dg

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
 o

f 
fe

es
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

ot
he

r 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

ri
ti

es
. 

FG
21

 
D

at
a 

pr
ot

ec
ti

on
 /

 
G

D
PR

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
re

f 
FM

S0
22

3 
an

d 
FM

S0
16

9 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 

CR
14

 

H
ea

d 
of

 
fi

na
nc

ia
l &

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 

20
 

Q
4 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
ne

w
 

re
gu

la
ti

on
s 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

, 
w

it
h 

a 
fo

cu
s 

on
 d

at
a 

ow
ne

rs
’ 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 M
od

er
ni

sa
ti

on
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

H
M

09
 

Re
pa

ir
s 

an
d 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
as

se
t 

20
 

Q
4 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 o
ve

r 
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

e 
on

 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
re

pa
ir

s 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
 

24



Pa
ge
 |
 1
3 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
Li

nk
 t

o 
Co

un
ci

l/
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
Ri

sk
 R

eg
is

te
rs

 

A
ud

it
 S

po
ns

or
 

Pl
an

ne
d 

D
ay

s 
In

di
ca

ti
ve

 
Ti

m
in

g 
O

ut
lin

e 
Sc

op
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
H

S1
00

74
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 s

er
vi

ce
 o

bj
ec

ti
ve

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

m
et

 a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
su

es
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

. 

H
M

22
 

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

su
pp

or
t 

an
d 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

H
S1

00
70

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
co

m
m

un
it

ie
s 

15
 

Q
2 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
re

sp
on

se
 t

o 
th

e 
So

ut
hw

ar
k 

bi
g 

co
nv

er
sa

ti
on

 a
nd

 c
ha

ng
es

 m
ad

e 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
vi

ew
s 

of
 t

he
 lo

ca
l p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 

H
M

24
 

Te
na

nc
y 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

or
ga

ni
sa

ti
on

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
re

qu
es

t,
 

pe
ri

od
ic

 r
ev

ie
w

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
co

m
m

un
it

ie
s 

15
 

Q
1 

 A
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

w
it

h 
re

ga
rd

s 
to

 t
he

 f
un

di
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

TM
O

s 
an

d 
th

e 
m

on
it

or
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 
pl

ac
e.

 T
w

o 
TM

O
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

se
le

ct
ed

 f
or

 d
et

ai
le

d 
re

vi
ew

. 

H
M

32
 

Co
nt

ac
t 

ce
nt

re
  

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

H
S1

00
45

 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 

CR
11

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
cu

st
om

er
 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
 

15
 

Q
2 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

SM
AR

T 
se

rv
ic

e,
 c

on
si

de
ri

ng
 

re
sp

on
se

 t
im

es
, 

th
e 

so
lu

ti
on

 r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
w

it
h 

re
ga

rd
s 

to
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t,
 c

os
ts

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
it

h 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

an
d 

w
he

th
er

 t
he

re
 w

as
 b

et
te

r 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 a

lt
er

na
ti

ve
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
 

H
M

35
 

H
ou

si
ng

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
 

- 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

al
lo

ca
ti

on
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

H
S1

00
74

 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 C

R6
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
cu

st
om

er
 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
 

15
 

Q
2 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

al
lo

ca
ti

on
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g,
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

st
at

ed
 a

llo
ca

ti
on

 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

w
ai

ti
ng

 li
st

 m
an

ag
em

en
t.

 

H
M

36
 

H
ou

si
ng

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
 

- 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 C
R8

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 

cu
st

om
er

 
ex

pe
ri

en
ce

 

15
 

Q
4 

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

Re
du

ct
io

n 
Ac

t,
 

w
hi

ch
 c

om
es

 in
to

 f
or

ce
 in

 A
pr

il 
20

18
 a

nd
 t

he
 

ro
ll 

ou
t 

of
 p

er
so

na
l h

ou
si

ng
 p

la
ns

 in
 2

01
7 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l a

nd
 in

di
vi

du
al

, 
th

e 
au

di
t 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
pr

oc
es

s,
 t

he
 r

ob
us

tn
es

s 
of

 t
he

 
pr

oc
es

s,
 a

nd
 c

on
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 t
he

 P
H

Ps
 a

re
 

ac
te

d 
up

on
 a

nd
 f

ul
fi

lle
d.

 

H
M

39
 

D
ig

it
al

is
at

io
n 

an
d 

ch
an

ne
l s

hi
ft

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
re

f 
H

S1
00

76
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
cu

st
om

er
 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
 

20
 

Q
2 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

on
lin

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

at
 c

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

e 
po

in
ts

 t
o 

us
er

s.
 T

he
 a

ud
it

 w
ill

 
co

ns
id

er
 t

he
 s

ta
ff

 s
up

po
rt

 p
ro

vi
de

d,
 w

e 
w

ill
 

se
ek

 t
o 

ho
ld

 ‘
ex

it
 in

te
rv

ie
w

s’
 a

nd
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 

25



Pa
ge
 |
 1
4 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
Li

nk
 t

o 
Co

un
ci

l/
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
Ri

sk
 R

eg
is

te
rs

 

A
ud

it
 S

po
ns

or
 

Pl
an

ne
d 

D
ay

s 
In

di
ca

ti
ve

 
Ti

m
in

g 
O

ut
lin

e 
Sc

op
e 

no
rm

 f
or

 t
he

 c
us

to
m

er
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e.
 

H
M

41
 

Ri
gh

t 
to

 b
uy

 a
nd

 
ad

 h
oc

 s
al

es
 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 C
6 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
cu

st
om

er
 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
 

15
 

Q
1 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

sp
ee

d 
of

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
, 

in
 t

he
 c

on
te

xt
 o

f 
en

su
ri

ng
 t

he
 v

al
id

it
y 

of
 t

he
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n.
 

H
M

54
 

Sh
el

te
re

d 
ho

us
in

g 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

re
qu

es
t,

 
pe

ri
od

ic
 r

ev
ie

w
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
re

si
de

nt
 

se
rv

ic
es

 

15
 

Q
2 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e,
 

re
vi

ew
 a

ga
in

st
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s,
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
of

 t
he

 d
at

a 
he

ld
. 

Th
e 

au
di

t 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

of
 t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 a

lig
nm

en
t 

to
 t

he
 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

 f
or

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
ha

rg
e 

le
ve

ls
. 

H
M

55
 

Su
pp

or
te

d 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
ho

st
el

s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
re

qu
es

t,
 

pe
ri

od
ic

 r
ev

ie
w

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
re

si
de

nt
 

se
rv

ic
es

 

15
 

Q
4 

A 
re

vi
ew

 a
ga

in
st

 o
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s,

 h
ow

 
ca

se
s 

ar
e 

m
an

ag
ed

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ne
w

 c
as

es
, 

a 
ch

ec
k 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
, 

in
co

m
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n,
 r

ec
or

d 
ke

ep
in

g,
 s

ec
ur

it
y 

ch
ec

ks
, 

in
sp

ec
ti

on
s 

an
d 

re
pa

ir
s 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 r
eg

im
es

. 
 It

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 a
ct

io
ns

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
se

rv
ic

e 
m

od
el

 r
ev

ie
w

 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 in
 2

01
7.

 

H
M

60
 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
– 

sp
ac

e 
ut

ili
sa

ti
on

 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

CF
M

00
05

, 
H

S1
00

88
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
m

od
er

ni
se

 
20

 
Q

3 
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 t
o 

w
hi

ch
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
is

 
m

ak
in

g 
be

st
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e 
of

fi
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

an
d 

m
ee

ti
ng

 u
ti

lis
at

io
n 

ta
rg

et
s,

 it
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
 a

ga
in

st
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
ri

ti
es

. 
 

H
M

61
 

H
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

H
S1

00
84

 a
nd

 
H

S1
00

86
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
m

od
er

ni
se

 
20

 
Q

2 
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
w

it
h 

re
ga

rd
s 

to
 h

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 in
sp

ec
ti

on
s 

ac
ro

ss
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l p

ro
pe

rt
y 

po
rt

fo
lio

 (
of

fi
ce

s,
 li

br
ar

ie
s,

 
po

rt
ac

ab
in

s,
 s

ch
oo

ls
 e

tc
.)

 

H
M

62
 

M
od

er
ni

se
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

H
S1

00
72

 
Co

un
ci

l R
is

k 
Re

gi
st

er
 R

ef
 

CR
13

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
20

 
Q

4 
As

su
ra

nc
e 

on
 t

he
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
op

er
at

io
na

l 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e,

 s
el

ec
ti

ng
 a

 
ra

ng
e 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d 

w
or

ks
tr

ea
m

s.
 

Co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

to
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
is

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

ag
ai

ns
t 

it
s 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
. 

26



Pa
ge
 |
 1
5 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
Li

nk
 t

o 
Co

un
ci

l/
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
Ri

sk
 R

eg
is

te
rs

 

A
ud

it
 S

po
ns

or
 

Pl
an

ne
d 

D
ay

s 
In

di
ca

ti
ve

 
Ti

m
in

g 
O

ut
lin

e 
Sc

op
e 

H
M

70
 

H
R 

Po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

H
S1

01
46

 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 

CR
13

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
15

 
Q

4 
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
by

 t
he

 H
R 

te
am

 a
ga

in
st

 
th

e 
re

w
or

ke
d 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 b

ei
ng

 
ro

lle
d 

ou
t.

  

IT
 A

ud
it

s 

IT
09

 
IT

 s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

H
S1

00
83

  
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 C

R4
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
25

 
Q

4 
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 
to

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 o

bj
ec

ti
ve

s 
as

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 t

he
 o

ri
gi

na
l 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
la

n 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

m
et

, 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

ta
rg

et
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
m

et
. 

IT
11

 
Ch

an
ge

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
H

S1
00

81
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
15

 
Q

1 
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
ro

bu
st

ne
ss

 o
f 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
 

co
nt

ro
ls

 p
ro

ce
ss

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
io

ri
ti

sa
ti

on
, 

ap
pr

ov
al

s 
an

d 
su

cc
es

s 
ra

te
s 

in
 t

er
m

s 
of

 im
pa

ct
 

on
 t

he
 u

se
r.

 

M
ai

n 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ys
te

m
 A

ud
it

s 

M
A0

2 
N

at
io

na
l n

on
-

do
m

es
ti

c 
ra

te
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

FM
S0

23
0 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 
CR

12
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 

15
 

Q
3 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
ov

er
 t

he
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f 
N

N
D

R.
 

M
A0

3 
H

ou
si

ng
 r

en
ts

 a
nd

 
un

iv
er

sa
l c

re
di

t 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
re

f 
FM

S0
21

7 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 C

R3
 

an
d 

CR
12

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 

15
 

Q
3 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
ov

er
 t

he
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
re

nt
s.

 T
he

 
au

di
t 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f 

un
iv

er
sa

l 
cr

ed
it

. 

M
A0

5 
Pa

yr
ol

l 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 

CR
12

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 

20
 

Q
3 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
ov

er
 t

he
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f 
pa

yr
ol

l a
nd

 b
en

ef
it

s 
to

 s
ta

ff
. 

Th
e 

au
di

t 
w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 

27



Pa
ge
 |
 1
6 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
Li

nk
 t

o 
Co

un
ci

l/
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
Ri

sk
 R

eg
is

te
rs

 

A
ud

it
 S

po
ns

or
 

Pl
an

ne
d 

D
ay

s 
In

di
ca

ti
ve

 
Ti

m
in

g 
O

ut
lin

e 
Sc

op
e 

ov
er

ti
m

e 
an

d 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 b
en

ef
it

s 
(e

.g
. 

bi
cy

cl
e 

lo
an

s)
. 

M
A0

6 
G

en
er

al
 le

dg
er

 /
 

SA
P 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

FM
S0

02
2 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 
CR

12
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 

15
 

Q
4 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
ov

er
 t

he
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

w
it

h 
re

ga
rd

s 
to

 t
he

 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

ge
ne

ra
l l

ed
ge

r,
 t

ak
in

g 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

th
e 

up
gr

ad
e 

to
 S

AP
 (

du
e 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8)
. 

M
A0

7 
Ac

co
un

ts
 p

ay
ab

le
 

(H
ea

lt
hc

he
ck

) 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 

CR
12

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 

10
 

Q
3 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
ov

er
 t

he
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f 
ac

co
un

ts
 p

ay
ab

le
. 

To
 

co
ns

id
er

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ne
ss

 o
f 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
us

e 
of

 
ch

eq
ue

 p
ay

m
en

ts
, 

us
e 

of
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

ca
rd

s.
 

M
A0

9 
H

ou
si

ng
 b

en
ef

it
s 

an
d 

un
iv

er
sa

l 
cr

ed
it

 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

FM
S0

19
9 

an
d 

FM
S0

21
8 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 C
R3

 
an

d 
CR

12
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 

15
 

Q
3 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
ov

er
 t

he
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
be

ne
fi

ts
. 

Th
em

at
ic

 R
ev

ie
w

s 
/ 

Cr
os

s-
co

un
ci

l A
ud

it
s 

TR
03

a 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
is

at
io

n 
– 

au
di

t 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 C

R8
 /

 
em

er
ge

nt
 a

re
a 

fo
r 

re
vi

ew
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Pa

ne
l /

 C
hi

ef
 

O
ff

ic
er

s 
Te

am
 

20
 

Q
1/

Q
2 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

ex
is

ti
ng

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il,
 a

nd
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
n 

w
he

th
er

 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
as

 t
he

 r
ig

ht
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

w
it

h 
re

ga
rd

s 
to

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
, 

sk
ill

 b
as

e 
of

 s
ta

ff
 a

nd
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
an

d 
w

he
th

er
 t

he
re

 a
re

 le
ss

on
s 

to
 b

e 
le

ar
ne

d 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
. 

TR
03

b 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
is

at
io

n 
– 

ad
vi

ce
 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 C
R8

 /
 

em
er

ge
nt

 a
re

a 
fo

r 
re

vi
ew

 

Ch
ie

f 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

30
 

Q
1/

Q
2 

Ad
vi

ce
 o

n 
w

he
th

er
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
is

 s
ee

ki
ng

 t
he

 
ri

gh
t 

op
po

rt
un

it
ie

s 
an

d 
ge

ne
ra

ti
ng

 in
co

m
e 

fr
om

 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

W
e 

w
ou

ld
 u

se
 o

ur
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
ad

vi
so

ry
 t

ea
m

 t
o 

de
liv

er
 t

hi
s 

w
or

k.
 

TR
04

 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 

co
nt

in
ui

ty
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

D
CE

X0
12

6,
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Pa

ne
l /

 C
hi

ef
 

20
 

Q
1 

An
 a

ud
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ro
bu

st
ne

ss
 o

f 
bu

si
ne

ss
 c

on
ti

nu
it

y 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pl
an

s,
 r

ol
es

 a
nd

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ti
es

, 

28



Pa
ge
 |
 1
7 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
Li

nk
 t

o 
Co

un
ci

l/
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
Ri

sk
 R

eg
is

te
rs

 

A
ud

it
 S

po
ns

or
 

Pl
an

ne
d 

D
ay

s 
In

di
ca

ti
ve

 
Ti

m
in

g 
O

ut
lin

e 
Sc

op
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
EL

00
98

, 
H

S1
00

34
 a

nd
 

FM
S0

19
1 

 
Co

un
ci

l r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 r

ef
 C

R7
 

O
ff

ic
er

s 
Te

am
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n,

 s
ce

na
ri

o 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 t

es
ti

ng
 

an
d 

le
ss

on
s 

le
ar

ne
d.

 

TR
13

 
U

se
 o

f 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 
/ 

IR
35

  
Co

un
ci

l R
is

k 
Re

gi
st

er
 R

ef
 C

R8
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Pa

ne
l 

20
 

Q
3 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

ap
po

in
tm

en
t 

/ 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
of

 c
on

su
lt

an
ts

 a
nd

 
ad

vi
se

rs
 u

se
d 

by
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il,
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

IR
35

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 in

 t
er

m
s 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

st
at

us
. 

TR
17

 
Pr

od
uc

ti
vi

ty
 a

ud
it

 
– 

re
ve

nu
es

 a
nd

 
be

ne
fi

ts
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r 

re
f 

FM
S0

16
4 

Co
un

ci
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 r
ef

 
CR

13
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

or
 o

f 
fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 

25
 

Q
2 

An
 a

dv
is

or
y 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
st

af
fi

ng
 a

nd
 w

or
kl

oa
ds

 
w

it
hi

n 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
 

w
it

h 
ot

he
r 

au
th

or
it

ie
s.

  

TR
18

 
Si

ck
ne

ss
 a

bs
en

ce
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 
m

on
it

or
in

g 
an

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
Ri

sk
 R

eg
is

te
r 

H
S1

01
49

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 /
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Pa

ne
l 

20
 

Q
2 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

si
ck

ne
ss

 a
bs

en
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 m
on

it
or

in
g 

an
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l.
 T

he
 

au
di

t 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 t

o 
w

hi
ch

 t
he

re
 

m
ay

 b
e 

un
de

r 
re

po
rt

in
g.

 
  

 

29



Pa
ge
 |
 1
8 
 

 6.
 I

N
TE

RN
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 O

PE
RA

TI
O

N
A

L 
PL

A
N

 S
U

M
M

A
RY

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
/ 

A
ud

it
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

N
o.

 o
f 

da
ys

  
20

18
-1

9 

Ch
ie

f 
ex

ec
ut

iv
e’

s 
10

 

Ch
ild

re
n’

s 
an

d 
ad

ul
ts

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
17

0 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

14
0 

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

30
 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 m
od

er
ni

sa
ti

on
 

23
5 

M
ai

n 
fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ys
te

m
s 

90
 

IT
 a

ud
it

s 
40

 

Th
em

at
ic

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
/ 

co
un

ci
l w

id
e 

au
di

ts
 

13
5 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

12
0 

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

– 
G

en
er

al
 

35
 

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

– 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f 

Cu
lt

ur
e 

15
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

– 
Ch

ie
f 

A
ud

it
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 R
ol

e 
15

 

To
ta

l D
ay

s 
10

30
 

 
 

30



Pa
ge
 |
 1
9 
 

7.
 I

N
TE

RN
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 S

TR
A

TE
G

IC
 P

LA
N

 2
01

8-
19

 t
o 

20
20

-2
1 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
A

ud
it

 S
po

ns
or

 
20

16
-1

7 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

17
-1

8 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

18
-1

9 
20

19
-2

0 
20

20
-2

1 

Ch
ie

f 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e’

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

CX
01

 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

po
rt

fo
lio

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 


 

 
 

 


 

CX
02

 
M

aj
or

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 &

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

 


 


 
 


 

 

CX
03

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 s

10
6 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
 


 

 
 

 
 

CX
04

 
Bu

ild
in

g 
co

nt
ro

l 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

 
 

 


 
 

 

CX
05

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

po
lic

y 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
 

 
 

 


 
 

CX
06

 
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

ed
ia

 
H

ea
d 

of
 e

xt
er

na
l a

ff
ai

rs
  

 
 

 


 
 

CX
08

 
La

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
 

 


 
 

 
 

CX
09

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 r
es

ili
en

ce
 

H
ea

d 
of

 c
hi

ef
 e

xe
cu

ti
ve

’s
 

of
fi

ce
  


 

 
 

 


 

Ch
ild

re
n’

s 
an

d 
A

du
lt

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

A
du

lt
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 

CA
S0

1 
Ad

ul
t 

da
y 

ca
re

 p
ro

vi
si

on
  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ad

ul
t 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

 
 

 



 
 

CA
S0

2 
Cl

ie
nt

 f
in

an
ce

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ad
ul

t 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
 




 
 

 



CA
S0

3 
Ap

po
in

te
es

hi
ps

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ad
ul

t 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
 

 
 





 
CA

S0
4 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ti
es

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ad
ul

t 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
 

 
 

 



 
CA

S0
5 

Be
tt

er
 C

ar
e 

Fu
nd

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

di
re

ct
or

 
ch

ild
re

ns
 &

 a
du

lt
s 

 
 





 

CA
S0

6 
M

en
ta

l h
ea

lt
h 

se
rv

ic
es

 /
 D

ep
ri

va
ti

on
 o

f 
Li

be
rt

y 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ad
ul

t 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
 




 







CA
S0

8 
O

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e’

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ad

ul
t 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

 
 

 



 
 

CA
S1

0 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 –

 a
du

lt
s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ad

ul
t 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

 
 

 



 
 

CA
S1

1 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ad

ul
t 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

 
 

 
 




 
CA

S1
2 

Su
pp

or
t 

ce
nt

re
s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ad

ul
t 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

 
 

 
 

 



CA
S1

3 
Tr

an
si

ti
on

 t
ea

m
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ad

ul
t 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

 
 

 



 
 

31



Pa
ge
 |
 2
0 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
A

ud
it

 S
po

ns
or

 
20

16
-1

7 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

17
-1

8 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

18
-1

9 
20

19
-2

0 
20

20
-2

1 

CA
S1

4 
So

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
st

af
f 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ad

ul
t 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

 
 


 

 
 

 
CA

S1
5 

ST
AR

T 
&

 S
up

po
rt

ed
 L

iv
in

g 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ad
ul

t 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
 

 
 

 


 
 

CA
S1

6 
Su

bs
ta

nc
e 

M
is

us
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ad

ul
t 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

 
 

 
 

 


 

Ch
ild

re
n’

s 
So

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
CA

S0
5 

Le
av

in
g 

ca
re

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
so

ci
al

 
ca

re
 










CA
S2

0 
Ea

rl
y 

he
lp

 s
er

vi
ce

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
so

ci
al

 
ca

re
 










CA
S2

1 
Ca

sh
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 t
o 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
so

ci
al

 
ca

re
 












CA
S2

2 
Ch

ild
re

n 
w

it
h 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
so

ci
al

 
ca

re
 











CA
S2

3 
Ch

ild
re

n’
s 

qu
al

it
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
un

it
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 

ca
re

 









CA
S2

4 
Fo

st
er

 c
ar

er
s 

/ 
ad

op
ti

on
 s

er
vi

ce
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 

ca
re

 










CA
S2

5 
Pl

ac
em

en
ts

 –
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 

ca
re

 









CA
S2

6 
O

ut
-o

f-
bo

ro
ug

h 
/ 

ho
sp

it
al

 t
ui

ti
on

 f
ee

s 
re

co
up

m
en

t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
so

ci
al

 
ca

re
 










CA
S2

7 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 –

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
so

ci
al

 
ca

re
 












CA
S2

8 
Le

ga
l f

ee
s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 

ca
re

 









CA
S2

9 
Yo

ut
h 

of
fe

nd
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
so

ci
al

 
ca

re
 










Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

CA
S3

0 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 





 



 



Ed
uc

at
io

n 

CA
S4

0 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

Bu
dg

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

di
re

ct
or

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
ns

 a
nd

 a
du

lt
s 










32



Pa
ge
 |
 2
1 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
A

ud
it

 S
po

ns
or

 
20

16
-1

7 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

17
-1

8 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

18
-1

9 
20

19
-2

0 
20

20
-2

1 

se
rv

ic
es

 /
 d

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 

CA
S4

1 
Ad

ul
t 

le
ar

ni
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

du
ca

ti
on

 











CA
S4

3 
H

om
e 

to
 s

ch
oo

l t
ra

ns
po

rt
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
du

ca
ti

on
 










CA
S4

4 
M

us
ic

 s
er

vi
ce

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

du
ca

ti
on

 









CA
S4

5 
Pu

pi
l r

eg
is

tr
y 

sy
st

em
s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
du

ca
ti

on
 












CA
S4

6 
Sc

ho
ol

 a
dm

is
si

on
s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
du

ca
ti

on
 










CA
S4

7 
Se

co
nd

ar
y,

 f
ur

th
er

 e
du

ca
ti

on
, 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

an
d 

in
cl

us
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

du
ca

ti
on

 









CA
S4

8 
Sp

ec
ia

l e
du

ca
ti

on
al

 n
ee

ds
 (

SE
N

) 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

du
ca

ti
on

 










CA
S8

0 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
– 

cy
cl

ic
al

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e*

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

du
ca

ti
on

 















 

* 
Sc
ho

ol
 a
ud

its
 a
re
 u
nd

er
ta
ke
n 
on

 a
n 
av
er
ag

e 
3‐
ye
ar
 ro

lli
ng

 p
ro
gr
am

m
e.
 F
or
 2
01
8‐
19
, 2
5 
sc
ho

ol
s a

re
 sc

he
du

le
d 

fo
r a

n 
au

di
t v
isi
t. 

Ar
ea
s i
nc
lu
de
d 
in
 th

e 
sc
ho

ol
s a

ud
it 
ar
e:
 g
ov
er
na

nc
e,
 b
an

k 
ac
co
un

t a
nd

 b
ud

ge
tin

g;
 p
ay
ro
ll;
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t; 
an

d 
da

ta
 

se
cu
rit
y 
an

d 
sa
fe
gu

ar
di
ng

. W
e 
al
so
 re

vi
ew

 th
e 
co
nt
ro
l f
ra
m
ew

or
k 
w
ith

 re
ga

rd
s t
o 
ca
sh
 h
an

dl
in
g 
an

d 
no

n‐
lo
ca
l 

au
th
or
ity

 sc
ho

ol
 fu

nd
s.
 

W
he
re
 th

e 
pr
ev
io
us
 y
ea
rs
’ a
ud

it 
ra
ise

s s
ig
ni
fic
an

t c
on

ce
rn
s a

 fo
llo
w
 u
p 
au

di
t w

ill
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou

t. 
 

W
he
re
 re

tu
rn
s t
o 
th
e 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho

rit
y 
ra
ise

 c
on

ce
rn
s o

r t
he
re
 a
re
 in
di
ca
tio

ns
 th

at
 th

e 
sc
ho

ol
 w
ill
 b
e 
in
 a
 d
ef
ic
it 

po
sit
io
n,
 a
dd

iti
on

al
 su

bs
ta
nt
iv
e 
te
st
in
g 
w
ill
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou

t a
nd

 a
ss
ur
an

ce
 p
ro
vi
de
d 
on

 th
e 
re
co
ve
ry
 p
la
ns
 in
 p
la
ce
. 

 
 

33



Pa
ge
 |
 2
2 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
A

ud
it

 S
po

ns
or

 
20

16
-1

7 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

17
-1

8 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

18
-1

9 
20

19
-2

0 
20

20
-2

1 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

w
id

e 
au

di
ts

 

CA
S6

0 
Q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

di
re

ct
or

 
(c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
an

d 
ad

ul
ts

’ 
se

rv
ic

e)
  





 

 

CA
S6

1 
Fu

nd
in

g 
pa

ne
ls

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

di
re

ct
or

 
(c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
an

d 
ad

ul
ts

’ 
se

rv
ic

e 







 
 

CA
S6

2 
M

os
ai

c 
pr

oj
ec

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

di
re

ct
or

 
(c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
an

d 
ad

ul
ts

’ 
se

rv
ic

e)
  







 
 

CA
S6

3 
M

os
ai

c 
op

er
at

io
na

l a
ud

it
 /

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

or
 

(c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

an
d 

ad
ul

ts
’ 

se
rv

ic
e 
















CA
S6

4 
Bu

dg
et

 r
ec

ov
er

y 
bo

ar
d 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

or
 

(c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

an
d 

ad
ul

ts
’ 

se
rv

ic
e 







 
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

an
d 

So
ci

al
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 

ES
R0

1 
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 











ES
R0

2 
Sa

fe
ty

 /
 c

om
m

un
it

y 
pr

oj
ec

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 










Le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

Cu
lt

ur
e 

ES
R1

1 
Ce

m
et

er
ie

s 
an

d 
cr

em
at

or
ia

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 le

is
ur

e 










ES
R1

2 
Li

br
ar

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 le

is
ur

e 










ES
R1

3 
Le

is
ur

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 le
is

ur
e 










ES
R1

4 
So

ut
h 

D
oc

k 
m

ar
in

a 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 le

is
ur

e 









ES
R1

5 
Yo

ut
h 

an
d 

pl
ay

 s
er

vi
ce

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 le

is
ur

e 










ES
R1

6 
Pa

rk
s 

an
d 

le
is

ur
e 

[c
ap

it
al

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
] 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 le
is

ur
e 








(a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

TR
06

)


ES
R1

7 
Cu

lt
ur

e 
an

d 
ev

en
ts

  -
 L

on
do

n 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
of

 
Cu

lt
ur

e 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 le
is

ur
e 













34



Pa
ge
 |
 2
3 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
A

ud
it

 S
po

ns
or

 
20

16
-1

7 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

17
-1

8 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

18
-1

9 
20

19
-2

0 
20

20
-2

1 

Re
gu

la
to

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ES
R2

1 
CC

TV
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t 









ES
R2

2 
Jo

in
t 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t 










ES
R2

3 
Li

ce
nc

in
g 

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 











ES
R2

4 
Pa

rk
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
&

 e
st

at
es

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
pe

rm
it

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 










ES
R2

5 
Tr

ad
in

g 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 f
oo

d 
sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 h
ea

lt
h 

&
 

sa
fe

ty
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t 











Se
rv

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

ES
R3

1 
Co

rp
or

at
e 

en
er

gy
 

H
ea

d 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
 




 
 

 

ES
R3

2 
Cl

ea
ne

r,
 g

re
en

er
, 

sa
fe

r 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t 
 


 




 

Tr
ad

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ES
R4

1 
M

on
it

or
in

g 
of

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 u

sa
ge

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 










ES
R4

2 
Pe

st
 c

on
tr

ol
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t 








ES
R4

3 
So

ut
hw

ar
k 

bu
ild

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 












ES
R4

4 
St

re
et

 li
gh

ti
ng

 a
nd

 s
ig

ns
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t 








ES
R4

5 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 










ES
R4

6 
M

ar
ke

ts
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t 









ES
R4

7 
Es

ta
te

s 
cl

ea
ni

ng
 a

nd
 g

ro
un

ds
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t 









W
as

te
 a

nd
 C

le
an

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

ES
R5

1 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 w

as
te

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 











ES
R5

2 
Fl

ee
t 

co
nt

ra
ct

 a
nd

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 










ES
R5

3 
G

ro
un

ds
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t 










ES
R5

4 
Pa

rk
s 

/ 
tr

ee
s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t 










ES
R5

5 
W

as
te

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
/ 

PF
I 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t 









Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 (
ne

w
) 

ES
R6

1 
So

ci
al

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lt
h 










35



Pa
ge
 |
 2
4 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
A

ud
it

 S
po

ns
or

 
20

16
-1

7 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

17
-1

8 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

18
-1

9 
20

19
-2

0 
20

20
-2

1 

&
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

 

ES
R6

2 
H

ea
lt

h 
in

 a
ll 

po
lic

ie
s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lt

h 
&

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 










ES
R6

3 
Pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lt
h 

pr
io

ri
ty

 a
re

a 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lt
h 

&
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

 












Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

FG
01

 
El

ec
to

ra
l r

eg
is

te
r 

an
d 

el
ec

ti
on

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 la

w
 &

 
de

m
oc

ra
cy

 
 




 
 

 

FG
02

 
Ca

se
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Sy

st
em

 (
Vi

su
al

fi
le

s)
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 la
w

 &
 

de
m

oc
ra

cy
 

 



 
 

 

FG
03

 
Ba

rr
is

te
rs

’ 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 la

w
 &

 
de

m
oc

ra
cy

 
 

 





 

FG
04

 
M

em
be

r 
/ 

of
fi

ce
r 

pr
ot

oc
ol

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 la

w
 &

 
de

m
oc

ra
cy

 
 

 
 





FG
05

 
W

hi
st

le
bl

ow
in

g 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 la

w
 &

 
de

m
oc

ra
cy

 
 

 
 

 



FG
06

 
Co

ns
ti

tu
ti

on
al

 t
ea

m
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 la
w

 &
 

de
m

oc
ra

cy
 

 
 

 



 

FG
07

 
M

em
be

rs
 a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 la

w
 &

 
de

m
oc

ra
cy

 
 

 




 

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Te

am
 

FG
11

 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
fi

na
nc

e 
te

am
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 f
in

an
ce

 









FG
13

 
Ac

co
un

ts
 p

re
pa

ra
ti

on
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 f
in

an
ce

 








FG
14

 
H

ou
si

ng
 r

ev
en

ue
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 f
in

an
ce

 









Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
nd

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

FG
21

 
D

at
a 

pr
ot

ec
ti

on
 /

 G
D

PR
 

H
ea

d 
of

 f
in

an
ci

al
 &

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 











FG
22

 
Pe

ns
io

ns
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
H

ea
d 

of
 f

in
an

ci
al

 &
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 













36



Pa
ge
 |
 2
5 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
A

ud
it

 S
po

ns
or

 
20

16
-1

7 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

17
-1

8 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

18
-1

9 
20

19
-2

0 
20

20
-2

1 

Ex
ch

eq
ue

r 
Se

rv
ic

es
 (

no
n 

Ke
y 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
ys

te
m

s)
 

FG
31

 
H

om
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
- 

m
or

tg
ag

es
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 










FG
32

 
H

om
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
- 

ch
ar

ge
s 

to
 le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 











FG
33

 
H

om
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
- 

ga
ra

ge
s 

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ex
ch

eq
ue

r 
se

rv
ic

es
 










FG
34

 
En

fo
rc

em
en

t 
ag

en
ts

, 
re

nt
 a

rr
ea

rs
 a

nd
 w

ri
te

 
of

fs
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 











FG
36

 
Cl

ie
nt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ex
ch

eq
ue

r 
se

rv
ic

es
 










H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 M
od

er
ni

sa
ti

on
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 

H
M

01
 

Ap
ex

 a
ss

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

as
se

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 










H
M

02
 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

as
se

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 





(a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

H
M

01
)






H
M

03
 

G
as

 s
er

vi
ci

ng
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
as

se
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 





(a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

H
M

01
)






H
M

04
 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
da

pt
at

io
ns

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

as
se

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 









H
M

05
 

H
ou

si
ng

 r
en

ew
al

 a
re

as
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
as

se
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 












H
M

06
 

H
ou

si
ng

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

an
d 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
as

se
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 











H
M

07
 

M
aj

or
 w

or
ks

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

as
se

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 










H
M

08
 

Pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 h

ou
si

ng
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
as

se
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 










H
M

09
 

Re
pa

ir
s 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

as
se

t 










37



Pa
ge
 |
 2
6 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
A

ud
it

 S
po

ns
or

 
20

16
-1

7 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

17
-1

8 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

18
-1

9 
20

19
-2

0 
20

20
-2

1 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

H
M

10
 

D
is

re
pa

ir
s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
as

se
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

/ 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 L

aw
 a

nd
 D

em
oc

ra
cy

 










Co
m

m
un

it
ie

s 

H
M

21
 

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 c

om
m

un
it

ie
s 











H
M

22
 

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

su
pp

or
t 

an
d 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 c
om

m
un

it
ie

s 









H
M

23
 

N
o 

re
co

ur
se

 t
o 

pu
bl

ic
 f

un
ds

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 c

om
m

un
it

ie
s 













H
M

24
 

Te
na

nc
y 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

or
ga

ni
sa

ti
on

s 
(T

M
O

s)
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 c
om

m
un

it
ie

s 











H
M

25
 

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

sa
fe

ty
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 s

er
vi

ce
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 c
om

m
un

it
ie

s 










Cu
st

om
er

 E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

H
M

31
 

Bl
ue

 b
ad

ge
s 

an
d 

fr
ee

do
m

 p
as

se
s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 c
us

to
m

er
 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
 










H
M

32
 

Co
nt

ac
t 

ce
nt

re
  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 c
us

to
m

er
 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
 










H
M

33
 

Co
ro

ne
rs

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 c

us
to

m
er

 
ex

pe
ri

en
ce

 










H
M

34
 

Cu
st

om
er

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

an
d 

re
so

lu
ti

on
 /

 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 c

us
to

m
er

 
ex

pe
ri

en
ce

 










H
M

35
 

H
ou

si
ng

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
 -

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
al

lo
ca

ti
on

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 c

us
to

m
er

 
ex

pe
ri

en
ce

 









H
M

36
 

H
ou

si
ng

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
 -

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 c

us
to

m
er

 
ex

pe
ri

en
ce

 










H
M

37
 

H
ou

si
ng

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
 –

 o
th

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 c
us

to
m

er
 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
 










H
M

38
 

M
yS

ou
th

w
ar

k 
ho

m
e 

ow
ne

rs
 a

ge
nc

y 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 c

us
to

m
er

 
ex

pe
ri

en
ce

 










H
M

39
 

D
ig

it
al

is
at

io
n 

an
d 

ch
an

ne
l s

hi
ft

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 c

us
to

m
er

 
ex

pe
ri

en
ce

 









H
M

40
 

Re
gi

st
ra

rs
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 c
us

to
m

er
 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
 










38



Pa
ge
 |
 2
7 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
A

ud
it

 S
po

ns
or

 
20

16
-1

7 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

17
-1

8 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

18
-1

9 
20

19
-2

0 
20

20
-2

1 

H
M

41
 

Sa
le

s 
an

d 
ac

qu
is

it
io

ns
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ri

gh
t 

to
 b

uy
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 c
us

to
m

er
 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
 












H
M

42
 

In
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 c

us
to

m
er

 b
as

ed
 s

ys
te

m
s,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

te
le

ph
on

y 
an

d 
ca

ll 
ce

nt
re

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 c

us
to

m
er

 
ex

pe
ri

en
ce

 










Re
si

de
nt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

H
M

51
 

Vo
id

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 r

es
id

en
t 

se
rv

ic
es

 










H
M

52
 

H
ou

si
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 r

es
id

en
t 

se
rv

ic
es

 










H
M

53
 

H
ou

si
ng

 t
en

an
ci

es
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 r
es

id
en

t 
se

rv
ic

es
 










H
M

54
 

Sh
el

te
re

d 
ho

us
in

g 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 r

es
id

en
t 

se
rv

ic
es

 









H
M

55
 

Su
pp

or
te

d 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
ho

st
el

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 r

es
id

en
t 

se
rv

ic
es

 









H
M

56
 

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 r

es
id

en
t 

se
rv

ic
es

 










H
M

57
 

Te
na

nc
y 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 le
tt

in
gs

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 r

es
id

en
t 

se
rv

ic
es

 









H
M

58
 

U
na

ut
ho

ri
se

d 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 r
es

id
en

t 
se

rv
ic

es
 










M
od

er
ni

se
 

H
M

60
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 M
od

er
ni

se
 





(c
on

tr
ac

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t)
 




(u
ti

lis
a-

ti
on

) 




H
M

61
 

H
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 M
od

er
ni

se
 











H
M

62
 

M
od

er
ni

se
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 M

od
er

ni
se

 









H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 

39



Pa
ge
 |
 2
8 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
A

ud
it

 S
po

ns
or

 
20

16
-1

7 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

17
-1

8 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

18
-1

9 
20

19
-2

0 
20

20
-2

1 

H
M

71
 

H
R 

Po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 M
od

er
ni

se
 










H
M

72
 

St
af

f 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
an

d 
ve

tt
in

g 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 M

od
er

ni
se

 










H
M

73
 

Ap
pr

en
ti

ce
sh

ip
s 

le
vy

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 M

od
er

ni
se

 










H
M

74
 

SA
P 

H
R 

sy
st

em
 –

 s
ec

ur
it

y 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 M

od
er

ni
se

 










In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

IT
01

 
IT

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 M
od

er
ni

se
 







(a
s 

pa
rt

 
of

 H
M

62
)




IT
02

 
D

ig
it

al
 s

tr
at

eg
y 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 M
od

er
ni

se
 








(a
s 

pa
rt

 
of

 H
M

62
)





IT
03

 
N

et
w

or
k 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 M
od

er
ni

se
 










IT
04

 
N

et
w

or
k 

se
cu

ri
ty

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 M

od
er

ni
se

 











IT
05

 
IT

 d
is

as
te

r 
re

co
ve

ry
 a

nd
 b

us
in

es
s 

co
nt

in
ui

ty
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 M

od
er

ni
se

 










IT
06

 
Vu

ln
er

ab
ili

ty
 (

lo
ss

 o
f 

da
ta

) 
/ 

da
ta

 s
ec

ur
it

y 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 M

od
er

ni
se

 










IT
07

 
So

ft
w

ar
e 

in
ve

nt
or

y 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 M

od
er

ni
se

 






(a
s 

pa
rt

 
of

 IT
09

)





IT
08

 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 &
 p

ro
je

ct
 in

it
ia

ti
on

 
co

nt
ro

ls
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 M
od

er
ni

se
 











IT
09

 
IT

 s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 M
od

er
ni

se
 












IT
10

 
E-

m
ai

l 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 M

od
er

ni
se

 










IT
11

 
Ch

an
ge

 c
on

tr
ol

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 M

od
er

ni
se

 









IT
12

 
H

el
p 

de
sk

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 M

od
er

ni
se

 










IT
14

 
D

yn
am

ix
 C

RM
 –

 s
ec

ur
it

y 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 M

od
er

ni
se

 










IT
15

 
As

se
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 M
od

er
ni

se
 










IT
16

 
M

ob
ile

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 M

od
er

ni
se

 










IT
17

 
Pa

ym
en

t 
ca

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 /

 P
CI

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 M
od

er
ni

se
 










IT
18

 
Po

rt
ab

le
 c

om
pu

te
r 

de
vi

ce
s 

- 
se

cu
ri

ty
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 M
od

er
ni

se
 










40



Pa
ge
 |
 2
9 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
A

ud
it

 S
po

ns
or

 
20

16
-1

7 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

17
-1

8 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

18
-1

9 
20

19
-2

0 
20

20
-2

1 

Ke
y 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
ys

te
m

s 

M
A0

1 
Co

un
ci

l t
ax

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

xc
he

qu
er

 
se

rv
ic

es
 













M
A0

2 
N

at
io

na
l n

on
-d

om
es

ti
c 

ra
te

s 
/ 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
ra

te
s 

po
ol

in
g 

(2
01

9-
20

) 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

xc
he

qu
er

 
se

rv
ic

es
 
















M
A0

3 
H

ou
si

ng
 r

en
ts

 a
nd

 u
ni

ve
rs

al
 c

re
di

t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

xc
he

qu
er

 
se

rv
ic

es
 
















M
A0

4 
Ac

co
un

ts
 r

ec
ei

va
bl

e/
 o

th
er

 in
co

m
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
xc

he
qu

er
 

se
rv

ic
es

 











M
A0

5 
Pa

yr
ol

l 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

xc
he

qu
er

 
se

rv
ic

es
 
















M
A0

6 
G

en
er

al
 le

dg
er

 /
 S

AP
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
xc

he
qu

er
 

se
rv

ic
es

 









M
A0

7 
Ac

co
un

ts
 P

ay
ab

le
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
xc

he
qu

er
 

se
rv

ic
es

 















M
A0

8 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 m

an
ag

em
en

t,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bo
rr

ow
in

g 
po

lic
y 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
xc

he
qu

er
 

se
rv

ic
es

 











M
A0

9 
H

ou
si

ng
 b

en
ef

it
s 

an
d 

un
iv

er
sa

l c
re

di
t 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 e
xc

he
qu

er
 

se
rv

ic
es

 















M
A1

0 
Su

sp
en

se
 a

cc
ou

nt
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

xc
he

qu
er

 
se

rv
ic

es
 











Th
em

at
ic

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
/ 

co
un

ci
l w

id
e 

au
di

ts
 

TR
01

 
Ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

se
rv

ic
es

 
Co

rp
or

at
e 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Pa
ne

l 












TR
02

 
Fo

ur
 y

ea
r 

co
un

ci
l p

la
n 

de
liv

er
y 

 










TR
03

 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
is

at
io

n 
Co

rp
or

at
e 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Pa
ne

l 









TR
04

 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 c

on
ti

nu
it

y 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Pa

ne
l 




 





TR
05

 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 
Co

rp
or

at
e 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Pa
ne

l 










41



Pa
ge
 |
 3
0 
 

Re
f.

 
A

ud
it

 A
re

a 
A

ud
it

 S
po

ns
or

 
20

16
-1

7 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

17
-1

8 
(f

or
 r

ef
.)

 
20

18
-1

9 
20

19
-2

0 
20

20
-2

1 

TR
06

 
Ca

pi
ta

l f
un

de
d 

pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 f
in

an
ce

  











TR
07

 
Ca

sh
le

ss
 s

ys
te

m
s 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Pa

ne
l 










TR
08

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Pa

ne
l 





(t
o 

dr
aw

 
co

nc
lu

si
on

 
fr

om
 in

di
vi

du
al

 
au

di
ts

) 

 




TR
09

 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

bu
dg

et
 m

on
it

or
in

g 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 f

in
an

ce
  










TR
10

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
H

ea
d 

of
 f

in
an

ci
al

 &
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
  













TR
11

 
H

os
pi

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
gi

ft
s 

re
gi

st
er

, 
re

gi
st

er
 o

f 
in

te
re

st
s 

an
d 

br
ib

er
y 

an
d 

co
rr

up
ti

on
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Bo

ar
d 










TR
12

 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Pa

ne
l 







(t
o 

dr
aw

 
co

nc
lu

si
on

 
fr

om
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 

au
di

ts
) 




TR
13

 
U

se
 o

f 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 
/ 

Pa
ym

en
ts

 t
o 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ou
ts

id
e 

of
 P

AY
E 

/ 
IR

35
  

Co
rp

or
at

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Pa

ne
l 











TR
14

 
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 f

in
an

ce
  











TR
15

 
U

se
 o

f 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 s
ta

ff
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Pa

ne
l 










TR
16

 
Pr

od
uc

ti
vi

ty
 a

ud
it

s 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 












TR
17

 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
Pl

an
s 

(G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
vi

ew
) 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Pa

ne
l 










TR
18

 
Si

ck
ne

ss
 a

bs
en

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t,
 m

on
it

or
in

g 
an

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 M
od

er
ni

se
 /

 
Co

rp
or

at
e 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Pa
ne

l 










TR
19

 
St

af
f 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 M
od

er
ni

se
 /

 
Co

rp
or

at
e 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Pa
ne

l 










 
 

42



Pa
ge
 |
 3
1 
 

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 I 

- 
IN

TE
RN

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 C
H

A
RT

ER
 

Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

te
r 

Th
is

 
ch

ar
te

r 
is

 
a 

re
qu

ir
em

en
t 

of
 

Pu
bl

ic
 

Se
ct

or
 

In
te

rn
al

 
Au

di
t 

St
an

da
rd

s 
(P

SI
AS

).
 

Th
e 

ch
ar

te
r 

fo
rm

al
ly

 
de

fi
ne

s 
in

te
rn

al
 

au
di

t’
s 

m
is

si
on

, 
pu

rp
os

e,
 

au
th

or
it

y 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y.

 
It

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

s 
in

te
rn

al
 

au
di

t’
s 

po
si

ti
on

 
w

it
hi

n 
Lo

nd
on

 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
of

 
So

ut
hw

ar
k 

Co
un

ci
l,

 a
nd

 d
ef

in
es

 t
he

 s
co

pe
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s.

  

Th
e 

ch
ar

te
r 

sh
al

l 
be

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
an

nu
al

ly
 

by
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

by
 

th
e 

Au
di

t,
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e.
 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
’s

 m
is

si
on

 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
’s

 m
is

si
on

 i
s 

to
 e

nh
an

ce
 a

nd
 p

ro
te

ct
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l 
va

lu
e 

by
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 r
is

k-
ba

se
d 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e,

 a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

in
si

gh
t.

 

St
an

da
rd

s 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

To
 

fu
lf

il 
it

s 
m

is
si

on
, 

in
te

rn
al

 
au

di
t 

w
ill

 
pe

rf
or

m
 

it
s 

w
or

k 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h 
PS

IA
S,

 w
hi

ch
 e

nc
om

pa
ss

 t
he

 m
an

da
to

ry
 e

le
m

en
ts

 
of

 t
he

 I
ns

ti
tu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it

or
s 

(I
IA

) 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
Pr

ac
ti

ce
s 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
(I

PP
F)

: 
D

ef
in

it
io

n 
of

 I
nt

er
na

l 
Au

di
ti

ng
, 

Co
de

 o
f 

Et
hi

cs
, 

an
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
St

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
of

 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it

in
g.

 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 d

ef
in

it
io

n 
an

d 
ro

le
 

In
te

rn
al

 
au

di
ti

ng
 

is
 

an
 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t,

 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

ti
ng

 
ac

ti
vi

ty
 

de
si

gn
ed

 
to

 
ad

d 
va

lu
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

an
 

or
ga

ni
sa

ti
on

’s
 o

pe
ra

ti
on

s.
 I

t 
he

lp
s 

an
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

ac
co

m
pl

is
h 

it
s 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 

by
 

br
in

gi
ng

 
a 

sy
st

em
at

ic
, 

di
sc

ip
lin

ed
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 
to

 
ev

al
ua

te
 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 
ri

sk
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 
co

nt
ro

l a
nd

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s.
 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 a

ct
s 

pr
im

ar
ily

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

Au
di

t,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

w
it

h 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

fo
r 

it
 t

o 
fu

lf
il 

it
s 

ow
n 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

du
ti

es
. 

Im
pl

ic
it

 i
n 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
’s

 r
ol

e 
is

 
th

at
 i

t 
su

pp
or

ts
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
to

 f
ul

fi
l 

it
s 

ow
n 

ri
sk

, 
co

nt
ro

l 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

Th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
w

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 

by
 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 is

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 P

SI
AS

 a
nd

 n
ot

 r
ep

ea
te

d 
he

re
. 

 
In

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

’s
 s

co
pe

 

Th
e 

sc
op

e 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

ll 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 b

y 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f 

So
ut

hw
ar

k 
Co

un
ci

l.
 T

he
 I

nt
er

na
l 

Au
di

t 
Pl

an
 s

et
s 

ou
t 

th
os

e 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 t
ha

t 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
of

 s
pe

ci
fi

c 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 e
ng

ag
em

en
ts

. 
 

Th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

is
 t

he
 p

ri
m

ar
y 

ro
le

 f
or

 i
nt

er
na

l 
au

di
t 

in
 t

he
 U

K 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r.

 T
hi

s 
ro

le
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

th
e 

ch
ie

f 
au

di
t 

ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 
an

nu
al

 
in

te
rn

al
 

au
di

t 
op

in
io

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 

an
 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
of

 
th

e 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

of
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
, 

ri
sk

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l.
 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
en

ga
ge

m
en

ts
 i

nv
ol

ve
 

th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
of

 
ev

id
en

ce
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 i
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
r 

co
nc

lu
si

on
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
an

 
en

ti
ty

, 
op

er
at

io
n,

 f
un

ct
io

n,
 p

ro
ce

ss
, 

sy
st

em
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

su
bj

ec
t 

m
at

te
r.

 
Th

e 
na

tu
re

 a
nd

 s
co

pe
 o

f 
th

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

ar
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

. 
 

Co
ns

ul
ti

ng
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
ts

 
ar

e 
ad

vi
so

ry
 

in
 

na
tu

re
 

an
d 

ar
e 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

 r
eq

ue
st

 o
f 

m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 w
it

h 
th

e 
ai

m
 o

f 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
, 

ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l 

an
d 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
ng

 t
o 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

op
in

io
n.

 T
he

 n
at

ur
e 

an
d 

sc
op

e 
of

 c
on

su
lt

in
g 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

ar
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
w

it
h 

m
an

ag
em

en
t.

 W
he

n 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
co

ns
ul

ti
ng

 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

in
te

rn
al

 
au

di
t 

sh
ou

ld
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ob

je
ct

iv
it

y 
an

d 
no

t 
as

su
m

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y.

 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 

O
ur

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 f

un
ct

io
n 

is
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

 w
he

n:
  

• 
It

 a
ch

ie
ve

s 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

in
cl

ud
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 
au

di
t 

ch
ar

te
r 

• 
It

 c
on

fo
rm

s 
w

it
h 

th
e 

St
an

da
rd

s 
• 

It
s 

in
di

vi
du

al
 m

em
be

rs
 c

on
fo

rm
 w

it
h 

th
e 

Co
de

 o
f 

Et
hi

cs
 a

nd
 t

he
 

St
an

da
rd

s 
• 

It
 

co
ns

id
er

s 
tr

en
ds

 
an

d 
em

er
gi

ng
 

is
su

es
 

th
at

 
co

ul
d 

im
pa

ct
 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

ti
on

. 
Th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
ad

ds
 v

al
ue

 t
o 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
So

ut
hw

ar
k 

Co
un

ci
l (

an
d 

it
s 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

) 
w

he
n 

it
 c

on
si

de
rs

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s,

 o
bj

ec
ti

ve
s 

an
d 

ri
sk

s,
 s

tr
iv

es
 t

o 
of

fe
r 

w
ay

s 
to

 e
nh

an
ce

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 o

bj
ec

ti
ve

ly
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

re
le

va
nt

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
. 

43



Pa
ge
 |
 3
2 
 

• 
 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 
an

d 
in

te
rn

al
 

au
di

t’
s 

po
si

ti
on

 
w

it
hi

n 
Lo

nd
on

 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
of

 S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

Co
un

ci
l 

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 f

or
 i

nt
er

na
l 

au
di

t’
s 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, 
it

s 
pe

rs
on

ne
l 

an
d 

ex
te

rn
al

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 

re
po

rt
 

to
 

th
e 

Fi
na

nc
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r,
 

w
ho

 
re

po
rt

s 
fu

nc
ti

on
al

ly
 t

o 
th

e 
Au

di
t,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e.
 

Th
e 

H
ea

d 
of

 I
nt

er
na

l 
Au

di
t 

ha
s 

fr
ee

 a
nd

 f
ul

l 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

th
e 

Ch
ai

r 
of

 
th

e 
Au

di
t,

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Co
m

m
it

te
e.

 
Th

e 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 r

ep
or

ts
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

el
y 

to
 t

he
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 F

in
an

ce
 

w
ho

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
ov

er
si

gh
t.

 

Th
e 

ap
po

in
tm

en
t 

or
 r

em
ov

al
 o

f 
th

e 
H

ea
d 

of
 I

nt
er

na
l 

Au
di

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

nd
 s

ub
je

ct
 

to
 t

he
 a

pp
ro

va
l o

f 
th

e 
Ch

ai
r 

of
 t

he
 A

ud
it

, 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Co
m

m
it

te
e.

 

Th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 s

er
vi

ce
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

an
 i

m
pa

rt
ia

l,
 u

nb
ia

se
d 

at
ti

tu
de

 
an

d 
w

ill
 a

vo
id

 c
on

fl
ic

ts
 o

f 
in

te
re

st
. 

Th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 s

er
vi

ce
 i

s 
no

t 
or

di
na

ri
ly

 a
ut

ho
ri

se
d 

to
 p

er
fo

rm
 a

ny
 o

pe
ra

ti
on

al
 d

ut
ie

s 
fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
of

 S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

Co
un

ci
l.

 

In
 t

he
 e

ve
nt

 t
ha

t 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
s 

no
n-

au
di

t 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

, 
sa

fe
gu

ar
ds

 
w

ill
 

be
 

ag
re

ed
 

to
 

en
su

re
 

th
at

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 

or
 

ob
je

ct
iv

it
y 

of
 t

he
 i

nt
er

na
l 

au
di

t 
ac

ti
vi

ty
 a

re
 n

ot
 i

m
pa

ir
ed

. 
Th

is
 

m
ig

ht
 i

nc
lu

de
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
pa

rt
ne

r 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

w
or

k 
or

 a
 d

if
fe

re
nt

 
te

am
 u

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 t

he
 w

or
k.

 A
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 t
he

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 f

or
 s

uc
h 

en
ga

ge
m

en
ts

 
w

ill
 

be
 

so
ug

ht
 

fr
om

 
th

e 
Au

di
t,

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

pr
io

r 
to

 c
om

m
en

ce
m

en
t.

 

In
 t

he
 e

ve
nt

 t
ha

t 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
he

re
 it

 
ha

d 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 c

on
su

lt
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

an
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 t
o 

co
nf

ir
m

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
ti

ng
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

di
d 

no
t 

im
pa

ir
 o

bj
ec

ti
vi

ty
 a

nd
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
pu

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 t

o 
m

an
ag

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 o
bj

ec
ti

vi
ty

 w
he

n 
as

si
gn

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 t
he

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t.

 
Su

ch
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

Au
di

t,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Co
m

m
it

te
e.

 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 m

us
t 

be
 f

re
e 

fr
om

 i
nt

er
fe

re
nc

e 
in

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 i

nt
er

na
l 

au
di

ti
ng

, 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
w

or
k 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

in
g 

re
su

lt
s.

 
Sh

ou
ld

 
an

y 
in

te
rf

er
en

ce
 

ta
ke

 
pl

ac
e,

 
in

te
rn

al
 

au
di

t 
w

ill
 

di
sc

lo
se

 t
hi

s 
to

 t
he

 A
ud

it
, 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e 
to

 
di

sc
us

s 
th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
. 

 
In

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

’s
 r

ol
e 

in
 f

ra
ud

, 
br

ib
er

y 
an

d 
co

rr
up

ti
on

 

M
an

ag
em

en
t,

 n
ot

 i
nt

er
na

l 
au

di
to

rs
 a

re
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 t

he
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n 
an

d 
de

te
ct

io
n 

of
 f

ra
ud

, 
br

ib
er

y 
an

d 
co

rr
up

ti
on

. 
Au

di
to

rs
 w

ill
, 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
be

 a
le

rt
 i

n 
al

l 
th

ei
r 

w
or

k 
to

 r
is

ks
 a

nd
 e

xp
os

ur
es

 t
ha

t 
co

ul
d 

al
lo

w
 f

ra
ud

 o
r 

co
rr

up
ti

on
 

as
 

w
el

l 
as

 
se

ek
in

g 
to

 i
de

nt
if

y 
in

di
ca

ti
on

s 
th

at
 f

ra
ud

 
an

d 
co

rr
up

ti
on

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
be

en
 o

cc
ur

ri
ng

. 
Au

di
t 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

lo
ne

, 
ev

en
 w

he
n 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 w

it
h 

du
e 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 c
ar

e,
 c

an
no

t 
gu

ar
an

te
e 

th
at

 f
ra

ud
 a

nd
 

co
rr

up
ti

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
ct

ed
. 

In
 t

he
 e

ve
nt

 t
ha

t 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 s
us

pe
ct

s 
a 

fr
au

d,
 t

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
fe

rr
ed

 t
o 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
 t

he
 f

ir
st

 
in

st
an

ce
 a

nd
 t

he
n 

th
e 

Au
di

t,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Co
m

m
it

te
e.

 

A
cc

es
s 

to
 r

ec
or

ds
 a

nd
 c

on
fi

de
nt

ia
lit

y 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 l
im

it
at

io
ns

 t
o 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
’s

 r
ig

ht
 o

f 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

Lo
nd

on
 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

of
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
Co

un
ci

l 
of

fi
ce

rs
, 

re
co

rd
s,

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n,
 p

re
m

is
es

, 
or

 m
ee

ti
ng

s 
w

hi
ch

 it
 c

on
si

de
rs

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o 
fu

lf
il 

it
s 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

 

W
he

n 
th

e 
au

di
to

rs
 r

ec
ei

ve
 c

on
fi

de
nt

ia
l 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t 
yo

ur
 a

ff
ai

rs
 i

t 
sh

al
l 

at
 a

ll 
ti

m
es

 a
re

 k
ep

t 
co

nf
id

en
ti

al
, 

ex
ce

pt
 a

s 
re

qu
ir

ed
 b

y 
la

w
 o

r 
as

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 f

or
 i

n 
re

gu
la

to
ry

, 
et

hi
ca

l 
or

 o
th

er
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l 

pr
on

ou
nc

em
en

ts
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
. 

Al
l 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 l

in
e 

w
it

h 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
re

gu
la

ti
on

s,
 f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

th
e 

D
at

a 
Pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8.
 

Co
or

di
na

ti
on

 a
nd

 r
el

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

ot
he

r 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s 

In
 c

o-
or

di
na

ti
ng

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 m

ay
 r

el
y 

on
 t

he
 w

or
k 

of
 o

th
er

 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
ti

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

. 

A 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
is

 a
do

pt
ed

 f
or

 t
he

 b
as

is
 o

f 
re

lia
nc

e 
an

d 
in

te
rn

al
 

au
di

t 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

co
m

pe
te

nc
y,

 o
bj

ec
ti

vi
ty

, 
an

d 
du

e 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 

ca
re

 o
f 

th
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

ti
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
. 

D
ue

 r
eg

ar
d 

w
ill

 
be

 g
iv

en
 t

o 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 t

he
 s

co
pe

, 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
nd

 r
es

ul
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

w
or

k 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 b
y 

ot
he

r 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

of
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 a
nd

 c
on

su
lt

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
 

W
he

re
 r

el
ia

nc
e 

is
 p

la
ce

d 
up

on
 t

he
 w

or
k 

of
 o

th
er

s,
 i

nt
er

na
l 

au
di

t 
is

 s
ti

ll 
ac

co
un

ta
bl

e 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
en

su
ri

ng
 

ad
eq

ua
te

 
su

pp
or

t 
fo

r 
co

nc
lu

si
on

s 
an

d 
op

in
io

ns
 r

ea
ch

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 

44



Pa
ge
 |
 3
3 
 

In
te

rn
al

 
au

di
t’

s 
co

m
m

it
m

en
ts

 
to

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
of

 
So

ut
hw

ar
k 

Co
un

ci
l 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 c

om
m

it
s 

to
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g:
  

• 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

it
h 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

to
 i

m
pr

ov
e 

ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
an

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

ti
on

 
• 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

w
or

k 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
it

h 
PS

IA
S 

• 
co

m
pl

yi
ng

 w
it

h 
th

e 
et

hi
ca

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f 
PS

IA
S 

• 
de

al
in

g 
in

 
a 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
m

an
ne

r 
w

it
h 

Lo
nd

on
 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

of
 

So
ut

hw
ar

k 
Co

un
ci

l 
st

af
f,

 r
ec

og
ni

si
ng

 t
he

ir
 o

th
er

 c
om

m
it

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

pr
es

su
re

s 
• 

ra
is

in
g 

is
su

es
 a

s 
th

ey
 a

re
 i

de
nt

if
ie

d,
 s

o 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 s

ur
pr

is
es

 a
nd

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

pr
ac

ti
ca

l r
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
• 

lia
is

in
g 

w
it

h 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 r

eg
ul

at
or

s 
to

 m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 t
o 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
So

ut
hw

ar
k 

Co
un

ci
l 

• 
re

po
rt

in
g 

ho
ne

st
ly

 o
n 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 t
ar

ge
ts

 t
o 

th
e 

Au
di

t,
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e.
  

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 

Th
e 

ta
bl

es
 o

n 
th

e 
ri

gh
t 

co
nt

ai
n 

so
m

e 
of

 t
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 t
o 

ha
ve

 t
he

 m
os

t 
va

lu
e 

in
 a

ss
es

si
ng

 t
he

 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

. 
 

Th
e 

Au
di

t,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

sh
ou

ld
 a

pp
ro

ve
 t

he
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 t
o 

ea
ch

 m
ee

ti
ng

 a
nd

 /
 o

r 
an

nu
al

ly
 a

s 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e.
 

In
 

ad
di

ti
on

 
to

 
th

os
e 

lis
te

d 
he

re
 

w
e 

al
so

 
re

po
rt

 
on

 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 m
ea

su
re

s 
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

w
it

h 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

ed
 i

n 
ou

r 
Pr

og
re

ss
 R

ep
or

t.
  

Q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 

As
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 P

SI
AS

 a
n 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

of
 t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
 w

ill
 b

e 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 a
t 

le
as

t 
ev

er
y 

fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
. 

BD
O

 a
ls

o 
ha

s 
an

 i
nt

er
na

l 
qu

al
it

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

re
vi

ew
 p

ro
ce

ss
 i

n 
pl

ac
e,

 w
hi

ch
 t

ak
es

 p
la

ce
 a

nn
ua

lly
. 

Th
is

 i
s 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 b

y 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 t
ea

m
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
to

 t
he

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 t

ea
m

. 

Th
e 

re
su

lt
s 

of
 i

nt
er

na
l 

an
d 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed
 

to
 t

he
 A

ud
it

, 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 a

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
t,

 a
lo

ng
 w

it
h 

co
rr

ec
ti

ve
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s.

 

 
Ta
bl
e 
O
ne

: P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 m

ea
su
re
s f
or
 in
te
rn
al
 a
ud

it 

M
ea

su
re

 /
 In

di
ca

to
r 

 T
ar

ge
t 

% 
of

 a
ud

it
s 

fr
om

 t
he

 p
la

n 
re

po
rt

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
m

ee
ti

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
au

di
t,

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

st
an

da
rd

s 
co

m
m

it
te

e 
(a

s 
pe

r 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 t

er
m

s 
of

 
re

fe
re

nc
e)

. 

90
% 

% 
of

 h
ig

h 
an

d 
m

ed
iu

m
 r

at
ed

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 t
he

 a
gr

ee
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 d

at
e 

75
% 

% 
of

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
in

 d
ra

ft
 r

ep
or

t 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 b

y 
au

di
t 

sp
on

so
r 

/ 
ow

ne
r 

90
% 

% 
of

 d
ra

ft
 r

ep
or

ts
 is

su
ed

 w
it

hi
n 

10
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

of
 

th
e 

au
di

t 
cl

os
ur

e 
m

ee
ti

ng
. 

90
%  

% 
of

 r
et

ur
ne

d 
au

di
t 

sa
ti

sf
ac

ti
on

 s
ur

ve
y 

fo
rm

s 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

a 
sc

or
e 

of
 4

 o
r 

5 
ou

t 
of

 5
 

75
%  

An
nu

al
 c

hi
ef

 o
ff

ic
er

 a
nd

 a
ud

it
, 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 

st
an

da
rd

s 
sa

ti
sf

ac
ti

on
 s

ur
ve

y 
re

su
lt

s 
Av

er
ag

e 
of

 
75

% 
an

d 
ab

ov
e 

% 
of

 a
ud

it
s 

fr
om

 t
he

 p
la

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 t
o 

dr
af

t 
re

po
rt

 s
ta

ge
 b

y 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
8 

10
0%

 

   

  
 

45



Pa
ge
 |
 3
4 
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

st
af

f 
co

m
m

it
m

en
ts

 t
o 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 

Th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

st
af

f 
of

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
of

 
So

ut
hw

ar
k 

Co
un

ci
l c

om
m

it
 t

o 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

  

• 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

un
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

ll 
of

 L
on

do
n 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

of
 

So
ut

hw
ar

k 
Co

un
ci

l’
s 

re
co

rd
s,

 
pr

op
er

ty
, 

an
d 

pe
rs

on
ne

l 
re

le
va

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f 
en

ga
ge

m
en

ts
 

• 
Be

in
g 

re
ad

y 
fo

r 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 a
t 

th
e 

ti
m

e 
ag

re
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 r
ef

er
en

ce
, 

to
 a

vo
id

 d
el

ay
s 

in
 t

he
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 t

he
 

ri
sk

 o
f 

ad
di

ti
on

al
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 f
ee

s 
be

in
g 

in
cu

rr
ed

 

• 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 t
o 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 r

eq
ue

st
s 

an
d 

re
po

rt
s 

w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

ag
re

ed
 t

im
ef

ra
m

e 
an

d 
in

 a
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l m

an
ne

r 

• 
im

pl
em

en
ti

ng
 a

gr
ee

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

ag
re

ed
 

ti
m

ef
ra

m
e 

• 
be

in
g 

op
en

 t
o 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 a

bo
ut

 r
is

ks
 a

nd
 i

ss
ue

s 
w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
ti

on
 

• 
no

t 
re

qu
es

ti
ng

 a
ny

 s
er

vi
ce

 f
ro

m
 i

nt
er

na
l 

au
di

t 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 
im

pa
ir

 it
s 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 o
r 

ob
je

ct
iv

it
y 

• 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ho
ne

st
 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
ve

 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 

on
 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

st
af

f 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 
go

od
 

pr
ac

ti
ce

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
s 

bu
t 

w
e 

go
 b

ey
on

d 
th

is
 a

nd
 r

ep
or

t 
on

 a
 

su
it

e 
of

 m
ea

su
re

s 
as

 i
nc

lu
de

d 
in

 e
ac

h 
Au

di
t,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 r

ep
or

t.
  

 
 

 
Ta
bl
e 
Tw

o:
 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 m

ea
su
re
s f
or
 m

an
ag
em

en
t a

nd
 st
af
f 

M
ea
su
re
 /
 In

di
ca
to
r 

R
es

po
ns

e 
to

 R
ep

or
ts

 
Au

di
t 

sp
on

so
r 

to
 r

es
po

nd
 t

o 
te

rm
s 

of
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 w
it

hi
n 

on
e 

w
ee

k 
of

 
re

ce
ip

t 
an

d 
to

 d
ra

ft
 r

ep
or

ts
 w

it
hi

n 
tw

o 
w

ee
ks

 o
f 

re
ce

ip
t 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 o

f 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

Au
di

t 
sp

on
so

r 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t 
au

di
t 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
ag

re
ed

 
ti

m
ef

ra
m

e 

Co
-o

pe
ra

ti
on

 w
it

h 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 
In

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 t
o 

co
nf

ir
m

 t
o 

ea
ch

 m
ee

ti
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

Au
di

t,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

w
he

th
er

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 c
o-

op
er

at
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

st
af

f 

BD
O
 c
on

ta
ct
s 

N
am

e 
G
ra
de

 
Te
le
ph

on
e 

Em
ai
l 

G
re

g 
Ru

bi
ns

 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t 
Pa

rt
ne

r 
an

d 
Ch

ie
f 

Au
di

t 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

02
38

0 
88

1 
89

2 
G

re
g.

Ru
bi

ns
@

bd
o.

co
.u

k 

An
ge

la
 

M
as

on
-

Be
ll 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t 

M
an

ag
er

 
07

81
3 

00
0 

31
9 

An
ge

la
.M

as
on

-B
el

l@
bd

o.
co

.u
k 

Ia
n 

W
ilt

sh
ir

e 
Au

di
t 

M
an

ag
er

 
07

81
3 

00
0 

31
8 

Ia
n.

W
ilt

sh
ir

e@
bd

o.
co

.u
k 

 

 

46



Item No:
8.

Classification:
Open

Date:
19 February 2018

Meeting Name:
Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee  

Report title: Grant Thornton - Informing the audit risk 
assessment for Southwark Council and 
Southwark Pension Fund

Wards or Groups affected: All

From: Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the audit, governance and standards committee note the Grant Thornton’s 
report on informing the audit risk assessment for Southwark Council and the 
Pension Fund, including the management comments, and considers whether 
these responses are consistent with its understanding and whether there are any 
further comments it wishes to make.

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

2. The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way 
communication between auditors and the council's audit, governance and 
standards committee, as 'those charged with governance'.

3. The Grant Thornton report includes a series of questions and the response they 
have received from the council's management, attached as Appendix A.

Community impact statement

4. This report is not considered to have a direct impact on local people and 
communities. 

Resource implications

5. There are no direct resource implications in this report.

Consultation

6. There has been no consultation on this report.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

7. None required.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held at Contact

47
Agenda Item 8



APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix A Grant Thornton - Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Jennifer Seeley, Director of Finance
Report Author Jennifer Seeley, Director of Finance

Version Final
Version Date 31 January 2018
Key Decision No

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /
 CABINET MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included
Director of Law and 
Democracy

N/A N/A

Strategic Director of 
Finance and Governance

N/A N/A

Cabinet Member N/A N/A
Final report sent to the Constitutional Team 7 February 2018

48



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

In
fo

rm
in

g 
th

e 
au

di
t r

isk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
fo

r S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

Co
un

cil
 a

nd
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Fu

nd
Ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
8

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

8

Pa
ul

 D
os

se
tt

E
ng

ag
em

en
t L

ea
d

T
+4

4 
(0

)2
0 

77
28

 3
18

0 
E

P
au

l.D
os

se
tt@

uk
.g

t.c
om

M
at

t D
ea

n
A

ud
it 

M
an

ag
er

 
T

+4
4 

(0
)2

0 
77

28
 3

18
1

E
M

at
th

ew
.D

ea
n@

uk
.g

t.c
om

Li
ul

u 
C

he
n

In
-C

ha
rg

e 
A

cc
ou

nt
an

t
T

+4
4 

(0
)2

0 
78

65
 2

56
1

E
Li

ul
u.

C
he

n@
uk

.g
t.c

om

APPENDIX A49



Th
e 

co
nt

en
ts

 o
f t

hi
s r

ep
or

t r
ela

te
 o

nl
y 

to
 th

e 
m

at
te

rs
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
co

m
e 

to
 o

ur
 a

tte
nt

io
n,

 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

be
lie

ve
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 y
ou

 a
s p

ar
t o

f o
ur

 a
ud

it 
pr

oc
es

s. 
 It

 is
 n

ot
 a

 
co

m
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

re
co

rd
 o

f a
ll 

th
e 

re
lev

an
t m

at
te

rs
, w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ch

an
ge

, a
nd

 in
 

pa
rti

cu
lar

 w
e 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
he

ld
 re

sp
on

sib
le 

to
 y

ou
 fo

r r
ep

or
tin

g 
all

 o
f t

he
 ri

sk
s w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 a
ffe

ct
 

yo
ur

 b
us

in
es

s o
r a

ny
 w

ea
kn

es
se

s i
n 

yo
ur

 in
te

rn
al 

co
nt

ro
ls.

  T
hi

s r
ep

or
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 
so

lel
y 

fo
r y

ou
r b

en
ef

it 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

qu
ot

ed
 in

 w
ho

le 
or

 in
 p

ar
t w

ith
ou

t o
ur

 p
rio

r w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t. 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 a

cc
ep

t a
ny

 re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 fo
r a

ny
 lo

ss
 o

cc
as

io
ne

d 
to

 a
ny

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 a

ct
in

g,
 

or
 re

fr
ain

in
g 

fr
om

 a
ct

in
g 

on
 th

e 
ba

sis
 o

f t
he

 co
nt

en
t o

f t
hi

s r
ep

or
t, 

as
 th

is 
re

po
rt 

w
as

 n
ot

 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 fo

r, 
no

r i
nt

en
de

d 
fo

r, 
an

y 
ot

he
r p

ur
po

se
.

.

50



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

33

Co
nt

en
ts

S
ec

ti
on

P
ag

e

Pu
rp

os
e

4

Fr
au

d
5

Fr
au

d 
Ri

sk
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t
6 

-9

La
w

s a
nd

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

10

Im
pa

ct
 o

f L
aw

s a
nd

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

11
 -

12
 

G
oi

ng
 C

on
ce

rn
13

G
oi

ng
 C

on
ce

rn
 C

on
sid

er
at

io
ns

14
 -

16

51



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

44

Pu
rp

os
e

Th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 th

is
 re

po
rt 

is
 to

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

tw
o-

w
ay

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

au
di

to
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 A
ud

it
, 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

, a
s 

'th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e'
. T

he
 re

po
rt 

co
ve

rs
 s

om
e 

im
po

rta
nt

 a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

ito
rr

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t w

he
re

 w
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

in
qu

iri
es

 o
f t

he
 A

ud
it,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 u
nd

er
 a

ud
iti

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

,c
ov

er
in

g 
bo

th
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

C
ou

nc
il 

A
ud

it 
an

d 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

of
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d.

   

B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

U
nd

er
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
n 

A
ud

iti
ng

 (U
K

 a
nd

 Ir
el

an
d)

 (I
S

A
(U

K
&

I))
 a

ud
ito

rs
 h

av
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

it,
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

. I
S

A
(U

K
&

I) 
em

ph
as

is
e 

th
e 

im
po

rta
nc

e 
of

 tw
o-

w
ay

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

au
di

to
r a

nd
 th

e 
A

ud
it,

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

sp
ec

ify
 m

at
te

rs
 th

at
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

ed
.

Th
is

 tw
o-

w
ay

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

as
si

st
s 

bo
th

 th
e 

au
di

to
r a

nd
 th

e 
A

ud
it,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 in
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 m
at

te
rs

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
au

di
t a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

co
ns

tru
ct

iv
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p.

 It
 a

ls
o 

en
ab

le
s 

th
e 

au
di

to
r t

o 
ob

ta
in

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
le

va
nt

 to
 th

e 
au

di
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

A
ud

it,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rts
 th

e 
A

ud
it,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 in
 fu

lfi
llin

g 
its

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

in
 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 re

po
rti

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n

A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 o

ur
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

w
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 o

bt
ai

n 
an

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

A
ud

it,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
's

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ea
s:

•f
ra

ud
;

•l
aw

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

; a
nd

•g
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
.

Th
is

 re
po

rt 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 o
n 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
se

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

sp
on

se
 w

e 
ha

ve
 re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il's
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
ve

ra
ge

 o
f t

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d.

 T
he

 A
ud

it,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

ns
id

er
 w

he
th

er
 th

es
e 

re
sp

on
se

s
ar

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 it
s 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
an

d 
w

he
th

er
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

an
y 

fu
rth

er
 c

om
m

en
ts

 it
 w

is
he

s 
to

 m
ak

e.
 

52



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

55

Fr
au

d

Is
su

e

M
at

te
rs

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 fr
au

d

IS
A

(U
K

&
I)2

40
 c

ov
er

s 
au

di
to

rs
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 fr
au

d 
in

 a
n 

au
di

t o
f f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

Th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 d
et

ec
t f

ra
ud

 re
st

s 
w

ith
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

A
ud

it,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

w
ith

 th
e 

ov
er

si
gh

t o
f t

he
 A

ud
it,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

, n
ee

ds
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

a 
st

ro
ng

 e
m

ph
as

is
 

on
 fr

au
d 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
de

te
rre

nc
e 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
a 

cu
ltu

re
 o

f h
on

es
t a

nd
 e

th
ic

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

. A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 it

s 
ov

er
si

gh
t, 

th
e 

A
ud

it,
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 o

ve
rri

de
 o

f c
on

tro
ls

 a
nd

 in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 in
flu

en
ce

 o
ve

r t
he

 
fin

an
ci

al
 re

po
rti

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
.

A
s 

au
di

to
r, 

w
e 

ar
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r o

bt
ai

ni
ng

 re
as

on
ab

le
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
re

 fr
ee

 fr
om

 m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

t d
ue

 
to

 fr
au

d 
or

 e
rro

r. 
W

e 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 s

ce
pt

ic
is

m
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

au
di

t, 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ov

er
rid

e 
of

 c
on

tro
ls

.

A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 o

ur
 a

ud
it 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
w

e 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r r
is

ks
 o

f f
ra

ud
. T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 c
on

si
de

rin
g 

th
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t h
as

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

 re
ga

rd
 to

 fr
au

d 
ris

ks
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
•a

ss
es

sm
en

t t
ha

t t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

at
er

ia
lly

 m
is

st
at

ed
 d

ue
 to

 fr
au

d;
•p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r i
de

nt
ify

in
g 

an
d 

re
sp

on
di

ng
 to

 ri
sk

s 
of

 fr
au

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
y 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ris

ks
;

•c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

it,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

its
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 fo
r i

de
nt

ify
in

g 
an

d 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 to
 ri

sk
s 

of
 

fra
ud

; a
nd

•c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

to
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

nd
 e

th
ic

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

. 

W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
ho

w
 th

e 
A

ud
it,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
ve

rs
ee

s 
th

e 
ab

ov
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s.
 W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

m
ak

e 
in

qu
iri

es
 o

f b
ot

h 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

A
ud

it,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

s 
to

 th
ei

r k
no

w
le

dg
e 

of
 a

ny
 a

ct
ua

l, 
su

sp
ec

te
d 

or
 a

lle
ge

d 
fra

ud
. T

he
se

 a
re

as
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
fra

ud
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t q
ue

st
io

ns
 b

el
ow

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 re
sp

on
se

s 
fro

m
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

53



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

66

Fr
au

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t

Q
ue

st
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

po
ns

e

H
as

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

as
se

ss
ed

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l 

m
is

st
at

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 d
ue

 to
 fr

au
d?

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
hi

s 
pr

oc
es

s?

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

its
 a

ffa
irs

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
, e

ffi
ci

en
t a

nd
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
to

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
 it

s 
as

se
ts

.  
It 

ha
s 

ap
po

in
te

d 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

di
re

ct
or

 o
f f

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
as

 th
e 

of
fic

er
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r p
ro

pe
r a

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

of
 it

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 a

ffa
irs

 (t
he

 S
.1

51
 o

ffi
ce

r).
  A

s 
pa

rt 
of

 h
is

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s,

 h
e 

is
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

t o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

an
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 d

o 
th

is
, h

e 
ha

s 
ta

ke
n 

re
as

on
ab

le
 

st
ep

s 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 d
et

ec
t f

ra
ud

.  
Th

is
 ri

sk
 is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l i
nt

er
na

l a
ud

it 
an

d 
an

ti-
fra

ud
 p

ro
ac

tiv
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 (s

ee
 b

el
ow

).

W
ha

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
 d

oe
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
ve

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
re

sp
on

d 
to

 ri
sk

s 
of

 fr
au

d?
Fr

au
d 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 a
re

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

by
 th

e 
an

ti-
fra

ud
 s

er
vi

ce
. T

he
se

 ri
sk

s 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

an
d 

an
ti-

fra
ud

 p
ro

ac
tiv

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 
an

d 
di

sc
us

se
d 

w
ith

 m
an

ag
em

en
t.

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

re
 u

lti
m

at
el

y 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r m
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
ris

ks
, b

ut
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

. 
S

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
on

tro
l w

ea
kn

es
se

s,
 o

r t
ho

se
 w

hi
ch

 re
m

ai
n 

un
ad

dr
es

se
d 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 th
e 

A
ud

it,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 (A
G

S
) c

om
m

itt
ee

 v
ia

 th
e 

In
te

rn
al

 
A

ud
it 

an
d 

A
nt

i f
ra

ud
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

re
po

rts
.

H
av

e 
an

y 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
fra

ud
 ri

sk
s,

 o
r a

re
as

 w
ith

 a
 h

ig
h 

ris
k 

of
 

fra
ud

, b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

w
ha

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
do

ne
 to

 m
iti

ga
te

 
th

es
e 

ris
ks

?

A
s 

ab
ov

e,
 fr

au
d 

ris
ks

 a
re

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f a
nn

ua
l i

nt
er

na
l a

ud
it 

an
d 

an
ti-

fra
ud

 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

.  
P

ro
ac

tiv
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 in
 b

ot
h 

pl
an

s 
lo

ok
 a

t d
et

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
m

ak
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
n 

co
nt

ro
ls

.  
Th

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

re
po

rts
 o

n 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
co

ve
ra

ge
, a

re
 a

ll 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 th
e 

A
G

S
 

co
m

m
itt

ee
.  

 A
ny

 s
pe

ci
fic

 is
su

es
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

re
po

rte
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt.

 
O

ng
oi

ng
 a

re
as

 o
f a

tte
nt

io
n 

in
cl

ud
e 

pr
og

re
ss

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ga
in

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
na

tio
na

l f
ra

ud
 in

iti
at

iv
e,

 fr
au

ds
 re

la
tin

g 
to

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
te

na
nc

ie
s,

 a
nd

 m
is

-
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

or
 m

is
us

e 
of

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

s.
 T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
al

so
 m

on
ito

rs
 s

ec
to

r r
ep

or
ts

 fo
r e

m
er

gi
ng

 is
su

es
, t

o 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
in

to
 th

e 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

fra
ud

 p
la

n.
R

ec
en

t w
or

k 
to

 c
he

ck
 th

e 
en

tit
le

m
en

t o
f p

en
si

on
er

s 
liv

in
g 

ov
er

se
as

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
un

de
rta

ke
n.

54



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

77

Fr
au

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

Q
ue

st
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

po
ns

e

A
re

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tro
ls

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 s

eg
re

ga
tio

n 
of

 d
ut

ie
s,

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
op

er
at

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y?

If 
no

t, 
w

he
re

 a
re

 th
e 

ris
k 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
w

ha
t m

iti
ga

tin
g 

ac
tio

ns
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ta

ke
n?

In
te

rn
al

 c
on

tro
ls

 a
re

 o
pe

ra
te

d 
an

d 
 u

pd
at

ed
  b

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it.
  A

ny
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

or
 b

re
ac

he
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ad

vi
se

d 
to

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
A

G
S

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

an
d 

an
ti-

fra
ud

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rts

. 
Th

es
e 

ar
ea

s 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ke
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
ud

its
 a

nd
 h

ea
lth

 c
he

ck
s 

w
ith

 
ac

tio
ns

 b
ei

ng
 a

gr
ee

d 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 a
ny

 is
su

es
 a

ris
in

g.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

, t
he

se
 a

re
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
fo

llo
w

 u
p 

w
or

k.
Th

e 
pe

ns
io

ns
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

te
am

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
w

ith
 

re
ga

rd
 to

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 d

at
a 

qu
al

ity
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 e
m

pl
oy

in
g 

bo
di

es
 a

nd
 h

as
 u

til
is

ed
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 s

up
po

rt 
fro

m
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

nd
 b

en
ef

it 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 A
on

 H
ew

itt
 in

 th
is

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

ar
ea

s.

A
re

 th
er

e 
an

y 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 o
ve

rri
de

 
of

 c
on

tro
ls

 o
r i

na
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 in
flu

en
ce

 o
ve

r t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
re

po
rti

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 (f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 u

nd
ue

 
pr

es
su

re
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 fi
na

nc
ia

l t
ar

ge
ts

)?
 

Th
e 

ke
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s 
ar

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ei
th

er
 a

 fu
ll 

au
di

t o
r h

ea
lth

 c
he

ck
 a

nn
ua

lly
 

an
d 

no
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t i
ss

ue
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

fro
m

 th
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 
Th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 th
es

e 
re

vi
ew

s 
ar

e 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 th
e 

A
G

S
 c

om
m

itt
ee

 v
ia

 th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 
au

di
t p

ro
gr

es
s 

re
po

rts
. T

he
re

 a
re

 c
ou

nc
il-

w
id

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rts

 
to

 c
ab

in
et

 g
iv

e 
vi

si
bi

lit
y 

to
 th

e 
in

-y
ea

r p
os

iti
on

 a
nd

 fo
re

ca
st

s 
an

d 
en

ab
le

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 

co
nc

er
ns

 to
 b

e 
ra

is
ed

  p
ro

m
pt

ly
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

al
ly

.

H
ow

 d
oe

s 
th

e 
A

ud
it,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

ov
er

si
gh

t o
ve

r m
an

ag
em

en
t's

 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

fo
r i

de
nt

ify
in

g 
an

d 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 to
 ri

sk
s 

of
 fr

au
d?

W
ha

t a
rra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 re

po
rt 

fra
ud

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 

ris
ks

 to
 th

e 
A

ud
it,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

?

H
ow

 h
as

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

en
su

re
d 

th
at

 th
e 

A
ud

it,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 
w

hi
st

le
bl

ow
er

 ti
ps

 o
r c

om
pl

ai
nt

s?

Th
e 

an
nu

al
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

pl
an

 a
nd

 a
nt

i-f
ra

ud
 p

ro
ac

tiv
e 

pl
an

 a
re

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 th

e 
A

G
S

 
co

m
m

itt
ee

, h
ig

hl
ig

ht
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l a

re
as

 o
f r

is
k.

 T
he

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
pr

og
re

ss
 re

po
rts

 
al

so
 id

en
tif

y 
an

y 
co

nt
ro

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s.

 T
he

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt 

al
so

 in
cl

ud
es

 o
ut

co
m

es
 

fro
m

 fr
au

d 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

Th
e 

A
G

S
 c

om
m

itt
ee

 a
ls

o 
re

ce
iv

e 
an

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t o
n 

w
hi

st
le

 b
lo

w
in

g 
ou

tc
om

es
, a

nd
 

th
e 

fo
rm

at
 o

f t
he

se
 re

po
rts

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
re

po
rti

ng
 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
co

m
m

itt
ee

.

55



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

88

Fr
au

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

Q
ue

st
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

po
ns

e

H
ow

 d
oe

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
et

hi
ca

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 o

f i
ts

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s?
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
as

 a
n 

in
du

ct
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 a

nd
 a

 fr
au

d 
an

d 
br

ib
er

y 
re

sp
on

se
 p

la
n.

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

le
va

nt
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 a
re

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

ed
 v

ia
 th

e 
in

tra
ne

t s
ite

 a
nd

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l a

ls
o 

of
fe

rs
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
on

 a
nt

i-f
ra

ud
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 e
th

ic
al

 
be

ha
vi

ou
r. 

Th
e 

st
af

f c
od

e 
of

 c
on

du
ct

 re
qu

ire
s 

re
po

rti
ng

 o
f g

ift
s 

an
d 

ho
sp

ita
lit

y.
 S

ta
ff 

an
d 

an
y 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
dv

is
or

s 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

ts
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

de
cl

ar
at

io
ns

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t. 

 T
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f d

ec
la

rin
g 

in
te

re
st

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
 

re
ce

nt
 a

ud
it 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

ris
in

g 
w

ill 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 ru
le

s 
on

 g
ift

s 
an

d 
ho

sp
ita

lit
y 

ar
e 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

co
de

 o
f c

on
du

ct
, a

nd
 

re
le

va
nt

 s
ta

ff 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
os

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 c
on

tra
ct

in
g)

 c
om

pl
et

e 
a 

de
cl

ar
at

io
n 

of
 

in
te

re
st

s.
Th

e 
Fa

ire
r F

ut
ur

e 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 c
ou

nc
il 

po
lic

ie
s 

ha
ve

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
d 

et
hi

ca
l b

eh
av

io
ur

 b
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s 

in
 a

re
as

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 L

iv
in

g 
W

ag
e,

 a
nt

i-
bl

ac
kl

is
tin

g 
an

d 
ta

x 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e.
 

Th
e 

In
ve

st
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 S

ta
te

m
en

t f
or

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
st

ip
ul

at
es

 th
at

 th
e 

Fu
nd

 w
ill 

se
ek

 to
 e

ng
ag

e 
w

ith
 a

nd
 v

ot
e 

co
m

pa
ny

 s
ha

re
ho

ld
in

gs
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 h
ig

h 
et

hi
ca

l 
st

an
da

rd
s.

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
u 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
st

af
f t

o 
re

po
rt 

th
ei

r c
on

ce
rn

s 
ab

ou
t 

fra
ud

? 
H

av
e 

an
y 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 is

su
es

 b
ee

n 
re

po
rte

d?
A

 fr
au

d 
an

d 
br

ib
er

y 
re

sp
on

se
 p

la
n 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
, a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 w
hi

st
le

 b
lo

w
in

g 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

. 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

ls
o 

an
 a

no
ny

m
ou

s 
fra

ud
 h

ot
lin

e 
an

d 
em

ai
l. 

Th
e 

an
ti-

fra
ud

 te
am

 p
ro

vi
de

 
tra

in
in

g 
an

d 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

se
ss

io
ns

 to
 g

ro
up

s 
of

 s
ta

ff.
N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 is
su

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 re
po

rte
d.

 A
ny

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

as
es

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 
th

e 
A

G
S

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 a

s 
an

d 
w

he
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
.

A
re

 y
ou

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 re

la
te

d 
pa

rty
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 o

r 
tra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 th
at

 c
ou

ld
 g

iv
e 

ris
e 

to
 ri

sk
s 

of
 fr

au
d?

 
N

ot
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 c
on

ce
rn

s.
 R

el
at

ed
 p

ar
ty

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 a
re

 re
vi

ew
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
st

at
em

en
t o

f a
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
no

 m
at

te
rs

 o
f c

on
ce

rn
 h

av
e 

be
en

 ra
is

ed
. 

If 
re

qu
ire

d,
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 w

ou
ld

  i
nc

lu
de

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 d

is
cl

os
ur

es
.

S
ho

ul
d 

th
is

 g
iv

e 
ris

e 
to

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
th

e 
fra

ud
 a

nd
 b

rib
er

y 
re

sp
on

se
 p

la
n 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

vo
ke

d.

56



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

99

Fr
au

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

Q
ue

st
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

po
ns

e

A
re

 y
ou

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 in

st
an

ce
s 

of
 a

ct
ua

l, 
su

sp
ec

te
d 

or
 

al
le

ge
d,

 fr
au

d,
 e

ith
er

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il
as

 a
 w

ho
le

 o
r 

w
ith

in
 s

pe
ci

fic
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 s

in
ce

 1
 A

pr
il 

20
17

?

Y
es

. T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

hi
gh

 p
ro

fil
e 

an
ti-

fra
ud

 s
ta

nc
e 

an
d 

to
 

vi
go

ro
us

ly
 p

ur
su

e 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 a
tte

m
pt

 to
 d

ef
ra

ud
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 fu
nd

s 
w

hi
ch

 
it 

ad
m

in
is

te
rs

. O
nc

e 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

om
pl

et
ed

, t
he

y 
ar

e 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 th
e 

A
G

S
 c

om
m

itt
ee

. A
ny

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

ss
ue

s 
w

ill 
al

so
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

an
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

an
d 

th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 th

e 
A

G
S

 c
om

m
itt

ee
.

W
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l w
ill 

pu
bl

ic
is

e 
an

ti-
fra

ud
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

ns
.

57



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

1010

La
w

s a
nd

 re
gu

lat
io

ns

Is
su

e

M
at

te
rs

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

IS
A

(U
K

&
I)2

50
 re

qu
ire

s 
us

 to
 c

on
si

de
r t

he
 im

pa
ct

 o
f l

aw
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 in

 a
n 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

w
ith

 th
e 

ov
er

si
gh

t o
f t

he
 A

ud
it,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

, i
s 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 
op

er
at

io
ns

 a
re

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

os
e 

th
at

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

am
ou

nt
s 

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

A
s 

au
di

to
r, 

w
e 

ar
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r o

bt
ai

ni
ng

 re
as

on
ab

le
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
re

 fr
ee

 fr
om

 m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

t d
ue

 to
 

fra
ud

 o
r e

rro
r, 

ta
ki

ng
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 le
ga

l a
nd

 re
gu

la
to

ry
 fr

am
ew

or
k.

 A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 o

ur
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t p
ro

ce
du

re
s

w
e

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

in
qu

iri
es

 o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

A
ud

it,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

s 
to

 w
he

th
er

 th
e 

en
tit

y 
is

 in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
. W

he
re

 w
e 

be
co

m
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 n

on
-c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
or

 s
us

pe
ct

ed
 n

on
-c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

e 
ne

ed
 to

 g
ai

n 
an

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 th
e 

no
n-

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.

R
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t q
ue

st
io

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
et

 o
ut

 b
el

ow
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 re

sp
on

se
s 

fro
m

 m
an

ag
em

en
t.

58



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

1111

Im
pa

ct
 o

f 
law

s a
nd

 re
gu

lat
io

ns

Q
ue

st
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

po
ns

e
W

ha
t a

rra
ng

em
en

ts
 d

oe
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
ve

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 

an
d 

de
te

ct
 n

on
-c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
 w

ith
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
?

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

fra
m

ew
or

k,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

co
ns

tit
ut

io
n,

 m
em

be
r a

nd
 

em
pl

oy
ee

 c
od

es
 o

f c
on

du
ct

 a
nd

 s
ch

em
e 

of
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
ai

m
s 

to
 m

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

ris
k 

of
 n

on
-c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
. T

he
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 
an

d 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

re
vi

ew
s 

id
en

tif
ie

s 
co

nt
ro

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

an
d 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

ag
re

ed
 to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 is
su

es
 ra

is
ed

. A
dv

ic
e 

on
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

La
w

 a
nd

 D
em

oc
ra

cy
 d

iv
is

io
n,

 w
ith

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t e

xt
er

na
l l

eg
al

 a
dv

ic
e 

so
ug

ht
  a

s 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Th
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

fic
er

 h
as

 re
gu

la
r m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 a

ll 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

di
re

ct
or

s 
to

 
id

en
tif

y 
ar

ea
s 

of
 ri

sk
. T

he
 c

ou
nc

il’s
 w

hi
st

le
 b

lo
w

in
g 

po
lic

y 
en

ab
le

s 
st

af
f t

o 
re

po
rt 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
un

la
w

fu
l c

on
du

ct
. C

ab
in

et
 re

po
rts

 a
nd

 o
th

er
  r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g 
m

ee
tin

gs
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

co
nc

ur
re

nt
 s

ta
te

m
en

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
di

re
ct

or
 o

f 
la

w
 a

nd
 d

em
oc

ra
cy

.
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
s 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

te
ch

ni
ca

l s
pe

ci
al

is
ed

 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

fo
r s

ta
ff 

 w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 o
r f

un
di

ng
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r r
el

ev
an

t 
le

ga
l o

r r
eg

ul
at

or
y 

ch
an

ge
s.

H
ow

 d
oe

s 
m

an
ag

em
en

t g
ai

n 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

?
M

an
ag

em
en

t g
ai

ns
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
po

rts
 fr

om
 in

te
rn

al
 a

nd
 e

xt
er

na
l a

ud
it 

an
d 

al
so

 re
le

va
nt

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
ag

en
ci

es
. D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

re
po

rti
ng

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

.
S

ig
ni

fic
an

t r
ep

or
ts

 to
 c

ab
in

et
 a

nd
, i

n 
re

sp
ec

t o
f p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t-r

el
at

ed
 d

ec
is

io
ns

, 
to

 o
th

er
 d

ec
is

io
n 

ta
ke

rs
, i

nc
lu

de
 a

 c
on

cu
rre

nt
 fr

om
 th

e 
di

re
ct

or
 o

f l
aw

 a
nd

 
de

m
oc

ra
cy

.

H
ow

 is
 th

e 
A

ud
it,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 w

ith
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 th
at

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
?

A
G

S
 g

ai
ns

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

po
rts

 fr
om

 in
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l a
ud

it 
an

d 
al

so
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 h

el
d 

w
ith

 s
en

io
r o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

t A
G

S
 m

ee
tin

gs
.

59



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

1212

Im
pa

ct
 o

f 
law

s a
nd

 re
gu

lat
io

ns

Q
ue

st
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

po
ns

e
H

av
e 

th
er

e 
be

en
 a

ny
 in

st
an

ce
s 

of
  n

on
-c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
or

 s
us

pe
ct

ed
 

no
n-

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 la
w

 a
nd

 re
gu

la
tio

n 
si

nc
e 

1 
A

pr
il 

20
17

, o
r 

ea
rli

er
 w

ith
 a

n 
on

-g
oi

ng
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

20
17

/1
8 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

?

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
in

st
an

ce
s 

of
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l l
eg

al
 a

ct
io

n 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 c
ou

nc
il.

   
Th

e 
m

os
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

t o
f t

he
se

 in
 re

ce
nt

 y
ea

rs
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

th
e 

Th
am

es
 W

at
er

 
re

se
llin

g 
ca

se
.  

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 s

et
tle

d 
ov

er
 h

al
f t

he
 c

as
es

, w
ith

 a
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ca

se
s 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

be
in

g 
fo

rm
er

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
cl

ie
nt

s 
w

ho
 b

y 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
ir 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l a

re
 b

ot
h 

ha
rd

 to
 

tra
ce

, a
nd

 te
nd

 to
 g

en
er

at
e 

a 
di

sp
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
le

ve
l o

f a
rre

ar
s.

  A
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

ca
se

s 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
m

ay
 re

la
te

 to
 fo

rm
er

 te
na

nt
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
si

nc
e 

pa
ss

ed
 

aw
ay

. W
he

re
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

ar
re

ar
s 

to
 b

e 
of

fs
et

, n
o 

ca
sh

 re
fu

nd
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ad

e.

W
ha

t a
rra

ng
em

en
ts

 d
oe

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

ve
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 id
en

tif
y,

 
ev

al
ua

te
 a

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

r l
iti

ga
tio

n 
or

 c
la

im
s?

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l m

ai
nt

ai
ns

 a
 le

ga
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

ex
ce

pt
io

na
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 L

aw
 S

oc
ie

ty
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 L

ex
ce

l 
A

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. A
ll 

le
ga

l c
as

es
 a

re
 re

vi
ew

ed
 e

ve
ry

 6
 w

ee
ks

 a
nd

, i
f 

on
e 

of
 m

or
e 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ap
pl

ie
s,

 w
ill 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
to

 b
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

na
l r

is
k.

•A
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t r
is

k 
of

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l f

in
an

ci
al

 lo
ss

 to
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l
•S

ub
st

an
tia

lly
 n

ov
el

 o
r u

nc
er

ta
in

 a
re

a 
of

 la
w

•S
ig

ni
fic

an
t r

es
ou

rc
e 

or
 s

ki
lls

 is
su

e 
fo

r L
eg

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

•T
he

 c
as

e 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 a
ttr

ac
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

t j
ud

ic
ia

l c
rit

ic
is

m
•T

he
 c

as
e 

is
 in

 th
e 

C
ou

rt 
of

 A
pp

ea
l

•D
am

ag
e 

to
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 re

pu
ta

tio
n.

Is
 th

er
e 

an
y 

ac
tu

al
 o

r p
ot

en
tia

l l
iti

ga
tio

n 
or

 c
la

im
s 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 

af
fe

ct
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
?

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f l

eg
al

 c
as

es
, b

ot
h 

as
 a

 d
ef

en
da

nt
 to

 
ac

tio
ns

 b
ro

ug
ht

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l a

nd
 a

s 
a 

cl
ai

m
an

t w
he

n 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s 
ar

e 
is

su
ed

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 le

ga
l i

nt
er

es
t o

r t
o 

re
co

ve
r m

on
ey

 o
w

in
g 

to
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l. 
W

e 
w

ou
ld

 d
es

cr
ib

e 
th

es
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
s 

ro
ut

in
e 

le
ga

l w
or

k,
 w

hi
ch

 in
 o

ur
 

op
in

io
n 

do
 n

ot
 e

xp
os

e 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o 

an
y 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 le

ga
l o

r m
at

er
ia

l f
in

an
ci

al
 

ris
k.

H
av

e 
th

er
e 

be
en

 a
ny

 re
po

rts
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 re
gu

la
to

ry
 b

od
ie

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 H

M
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

an
d 

C
us

to
m

s 
w

hi
ch

 in
di

ca
te

 n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e?

Th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

no
 re

po
rts

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 re

gu
la

to
ry

 b
od

ie
s 

w
hi

ch
 in

di
ca

te
 n

on
-

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e.

60



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

1313

G
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
Is

su
e

M
at

te
rs

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 g
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn

IS
A

(U
K

&
I)5

70
 c

ov
er

s 
au

di
to

r r
es

po
ns

ib
ilit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 re

la
tin

g 
to

 m
an

ag
em

en
t's

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 g

oi
ng

 c
on

ce
rn

 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

Th
e 

go
in

g 
co

nc
er

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
is

 a
 fu

nd
am

en
ta

l p
rin

ci
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. U

nd
er

 th
is

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

en
tit

ie
s 

ar
e 

vi
ew

ed
 a

s 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 in
 b

us
in

es
s 

fo
r t

he
 fo

re
se

ea
bl

e 
fu

tu
re

. A
ss

et
s 

an
d 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

th
at

 th
e 

en
tit

y
w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 
re

al
is

e 
its

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
its

 li
ab

ili
tie

s 
in

 th
e 

no
rm

al
 c

ou
rs

e 
of

 b
us

in
es

s.

Th
e 

co
de

 o
f p

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
re

qu
ire

s 
an

 a
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 to
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 o

n 
a 

go
in

g 
co

nc
er

n 
ba

si
s.

 
A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 n
ot

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

fu
tu

re
 tr

ad
in

g 
un

ce
rta

in
tie

s 
as

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 e

nt
iti

es
, c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e
ke

y 
fe

at
ur

es
 o

f 
th

e 
go

in
g 

co
nc

er
n 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
n 

in
di

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
es

ilie
nc

e.

A
s 

au
di

to
r, 

w
e 

ar
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r c

on
si

de
rin

g 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ne
ss

 o
f u

se
 o

f t
he

 g
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
in

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 to

 c
on

si
de

r w
he

th
er

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
m

at
er

ia
l u

nc
er

ta
in

tie
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il's

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 a

s 
a 

go
in

g 
co

nc
er

n 
th

at
 n

ee
d 

to
 

be
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. W

e 
di

sc
us

s 
th

e 
go

in
g 

co
nc

er
n 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

w
ith

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 re

vi
ew

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
an

d 
op

er
at

in
g 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
. 

G
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

et
 o

ut
 b

el
ow

 a
nd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t h

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

its
 re

sp
on

se
.

61



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

1414

G
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 c

on
sid

er
at

io
ns

 
Q

ue
st

io
n

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
e

D
oe

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

ve
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 a

s 
a 

go
in

g 
co

nc
er

n?
Y

es
 –

th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 s
et

 a
 b

al
an

ce
d 

ge
ne

ra
l f

un
d 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

re
ve

nu
e 

ac
co

un
t b

ud
ge

t a
nd

 to
 a

pp
ro

ve
 a

 tr
ea

su
ry

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

tra
te

gy
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

. R
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rts
 a

re
 ta

ke
n 

to
 c

ab
in

et
 a

nd
 re

gu
la

r 
re

po
rts

 o
n 

tre
as

ur
y 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

re
 a

ls
o 

ta
ke

n 
to

 c
ab

in
et

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 

as
se

m
bl

y.
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 s
cr

ut
in

y 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 is
 a

bl
e 

to
 c

al
l i

n 
de

ci
si

on
s 

of
 

ca
bi

ne
t a

nd
 th

e 
A

G
S

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 c

on
si

de
rs

 tr
ea

su
ry

 m
an

ag
em

en
t d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
. R

ob
us

t r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f a
 

co
rp

or
at

e 
ris

k 
re

gi
st

er
 a

nd
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

t c
ab

in
et

 
m

em
be

r l
ev

el
.  

R
ep

or
ts

 o
n 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

re
 ta

ke
n 

to
 th

e 
A

G
S

 c
om

m
itt

ee
.

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 fa

ci
ng

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t f

in
an

ci
al

 p
re

ss
ur

es
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

B
ud

ge
ts

, a
nd

 is
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

a 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 fu

tu
re

, e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 in

 th
e 

lig
ht

 o
f t

he
 le

ve
l o

f u
nc

er
ta

in
ty

 
ar

ou
nd

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t f
in

an
ci

ng
 p

os
t-2

02
0,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 w
he

n 
th

e 
ne

w
 L

oc
al

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t f
un

di
ng

 s
et

tle
m

en
t i

s 
go

in
g 

to
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
Th

e 
20

16
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

fo
r t

he
 p

en
si

on
 fu

nd
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

a 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
le

ve
l, 

fro
m

 8
2%

 to
 8

8%
. I

n 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

to
 3

0 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

7 
th

is
 h

as
 fu

rth
er

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
to

 9
8%

 w
ith

 u
se

 o
f a

 p
ru

de
nt

 s
et

 o
f 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

. T
he

 F
un

d 
ha

s 
a 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 p
la

n 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

fu
lly

 fu
nd

ed
 s

ta
tu

s.
 

Is
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
w

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
te

nc
e 

of
 o

th
er

 e
ve

nt
s 

or
 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 c

as
t d

ou
bt

 o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 

co
nt

in
ue

 a
s 

a 
go

in
g 

co
nc

er
n?

N
o 

–
m

an
ag

em
en

t d
o 

no
t b

el
ie

ve
 th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 d

ou
bt

 o
ve

r t
he

 c
ou

nc
il’s

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 e
xi

st
 a

s 
a 

go
in

g 
co

nc
er

n.
   

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l s

ub
m

itt
ed

 a
n 

E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

S
ta

te
m

en
t t

o 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t i
n 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

6 
co

ve
rin

g 
th

e 
fo

ur
 y

ea
r s

et
tle

m
en

t 
te

rm
 to

 2
01

9-
20

.
H

ow
ev

er
, g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
un

di
ng

 re
du

ct
io

ns
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 p
ut

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t s

tra
in

 o
n 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 o
w

n 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d,

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

, t
he

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f r

es
er

ve
s 

an
d 

ba
la

nc
es

 a
t c

ur
re

nt
 le

ve
ls

, t
o 

re
fle

ct
 k

no
w

n 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

ris
ks

.
Th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 u

nd
er

w
en

t a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
ve

st
m

en
t s

tra
te

gy
 re

vi
ew

, i
n 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 e
xt

er
na

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t a

dv
is

or
s,

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 n

ot
 le

d 
to

 a
ny

 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

s 
to

 th
e 

vi
ab

ilit
y 

of
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t i
nv

es
tm

en
t s

tra
te

gy
.

62



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

1515

G
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 c

on
sid

er
at

io
ns

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
Q

ue
st

io
n

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
e

H
as

 m
an

ag
em

en
t r

ep
or

te
d 

on
 g

oi
ng

 c
on

ce
rn

 to
 th

e 
A

ud
it,

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
?

(if
 n

ot
, w

ha
t 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 re

po
rt 

th
e 

go
in

g 
co

nc
er

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t t
o 

th
e 

A
ud

it,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
C

om
m

itt
ee

?)

N
o.

  T
he

 A
G

S
 c

om
m

itt
ee

 c
on

si
de

rs
 th

e 
tre

as
ur

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
tra

te
gy

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 re

ce
iv

es
 a

 re
po

rt 
on

 to
p 

ris
ks

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
. T

he
 A

G
S

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 a

ls
o 

re
ce

iv
es

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

s 
th

e 
st

at
em

en
t o

f a
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
an

nu
al

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

st
at

em
en

t e
ac

h 
ye

ar
. T

he
 c

om
m

itt
ee

 is
 a

bl
e 

to
 re

qu
es

t a
dd

iti
on

s 
to

 it
s 

w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
at

 a
ny

 ti
m

e 
to

 re
fle

ct
 m

at
te

rs
 a

ris
in

g 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f a
 y

ea
r.

A
re

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 (e
.g

. f
ut

ur
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f i
nc

om
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
) u

se
d 

in
 re

po
rti

ng
 g

oi
ng

 c
on

ce
rn

 to
 th

e 
A

ud
it,

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n 

an
d 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
?

Y
es

 –
as

 n
ot

ed
 a

bo
ve

, t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

is
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 s
et

 a
 b

al
an

ce
d 

bu
dg

et
 a

nd
 

th
is

 w
ill 

ha
ve

 ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 re

le
va

nt
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
.  

Th
is

 is
 a

ls
o 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 

E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 S

ta
te

m
en

t

A
re

 th
e 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f s

ta
tu

to
ry

 o
r p

ol
ic

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n,
 fi

na
nc

ia
l f

or
ec

as
ts

 a
nd

 re
po

rt 
on

 
go

in
g 

co
nc

er
n?

Y
es

 –
re

po
rts

 to
 c

ab
in

et
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

 s
et

 o
ut

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f s

ta
tu

to
ry

 o
r 

po
lic

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
an

d 
th

es
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 in

 re
po

rts
 to

 c
ab

in
et

 o
n 

th
e 

po
lic

y 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
ye

ar
s.

 W
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, r
ep

or
ts

 to
 

ca
bi

ne
t c

on
ta

in
 a

 s
ec

tio
n 

on
 re

so
ur

ce
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 a

 c
on

cu
rre

nt
 fr

om
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

di
re

ct
or

 o
f f

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e.

63



© 
 20

18
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P 
  | 

  IS
A 

As
su

ra
nc

es
  |

   2
01

7-
18

1616

G
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 c

on
sid

er
at

io
ns

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)

Q
ue

st
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

po
ns

e
H

av
e 

th
er

e 
be

en
 a

ny
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t i
ss

ue
s 

ra
is

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
A

ud
it,

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 w

hi
ch

 
co

ul
d 

ca
st

 d
ou

bt
s 

on
 th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 m

ad
e?

 (E
xa

m
pl

es
 in

cl
ud

e 
ad

ve
rs

e 
co

m
m

en
ts

 ra
is

ed
 b

y 
in

te
rn

al
 a

nd
 e

xt
er

na
l a

ud
it 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

r s
ig

ni
fic

an
t w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 
sy

st
em

s 
of

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

tro
l).

S
om

e 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

re
vi

ew
s 

ha
ve

 c
on

cl
ud

ed
 th

at
 a

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 o
f 

co
nt

ro
ls

 is
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e,
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

es
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 c
an

no
t b

e 
re

lie
d 

up
on

.  
Th

is
 re

qu
ire

s 
ac

tio
n 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
an

d 
cu

ltu
re

.  
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
ha

s 
ag

re
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 is
su

es
 ra

is
ed

 a
nd

 fo
llo

w
 u

p 
w

or
k 

ca
rri

ed
 

ou
t b

y 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

ha
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 o

ng
oi

ng
 is

su
es

 
w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 c

as
t d

ou
bt

s 
on

 th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 m
ad

e.
Th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 u

se
d 

by
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 a

ct
ua

ry
 in

 th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 li

ab
ilit

ie
s 

an
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

ss
et

 g
ro

w
th

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 re

gu
la

r 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 a
re

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 a

ct
ua

ria
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

.

D
oe

s 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f a
va

ila
bl

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
id

en
tif

y 
an

y 
ad

ve
rs

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ca

sh
 fl

ow
?

If 
so

, w
ha

t a
ct

io
n 

is
 b

ei
ng

 ta
ke

n 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

?

N
o,

 n
ot

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 a
cc

ou
nt

s.
Th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t a
nd

 fu
nd

in
g 

po
si

tio
n 

fo
r t

he
 p

en
si

on
 fu

nd
 is

 k
ep

t u
nd

er
 re

vi
ew

 
w

ith
 n

o 
su

ch
 a

dv
er

se
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 id
en

tif
ie

d.

D
oe

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

ve
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 s
ta

ff 
in

 p
os

t, 
w

ith
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 a

t s
en

io
r m

an
ag

er
 

le
ve

l, 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

?

If 
no

t, 
w

ha
t a

ct
io

n 
is

 b
ei

ng
 ta

ke
n 

to
 o

bt
ai

n 
th

os
e 

sk
ills

?

Y
es

 –
an

d 
fu

rth
er

 re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

g 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

w
ith

in
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l r
em

ai
ns

 a
bl

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

an
d 

de
al

 w
ith

 n
ew

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
. 

A
ll 

st
af

f h
av

e 
a 

w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
w

hi
ch

 s
et

s 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
s,

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 c
ou

nc
il 

pl
an

, a
nd

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

is
, l

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t n

ee
ds

 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 s

ta
ff 

re
m

ai
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 tr
ai

ne
d.

64



© 
20

17
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

UK
 LL

P.
 A

ll r
igh

ts 
re

se
rve

d. 
'G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n' 

me
an

s G
ra

nt 
Th

or
nto

n 
UK

 LL
P,

 a
 lim

ite
d 

lia
bil

ity
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip.

 
Gr

an
t T

ho
rn

to
n 

is 
a 

me
mb

er
 fir

m 
of 

Gr
an

t T
ho

rn
ton

 In
ter

na
tio

na
l L

td 
(G

ra
nt

Th
or

nto
n 

Int
er

na
tio

na
l). 

Re
fer

en
ce

s t
o 

'G
ra

nt 
Th

or
nto

n' 
ar

e 
to 

the
 b

ra
nd

 u
nd

er
 w

hic
h t

he
 G

ra
nt 

Th
or

nto
n 

me
mb

er
 fir

ms
 op

er
ate

 
an

d 
re

fer
 to

 o
ne

 o
r m

or
e 

me
mb

er
 fir

ms
, a

s t
he

 co
nte

xt 
re

qu
ire

s. 
Gr

an
t T

ho
rn

ton
 In

ter
na

tio
na

l a
nd

 th
e 

me
mb

er
 fir

ms
 ar

e 
no

t a
 

wo
rld

wi
de

 p
ar

tne
rsh

ip.
 S

er
vic

es
 a

re
 d

eli
ve

re
d 

ind
ep

en
de

ntl
y b

y 
me

mb
er

 fir
ms

, w
hic

h 
ar

e 
no

t r
es

po
ns

ibl
e 

for
 th

e 
se

rvi
ce

s o
r a

cti
vit

ies
 

of 
on

e 
an

oth
er

. G
ra

nt 
Th

or
nto

n 
Int

er
na

tio
na

l d
oe

s n
ot 

pr
ov

ide
 

se
rvi

ce
s t

o 
cli

en
ts.

 

gr
an

t-t
ho

rn
to

n.
co

.u
k

65



Item No:
9.

Classification:
Open

Date:
19 February 2018

Meeting Name:
Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee  

Report title: Grant Thornton - External audit certification letter

Wards or Groups affected: All

From: Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the audit, governance and standards committee note the External Audit 
Certification Letter for Southwark Council attached as Appendix A.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

2. The external auditors are required to certify the Housing Benefit subsidy claim 
submitted by the council.

3. The letter identifies that there are no new issues for the council’s attention but that 
there were errors from issues identified in the previous year.

4. As a result, Grant Thornton have qualified the claim and reported the findings to 
the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP).

Community impact statement

5. This report is not considered to have a direct impact on local people and 
communities. 

Resource implications

6. There are no direct resource implications in this report.

Consultation

7. There has been no consultation on this report.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

8. None required.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held at Contact
None. 

66
Agenda Item 9



APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix A Grant Thornton certification letter for the year ended 31 March 

2017 

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Jennifer Seeley, Director of Finance
Report Author Jennifer Seeley, Director of Finance

Version Final
Version Date 31 January 2018
Key Decision No

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /
 CABINET MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included
Director of Law and 
Democracy

N/A N/A

Strategic Director of 
Finance and Governance

N/A N/A

Cabinet Member N/A N/A
Final report sent to the Constitutional Team 7 February 2018

67



 
Duncan Whitfield 
Strategic Director of Finance and Governance 
160 Tooley Street 
London 
SE1 2QH 
 
4 December 2017 

Dear Duncan 

Certification work for Southwark Council for year ended 31 March 2017 

We are required to certify the Housing Benefit subsidy claim submitted by Southwark Council 
('the Council'). This certification typically takes place six to nine months after the claim period and 
represents a final but important part of the process to confirm the Council's entitlement to 
funding. 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gave the Secretary of State power to transfer Audit 
Commission responsibilities to other bodies. Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) took on 
the transitional responsibilities for HB COUNT issued by the Audit Commission in February 
2015. 

We have certified the Housing Benefit subsidy claim for the financial year 2016/17 relating to 
subsidy claimed of £204.8 million. Further details are set out in Appendix A. 

We identified no new issues from our certification work in 2016/17 which we wish to highlight 
for your attention. However there were issues identified in the previous year which remain 
following the completion of our work in 2016-17.   

In the previous year we identified an error in relation to the calculation of claimant’s earned 
income within the Housing Benefit calculation. Given the nature of the population the Council 
were required to test 40 cases where the claimant’s earned income is included within the Housing 
Benefit calculation for 2016-17. Testing identified two cases where the Council had either used 
the incorrect earnings within the benefit calculation, or was unable to support the earnings value 
included. The extrapolated financial impact on the claim, which we have reported to the DWP, 
was relatively insignificant to the total subsidy receivable.  

We also identified an error in the previous year where the Council had used the incorrect State 
Retirement Pension within the Housing Benefit calculation. Given the nature of the population, 
the Council were required to test 40 cases where the claimant’s State Retirement Pension is 
included within the Housing Benefit calculation for 2016-17. Testing identified three cases where 
the Council had underpaid benefit due to the Council incorrectly calculating the applicable State 
Retirement Pension. However as there is no entitlement to subsidy not claimed, these cases were 
not treated as errors for the purposes of the Claim Form, and were reported as Observations in 
our Qualification Letter.  

As a result of the errors identified, the claim was qualified, and we reported our findings to the 
DWP. The DWP may require the Council to undertake further work or provide assurances on the 
errors we have identified. 

G 

 
Gr ant Thornton UK LLP  
30 Finsbury Square  
London 
EC2P 2YU 

 
T +44 (0)20 7383 5100 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 
 

r ant Thornton UK LLP 
Insert office address 
 

T +44 (0)x x xxxxxxxx 
 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 

APPENDIX A68



 2 

The indicative fee for 2016/17 for the Council was based on the final 2014/15 certification fees, 
reflecting the amount of work required by the auditor to certify the Housing Benefit subsidy claim that 
year. The indicative scale fee set by PSAA for the Council for 2016/17 was £23,018. This is set out in 
more detail in Appendix B. 

Yours sincerely 
 

 
Grant Thornton UK LLP  

69



 3 

Appendix A - Details of claims and returns certified for 2016/17 

Claim or 
return 

Value Amended? Amendment 
value 

Qualified?  
 

Comments 

Housing 
Benefits Subsidy 
Claim (BEN01) 

£204,841,699 No N/A Yes See below 

 

Findings from certification of housing benefits subsidy claim 
 
Claimant income 
In the previous year we identified an error in relation to the calculation of the claimant’s earned 
income within the Housing Benefit calculation. Given the nature of the population the Council 
were required to test 40 cases where the claimant’s earned income is included within the Housing 
Benefit calculation for 2016-17. Testing identified two cases where the Council has not used the 
appropriate earnings within the benefit calculation. The errors were classified as: 

 1 case where the claimant was overpaid (total value £945) 

 1 case where the claimant was underpaid (total value £95) 
 
State Retirement Pension 
In the previous year we identified an error in relation to the calculation of the claimant’s State 
Retirement Pension within the Housing Benefit calculation. Given the nature of the population 
the Council were required to test 40 cases where the claimant’s State Retirement Pension is 
included within the Housing Benefit calculation for 2016-17. Testing identified three cases where 
the Council has not used the appropriate Pension within the benefit calculation. The errors were 
classified as: 

 3 cases where the claimant was underpaid (total value £230) 
 
Recommended actions for officers 
We recommend that the Council as part of its internal quality assurance process, should increase 
its focus or level of testing in respect of the areas where we identified errors from our testing. 
 

Appendix B: Fees for 2016/17 certification work 

Claim or return 2014/15 fee 
(£)  

2016/17 
indicative 
fee (£) 

2016/17 actual 
fee (£) 

Variance (£) Explanation for 
variances 

Housing Benefits 
Subsidy Claim 
(BEN01) 

£28,773 £23,018 £23,018 N/A Not Applicable 

  

70



Item No:
10.

Classification:
Open

Date:
19 February 2018

Meeting Name:
Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee  

Report title: Grant Thornton Audit Plans for Southwark 
Council and Southwark Pension Fund 2017-18

Wards or Groups affected: All

From: Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the audit, governance and standards committee note Grant Thornton’s audit 
plan for Southwark Council and draft audit Southwark Pension Fund 2017-18 (as 
attached as Appendices A and B).

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

2. The purpose of the report is to inform the committee of the audit plans for the 
audit of the financial statements and the value for money conclusion 2017-18 for 
the council and the pension fund.

3. The Southwark Pension Fund 2017-18 is produced here as a draft and any 
changes will be notified to the Committee at its meeting on 19 February 2018.

Community impact statement

4. This report is not considered to have a direct impact on local people and 
communities. 

Resource implications

5. The fees for this work will be met from existing budgets.

Consultation

6. There has been no consultation on this report.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

7. None required.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held at Contact
None. 

71
Agenda Item 10



APPENDICES

SNo
.

Title

Appendix A Grant Thornton Audit Plan for Southwark Council year ended 31 March 
2018 

Appendix B Grant Thornton Draft Audit Plan for Southwark Pension Fund year 
ended 31 March 2018

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Jennifer Seeley, Director of Finance
Report Author Jennifer Seeley, Director of Finance

Version Final
Version Date 9 February 2018
Key Decision No

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /
 CABINET MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included
Director of Law and 
Democracy

N/A N/A

Strategic Director of 
Finance and Governance

N/A N/A

Cabinet Member N/A N/A
Final Report Sent to Constitutional Team 9 February 2018

72



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8

E
xt

er
n

a
l A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

Y
e

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8

S
o

u
th

w
a

rk
 C

o
u

n
c

il

1
9 

F
e

br
u

a
ry

 2
0

18

APPENDIX A73



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8
2

C
o

nt
e

nt
s

S
ec

ti
o

n
P

a
g

e

1
.

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

&
 h

e
ad

lin
es

3

2
.

D
ee

p 
bu

si
ne

ss
 u

nd
er

st
a

nd
in

g
4

3
.

S
ig

ni
fic

a
nt

 r
is

ks
 id

e
nt

ifi
e

d
5

4
.

R
ea

so
n

ab
ly

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 r

is
ks

 id
en

tif
ie

d
7

5
.

O
th

er
 m

at
te

rs
8

6
.

M
at

er
ia

lit
y

9

7
.

V
al

u
e

 f
o

r 
M

o
ne

y 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

e
nt

s
10

8
.

A
ud

it 
lo

gi
st

ic
s,

 t
e

am
 &

 a
ud

it 
fe

es
11

9
.

E
ar

ly
 c

lo
se

12

1
0.

 I
n

de
p

en
de

nc
e 

&
 n

o
n-

a
ud

it 
se

rv
ic

es
13

A
p

p
en

d
ic

es

A
. 

R
e

vi
se

d 
IS

A
s 

15

T
h

e
co

nt
e

nt
s

o
f

th
is

re
po

rt
re

la
te

on
ly

to
th

e
m

at
te

rs
w

hi
ch

ha
ve

co
m

e
to

ou
r

a
tt

en
tio

n
,

w
hi

ch
w

e
b

e
lie

ve
ne

e
d

to
b

e
re

p
o

rt
ed

to
yo

u
a

s
pa

rt
o

f
ou

r
a

ud
it

pl
an

ni
ng

p
ro

ce
ss

.
It

is
n

ot
a

co
m

p
re

he
n

si
ve

re
co

rd
of

al
lt

he
re

le
va

n
t

m
at

te
rs

,
w

h
ic

h
m

ay
be

su
bj

ec
t

to
ch

a
ng

e
,

a
n

d
in

p
ar

tic
ul

a
r

w
e

ca
nn

ot
b

e
h

el
d

re
sp

o
ns

ib
le

to
yo

u
fo

r
re

po
rt

in
g

a
ll

of
th

e
ris

ks
w

h
ic

h
m

ay
af

fe
ct

th
e

C
o

u
nc

il
o

r
a

ny
w

ea
kn

e
ss

es
in

yo
ur

in
te

rn
al

co
n

tr
ol

s.
T

hi
s

re
p

or
t

h
a

s
be

en
p

re
pa

re
d

so
le

ly
fo

r
yo

u
r

b
e

ne
fit

an
d

sh
o

ul
d

no
t

be
qu

ot
ed

in
w

h
ol

e
o

r
in

p
ar

t
w

ith
ou

t
ou

r
pr

io
r

w
rit

te
n

co
n

se
n

t.
W

e
do

no
t

ac
ce

p
t

an
y

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y
fo

r
an

y
lo

ss
oc

ca
si

on
e

d
to

an
y

th
ird

p
ar

ty
a

ct
in

g,
or

re
fr

ai
ni

n
g

fr
om

a
ct

in
g

o
n

th
e

b
as

is
of

th
e

co
n

te
n

t
of

th
is

re
po

rt
,

as
th

is
re

p
or

t
w

as
no

t
p

re
p

ar
e

d
fo

r,
n

or
in

te
nd

e
d

fo
r,

an
y

ot
he

r
pu

rp
os

e
.

Y
o

u
r 

ke
y 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 
te

am
 m

em
b

er
s 

a
re

:

P
au

l D
o

ss
et

t

E
ng

ag
em

e
nt

 L
ea

d

T
: 

 0
20

 7
72

8 
3

1
80

E
: 

pa
ul

.d
os

se
tt

@
u

k.
g

t.
co

m

M
at

t D
ea

n

E
ng

ag
em

e
nt

 M
an

ag
e

r

T
: 

0
2

0 
77

28
 3

1
8

1

E
: 

m
at

th
e

w
.d

e
an

@
u

k.
g

t.
co

m

L
iu

lu
 C

h
en

In
-C

ha
rg

e 
A

cc
ou

nt
an

t

T
: 

0
2

0 
78

65
 2

5
6

1

E
: 

liu
lu

.c
h

en
@

u
k.

gt
.c

o
m

G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
on

 U
K

 L
L

P
 is

 a
 li

m
ite

d
 li

a
b

ili
ty

 p
a

rt
ne

rs
h

ip
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
in

 E
n

gl
an

d 
an

d 
W

a
le

s:
 N

o.
O

C
3

07
74

2.
 R

e
gi

st
er

ed
 o

ff
ic

e
: 

30
 F

in
sb

u
ry

 S
q

u
ar

e
, 

L
on

do
n,

 E
C

2
A

 1
A

G
. 

A
 li

st
 o

f 
m

em
b

er
s 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fr
o

m
 o

u
r 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 o

ff
ic

e.
  G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

 is
 a

u
th

or
is

ed
 a

n
d

 r
eg

ul
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e
 F

in
a

nc
ia

l C
o

nd
u

ct
 A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 G
ra

n
t 

T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

L
P

 is
 a

 m
em

b
er

 fi
rm

 o
f 

G
ra

nt
 

T
h

or
nt

on
 I

n
te

rn
at

io
na

l L
td

 (
G

T
IL

).
 G

T
IL

 a
n

d 
th

e
 m

e
m

be
r 

fir
m

s 
a

re
 n

ot
 a

 w
o

rld
w

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 S
e

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 d

e
liv

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s.
 G

T
IL

 a
nd

 it
s 

m
e

m
be

r 
fir

m
s 

ar
e 

no
t 

a
ge

nt
s 

o
f,

 a
nd

 d
o

 n
o

t 
ob

lig
a

te
, o

n
e 

an
o

th
er

 a
nd

 a
re

 n
ot

 li
a

b
le

 fo
r 

o
n

e 
a

no
th

er
’s

 a
ct

s 
o

r 
om

is
si

on
s.

74



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8
3

In
tr

o
d

uc
tio

n 
&

 h
e

a
dl

in
e

s
P

u
rp

o
se

T
hi

s
do

cu
m

e
n

t
pr

o
vi

de
s

an
o

ve
rv

ie
w

of
th

e
p

la
nn

ed
sc

o
pe

a
n

d
tim

in
g

of
th

e
st

a
tu

to
ry

a
ud

it
o

f
S

o
ut

hw
ar

k
C

o
un

ci
l(

‘th
e

C
o

un
ci

l’)
fo

r
th

o
se

ch
a

rg
e

d
w

ith
go

ve
rn

an
ce

.

R
es

p
e

ct
iv

e
re

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
ie

s

T
he

N
a

tio
n

al
A

ud
it

O
ffi

ce
(‘t

h
e

N
A

O
’)

ha
s

is
su

e
d

a
d

oc
um

en
t

e
nt

itl
e

d
C

o
de

o
f

A
ud

it
P

ra
ct

ic
e

(‘t
h

e
C

o
d

e’
).

T
h

is
su

m
m

a
ris

e
s

w
h

er
e

th
e

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s

o
f

au
di

to
rs

be
gi

n
an

d
e

nd
a

n
d

w
h

at
is

e
xp

ec
te

d
fr

o
m

th
e

au
di

te
d

bo
dy

.
O

ur
re

sp
e

ct
iv

e
re

sp
on

si
b

ili
tie

s
ar

e
a

ls
o

se
t

in
th

e
T

e
rm

s
of

A
p

po
in

tm
en

t
an

d
S

ta
te

m
en

t
o

f
R

e
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s

is
su

ed
b

y
P

ub
lic

S
ec

to
r

A
u

di
t

A
pp

o
in

tm
en

ts
(P

S
A

A
),

th
e

b
od

y
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

fo
r

ap
po

in
tin

g
us

as
a

ud
ito

r
of

S
ou

th
w

ar
k

C
o

un
ci

l.
W

e
d

ra
w

yo
ur

at
te

nt
io

n
to

b
ot

h
o

f
th

es
e

d
oc

um
e

nt
s

on
th

e
P

S
A

A
w

e
b

si
te

.

S
co

p
e

o
f

o
u

r
au

d
it

T
he

sc
o

p
e

o
f

ou
r

au
di

t
is

se
t

in
a

cc
or

da
nc

e
w

ith
th

e
C

o
d

e
an

d
In

te
rn

at
io

n
al

S
ta

n
da

rd
s

on
A

ud
iti

ng
(I

S
A

s)
(U

K
).

W
e

ar
e

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
fo

r
fo

rm
in

g
an

d
ex

p
re

ss
in

g
a

n
o

pi
ni

o
n

on
th

e
:

•
fin

a
nc

ia
l

st
a

te
m

e
nt

s
(in

cl
ud

in
g

th
e

A
n

nu
a

l
G

ov
e

rn
an

ce
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t)

th
at

h
av

e
be

en
p

re
p

a
re

d
by

m
a

na
ge

m
en

t
w

ith
th

e
ov

er
si

g
ht

of
th

os
e

ch
ar

ge
d

w
ith

g
ov

e
rn

an
ce

(t
h

e
A

ud
it,

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

an
d

S
ta

n
da

rd
s

C
om

m
itt

ee
);

a
nd

•
V

a
lu

e
fo

r
M

o
ne

y
ar

ra
ng

em
e

nt
s

in
pl

ac
e

at
th

e
C

o
u

nc
il

fo
r

se
cu

ri
ng

ec
on

om
y,

e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

a
nd

e
ff

e
ct

iv
en

es
s

in
yo

ur
u

se
o

fr
es

ou
rc

es
.

T
he

a
u

di
t

of
th

e
fin

a
nc

ia
l

st
at

em
e

nt
s

d
oe

s
n

ot
re

lie
ve

m
a

na
ge

m
en

t
o

r
th

e
A

u
di

t,
G

ov
e

rn
a

n
ce

a
nd

S
ta

n
da

rd
s

C
om

m
itt

e
e

of
yo

u
r

re
sp

on
si

b
ili

tie
s.

It
is

th
e

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y
of

th
e

C
ou

nc
il

to
en

su
re

th
a

t
pr

op
er

a
rr

a
n

ge
m

e
n

ts
a

re
in

pl
ac

e
fo

r
th

e
co

nd
uc

t
of

its
bu

si
ne

ss
,

a
nd

th
at

p
ub

lic
m

on
ey

is
sa

fe
gu

a
rd

e
d

a
nd

pr
op

er
ly

ac
co

un
te

d
fo

r.
W

e
ha

ve
co

ns
id

er
ed

h
ow

th
e

C
o

un
ci

li
s

fu
lfi

lli
n

g
th

e
se

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

O
ur

au
di

t
ap

p
ro

ac
h

is
ba

se
d

o
n

a
th

o
ro

ug
h

u
nd

e
rs

ta
n

di
n

g
of

th
e

C
o

un
ci

l's
b

us
in

e
ss

an
d

is
ri

sk
b

as
ed

.

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

s
k

s
T

ho
se

 r
is

ks
 r

eq
u

iri
n

g 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
a

ud
it 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n
 a

nd
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e
 li

ke
lih

o
od

 o
f a

 m
at

er
ia

l f
in

a
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
e

nt
er

ro
r 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

a
s:

•
F

ra
u

d 
in

 r
e

ve
nu

e
 r

e
co

gn
iti

on
 –

T
h

is
 r

is
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
e

bu
tt

ed
 fo

r 
th

e
 C

ou
nc

il 
as

 d
oc

um
e

nt
ed

 o
n

 p
ag

e
 5

•
M

an
ag

em
e

nt
 o

ve
rr

id
e

 o
f 

co
n

tr
o

ls

•
V

a
lu

at
io

n
o

f p
ro

pe
rt

y,
 p

la
nt

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

e
nt

•
V

a
lu

at
io

n 
o

f t
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 n
et

 li
a

bi
lit

y 

W
e 

w
ill

 c
o

m
m

u
ni

ca
te

 s
ig

n
ifi

ca
nt

 fi
n

di
n

g
s 

o
n 

th
es

e 
a

re
as

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
si

g
ni

fic
an

t m
at

te
rs

 a
ri

si
n

g
 fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 a

u
di

t t
o 

yo
u

 in
 o

ur
 A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
(I

S
A

 2
6

0)
 

R
ep

or
t.

M
at

er
ia

li
ty

W
e 

ha
ve

 d
et

er
m

in
e

d 
pl

a
n

ni
n

g 
m

a
te

ria
lit

y 
to

 b
e

 £
2

5
.1

46
m

 (
P

Y
 £

2
5.

20
3m

),
 w

h
ic

h 
eq

u
at

e
s 

to
 2

%
 o

f 
yo

u
r 

fo
re

ca
st

 g
ro

ss
 e

xp
e

nd
itu

re
 fo

r
th

e
 y

e
ar

. 
W

e
 a

re
 

o
bl

ig
e

d 
to

 r
e

po
rt

 u
n

co
rr

ec
te

d 
o

m
is

si
o

ns
 o

r 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
th

e
r 

th
a

n 
th

o
se

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 ‘c

le
a

rl
y 

tr
iv

ia
l’ 

to
 t

ho
se

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
ith

 g
o

ve
rn

a
nc

e.
 C

le
a

rly
 t

ri
vi

al
 h

a
s 

b
ee

n 
se

t a
t£

1.
25

7m
 (

P
Y

 £
1.

26
0

m
).

 

V
al

u
e

 f
o

r 
M

o
n

e
y 

a
rr

an
g

e
m

en
ts

O
ur

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
e

nt
 r

eg
a

rd
in

g
 y

o
ur

 a
rr

a
ng

e
m

e
nt

s 
to

 s
e

cu
re

 v
al

u
e

 fo
r 

m
on

e
y 

h
as

 id
e

nt
ifi

e
d 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 V

F
M

 s
ig

n
ifi

ca
nt

 r
is

k:

•
T

he
 C

o
u

nc
il’

s 
o

ng
oi

ng
fin

a
nc

ia
l p

o
si

tio
n

A
u

d
it

 l
o

g
is

ti
c

s
O

ur
 in

te
rim

 v
is

it 
w

ill
 t

a
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 M
a

rc
h

2
01

8
a

nd
 o

u
r 

fin
a

l v
is

it 
w

ill
 t

a
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 J
u

ne
/J

u
ly

2
01

8
.  

O
u

r 
ke

y 
d

el
iv

e
ra

bl
e

s 
ar

e 
th

is
 A

u
di

t 
P

la
n

 a
nd

 o
ur

 A
u

di
t 

F
in

d
in

gs
 R

ep
or

t.

O
ur

 f
e

e
 fo

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it 
w

ill
 b

e 
n

o 
le

ss
 th

an
 £

2
3

7,
29

6 
(P

Y
: 

£2
37

,2
96

) 
fo

r 
th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l.

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
W

e 
ha

ve
 c

om
p

lie
d 

w
ith

 t
h

e 
F

in
a

n
ci

a
l R

e
po

rt
in

g
 C

ou
nc

il'
s 

E
th

ic
a

l S
ta

nd
ar

d 
a

n
d 

w
e 

a
s 

a
 f

irm
, a

nd
 e

a
ch

 c
o

ve
re

d
 p

e
rs

on
, c

on
fir

m
 th

at
w

e
 a

re
 in

de
p

en
de

nt
 a

n
d

 
a

re
 a

b
le

 to
 e

xp
re

ss
 a

n
 o

bj
e

ct
iv

e 
op

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
e

nt
s

75



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8
4

D
e

ep
 b

us
in

e
ss

 u
nd

e
rs

ta
n

di
ng

•
W

e 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

yo
u

r 
ar

ra
n

g
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

m
a

na
gi

ng
 a

nd
 r

e
po

rt
in

g 
yo

ur
 f

in
an

ci
al

 r
es

o
ur

ce
s,

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

ou
r 

w
o

rk
 in

 r
e

a
ch

in
g

 o
ur

 V
a

lu
e 

fo
r 

M
on

e
y 

co
nc

lu
si

o
n.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

w
he

th
er

 y
o

ur
 f

in
an

ci
a

l p
o

si
tio

n 
le

ad
s 

to
 u

n
ce

rt
ai

nt
y 

a
bo

ut
 th

e 
go

in
g

 c
on

ce
rn

 a
ss

um
p

tio
n 

a
nd

 w
ill

 r
e

vi
ew

 a
ny

 r
e

la
te

d 
d

is
cl

os
ur

es
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
a

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

•
W

e 
w

ill
 k

ee
p

 y
ou

 in
fo

rm
e

d 
of

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e
 R

e
gu

la
tio

ns
 a

nd
 a

ny
 a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d 

ch
a

ng
e

s 
to

 f
in

an
ci

al
  r

e
po

rt
in

g
 o

r 
pu

b
lic

 in
sp

ec
tio

n
 r

eq
u

ire
m

e
n

ts
 fo

r 
2

01
7/

18
 th

ro
ug

h
 o

n
-g

oi
n

g
 

d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 a
n

d 
in

vi
ta

tio
n

s 
to

 o
ur

 t
e

ch
n

ic
al

 u
pd

a
te

 w
o

rk
sh

op
s.

•
A

s 
p

ar
t o

f o
ur

 o
pi

ni
o

n 
on

 y
o

ur
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e

nt
s,

 w
e 

w
ill

 c
o

n
si

d
er

 w
h

et
he

r 
yo

u
r 

fin
a

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
nt

s 
re

fle
ct

 th
e

 fi
n

an
ci

al
re

po
rt

in
g

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 t

h
e

 2
0

17
/1

8 
C

IP
F

A
 C

o
d

e,
 r

e
vi

se
d 

st
o

ck
 v

a
lu

at
io

n
 g

u
id

an
ce

 f
or

 th
e 

H
R

A
 a

n
d

 th
e 

im
p

ac
t 

of
 im

pa
irm

e
nt

 a
ss

es
sm

e
nt

s 
a

nd
 t

h
e

 a
d

eq
u

ac
y 

o
f p

ro
vi

si
o

n
s 

in
 r

el
a

tio
n

 to
 e

ss
en

tia
l w

or
k 

o
n

 h
ig

h
 r

is
e

 b
u

ild
in

gs
.

C
h

a
n

g
es

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

el
iv

e
ry

O
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

K
ey

 c
h

a
ll

en
g

e
s

C
h

a
n

g
es

 t
o

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
ep

o
rt

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
em

e
n

ts

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
is

at
io

n

T
he

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
a

ct
iv

ity
, 

p
rim

a
ril

y 
in

 c
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y,
 

h
as

 in
cr

e
a

se
d

 a
s 

lo
ca

l a
u

th
o

rit
ie

s 
se

ek
 t

o
 m

ax
im

is
e

 in
co

m
e

 
g

en
er

at
io

n.
 T

he
se

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
a

re
 o

ft
e

n 
d

is
ch

ar
ge

d 
th

ro
u

g
h 

a 
co

m
pa

ny
, 

pa
rt

n
er

sh
ip

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
in

ve
st

m
e

n
t 

ve
hi

cl
e.

 L
oc

a
l 

a
ut

ho
ri

tie
s 

ne
ed

 t
o 

e
ns

u
re

 t
h

at
 

th
e

ir 
co

m
m

e
rc

ia
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
re

 
p

re
se

n
te

d 
a

p
pr

o
p

ria
te

ly
, 

in
 

co
m

pl
ia

n
ce

 w
ith

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
 C

o
de

 
o

f 
P

ra
ct

ic
e

 a
n

d 
st

at
u

to
ry

 
fr

am
e

w
o

rk
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e

 C
ap

ita
l 

F
in

an
ce

 R
e

gu
la

tio
n

s.
 W

he
re

 
b

or
ro

w
in

g
 t

o
 f

in
an

ce
 t

he
se

 
a

ct
iv

iti
e

s,
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

ri
tie

s 
ne

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 C

IP
F

A
’s

 P
ru

de
nt

ia
l 

C
o

de
. 

A
 n

e
w

 v
er

si
on

 o
f 

th
e 

C
od

e 
is

 d
ue

 t
o

 b
e

 f
in

a
lis

e
d 

im
m

in
e

nt
ly

.

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

a
ls

o
 p

u
rs

u
ed

 a
 

ra
ng

e
 o

f 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

in
ve

st
m

e
n

ts
 

o
ve

r 
th

e
 p

a
st

 1
2 

m
o

nt
h

s
in

 
p

ur
su

it 
o

f 
w

id
e

r 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n
 a

n
d 

in
co

m
e

 g
e

ne
ra

tio
n

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
. 

D
e

vo
lu

tio
n

T
he

 C
iti

es
 a

nd
 L

o
ca

l 
G

ov
er

nm
e

nt
 D

e
vo

lu
tio

n
 

A
ct

 2
0

16
 p

ro
vi

d
e

s 
th

e
 

le
ga

l f
ra

m
e

w
or

k 
fo

r 
th

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
tio

n
 o

f 
d

ev
ol

u
tio

n
 d

e
al

s 
w

ith
 

co
m

bi
n

ed
 a

u
th

o
rit

ie
s 

a
nd

 
o

th
er

 a
re

as
. 

T
he

 C
ou

n
ci

l 
is

 d
ev

el
o

pi
ng

 
a

rr
a

ng
em

e
n

ts
 f

or
 th

e 
p

oo
lin

g 
of

 B
u

si
ne

ss
 R

at
e

s 
to

 h
e

lp
 r

e
du

ce
 t

h
e

 le
ve

l o
f 

ri
sk

 a
tta

ch
ed

 t
o

 t
he

 
re

ce
ip

t 
o

f 
th

e
se

 a
m

o
un

ts
 

a
nd

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
a

 f
in

an
ci

a
l 

b
en

ef
it 

to
 t

h
e 

au
th

o
rit

ie
s 

in
vo

lv
e

d 
in

 t
he

 p
oo

lin
g.

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

re
la

tio
n

sh
ip

 
w

ith
 t

he
 lo

ca
l H

e
al

th
 

S
ec

to
r 

is
 d

e
ve

lo
p

in
g,

 w
ith

 
fu

rt
he

r 
B

e
tte

r 
C

ar
e

 F
u

nd
 

b
ei

n
g 

re
ce

iv
e

d 
to

 h
e

lp
 

d
riv

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g 
b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e

 C
o

un
ci

l a
nd

 
th

e
 C

C
G

. 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

R
e

gu
la

tio
n

s 
20

15
 (

th
e

 
R

e
gu

la
tio

n
s)

T
he

 D
ep

ar
tm

e
nt

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

un
iti

e
s 

an
d 

Lo
ca

l 
G

ov
er

nm
e

nt
 (

D
C

LG
) 

is
 

cu
rr

e
nt

ly
 u

n
de

rt
ak

in
g

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 

o
f 

th
e 

R
e

gu
la

tio
n

s,
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ay
 

b
e 

su
bj

e
ct

 t
o

 c
h

an
ge

. 
T

h
e 

da
te

 
fo

r 
an

y 
p

ro
po

se
d

 c
ha

ng
e

s 
h

a
s 

ye
t 

to
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

e
d,

 s
o 

it 
is

 n
ot

 
ye

t 
cl

ea
r 

o
r 

w
he

th
e

r 
th

e
y 

w
ill

 
a

pp
ly

 t
o

 t
he

 2
01

7/
1

8 
fin

a
n

ci
al

 
st

at
e

m
en

ts
.

U
n

de
r 

th
e 

20
1

5 
R

eg
u

la
tio

ns
 

lo
ca

l a
u

th
o

rit
ie

s 
a

re
 r

e
qu

ir
ed

 t
o

 
p

ub
lis

h
 t

h
ei

r 
ac

co
u

nt
s 

a
lo

ng
 

w
ith

 t
he

 a
ud

ito
rs

 o
pi

n
io

n 
by

 3
1

 
Ju

ly
 2

01
8.

H
o

us
in

g
 R

e
ve

n
ue

 A
cc

o
u

nt
 (

H
R

A
)

D
C

L
G

 h
as

 is
su

e
d 

re
vi

se
d

 
g

ui
d

an
ce

 o
n

 t
he

 c
a

lc
u

la
tio

n 
o

f 
th

e 
It

em
 8

 D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

fo
r 

2
01

7/
1

8,
 

w
hi

ch
 :

-
e

xt
e

nd
s 

tr
an

si
tio

na
l 

a
rr

a
ng

em
e

n
ts

 f
or

 r
ev

er
si

ng
 

im
p

ai
rm

en
t 

ch
a

rg
es

 a
n

d 
re

va
lu

at
io

n 
lo

ss
es

 o
n 

dw
e

lli
n

g 
a

ss
et

s 
a

n
d 

a
pp

lie
s 

th
is

 p
rin

ci
p

le
 

to
 n

o
n-

dw
el

lin
g 

a
ss

et
s 

fr
o

m
 

2
01

7/
1

8,
 

-
co

nf
ir

m
s 

ar
ra

n
g

em
e

nt
s 

fo
r 

ch
ar

g
in

g 
de

p
re

ci
at

io
n 

to
 t

he
 H

R
A

 
a

nd
 p

er
m

itt
in

g
 r

ev
al

u
at

io
n

 g
ai

n
s 

th
a

t 
re

ve
rs

e
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

im
pa

ir
m

e
n

t 
a

nd
 r

ev
al

u
at

io
n

 lo
ss

e
s 

to
 b

e
 

a
dj

u
st

e
d 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
e 

H
R

A
.

C
h

an
ge

s 
to

 t
h

e 
C

IP
F

A
 2

01
7/

1
8 

A
cc

ou
n

tin
g

 C
o

de
 

C
IP

F
A

 h
a

ve
 in

tr
od

uc
e

d
 o

th
e

r 
m

in
o

r 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 t
h

e 
20

1
7/

18
 C

o
de

 
w

hi
ch

 c
on

fir
m

 th
e 

go
in

g 
co

n
ce

rn
 b

a
si

s 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l a

u
th

o
rit

ie
s,

 a
nd

 
u

pd
at

e
s 

fo
r 

L
ea

se
s,

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ce
ss

io
n

 a
rr

a
n

ge
m

en
ts

 a
n

d 
fin

a
nc

ia
l 

in
st

ru
m

e
n

ts
.

F
in

an
ci

a
l p

re
ss

ur
es

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

fo
un

d
 it

 
ch

al
le

n
gi

n
g

 in
 r

ec
e

nt
 y

e
ar

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
 b

al
an

ce
d

 
p

os
iti

o
n 

a
t 

ye
ar

 e
nd

, 
la

rg
el

y 
d

ue
 t

o
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
fin

an
ci

a
l 

p
re

ss
u

re
s 

in
 A

du
lt 

a
nd

 
C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
S

o
ci

a
l C

a
re

. 
A

t 
M

o
nt

h 
8

 th
e

 C
o

un
ci

l w
a

s 
re

po
rt

in
g 

a
 s

m
al

l o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 

a
ga

in
st

 t
he

ir 
G

e
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

B
ud

ge
t, 

d
e

sp
ite

 
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
 o

ve
rs

p
e

nd
s 

o
n 

th
e 

S
o

ci
a

l C
a

re
 

B
ud

ge
ts

. 
T

he
se

 
o

ve
rs

pe
n

ds
 h

a
ve

 la
rg

el
y 

b
ee

n 
of

fs
et

 b
y 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 

in
 t

he
 B

et
te

r 
C

a
re

 F
un

d 
g

ra
n

t 
a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 t

he
 

C
o

un
ci

l, 
u

se
 o

f 
so

m
e

 
C

o
nt

in
ge

n
cy

 f
un

di
ng

 a
lo

ng
 

w
ith

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
u

se
 o

f 
R

e
se

rv
e

 
b

al
a

nc
e

s.
 

Im
pa

ct
s 

o
f 

G
re

n
fe

ll 
T

ow
e

r 
fir

e

T
he

 G
re

n
fe

ll 
T

o
w

er
 f

ire
 

d
is

as
te

r 
in

 2
01

7 
ha

s 
le

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

id
en

tif
ic

a
tio

n
 o

f 
a

pp
ro

xi
m

a
te

ly
 

1
50

 h
ig

h 
ri

se
 b

ui
ld

in
g

s 
in

 lo
ca

l 
a

ut
ho

ri
ty

 o
w

n
er

sh
ip

 t
ha

t 
h

av
e 

fa
ile

d 
fir

e
 s

a
fe

ty
 t

e
st

s.
 L

o
ca

l 
a

ut
ho

ri
tie

s 
ar

e 
e

xp
e

ct
e

d 
to

 
m

a
ke

 t
h

e
se

 b
u

ild
in

gs
 f

ire
 s

a
fe

. 
D

C
L

G
 a

re
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
th

e
 

cu
rr

e
nt

 r
es

tr
ic

tio
n

s 
on

 t
h

e 
us

e
 

o
f 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
a

l r
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
th

at
 

p
re

ve
n

t 
lo

ca
l a

u
th

o
rit

ie
s 

fr
om

 
m

a
ki

ng
 e

ss
e

nt
ia

l f
ire

 s
a

fe
ty

 
u

pg
ra

de
s.

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

fir
st

-h
an

d 
e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
 o

f 
d

ea
lin

g
 w

ith
 

th
e

se
 is

su
es

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 L
ak

a
na

l 
H

o
us

e
 f

ire
 in

 2
0

09
, 

an
d 

ha
s 

p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
 n

u
m

be
r 

o
f 

m
e

as
u

re
s 

si
nc

e
 t

he
n 

to
 

im
p

ro
ve

 f
ire

 s
a

fe
ty

. 
T

he
 

C
o

un
ci

l i
s 

al
so

 w
or

ki
n

g 
w

ith
 

K
en

si
n

gt
on

 a
nd

 C
h

e
ls

ea
 t

o
 

le
ar

n 
fr

om
 G

re
nf

el
l a

n
d 

h
el

p
 

fu
rt

he
r 

im
pr

ov
e

 f
ir

e 
sa

fe
ty

. 

76



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8
5

S
ig

n
ifi

ca
nt

 r
is

ks
 id

en
tif

ie
d

S
ig

n
ifi

ca
n

t r
is

ks
 a

re
 d

ef
in

e
d 

by
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 s
ta

n
da

rd
s 

a
s 

ris
ks

 th
at

, i
n

 t
he

 ju
d

ge
m

en
t 

of
 th

e 
au

di
to

r,
 r

e
q

ui
re

 s
p

ec
ia

l a
u

d
it

co
ns

id
e

ra
tio

n
 b

e
ca

us
e

 th
ey

 h
a

ve
 a

 h
ig

he
r 

ri
sk

 o
f m

at
er

ia
l 

m
is

st
at

em
en

t.
 S

u
ch

 r
is

ks
 o

ft
en

 r
e

la
te

 to
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

nt
 n

o
n-

ro
ut

in
e

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 a
n

d 
ju

d
gm

en
ta

l m
a

tt
er

s.
 In

 id
en

tif
yi

n
g 

ris
ks

, a
ud

it 
te

a
m

s 
co

ns
id

er
 t

h
e 

n
at

ur
e 

o
f 

th
e

 r
is

k,
 th

e
 p

ot
e

n
tia

l 
m

ag
ni

tu
de

 o
f m

is
st

at
em

e
nt

, a
n

d 
its

 li
ke

lih
o

o
d.

R
is

k
R

e
a

so
n

 f
o

r 
ri

s
k 

id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
K

e
y 

as
p

e
ct

s 
o

f 
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k

T
h

e
 r

ev
e

n
u

e 
c

yc
le

 i
n

c
lu

d
es

 f
ra

u
d

u
le

n
t 

tr
an

sa
c

ti
o

n
s

U
nd

er
IS

A
(U

K
)

2
40

th
e

re
is

a
re

b
ut

ta
bl

e
p

re
su

m
ed

ris
k

th
a

t
re

ve
n

u
e

m
ay

b
e

m
is

st
a

te
d

d
ue

to
th

e
im

pr
op

er
re

co
g

ni
tio

n
o

fr
ev

en
u

e.

T
hi

s 
p

re
su

m
pt

io
n

 c
an

 b
e 

re
b

ut
te

d 
if 

th
e

 a
u

di
to

r 
co

n
cl

ud
es

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

ris
k 

o
f m

a
te

ria
l m

is
st

at
em

e
nt

 d
u

e 
to

 f
ra

ud
 r

e
la

tin
g 

to
 r

e
ve

nu
e 

re
co

g
ni

tio
n.

H
av

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 th

e 
ri

sk
 f

ac
to

rs
 s

e
t o

ut
 in

 IS
A

2
4

0 
a

nd
 t

he
 n

at
u

re
o

f t
he

 r
e

ve
nu

e
 s

tr
e

am
s 

at
 th

e 
C

o
un

ci
l, 

w
e 

ha
ve

 d
et

er
m

in
e

d 
th

a
t 

th
e

 
ri

sk
 o

f f
ra

u
d 

ar
is

in
g

 fr
om

 r
e

ve
n

ue
 r

e
co

g
ni

tio
n

 c
an

 b
e 

re
b

ut
te

d,
 

b
ec

au
se

:

•
th

e
re

 is
 li

tt
le

 in
ce

nt
iv

e
 to

 m
an

ip
ul

a
te

 r
e

ve
n

ue
 r

e
co

g
ni

tio
n

•
o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 m

an
ip

ul
a

te
 r

ev
en

u
e 

re
co

g
ni

tio
n 

a
re

 v
er

y 
lim

ite
d

•
T

he
 c

ul
tu

re
 a

n
d 

e
th

ic
al

 f
ra

m
ew

o
rk

s 
o

f l
o

ca
l a

u
th

o
ri

tie
s,

 in
cl

u
di

n
g

 
S

ou
th

w
a

rk
 C

ou
nc

il,
 m

ea
n 

th
at

 a
ll 

fo
rm

s 
of

 fr
au

d 
a

re
 s

ee
n 

as
 

u
na

cc
ep

ta
b

le

T
he

re
fo

re
 w

e
 d

o 
no

t c
on

si
de

r 
th

is
 to

 b
e 

a 
si

g
ni

fic
an

t r
is

k 
fo

r 
S

ou
th

w
a

rk
C

ou
nc

il.

M
an

ag
em

e
n

t
o

ve
r-

ri
d

e 
o

f 
c

o
n

tr
o

ls
U

nd
er

 I
S

A
 (

U
K

) 
2

40
 t

he
re

 is
 a

 n
o

n-
re

b
u

tt
a

bl
e 

p
re

su
m

ed
 r

is
k 

th
at

 th
e 

ri
sk

 o
f m

an
ag

e
m

e
nt

 o
ve

r-
rid

e 
o

f 
co

nt
ro

ls
 is

 p
re

se
nt

 in
 a

ll 
e

nt
iti

e
s.

 .

M
an

ag
em

e
nt

 o
ve

r-
rid

e 
o

f c
o

nt
ro

ls
 is

 a
 r

is
k 

re
qu

iri
ng

 s
pe

ci
al

 a
u

di
t 

co
n

si
de

ra
tio

n.

W
e 

w
ill

:

•
g

ai
n

 a
n 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
n

tin
g 

e
st

im
at

es
, j

ud
g

em
en

ts
 

a
pp

lie
d 

an
d 

d
e

ci
si

o
ns

 m
ad

e 
by

 m
an

ag
em

e
nt

 a
nd

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e
ir 

re
as

o
na

bl
en

es
s 

•
o

bt
ai

n
 a

 f
u

ll 
lis

tin
g 

o
f j

o
ur

na
l e

n
tr

ie
s,

 id
e

nt
ify

 a
n

d 
te

st
 u

n
us

ua
l 

jo
ur

n
a

l e
n

tr
ie

s 
fo

r 
a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
n

es
s

•
e

va
lu

at
e

 t
he

 r
a

tio
na

le
 fo

r 
a

n
y 

ch
a

n
ge

s 
in

 a
cc

o
un

tin
g

 p
o

lic
ie

s 
o

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
n

t u
n

u
su

al
 t

ra
ns

a
ct

io
n

s.

77



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8
6

R
is

k
R

e
as

o
n

 f
o

r 
ri

s
k 

id
en

ti
fi

c
a

ti
o

n
K

e
y 

as
p

e
ct

s 
o

f 
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k

V
al

u
a

ti
o

n
o

f 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y,
 

p
la

n
t 

an
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

T
he

C
ou

nc
il 

re
va

lu
es

 it
s 

la
nd

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
in

g
s 

o
n

 a
n

 r
ol

lin
g

 fi
ve

-y
e

ar
 b

as
is

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
a

t 
ca

rr
yi

ng
 v

al
ue

 is
 n

o
t 

m
a

te
ria

lly
 d

iff
er

en
t f

ro
m

 f
ai

r 
va

lu
e

. 
T

hi
s 

re
p

re
se

nt
s 

a
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

n
t e

st
im

a
te

 b
y 

m
an

ag
e

m
e

nt
 in

 t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

a
te

m
e

nt
s.

W
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d
 t

he
 v

a
lu

at
io

n 
o

f l
a

nd
 a

n
d 

b
ui

ld
in

g
s 

re
va

lu
a

tio
n

s 
a

nd
 

im
pa

ir
m

e
nt

s 
as

 a
 r

is
k 

re
qu

iri
ng

 s
pe

ci
a

l a
u

di
t 

co
n

si
d

e
ra

tio
n.

W
e 

w
ill

:

•
re

vi
ew

 m
a

na
ge

m
e

n
t's

 p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

a
nd

 a
ss

u
m

p
tio

n
s

fo
r 

th
e 

ca
lc

u
la

tio
n 

o
f t

he
 

e
st

im
at

e
, t

he
 in

st
ru

ct
io

n
s 

is
su

e
d 

to
 v

a
lu

at
io

n
 e

xp
er

ts
 a

n
d 

th
e

 s
co

p
e 

o
f t

he
ir 

w
o

rk
;

•
co

n
si

de
r 

th
e

 c
o

m
pe

te
nc

e
, e

xp
er

tis
e 

a
nd

 o
bj

e
ct

iv
ity

 o
f 

an
y 

m
a

na
g

em
en

t 
e

xp
er

ts
 u

se
d

;

•
d

is
cu

ss
 w

ith
 t

h
e 

va
lu

e
r 

th
e

 b
as

is
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n

 is
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
ut

 a
n

d 
ch

a
lle

ng
e 

th
e 

ke
y 

a
ss

u
m

p
tio

n
s;

•
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 c
ha

lle
ng

e
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n 
us

ed
 b

y 
th

e
 v

al
u

e
r 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
it 

is
 r

ob
us

t 
a

nd
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 o
u

r 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g;

•
te

st
 r

e
va

lu
at

io
n

s 
m

a
de

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e

 y
e

ar
 t

o 
en

su
re

 th
ey

 a
re

 in
pu

t c
or

re
ct

ly
 in

to
 

th
e

 C
o

un
ci

l's
 a

ss
e

t r
eg

is
te

r;
 a

nd

•
e

va
lu

at
e

 t
he

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 m
a

d
e 

by
 m

an
ag

em
e

nt
 f

o
r 

th
o

se
 a

ss
et

s 
n

ot
 

re
va

lu
ed

 d
ur

in
g

 t
he

 y
e

ar
a

nd
 h

ow
 m

an
ag

e
m

e
nt

 h
as

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

e
m

se
lv

e
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
se

 a
re

 n
o

t m
at

er
ia

lly
 d

iff
e

re
nt

 to
 c

u
rr

en
t v

al
ue

.

V
al

u
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
n

si
o

n
 

fu
n

d
 n

et
 l

ia
b

il
it

y
T

he
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

pe
n

si
o

n 
fu

nd
 a

ss
et

 a
n

d 
lia

b
ili

ty
 a

s 
re

fle
ct

e
d 

in
 it

s 
ba

la
n

ce
 

sh
e

et
 r

e
pr

es
en

t a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t e
st

im
a

te
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

W
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d
 t

he
 v

a
lu

at
io

n 
o

f t
he

 p
e

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 n

e
t l

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
s 

a
 r

is
k 

re
qu

ir
in

g
 s

pe
ci

al
 a

u
di

t 
co

n
si

de
ra

tio
n.

W
e 

w
ill

:

•
id

en
tif

y 
th

e
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

pu
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

m
a

n
ag

em
en

t 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
a

t t
he

 p
e

ns
io

n 
fu

n
d 

lia
b

ili
ty

 is
 n

o
t m

a
te

ria
lly

 m
is

st
a

te
d.

 W
e

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 a

ss
es

s 
w

h
et

h
e

r 
th

e
se

 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 w
e

re
 im

p
le

m
e

nt
ed

 a
s 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
n

d
 w

h
et

he
r 

th
ey

 a
re

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t t
o

 
m

iti
ga

te
 th

e 
ri

sk
 o

f 
m

a
te

ria
l m

is
st

at
em

e
nt

;

•
e

va
lu

at
e

 t
he

 c
o

m
pe

te
nc

e
, e

xp
er

tis
e 

a
nd

 o
bj

e
ct

iv
ity

 o
f 

th
e 

a
ct

u
ar

y 
w

h
o 

ca
rr

ie
d 

o
ut

 y
ou

r 
pe

n
si

o
n

 fu
nd

 v
al

u
at

io
n;

•
g

ai
n

 a
n 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
o

f t
he

 b
as

is
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h 
th

e 
va

lu
a

tio
n

 is
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
ut

;

•
u

nd
er

ta
ke

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
to

 c
on

fir
m

 th
e 

re
a

so
n

ab
le

n
e

ss
 o

f 
th

e 
a

ct
u

ar
ia

l 
a

ss
um

p
tio

ns
 m

ad
e;

 a
nd

•
ch

e
ck

 th
e 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

o
f t

he
 p

en
si

o
n

 fu
nd

 a
ss

et
 a

n
d 

lia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 d

is
cl

os
u

re
s 

in
 n

ot
es

 to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 t

h
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l r
ep

or
t f

ro
m

 y
ou

r 
a

ct
ua

ry
.

S
ig

n
ifi

ca
nt

 r
is

ks
 id

en
tif

ie
d

78



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8
7

R
e

as
o

na
b

ly
 p

os
si

b
le

 r
is

ks
 id

e
n

tif
ie

d

R
ea

so
na

b
ly

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 r

is
ks

 (
R

P
R

s)
 a

re
, 

in
 t

he
 a

ud
ito

r's
 ju

d
gm

e
nt

, 
o

th
er

 r
is

k 
ar

ea
s 

w
hi

ch
 t

he
 a

u
d

ito
r 

h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 a
n

 a
re

a 
w

he
re

 t
he

 li
ke

lih
oo

d 
of

 m
a

te
ri

al
 m

is
st

a
te

m
e

nt
 c

a
nn

o
t b

e 
re

du
ce

d
 to

 r
e

m
ot

e,
 w

ith
o

ut
 t

he
 n

e
ed

 f
or

 g
a

in
in

g 
a

n 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

o
f t

he
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
co

n
tr

ol
 e

nv
ir

on
m

e
n

t,
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 t
he

 p
er

fo
rm

a
n

ce
 o

f 
a

n 
a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 le

ve
l o

f 
su

b
st

an
tiv

e
 w

or
k.

 T
he

 r
is

k 
o

f m
is

st
at

em
en

t f
or

 a
n

 R
P

R
 is

 lo
w

er
 t

ha
n 

th
a

t 
fo

r 
a

 s
ig

n
ifi

ca
nt

 r
is

k,
 a

n
d 

th
e

y 
ar

e 
n

ot
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
to

 b
e

 a
re

a
s 

th
a

t 
ar

e
 h

ig
h

ly
ju

dg
m

e
nt

al
, 

o
r 

un
us

u
al

 in
 r

el
at

io
n

 to
 t

he
 d

a
y 

to
 d

a
y 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 o
f 

th
e

 b
u

si
ne

ss
.

R
is

k
R

e
a

so
n

 f
o

r 
ri

s
k 

id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
K

e
y 

as
p

e
ct

s 
o

f 
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

re
m

u
n

er
a

ti
o

n
P

ay
ro

ll 
e

xp
e

nd
itu

re
 r

e
pr

es
en

ts
 a

 s
ig

n
ifi

ca
nt

 p
e

rc
en

ta
ge

 (
1

3%
) 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

o
pe

ra
tin

g
 e

xp
en

se
s.

 

A
s 

th
e

 p
ay

ro
ll 

e
xp

e
nd

itu
re

 c
om

es
 f

ro
m

 a
 n

um
b

er
 o

f i
n

di
vi

d
u

al
 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 r

is
k 

th
at

 p
ay

ro
ll 

e
xp

en
d

itu
re

 in
 t

h
e 

a
cc

o
un

ts
 

co
u

ld
 b

e
 u

nd
er

st
at

ed
. W

e 
th

er
ef

o
re

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
co

m
p

le
te

n
e

ss
 o

f 
p

ay
ro

ll 
e

xp
e

ns
es

 a
s 

a
 r

is
k 

re
qu

iri
ng

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 a

ud
it 

at
te

nt
io

n

W
e

w
ill

•
ev

al
ua

te
th

e
C

ou
nc

il'
s

ac
co

u
n

tin
g

p
o

lic
y

fo
r

re
co

g
ni

tio
n

o
f

p
ay

ro
ll

e
xp

en
di

tu
re

fo
r

a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

n
es

s;

•
ga

in
a

n
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g

o
f

th
e

C
ou

n
ci

l's
sy

st
em

fo
r

ac
co

u
n

tin
g

fo
r

p
a

yr
ol

l
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

an
d

ev
al

ua
te

th
e

d
es

ig
n

o
f

th
e

as
so

ci
at

e
d

co
n

tr
o

ls
;

•
a

gr
e

e
th

at
pa

yr
o

ll
co

st
s

ar
e

co
m

p
le

te
w

ith
in

th
e

fin
an

ci
al

st
a

te
m

e
nt

s
vi

a
re

vi
e

w
o

f
th

e
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
n

s
b

et
w

ee
n

th
e

p
a

yr
o

ll
sy

st
em

a
n

d
th

e
G

e
ne

ra
lL

e
d

ge
r;

an
d

•
W

e
ar

e
se

ek
in

g
to

g
ai

n
as

su
ra

n
ce

s
vi

a
a

tr
e

nd
a

na
ly

si
s

an
d

d
et

ai
le

d
a

n
al

yt
ic

s
to

en
su

re
th

a
t

p
ay

in
cl

ud
e

d
w

ith
in

th
e

a
cc

o
un

ts
is

m
a

te
ri

al
ly

co
m

p
le

te
.

If
th

is
is

n
ot

p
os

si
bl

e
w

e
w

ill
un

de
rt

ak
e

fu
rt

he
r

su
b

st
a

nt
iv

e
te

st
in

g
of

a
sa

m
pl

e
o

fe
m

pl
o

ye
es

.

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 e

xp
en

se
s

N
on

-p
ay

 e
xp

en
se

s 
on

 o
th

er
 g

o
od

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

ls
o 

re
p

re
se

n
ts

 a
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

n
t p

e
rc

en
ta

g
e 

(7
0%

) 
o

f t
he

 C
o

u
nc

il’
s 

o
pe

ra
tin

g 
ex

pe
ns

e
s.

 
M

an
ag

em
e

nt
 u

se
s 

ju
d

ge
m

en
t 

to
 e

st
im

a
te

 a
cc

ru
a

ls
 o

f 
un

-i
nv

oi
ce

d 
co

st
s.

 

W
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d
 c

om
p

le
te

n
es

s 
of

 n
o

n-
pa

y 
ex

pe
ns

e
s 

a
s 

a 
ri

sk
 r

eq
ui

ri
n

g 
p

ar
tic

ul
a

r 
au

di
t 

a
tt

e
nt

io
n:

 

W
e

w
ill

•
ev

al
ua

te
th

e
C

o
un

ci
l's

ac
co

u
nt

in
g

po
lic

y
fo

r
re

co
gn

iti
on

of
n

on
-

p
ay

ex
p

en
di

tu
re

fo
r

a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

n
es

s;

•
ga

in
a

n
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g

o
f

th
e

C
ou

n
ci

l's
sy

st
em

fo
r

ac
co

u
n

tin
g

fo
r

n
on

-p
a

y
e

xp
e

nd
itu

re
an

d
ev

a
lu

at
e

th
e

de
si

g
n

of
th

e
as

so
ci

at
e

d
co

n
tr

o
ls

;

•
p

er
fo

rm
de

ta
ile

d
su

bs
ta

nt
iv

e
te

st
in

g
on

o
pe

ra
tin

g
ex

p
en

di
tu

re
re

co
rd

e
d

fo
r

th
e

fin
an

ci
al

ye
a

r,
in

cl
ud

in
g

a
se

p
ar

at
e

sa
m

p
le

of
sc

h
oo

ls
ex

pe
n

di
tu

re
;a

n
d

•
te

st
op

er
at

in
g

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

e
ns

ur
e

cu
t-

of
f

h
as

be
e

n
co

rr
ec

tly
a

pp
lie

d.

79



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8
8

O
th

e
r

m
a

tte
rs

O
th

er
w

o
rk

In
ad

di
tio

n
to

ou
r

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s

un
de

r
th

e
C

o
de

o
f

P
ra

ct
ic

e
,

w
e

ha
ve

a
nu

m
be

r
of

ot
h

e
r

a
ud

it
re

sp
on

si
b

ili
tie

s,
as

fo
llo

w
s:

•
W

e
 c

a
rr

y 
o

ut
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 s
at

is
fy

 o
ur

se
lv

es
 th

at
 d

is
cl

o
su

re
s 

m
ad

e 
in

 y
o

ur
 A

nn
ua

l 
G

ov
e

rn
a

n
ce

 S
ta

te
m

e
nt

 a
re

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 t

he
 g

u
id

an
ce

 is
su

e
d 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

n
t w

ith
 o

ur
 

kn
o

w
le

dg
e

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il.

•
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
a

d 
yo

u
r 

N
a

rr
at

iv
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
nt

 a
n

d 
ch

e
ck

 th
at

 it
 is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 t

he
 

fin
a

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
nt

s 
o

n 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e 
gi

ve
 a

n 
op

in
io

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

at
 th

e 
d

is
cl

os
ur

es
 in

cl
u

d
ed

 in
 

it 
ar

e 
in

 li
n

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 r

e
q

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 C
IP

F
A

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e
.

•
W

e
 c

a
rr

y 
o

ut
 w

o
rk

 o
n 

yo
u

r 
co

ns
o

lid
at

io
n

 s
ch

ed
ul

e
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 W
h

ol
e 

of
 G

ov
er

nm
e

nt
 

A
cc

ou
n

ts
 p

ro
ce

ss
 in

 a
cc

o
rd

a
n

ce
 w

ith
 N

A
O

 g
ro

up
 a

ud
it 

in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

.

•
W

e
 c

o
ns

id
er

 o
u

r 
o

th
er

 d
u

tie
s 

un
de

r 
th

e
 A

ct
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

o
de

, 
as

 a
n

d
 w

h
en

 r
eq

ui
re

d,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g:

•
gi

vi
n

g 
el

e
ct

or
s 

th
e

 o
pp

or
tu

n
ity

 t
o 

ra
is

e
 q

u
es

tio
n

s 
a

bo
u

t y
o

ur
 2

01
7

/1
8

 
fin

a
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
e

nt
s,

 c
o

ns
id

er
 a

n
d 

de
ci

d
e

 u
p

on
 a

ny
 o

bj
e

ct
io

n
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
2

01
7

/1
8 

fin
a

n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
; 

•
is

su
e 

o
f a

 r
ep

or
t i

n
 t

he
 p

u
b

lic
 in

te
re

st
; a

n
d 

•
m

a
ki

ng
 a

 w
ri

tt
en

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n

 t
o

 t
he

 C
o

u
nc

il,
 c

o
pi

ed
 to

 th
e

 S
e

cr
et

ar
y 

o
f 

S
ta

te
.

•
W

e
 c

e
rt

ify
 c

o
m

p
le

tio
n 

of
 o

u
r 

a
ud

it.

O
th

er
m

a
te

ri
a

lb
al

an
ce

s
an

d
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
s

U
nd

er
In

te
rn

at
io

n
al

S
ta

n
da

rd
s

on
A

u
d

iti
n

g,
"i

rr
es

p
ec

tiv
e

of
th

e
a

ss
es

se
d

ri
sk

s
of

m
a

te
ria

l
m

is
st

at
em

en
t,

th
e

au
d

ito
r

sh
a

ll
de

si
gn

a
nd

p
e

rf
o

rm
su

b
st

an
tiv

e
pr

oc
e

du
re

s
fo

r
ea

ch
m

at
er

ia
l

cl
as

s
o

f
tr

a
ns

ac
tio

ns
,

ac
co

un
t

ba
la

n
ce

an
d

di
sc

lo
su

re
".

A
ll

ot
h

e
r

m
a

te
ria

l
b

al
a

nc
e

s
a

nd
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
st

re
am

s
w

ill
th

er
e

fo
re

b
e

a
ud

ite
d

.
H

ow
ev

er
,

th
e

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
w

ill
n

ot
be

a
s

ex
te

ns
iv

e
as

th
e

pr
oc

e
du

re
s

a
do

p
te

d
fo

r
th

e
ri

sk
s

id
e

n
tif

ie
d

in
th

is
re

po
rt

.

G
o

in
g

c
o

n
ce

rn

A
s

a
ud

ito
rs

,
w

e
ar

e
re

qu
ire

d
to

“o
bt

a
in

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
au

d
it

e
vi

de
nc

e
ab

ou
t

th
e

a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

n
es

s
of

m
a

n
ag

em
en

t's
u

se
o

f
th

e
go

in
g

co
nc

er
n

a
ss

um
p

tio
n

in
th

e
p

re
p

a
ra

tio
n

a
nd

p
re

se
nt

at
io

n
of

th
e

fin
a

nc
ia

ls
ta

te
m

en
ts

a
nd

to
co

n
cl

ud
e

w
h

e
th

er
th

e
re

is
a

m
at

er
ia

l
un

ce
rt

ai
n

ty
ab

ou
t

th
e

e
nt

ity
's

ab
ili

ty
to

co
nt

in
u

e
as

a
g

oi
n

g
co

nc
er

n”
(I

S
A

(U
K

)
5

70
).

W
e

w
ill

re
vi

ew
m

an
ag

e
m

e
nt

's
a

ss
es

sm
e

nt
of

th
e

go
in

g
co

nc
e

rn
a

ss
um

p
tio

n
a

n
d

e
va

lu
at

e
th

e
di

sc
lo

su
re

s
in

th
e

fin
a

nc
ia

ls
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

80



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8
9

M
a

te
ri

al
ity

T
h

e
c

o
n

ce
p

t
o

f
m

a
te

ri
al

it
y

T
he

co
nc

ep
t

of
m

at
er

ia
lit

y
is

fu
n

da
m

en
ta

l
to

th
e

p
re

p
a

ra
tio

n
of

th
e

fin
a

nc
ia

l
st

at
em

e
nt

s
a

nd
th

e
a

ud
it

p
ro

ce
ss

a
nd

ap
p

lie
s

no
t

o
nl

y
to

th
e

m
on

et
ar

y
m

is
st

at
em

e
nt

s
b

ut
a

ls
o

to
d

is
cl

o
su

re
re

q
u

ire
m

e
n

ts
an

d
ad

he
re

nc
e

to
ac

ce
p

ta
b

le
ac

co
un

tin
g

p
ra

ct
ic

e
an

d
a

pp
lic

ab
le

la
w

.
M

is
st

a
te

m
en

ts
,

in
cl

u
d

in
g

om
is

si
o

ns
,

ar
e

co
ns

id
er

ed
to

be
m

a
te

ria
l

if
th

e
y,

in
di

vi
d

ua
lly

o
r

in
th

e
ag

gr
eg

at
e,

co
u

ld
re

as
o

na
bl

y
b

e
ex

pe
ct

ed
to

in
flu

en
ce

th
e

e
co

no
m

ic
de

ci
si

o
ns

o
fu

se
rs

ta
ke

n
on

th
e

ba
si

s
o

ft
he

fin
a

nc
ia

ls
ta

te
m

e
nt

s.

M
at

er
ia

li
ty

fo
r

p
la

n
n

in
g

p
u

rp
o

se
s

W
e

p
ro

po
se

to
ca

lc
ul

a
te

fin
a

nc
ia

l
st

a
te

m
en

t
m

a
te

ria
lit

y
b

a
se

d
o

n
a

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
of

th
e

g
ro

ss
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

of
th

e
C

ou
n

ci
l

fo
r

th
e

fin
a

n
ci

a
l

ye
ar

.
In

th
e

p
rio

r
ye

ar
w

e
u

se
d

th
e

sa
m

e
b

en
ch

m
ar

k.
W

e
h

av
e

d
et

er
m

in
ed

pl
an

ni
n

g
m

at
er

ia
lit

y
(t

he
fin

an
ci

al
st

a
te

m
e

nt
s

m
at

er
ia

lit
y

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
at

th
e

p
la

nn
in

g
st

a
ge

of
th

e
a

ud
it)

to
be

£2
5

,1
46

m
(P

Y
£

25
,2

03
m

),
w

hi
ch

e
q

ua
te

s
to

2
%

of
yo

ur
fo

re
ca

st
g

ro
ss

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
fo

r
th

e
ye

a
r.

W
e

d
es

ig
n

o
ur

p
ro

ce
du

re
s

to
d

et
ec

te
rr

or
s

in
sp

ec
ifi

c
ac

co
u

nt
s

a
ta

lo
w

e
r

le
ve

lo
fp

re
ci

si
o

n.

W
e

re
co

ns
id

er
p

la
nn

in
g

m
at

er
ia

lit
y

if,
du

rin
g

th
e

co
ur

se
o

f
o

u
r

au
di

t
en

g
ag

em
en

t,
w

e
b

ec
om

e
a

w
a

re
o

f
fa

ct
s

an
d

ci
rc

u
m

st
an

ce
s

th
at

w
o

ul
d

h
av

e
ca

us
e

d
us

to
m

a
ke

a
d

iff
er

e
n

td
e

te
rm

in
at

io
n

o
fp

la
nn

in
g

m
a

te
ria

lit
y

M
at

te
rs

w
e

w
il

lr
ep

o
rt

to
th

e
A

u
d

it
,

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

an
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

W
hi

ls
to

ur
a

ud
it

pr
o

ce
d

ur
es

ar
e

de
si

g
n

ed
to

id
e

nt
ify

m
is

st
a

te
m

e
n

ts
w

h
ic

h
a

re
m

a
te

ria
lt

o
o

ur
op

in
io

n
on

th
e

fin
an

ci
al

st
a

te
m

e
n

ts
as

a
w

h
o

le
,

w
e

n
ev

e
rt

h
el

es
s

re
p

or
t

to
th

e
A

ud
it,

G
ov

e
rn

a
n

ce
a

nd
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

C
om

m
itt

ee
an

y
u

na
d

ju
st

ed
m

is
st

at
e

m
en

ts
o

f
le

ss
er

a
m

o
un

ts
to

th
e

ex
te

n
t

th
a

t
th

es
e

ar
e

id
en

tif
ie

d
b

y
o

ur
au

di
t

w
o

rk
.

U
n

de
r

IS
A

2
60

(U
K

)
‘C

om
m

u
ni

ca
tio

n
w

ith
th

o
se

ch
a

rg
ed

w
ith

go
ve

rn
an

ce
’,

w
e

ar
e

ob
lig

ed
to

re
p

or
t

u
nc

or
re

ct
ed

om
is

si
on

s
o

r
m

is
st

a
te

m
e

nt
s

o
th

e
r

th
a

n
th

o
se

w
hi

ch
a

re
‘c

le
ar

ly
tr

iv
ia

l’
to

th
o

se
ch

a
rg

ed
w

ith
g

ov
e

rn
an

ce
.

IS
A

2
60

(U
K

)
d

e
fin

es
‘c

le
a

rly
tr

iv
ia

l’
as

m
a

tt
er

s
th

at
a

re
cl

ea
rl

y
in

co
ns

eq
ue

n
tia

l,
w

h
e

th
er

ta
ke

n
in

d
iv

id
u

al
ly

or
in

a
g

gr
e

g
at

e
a

nd
w

h
et

h
e

r
ju

dg
ed

b
y

a
n

y
qu

an
tit

at
iv

e
o

r
q

ua
lit

a
tiv

e
cr

ite
ri

a.
In

th
e

co
nt

e
xt

o
f

th
e

C
o

un
ci

l,
w

e
p

ro
po

se
th

a
t

a
n

in
di

vi
d

ua
ld

iff
e

re
nc

e
co

u
ld

n
o

rm
al

ly
be

co
n

si
d

er
ed

to
b

e
cl

e
ar

ly
tr

iv
ia

li
f

it
is

le
ss

th
an

£
1.

25
7m

(P
Y

£
1.

26
0m

).

If
m

an
ag

em
e

nt
ha

ve
co

rr
e

ct
e

d
m

a
te

ria
l

m
is

st
at

em
e

nt
s

id
en

tif
ie

d
d

ur
in

g
th

e
co

u
rs

e
of

th
e

au
di

t,
w

e
w

ill
co

ns
id

er
w

h
et

he
r

th
os

e
co

rr
ec

tio
ns

sh
ou

ld
be

co
m

m
un

ic
a

te
d

to
th

e
A

ud
it,

G
o

ve
rn

a
nc

e
a

nd
S

ta
n

da
rd

s
C

om
m

itt
ee

to
as

si
st

it
in

fu
lfi

lli
ng

its
g

ov
e

rn
an

ce
re

sp
o

ns
ib

ili
tie

s.

F
o

re
c

as
t 

g
ro

ss
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

£
T

B
C

(P
Y

: £
1,

25
7,

32
9m

)

M
at

er
ia

li
ty

F
o

re
ca

st
 g

ro
ss

 e
xp

e
nd

itu
re

M
at

er
ia

lit
y

£
25

.1
4

6m

W
ho

le
 fi

n
an

ci
a

l 
st

at
e

m
e

nt
s 

m
at

e
ria

lit
y

(P
Y

: £
25

.2
0

3m
)

£
1.

25
7

m

M
is

st
a

te
m

en
ts

 
re

po
rt

e
d 

to
 th

e
 A

ud
it,

 
G

ov
e

rn
an

ce
 a

n
d

 
S

ta
n

da
rd

s 
C

o
m

m
itt

e
e

(P
Y

: £
1.

2
60

m
)

81



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8
10

V
a

lu
e 

fo
r 

M
o

ne
y 

ar
ra

n
g

em
e

n
ts

B
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d
to

o
u

r
V

F
M

ap
p

ro
a

ch

T
he

N
A

O
is

su
e

d
its

gu
id

an
ce

fo
r

a
ud

ito
rs

o
n

V
a

lu
e

fo
r

M
o

ne
y

w
o

rk
fo

r
2

01
7

/1
8

in
N

ov
em

b
er

20
17

.
T

he
g

ui
da

n
ce

st
at

es
th

at
fo

r
lo

ca
l

g
o

ve
rn

m
e

nt
bo

di
es

,
a

ud
ito

rs
ar

e
re

qu
ir

ed
to

g
iv

e
a

co
n

cl
us

io
n

o
n

w
he

th
er

th
e

C
o

u
nc

il
ha

s
pr

o
p

er
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

in
p

la
ce

.

T
he

g
ui

d
an

ce
id

e
nt

ifi
e

s
on

e
si

n
g

le
cr

ite
rio

n
fo

r
au

di
to

rs
to

ev
al

ua
te

:

“I
n

a
ll

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
re

sp
ec

ts
,

th
e

a
ud

ite
d

b
od

y
ta

ke
s

p
ro

pe
rly

in
fo

rm
e

d
d

ec
is

io
ns

a
nd

d
e

pl
o

ys
re

so
u

rc
es

to
ac

h
ie

ve
pl

a
n

ne
d

a
nd

su
st

ai
n

ab
le

ou
tc

om
e

s
fo

r
ta

xp
ay

e
rs

a
n

d
lo

ca
lp

e
op

le
.”

T
hi

s
is

su
p

p
or

te
d

by
th

re
e

su
b

-c
ri

te
ri

a,
a

s
se

to
ut

be
lo

w
:

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
V

F
M

 r
is

k
s

T
ho

se
 r

is
ks

 r
eq

u
iri

n
g 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

a
ud

it 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e

 li
ke

lih
o

od
 

th
a

t p
ro

pe
r 

a
rr

a
ng

e
m

e
nt

s 
ar

e
 n

o
t i

n
 p

la
ce

 a
t 

th
e 

C
o

un
ci

l t
o 

d
el

iv
e

r 
va

lu
e

 f
or

 m
o

ne
y.

O
n

g
o

in
g

F
in

an
ci

al
P

er
fo

rm
a

n
c

e

R
is

k

T
he

C
ou

nc
il

is
co

n
tin

ui
ng

to
fa

ce
pr

es
su

re
on

its
S

oc
ia

l
C

a
re

B
u

d
ge

ts
,

an
d

o
th

er
fa

ct
o

rs
su

ch
a

s
th

e
d

em
a

nd
fo

r
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
a

cc
o

m
m

o
da

tio
n

an
d

th
e

im
pa

ct
of

n
il

re
so

ur
ce

to
pu

bl
ic

fu
n

ds
a

re
p

ut
tin

g
th

e
C

o
un

ci
l’s

fin
a

nc
es

un
d

er
co

n
si

de
ra

bl
e

st
ra

in
.

T
he

re
fo

re
th

e
C

o
un

ci
l

ne
ed

s
to

m
a

na
ge

its
re

so
ur

ce
s

ca
re

fu
lly

to
e

n
su

re
a

su
st

ai
n

ab
le

fu
tu

re
fo

r
th

e
B

o
ro

ug
h

ah
ea

d
of

th
e

2
02

0
F

u
n

di
n

g
S

et
tle

m
e

n
t.

P
la

n
n

ed
R

es
p

o
n

s
e

T
o 

g
a

in
 a

ss
ur

a
n

ce
 o

ve
r 

th
is

 r
is

k 
w

e 
a

re
 p

la
n

ni
n

g 
to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 w

or
k 

in
 th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
as

:
• 

re
vi

ew
 t

h
e

 2
0

17
-1

8 
O

ut
tu

rn
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

p
er

fo
rm

a
n

ce
 a

g
a

in
st

 b
o

th
 

th
e

 R
e

ve
n

ue
 a

nd
 C

a
p

ita
l B

u
dg

et
s;

• 
re

vi
ew

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
2

01
8

-1
9

 f
in

an
ci

al
 p

la
n 

up
 to

 th
e 

co
m

p
le

tio
n

 o
f 

o
ur

 a
u

d
it;

 a
n

d
• 

o
bt

a
in

 a
n 

u
pd

at
e 

on
 t

h
e

 C
o

un
ci

l's
 M

e
di

u
m

 T
e

rm
 F

in
a

nc
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

on
 id

en
tif

yi
n

g 
th

e 
sa

vi
n

gs
 r

e
qu

ire
d

 in
 c

om
in

g 
ye

a
rs

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 w
ith

 M
an

ag
em

e
nt

 o
n 

p
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
a

te
. 

In
fo

rm
e

d
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 
m

ak
in

g

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e 
d

e
p

lo
ym

e
n

t

W
o

rk
in

g
 

w
it

h
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

&
 o

th
e

r 
th

ir
d

 
p

a
rt

ie
s

V
al

u
e

 f
o

r 
M

o
n

ey
 

a
rr

an
g

e
m

en
ts

 
c

ri
te

ri
a

82



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8
11

A
ud

it 
lo

g
is

tic
s,

 t
ea

m
 &

 a
u

di
t 

fe
es

A
u

d
it

 f
e

es

T
he

 p
la

n
ne

d
 a

ud
it 

fe
e

s 
a

re
 n

o 
le

ss
 th

an
 £

23
7,

29
6 

(P
Y

: 
£2

37
,2

96
) 

fo
r 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

a
te

m
e

nt
s 

a
ud

it.
 O

ur
 f

e
es

 fo
r 

g
ra

nt
 c

er
tif

ic
a

tio
n

 a
re

 £
17

,7
17

 a
nd

 c
ov

er
 o

n
ly

 h
o

u
si

n
g 

b
en

ef
it 

su
bs

id
y 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
n

, w
hi

ch
 f

al
ls

 u
n

de
r 

th
e

 r
e

m
it 

o
f 

P
u

bl
ic

 S
e

ct
or

 A
ud

it 
A

pp
oi

nt
m

e
nt

s 
Li

m
ite

d
 F

e
es

 in
 r

es
p

ec
t o

f o
th

er
 g

ra
n

t w
or

k,
 s

uc
h 

a
s 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 
re

po
rt

s,
 a

re
 s

h
ow

n 
un

de
r 

'F
ee

s 
fo

r 
o

th
er

 s
e

rv
ic

es
'.

In
 s

et
tin

g 
yo

u
r 

fe
e,

 w
e

 h
av

e 
as

su
m

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 t

h
e 

a
ud

it,
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
C

o
un

ci
l a

nd
 it

s 
a

ct
iv

iti
e

s,
 d

o
 n

o
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 c

ha
ng

e.

O
u

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
en

ts

T
o 

e
n

su
re

 th
e 

a
u

di
t 

is
 d

e
liv

e
re

d 
o

n 
tim

e
 a

n
d 

to
 a

vo
id

 a
n

y 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

e
e

s,
 w

e 
h

av
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

o
ur

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 a
n

d 
re

q
u

ire
m

e
nt

s 
in

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

se
ct

io
n 

‘E
ar

ly
 C

lo
se

’. 
If

 th
e

 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 d

et
ai

le
d

 o
ve

rle
af

 a
re

 n
o

t m
et

, w
e 

re
se

rv
e 

th
e 

ri
gh

t 
to

 p
o

st
po

ne
 o

u
r 

au
di

t v
is

it 
a

nd
 c

ha
rg

e 
fe

e
s 

to
 r

ei
m

b
ur

se
 u

s 
fo

r 
a

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
o

st
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

.

P
au

l 
D

o
ss

et
t,

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
en

t 
L

e
ad

P
au

l w
ill

 b
e 

th
e

 m
ai

n
 p

o
in

t 
of

 c
on

ta
ct

 fo
r 

th
e

 C
h

ie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e

, t
he

 
S

ec
tio

n
 1

5
1 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
an

d 
M

em
be

rs
. P

a
ul

 w
ill

 s
h

ar
e 

h
is

 w
e

al
th

 o
f 

kn
o

w
le

dg
e

 a
nd

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e

 s
ec

to
r 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

ch
al

le
n

ge
, 

sh
a

rin
g 

go
od

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
, p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
p

ra
gm

a
tic

 s
ol

ut
io

n
s 

a
nd

 a
ct

in
g 

a
s 

a
 s

ou
nd

in
g 

b
oa

rd
 w

ith
 M

em
b

er
s 

an
d 

th
e

 A
ud

it,
 G

ov
e

rn
a

n
ce

 a
n

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
. P

au
l w

ill
 e

ns
u

re
 o

u
r 

a
ud

it 
is

 ta
ilo

re
d 

sp
e

ci
fic

al
ly

 t
o 

yo
u 

a
nd

 is
 d

el
iv

e
re

d 
ef

fic
ie

n
tly

. P
au

l w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
ll 

re
po

rt
s 

an
d 

th
e

 te
a

m
’s

 w
or

k.

M
at

t 
D

ea
n

, 
A

u
d

it
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

M
at

t w
ill

 w
o

rk
 w

ith
 t

he
 s

en
io

r 
m

em
b

er
s 

o
f 

th
e 

fin
a

n
ce

 te
am

 
e

ns
ur

in
g

 e
ar

ly
 d

e
liv

er
y 

o
f 

te
st

in
g

 a
n

d 
ag

re
em

en
t 

of
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g
 

is
su

e
s 

o
n 

a 
tim

el
y 

b
as

is
. M

at
t w

ill
 a

tt
e

nd
 A

ud
it,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e

 a
n

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
s,

 u
n

d
er

ta
ke

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
o

f t
he

 te
am

’s
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d 
d

ra
ft

 r
ep

or
ts

 e
n

su
ri

ng
 th

ey
 r

e
m

ai
n

 c
le

ar
, c

on
ci

se
 a

n
d 

u
nd

er
st

an
da

bl
e 

to
 a

ll.
 M

at
t w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
ith

 I
nt

er
na

l A
u

d
it 

to
 s

e
cu

re
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

e
s 

a
nd

 a
vo

id
 a

ny
 d

u
p

lic
at

io
n

, p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
fo

r 
yo

ur
 

A
nn

ua
l G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t.

L
iu

lu
 C

h
en

, 
A

u
d

it
 I

n
c

h
a

rg
e

L
iu

lu
 w

ill
 le

a
d 

th
e

 o
n

si
te

 te
am

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

th
e

 d
ay

 t
o

 d
ay

 c
on

ta
ct

 fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

t.
 L

iu
lu

 w
ill

 
m

on
ito

r 
th

e 
d

e
liv

er
a

b
le

s,
 m

a
na

ge
 t

he
 q

u
e

ry
 lo

g
 w

ith
 y

o
u

r 
fin

an
ce

 te
am

 a
n

d 
h

ig
hl

ig
h

t a
ny

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
n

t i
ss

u
es

 a
nd

 a
d

ju
st

m
e

nt
s 

to
 s

e
ni

or
 m

a
na

ge
m

en
t.

 L
iu

lu
 w

ill
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 th
e 

m
o

re
 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 a

sp
e

ct
s 

o
f t

he
 a

u
d

it,
 c

o
ac

h 
th

e
 ju

ni
o

r 
m

e
m

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 te

a
m

 a
n

d 
re

vi
e

w
 t

h
e 

te
a

m
’s

 w
or

k.
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
ri

sk
 a

ss
es

s
m

e
n

t 

In
te

ri
m

 a
u

d
it

M
ar

ch
 2

01
8

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 a

u
d

it
Ju

n
e/

Ju
ly

 2
0

18

A
u

d
it

, 
G

o
ve

rn
a

n
c

e
a

n
d

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

1
9 

F
e

br
u

a
ry

 2
0

18

A
u

d
it

, 
G

o
ve

rn
a

n
c

e
a

n
d

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

A
pr

il 
2

0
18

A
u

d
it

, 
G

o
ve

rn
a

n
c

e
a

n
d

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

Ju
ly

 2
01

8

A
u

d
it

, 
G

o
ve

rn
a

n
c

e
a

n
d

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

S
ep

te
m

b
e

r 
2

01
8

A
u

d
it

 
F

in
d

in
g

s
 

R
ep

o
rt

A
u

d
it

 
O

p
in

io
n

A
u

d
it

 
P

la
n

In
te

ri
m

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s 
R

ep
o

rt

A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 
L

e
tt

er

83



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8
12

E
ar

ly
 c

lo
se

O
u

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
en

ts
 

T
o 

m
in

im
is

e 
th

e 
ri

sk
 o

f a
 d

el
a

ye
d 

au
d

it 
o

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

ud
it 

fe
es

 b
e

in
g 

in
cu

rr
e

d,
 y

ou
 n

e
ed

 t
o

 
e

ns
ur

e 
th

a
t y

ou
:

•
pr

od
uc

e 
dr

a
ft

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
nt

s 
o

f g
oo

d 
qu

al
ity

 b
y 

th
e

 e
n

d 
of

 M
a

y,
 a

s 
yo

u
 h

a
ve

 
a

gr
e

e
d 

w
ith

 u
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a

ll 
no

te
s,

 th
e 

n
ar

ra
tiv

e 
re

p
o

rt
 a

n
d 

th
e

 A
nn

ua
l G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

S
ta

te
m

e
nt

•
en

su
re

 th
at

 g
oo

d 
q

u
al

ity
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
ap

e
rs

 a
re

 a
va

ila
b

le
 a

t 
th

e 
st

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

a
u

di
t 

in
 e

a
rl

y 
Ju

n
e,

 in
 a

cc
or

d
a

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 w
o

rk
in

g 
pa

pe
r 

re
qu

ire
m

e
n

ts
 s

ch
ed

ul
e

 th
at

 w
e

 h
a

ve
 

sh
a

re
d 

w
ith

 y
ou

•
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e

 a
g

re
ed

 d
at

a
 r

ep
or

ts
 a

re
 a

va
ila

b
le

 t
o 

us
 a

t t
h

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f t

h
e

 a
u

di
t a

nd
 a

re
 

re
co

n
ci

le
d

 to
 th

e
 v

a
lu

es
 in

 t
h

e 
ac

co
u

nt
s,

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
ou

r 
se

le
ct

io
n

 o
f 

sa
m

pl
es

•
en

su
re

 th
at

 a
ll 

a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

va
ila

b
le

 o
n

 s
ite

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 (

o
r 

a
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e
 

a
gr

e
e

d)
 t

h
e 

pl
a

nn
e

d 
p

er
io

d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

ud
it 

in
 J

u
ne

 a
nd

 J
ul

y.
 

•
re

sp
on

d 
pr

o
m

pt
ly

 a
n

d 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 t
o

 a
u

d
it 

q
ue

ri
es

.

In
 r

e
tu

rn
, w

e 
w

ill
 e

n
su

re
 th

at
:

•
th

e 
a

ud
it 

ru
ns

 s
m

o
ot

hl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 m
in

im
u

m
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n
 to

 y
o

ur
 s

ta
ff

•
yo

u
 a

re
 k

e
pt

 in
fo

rm
e

d 
of

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e
 u

se
 o

f a
n 

is
su

es
 tr

ac
ke

r 
a

nd
 w

e
ek

ly
 

m
ee

tin
g

s 
d

ur
in

g 
th

e
 a

ud
it

•
w

e
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 is

su
es

 w
ith

 y
o

u 
p

rio
r 

to
 a

nd
 d

ur
in

g 
yo

u
r 

pr
e

p
ar

a
tio

n
 o

f 
th

e 
fin

a
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
e

nt
s.

 

M
ee

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
ar

ly
 c

lo
se

 t
im

e
fr

a
m

e

B
rin

gi
ng

 f
o

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
st

a
tu

to
ry

 d
at

e 
fo

r 
p

ub
lic

at
io

n
 o

f a
ud

ite
d

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

e
nt

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
to

 3
1 

Ju
ly

 t
h

is
 y

ea
r,

 a
cr

o
ss

 th
e

 w
h

ol
e

 s
e

ct
or

, i
s 

a
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

nt
 c

h
al

le
n

ge
 f

or
 lo

ca
l a

ut
h

o
rit

ie
s 

a
nd

 a
ud

ito
rs

 a
lik

e
. 

F
o

r 
a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s,
 th

e
 ti

m
e

 a
va

ila
b

le
 t

o 
pr

ep
ar

e 
th

e
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

is
 c

ur
ta

ile
d,

 
w

h
ile

, 
a

s 
a

ud
ito

rs
 w

e
 h

a
ve

 a
 s

ho
rt

e
r 

p
er

io
d

 t
o 

co
m

p
le

te
 o

u
r 

w
or

k 
a

nd
 fa

ce
 a

n 
e

ve
n

 m
o

re
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

n
t p

e
a

k 
in

 o
ur

 w
o

rk
lo

ad
 t

ha
n 

p
re

vi
ou

sl
y.

W
e 

ha
ve

 c
ar

ef
ul

ly
 p

la
nn

ed
 h

ow
 w

e 
ca

n
 m

a
ke

 t
he

 b
es

t u
se

 o
f t

he
 r

e
so

u
rc

es
 a

va
ila

b
le

 to
 

u
s 

d
ur

in
g 

th
e

 f
in

a
l a

cc
o

un
ts

 p
e

rio
d.

 A
s 

w
el

l a
s 

in
cr

e
as

in
g 

th
e

 o
ve

ra
ll 

le
ve

l o
f 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

u
di

ts
, w

e
 h

av
e

 fo
cu

se
d

 o
n

:

•
br

in
g

in
g 

fo
rw

a
rd

 a
s 

m
u

ch
 w

or
k 

as
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 to
 in

te
rim

 a
ud

its

•
st

ar
tin

g 
w

or
k 

on
 fi

na
l a

cc
ou

n
ts

 a
u

di
ts

 a
s 

ea
rly

 a
s 

p
o

ss
ib

le
, b

y 
a

gr
e

e
in

g
 w

hi
ch

 
a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
w

ill
 h

a
ve

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
p

re
pa

re
d 

si
g

n
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 b

ef
or

e
 t

he
 e

n
d 

of
 M

ay

•
se

ek
in

g 
fu

rt
h

er
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

ci
es

 in
 t

h
e 

w
ay

 w
e 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t o
ur

 a
ud

its

•
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
ith

 y
ou

 t
o 

a
g

re
e

 d
et

ai
le

d
 p

la
n

s 
to

 m
ak

e 
th

e
 a

ud
its

 r
un

 s
m

o
ot

hl
y,

 in
cl

u
di

n
g 

e
ar

ly
 a

g
re

e
m

en
t 

of
 a

u
di

t d
at

es
, w

or
ki

n
g 

pa
pe

r 
an

d 
da

ta
 r

e
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 e

ar
ly

 
d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 o

n
 p

ot
e

n
tia

lly
 c

o
nt

en
tio

u
s 

ite
m

s.

W
e 

ar
e 

sa
tis

fie
d

 th
a

t,
 if

 a
ll 

th
es

e
 p

la
ns

 a
re

 im
pl

em
en

te
d

, w
e

 w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

yo
u

r 
a

ud
it 

a
n

d 
th

o
se

 o
f o

ur
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

cl
ie

n
ts

 in
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t t

im
e

 t
o

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
e

ar
lie

r 
d

ea
dl

in
e

. P
ro

gr
es

s 
w

a
s 

m
a

de
 in

 s
o

m
e 

o
f t

he
se

 a
re

as
 la

st
 y

ea
r,

 a
nd

 w
e

 a
re

 c
o

nt
in

u
in

g 
to

 
w

o
rk

 w
ith

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

to
 a

dv
an

ce
 th

es
e

 a
re

a
s 

ah
ea

d 
o

f 
th

is
 y

ea
r’s

 F
in

al
 A

cc
ou

nt
s 

A
u

di
t,

 
w

h
ic

h 
w

ill
 t

a
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 J
u

ne
 a

nd
 J

u
ly

. 

C
li

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

W
he

re
 in

d
iv

id
u

al
 c

lie
n

ts
 d

o
 n

ot
 d

el
iv

e
r 

to
 t

he
 ti

m
e

ta
bl

e 
a

gr
ee

d,
 w

e
 n

e
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

a
t 

th
is

 d
oe

s 
n

o
t i

m
p

ac
t o

n 
au

di
t 

q
ua

lit
y 

o
r 

a
bs

o
rb

 a
 d

is
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

at
e 

a
m

o
un

t 
of

 ti
m

e
, t

he
re

by
 

d
is

a
d

va
nt

ag
in

g 
o

th
er

 c
lie

n
ts

. W
e 

w
ill

 t
he

re
fo

re
 c

o
nd

u
ct

 a
u

di
ts

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 t

he
 ti

m
e

ta
bl

e 
se

t 
o

ut
 in

 a
u

d
it 

p
la

ns
 (

a
s 

de
ta

ile
d 

o
n

 th
e 

p
re

vi
ou

s 
pa

ge
).

 W
h

er
e 

th
e 

el
a

ps
e

d 
tim

e 
to

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 
a

n 
au

di
t 

e
xc

ee
ds

 th
at

 a
g

re
ed

 d
ue

 t
o 

a
 c

lie
nt

 n
o

t m
e

et
in

g
s 

its
 o

bl
ig

a
tio

ns
 w

e
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e
 

a
bl

e
 t

o 
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 t

ea
m

 o
n

 s
ite

. S
im

ila
rly

, 
w

h
er

e
 a

d
di

tio
na

l r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

re
 n

e
ed

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

et
e 

th
e

 a
ud

it 
d

u
e 

to
 a

 c
lie

n
t n

ot
 m

e
e

tin
g 

th
e

ir
 o

b
lig

at
io

ns
 w

e
 a

re
 n

ot
 a

b
le

 t
o

 
g

ua
ra

nt
ee

 th
e 

d
e

liv
er

y 
o

f t
he

 a
ud

it 
by

 t
h

e 
st

at
u

to
ry

 d
e

ad
lin

e.
 S

uc
h 

au
di

ts
 a

re
 u

nl
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 
b

e 
re

-s
ta

rt
e

d 
u

nt
il 

ve
ry

 c
lo

se
 to

, o
r 

af
te

r 
th

e 
st

a
tu

to
ry

 d
e

ad
lin

e.
 In

 a
d

d
iti

o
n

, i
t 

is
 h

ig
h

ly
 

lik
e

ly
 t

h
at

 th
e

se
 a

ud
its

 w
ill

 in
cu

r 
a

dd
iti

on
al

 a
u

di
t f

ee
s.

84



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8
13

In
d

ep
e

nd
en

ce
 &

 n
on

-a
ud

it 
se

rv
ic

e
s

A
u

d
it

o
r 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
en

c
e

E
th

ic
a

l S
ta

n
da

rd
s 

a
nd

 I
S

A
 (

U
K

) 
2

6
0 

re
q

ui
re

 u
s 

to
 g

iv
e 

yo
u

 t
im

el
y 

d
is

cl
o

su
re

 o
f 

a
ll 

si
g

ni
fic

an
t f

a
ct

s 
a

nd
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 th
at

 m
ay

 b
e

a
r 

u
po

n
 th

e 
in

te
g

rit
y,

 o
b

je
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 in
de

pe
n

de
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

fir
m

 
o

r 
co

ve
re

d 
p

er
so

ns
. r

e
la

tin
g

 to
 o

u
r 

in
d

e
pe

nd
en

ce
. W

e
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 y
o

u 
to

 c
on

ta
ct

 u
s 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

es
e 

or
 a

n
y 

o
th

e
r 

in
de

pe
n

de
nc

e 
is

su
es

 w
ith

 u
s.

 W
e

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 d

is
cu

ss
 w

ith
 y

ou
 if

 w
e 

m
a

ke
 

a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

nt
 ju

dg
e

m
e

nt
s 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 m

at
te

rs
.

W
e 

co
n

fir
m

 t
ha

t t
he

re
 a

re
 n

o
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

n
t f

a
ct

s 
o

r 
m

at
te

rs
 th

at
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

ou
r 

in
de

p
en

de
nc

e
 a

s 
a

ud
ito

rs
 th

at
 w

e
 a

re
 r

eq
ui

re
d

 o
r

w
is

h
 t

o 
dr

a
w

 t
o

 y
o

ur
 a

tt
en

tio
n

. W
e

 h
a

ve
 c

om
p

lie
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 
F

in
a

nc
ia

l R
e

po
rt

in
g

 C
o

u
nc

il'
s 

E
th

ic
a

l S
ta

nd
ar

d 
a

nd
 w

e 
as

 a
 fi

rm
, a

nd
 e

ac
h 

co
ve

re
d 

p
er

so
n

, c
on

fir
m

 t
h

at
 w

e 
a

re
 in

de
pe

nd
e

nt
 a

n
d

a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 e
xp

re
ss

 a
n 

ob
je

ct
iv

e
 o

pi
n

io
n 

o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

a
te

m
e

nt
s.

 F
ur

th
er

, w
e 

ha
ve

 c
om

p
lie

d 
w

ith
 t

h
e 

re
q

ui
re

m
e

nt
s 

o
f t

he
 N

at
io

n
a

l A
ud

it 
O

ff
ic

e
’s

 A
ud

ito
r 

G
u

id
an

ce
 N

ot
e 

01
 is

su
e

d 
in

D
ec

e
m

b
er

 2
01

6 
w

h
ic

h
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t s
up

p
le

m
e

nt
ar

y 
g

ui
da

nc
e 

o
n 

et
h

ic
al

 r
eq

u
ire

m
e

nt
s 

fo
r 

a
ud

ito
rs

 o
f l

o
ca

l p
u

bl
ic

 b
o

di
e

s.

W
e 

co
n

fir
m

 t
ha

t w
e 

h
av

e 
im

p
le

m
e

nt
ed

 p
o

lic
ie

s 
an

d
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
re

q
u

ire
m

e
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

n
da

rd
. F

or
 t

h
e

 p
u

rp
os

es
 o

f o
ur

 a
ud

it 
w

e 
h

av
e 

m
a

de
 e

nq
ui

rie
s 

of
 a

ll 
G

ra
n

t 
T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

 te
a

m
s 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
to

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il.

 

N
o

n
-a

u
d

it
 s

er
vi

c
es

T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 n

on
-a

ud
it 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
er

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d:

S
er

vi
c

e
F

e
es

 £
T

h
re

at
s

S
af

eg
u

a
rd

s

A
u

d
it

 r
e

la
te

d

C
er

tif
ic

a
tio

n
 o

f 
H

o
us

in
g 

ca
p

ita
l r

ec
ei

pt
s 

g
ra

nt
5

,0
00

S
e

lf-
In

te
re

st
 (

be
ca

u
se

 
th

is
 is

 a
 r

e
cu

rr
in

g
 fe

e)
T

he
 le

ve
l o

f t
hi

s 
re

cu
rr

in
g 

fe
e 

ta
ke

n
 o

n
 it

s 
ow

n
 is

 n
o

t c
o

ns
id

e
re

d 
a 

si
g

ni
fic

an
t t

hr
e

a
t t

o
 in

de
pe

n
de

nc
e 

as
 th

e 
fe

e 
 

fo
r 

th
is

 w
or

k 
is

 £
5

,0
00

 in
 c

om
p

ar
is

o
n 

to
 th

e 
to

ta
l f

ee
 f

or
 t

h
e 

a
ud

it 
of

 £
2

37
,2

9
6 

a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 r
e

la
tiv

e 
to

 G
ra

nt
 

T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
’s

 tu
rn

ov
er

 o
ve

ra
ll.

 F
ur

th
er

, i
t 

is
 a

 f
ix

ed
 fe

e
 a

n
d 

th
er

e
 is

 n
o 

co
nt

in
ge

nt
 e

le
m

en
t t

o 
it.

 T
h

es
e

 
fa

ct
o

rs
 m

iti
g

at
e

 t
he

 p
e

rc
ei

ve
d 

se
lf-

in
te

re
st

 th
re

at
 to

 a
n

 a
cc

ep
ta

b
le

 le
ve

l.

C
er

tif
ic

a
tio

n
 o

f 
T

e
a

ch
er

s 
P

en
si

on
s 

re
tu

rn
5

,0
00

S
e

lf-
In

te
re

st
 (

be
ca

u
se

 
th

is
 is

 a
 r

e
cu

rr
in

g
 fe

e)
T

he
 le

ve
l o

f t
hi

s 
re

cu
rr

in
g 

fe
e 

ta
ke

n
 o

n
 it

s 
ow

n
 is

 n
o

t c
o

ns
id

e
re

d 
a 

si
g

ni
fic

an
t t

hr
e

a
t t

o
 in

de
pe

n
de

nc
e 

as
 th

e 
fe

e 
 

fo
r 

th
is

 w
or

k 
is

 £
5

,0
00

 in
 c

om
p

ar
is

o
n 

to
 th

e 
to

ta
l f

ee
 f

or
 t

h
e 

a
ud

it 
of

 £
2

37
,2

9
6 

a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 r
e

la
tiv

e 
to

 G
ra

nt
 

T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
’s

 tu
rn

ov
er

 o
ve

ra
ll.

 F
ur

th
er

, i
t 

is
 a

 f
ix

ed
 fe

e
 a

n
d 

th
er

e
 is

 n
o 

co
nt

in
ge

nt
 e

le
m

en
t t

o 
it.

 T
h

es
e

 
fa

ct
o

rs
 m

iti
g

at
e

 t
he

 p
e

rc
ei

ve
d 

se
lf-

in
te

re
st

 th
re

at
 to

 a
n

 a
cc

ep
ta

b
le

 le
ve

l.

N
o

n
-a

u
d

it
 r

el
at

e
d

C
F

O
 I

ns
ig

ht
s 

su
b

sc
ri

pt
io

n
1

0,
0

0
0

S
el

f-
In

te
re

st
 (

be
ca

u
se

 
th

is
 is

 a
 r

e
cu

rr
in

g
 fe

e)
T

he
 le

ve
l o

f t
hi

s 
re

cu
rr

in
g 

fe
e 

ta
ke

n
 o

n
 it

s 
ow

n
 is

 n
o

t c
o

ns
id

e
re

d 
a 

si
g

ni
fic

an
t t

hr
e

a
t t

o
 in

de
pe

n
de

nc
e 

as
 th

e 
fe

e 
 

fo
r 

th
is

 s
u

bs
cr

ip
tio

n 
is

 £
1

0
,0

00
 in

 c
om

pa
ri

so
n 

to
 t

he
 t

ot
al

 fe
e

 fo
r 

th
e

 a
ud

it 
o

f 
£2

37
,2

96
 a

nd
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

a
r 

re
la

tiv
e

 
to

 G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

’s
 tu

rn
ov

er
 o

ve
ra

ll.
 F

ur
th

er
, 

it 
is

 a
 f

ix
ed

 fe
e 

an
d 

th
e

re
 is

 n
o 

co
nt

in
g

e
nt

 e
le

m
e

n
t t

o 
it.

 
T

he
se

 f
ac

to
rs

 m
iti

ga
te

 t
he

 p
e

rc
ei

ve
d 

se
lf-

in
te

re
st

 th
re

at
 to

 a
n

 a
cc

e
pt

ab
le

 le
ve

l.

T
he

 a
m

o
un

ts
 d

et
ai

le
d

 a
re

 f
e

es
 a

g
re

ed
 t

o-
da

te
 fo

r 
a

ud
it 

re
la

te
d

 a
n

d 
no

n
-a

u
d

it 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

 in
 t

he
 c

u
rr

en
t f

in
a

nc
ia

l y
e

ar
. 

T
h

es
e

 s
e

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 

co
n

si
st

en
t w

ith
 t

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l’s
 p

ol
ic

y 
on

 t
he

 a
llo

tm
en

t o
f n

on
-a

ud
it 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 y

o
ur

 a
ud

ito
rs

. A
n

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
an

d 
fu

ll 
d

et
ai

ls
 o

f a
ll 

fe
es

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 fo
r 

a
ud

it 
re

la
te

d
 a

nd
 n

o
n-

au
di

t r
el

a
te

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 b

y 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

 a
n

d 
by

 G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l L
im

ite
d 

ne
tw

o
rk

 m
e

m
b

er
 F

irm
s 

w
ill

 b
e

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 o

ur
 A

ud
it 

F
in

di
n

g
s

re
p

or
t a

t t
he

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

o
f t

he
 a

u
di

t.

N
on

e 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
pr

o
vi

de
d 

ar
e 

su
b

je
ct

 to
 c

o
n

tin
ge

nt
 fe

es
.

85



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8

A
pp

en
di

ce
s

A
.

R
ev

is
ed

 I
S

A
s

86



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8
15

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

: 
 R

ev
is

e
d 

IS
A

s

D
et

ai
le

d
 b

el
o

w
 is

 a
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f t
he

 k
ey

 c
h

an
g

es
 im

pa
ct

in
g 

th
e

 a
ud

ito
r’s

 r
e

po
rt

 fo
r 

a
ud

its
 o

f 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

t f
o

r 
p

e
rio

ds
 c

om
m

en
ci

ng
 o

n 
o

r 
af

te
r 

17
 J

un
e

 2
0

16
.

S
ec

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
au

d
it

o
r'

s 
re

p
o

rt
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
en

ts

C
o

n
cl

u
s

io
n

s
 r

el
at

in
g

 t
o

 g
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c

er
n

W
e 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

qu
ir

ed
 to

 c
on

cl
u

d
e 

a
nd

 r
e

p
or

t 
w

h
et

he
r:

•
T

h
e 

di
re

ct
o

rs
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e 
g

oi
ng

 c
on

ce
rn

 b
a

si
s 

of
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g
 is

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e

 

•
T

h
e 

di
re

ct
o

rs
 h

a
ve

 d
is

cl
o

se
d

 id
e

nt
ifi

ed
 m

at
er

ia
l u

n
ce

rt
ai

n
tie

s 
th

at
 m

a
y 

ca
st

 s
ig

n
ifi

ca
nt

 d
o

ub
t a

bo
u

t t
he

 C
o

un
ci

l’s
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 c
on

tin
u

e 
a

s 
a

 
g

oi
n

g 
co

n
ce

rn
. 

M
at

er
ia

l u
n

c
er

ta
in

ty
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 g
o

in
g

 
c

o
n

ce
rn

W
e 

w
ill

 n
e

ed
 t

o
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

b
rie

f 
de

sc
rip

tio
n

 o
f 

th
e 

e
ve

n
ts

 o
r 

co
n

di
tio

ns
 id

en
tif

ie
d

 th
at

 m
ay

 c
as

t s
ig

ni
fic

an
t d

ou
bt

 o
n

 th
e

 C
o

un
ci

l's
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o 
co

n
tin

ue
 a

s 
a 

g
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
w

h
en

 a
 m

a
te

ria
l u

nc
er

ta
in

ty
 h

a
s 

b
ee

n
 id

e
n

tif
ie

d
 a

nd
 a

d
e

qu
at

el
y 

d
is

cl
o

se
d

 in
 t

h
e 

fin
a

n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

G
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 m

a
te

ri
al

 u
n

ce
rt

ai
nt

ie
s 

ar
e

 n
o

 lo
n

g
er

 r
e

po
rt

ed
 in

 a
n

 E
m

ph
as

is
 o

f M
at

te
r 

se
ct

io
n

 in
 o

u
r 

a
u

di
t 

re
po

rt
.

O
th

er
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

W
e 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

qu
ir

ed
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

a
 s

ec
tio

n
 o

n
 o

th
er

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 w
h

ic
h 

in
cl

u
de

s:

•
R

e
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 m

an
ag

em
e

nt
 a

nd
 a

ud
ito

rs
 r

e
ga

rd
in

g
 o

th
er

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

•
A

 s
ta

te
m

en
t t

ha
t t

he
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
a

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 d
o

es
 n

o
t 

co
ve

r 
th

e
 o

th
er

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 u
n

le
ss

 r
e

qu
ire

d
 b

y 
la

w
 o

r 
re

g
ul

a
tio

n

•
R

e
po

rt
in

g
 in

co
n

si
st

en
ci

es
 o

r 
m

is
st

a
te

m
e

nt
s 

w
h

e
re

 id
en

tif
ie

d

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it

o
r

W
e 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

qu
ir

ed
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e

 r
e

sp
e

ct
iv

e
 r

e
sp

o
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

fo
r 

d
ire

ct
or

s 
a

nd
 u

s,
 a

s 
a

ud
ito

rs
, r

eg
ar

di
n

g 
go

in
g 

co
nc

er
n.

F
o

rm
a

t 
o

f 
th

e 
re

p
o

rt
T

he
 o

pi
n

io
n 

se
ct

io
n 

a
pp

ea
rs

 fi
rs

t f
o

llo
w

e
d 

by
 t

h
e

 b
a

si
s 

o
f 

op
in

io
n

 s
ec

tio
n.

87



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
o

un
ci

l  
|  

2
01

7
/1

8

©
 2

01
7 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

gh
ts

 r
es

e
rv

e
d.

‘G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n’

 r
e

fe
rs

 t
o

 th
e 

b
ra

nd
 u

nd
e

r 
w

hi
ch

 t
he

 G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e,
 t

a
x 

an
d 

ad
vi

so
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

s
to

th
ei

r 
cl

ie
nt

s 
a

nd
/o

r 
re

fe
rs

 to
 o

ne
 o

r 
m

o
re

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 a

s 
th

e
 c

o
nt

e
xt

 r
eq

ui
re

s.

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

 is
 a

 m
e

m
b

er
 f

ir
m

 o
f 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
a

tio
na

l 
L

td
 (

G
T

IL
).

 G
T

IL
 a

nd
 t

he
 m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

a
re

 n
o

t 
a

 w
or

ld
w

id
e

p
ar

tn
e

rs
hi

p.
 G

T
IL

 a
nd

 e
ac

h 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
 is

 a
 

se
pa

ra
te

 le
g

al
 e

nt
ity

. S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

e
re

d 
by

 t
he

 m
e

m
b

er
 f

ir
m

s.
 G

T
IL

 d
o

es
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o

 c
lie

nt
s.

 G
T

IL
 a

nd
 i

ts
 m

e
m

be
r 

fir
m

s 
ar

e
 n

o
t 

a
ge

nt
s 

o
f, 

an
d

 d
o 

no
t 

ob
lig

at
e,

 o
ne

 
a

no
th

e
r 

an
d 

ar
e 

no
t 

lia
b

le
 fo

r 
o

ne
 a

no
th

er
’s

 a
ct

s 
o

r 
om

is
si

on
s.

 

g
ra

n
tt

h
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k

88



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

Th
is

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 

re
po

rt
 is

 a
 d

ra
ft.

 It
s 

co
nt

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
ub

je
ct

 
m

at
te

r r
em

ai
n 

un
de

r 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 it
s 

co
nt

en
ts

 
m

ay
 c

ha
ng

e 
an

d 
be

 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 
fin

al
is

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

re
po

rt
.

E
xt

er
n

a
l A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

Y
e

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8

S
o

u
th

w
a

rk
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d

1
9 

F
e

br
u

a
ry

 2
0

18

APPENDIX B89



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

2

C
o

nt
e

nt
s

S
ec

ti
o

n
P

a
g

e

1
.

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

&
 h

e
ad

lin
es

3

2
.

D
ee

p 
bu

si
ne

ss
 u

nd
er

st
a

nd
in

g
4

3
.

S
ig

ni
fic

a
nt

 r
is

ks
 id

e
nt

ifi
e

d
5

4
.

R
ea

so
n

ab
ly

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 r

is
ks

 id
en

tif
ie

d
7

5
.

O
th

er
 m

at
te

rs
9

6
.

M
at

er
ia

lit
y

10

7
.

A
ud

it 
lo

g
is

tic
s,

 t
e

am
 &

 a
ud

it 
fe

es
11

8
.

E
ar

ly
 c

lo
se

12

9
.

In
de

p
en

de
nc

e 
&

 n
o

n-
au

di
t 

se
rv

ic
es

13

A
p

p
en

d
ic

es

A
. 

R
e

vi
se

d 
IS

A
s 

15

T
h

e
co

nt
e

nt
s

o
f

th
is

re
po

rt
re

la
te

on
ly

to
th

e
m

at
te

rs
w

hi
ch

ha
ve

co
m

e
to

ou
r

a
tt

en
tio

n
,

w
hi

ch
w

e
b

e
lie

ve
ne

e
d

to
b

e
re

p
o

rt
ed

to
yo

u
a

s
pa

rt
o

f
ou

r
a

ud
it

pl
an

ni
ng

p
ro

ce
ss

.
It

is
n

ot
a

co
m

p
re

he
n

si
ve

re
co

rd
of

al
lt

he
re

le
va

n
t

m
at

te
rs

,
w

h
ic

h
m

ay
be

su
bj

ec
t

to
ch

a
ng

e
,

a
n

d
in

p
ar

tic
ul

a
r

w
e

ca
nn

ot
b

e
h

el
d

re
sp

o
ns

ib
le

to
yo

u
fo

r
re

po
rt

in
g

a
ll

of
th

e
ris

ks
w

h
ic

h
m

ay
af

fe
ct

th
e

F
u

nd
o

r
a

ny
w

ea
kn

e
ss

es
in

yo
ur

in
te

rn
al

co
n

tr
o

ls
.

T
hi

s
re

p
or

t
h

as
b

ee
n

pr
ep

ar
ed

so
le

ly
fo

r
yo

u
r

b
en

ef
it

an
d

sh
ou

ld
no

t
b

e
qu

ot
e

d
in

w
h

o
le

o
r

in
p

ar
t

w
ith

o
u

t
o

ur
p

ri
or

w
ri

tt
en

co
n

se
n

t.
W

e
d

o
no

t
ac

ce
pt

a
ny

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

fo
r

an
y

lo
ss

o
cc

a
si

o
ne

d
to

a
n

y
th

ir
d

p
ar

ty
ac

tin
g,

o
r

re
fr

ai
n

in
g

fr
om

a
ct

in
g

on
th

e
ba

si
s

o
f

th
e

co
nt

en
t

of
th

is
re

po
rt

,
as

th
is

re
p

or
t

w
a

s
n

ot
pr

e
p

ar
e

d
fo

r,
n

or
in

te
nd

e
d

fo
r,

an
y

ot
he

r
pu

rp
os

e
.

Y
o

u
r 

ke
y 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 
te

am
 m

em
b

er
s 

a
re

:

P
au

l D
o

ss
et

t

E
ng

ag
em

e
nt

 L
ea

d

T
: 

 0
20

 7
72

8 
3

1
80

E
: 

pa
ul

.d
os

se
tt

@
u

k.
g

t.
co

m

M
at

t D
ea

n

E
ng

ag
em

e
nt

 M
an

ag
e

r

T
: 

0
2

0 
77

28
 3

1
8

1

E
: 

m
at

th
e

w
.d

e
an

@
u

k.
g

t.
co

m

L
iu

lu
 C

h
en

In
-C

ha
rg

e 
A

cc
ou

nt
an

t

T
: 

0
2

0 
78

65
 2

5
6

1

E
: 

liu
lu

.c
h

en
@

u
k.

gt
.c

o
m

G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
on

 U
K

 L
L

P
 is

 a
 li

m
ite

d
 li

a
b

ili
ty

 p
a

rt
ne

rs
h

ip
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
in

 E
n

gl
an

d 
an

d 
W

a
le

s:
 N

o.
O

C
3

07
74

2.
 R

e
gi

st
er

ed
 o

ff
ic

e
: 

30
 F

in
sb

u
ry

 S
q

u
ar

e
, 

L
on

do
n,

 E
C

2
A

 1
A

G
. 

A
 li

st
 o

f 
m

em
b

er
s 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fr
o

m
 o

u
r 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 o

ff
ic

e.
  G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

 is
 a

u
th

or
is

ed
 a

n
d

 r
eg

ul
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e
 F

in
a

nc
ia

l C
o

nd
u

ct
 A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 G
ra

n
t 

T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

L
P

 is
 a

 m
em

b
er

 fi
rm

 o
f 

G
ra

nt
 

T
h

or
nt

on
 I

n
te

rn
at

io
na

l L
td

 (
G

T
IL

).
 G

T
IL

 a
n

d 
th

e
 m

e
m

be
r 

fir
m

s 
a

re
 n

ot
 a

 w
o

rld
w

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 S
e

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 d

e
liv

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s.
 G

T
IL

 a
nd

 it
s 

m
e

m
be

r 
fir

m
s 

ar
e 

no
t 

a
ge

nt
s 

o
f,

 a
nd

 d
o

 n
o

t 
ob

lig
a

te
, o

n
e 

an
o

th
er

 a
nd

 a
re

 n
ot

 li
a

b
le

 fo
r 

o
n

e 
a

no
th

er
’s

 a
ct

s 
o

r 
om

is
si

on
s.

90



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

3

In
tr

o
d

uc
tio

n 
&

 h
e

a
dl

in
e

s
P

u
rp

o
se

T
hi

s
do

cu
m

en
t

pr
ov

id
es

a
n

o
ve

rv
ie

w
of

th
e

p
la

nn
ed

sc
op

e
a

nd
tim

in
g

of
th

e
st

a
tu

to
ry

au
di

t
o

fS
ou

th
w

a
rk

P
en

si
on

F
u

n
d

(‘t
he

F
u

nd
’)

fo
r

th
o

se
ch

a
rg

ed
w

ith
g

ov
er

na
nc

e.

R
es

p
e

ct
iv

e
re

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
ie

s

T
he

N
a

tio
na

l
A

u
di

t
O

ff
ic

e
(‘

th
e

N
A

O
’)

h
as

is
su

e
d

a
do

cu
m

en
t

en
tit

le
d

C
o

de
o

f
A

u
di

t
P

ra
ct

ic
e

(‘t
h

e
C

o
de

’).
T

hi
s

su
m

m
ar

is
es

w
he

re
th

e
re

sp
on

si
b

ili
tie

s
of

au
di

to
rs

be
gi

n
an

d
e

n
d

a
nd

w
h

at
is

ex
pe

ct
e

d
fr

om
th

e
a

u
di

te
d

bo
d

y.
O

u
r

re
sp

e
ct

iv
e

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s

ar
e

a
ls

o
se

t
in

th
e

T
e

rm
s

o
f

A
pp

o
in

tm
e

n
t

an
d

S
ta

te
m

en
t

o
f

R
es

p
on

si
b

ili
tie

s
is

su
e

d
b

y
P

u
b

lic
S

e
ct

o
r

A
u

di
t

A
pp

oi
nt

m
e

nt
s

(P
S

A
A

),
th

e
b

od
y

re
sp

on
si

bl
e

fo
r

a
pp

oi
n

tin
g

u
s

as
au

d
ito

r
of

S
o

ut
h

w
a

rk
P

en
si

on
F

u
nd

].
W

e
dr

aw
yo

ur
a

tt
en

tio
n

to
bo

th
of

th
e

se
do

cu
m

en
ts

on
th

e
P

S
A

A
w

e
bs

ite
.

S
co

p
e

o
f

o
u

r
au

d
it

T
he

sc
op

e
o

f
o

ur
a

ud
it

is
se

t
in

ac
co

rd
an

ce
w

ith
th

e
C

o
de

an
d

In
te

rn
at

io
n

a
lS

ta
n

da
rd

s
o

n
A

u
d

iti
n

g
(I

S
A

s)
(U

K
).

W
e

ar
e

re
sp

on
si

b
le

fo
r

fo
rm

in
g

an
d

e
xp

re
ss

in
g

an
o

pi
ni

o
n

on
th

e
fin

a
nc

ia
ls

ta
te

m
e

nt
s

th
a

t
ha

ve
b

e
en

p
re

pa
re

d
by

m
a

na
ge

m
e

n
t

w
ith

th
e

ov
er

si
gh

t
o

f
th

o
se

ch
a

rg
e

d
w

ith
go

ve
rn

an
ce

(t
h

e
A

u
di

t,
G

ov
e

rn
a

n
ce

an
d

S
ta

n
da

rd
s

C
o

m
m

itt
e

e)
.

T
he

a
u

di
t

of
th

e
fin

a
nc

ia
l

st
at

em
e

nt
s

d
oe

s
no

t
re

lie
ve

m
an

ag
e

m
e

nt
o

r
th

e
A

ud
it.

G
ov

e
rn

a
n

ce
an

d
S

ta
n

da
rd

s
C

o
m

m
itt

e
e

of
yo

ur
re

sp
o

ns
ib

ili
tie

s.

O
ur

a
ud

it
a

pp
ro

ac
h

is
ba

se
d

o
n

a
th

o
ro

ug
h

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g
o

f
th

e
F

u
nd

's
b

us
in

es
s

a
nd

is
ri

sk
b

as
ed

.

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

s
k

s
T

ho
se

 r
is

ks
 r

eq
u

iri
n

g 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
a

ud
it 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n
 a

nd
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e
 li

ke
lih

o
od

 o
f a

 m
at

er
ia

l f
in

a
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
e

nt
er

ro
r 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
a

s:

•
F

ra
u

d 
in

 r
e

ve
nu

e
 r

e
co

gn
iti

on
 –

T
h

is
 r

is
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
e

bu
tt

ed
 fo

r 
th

e
 F

un
d

as
 d

oc
um

e
nt

ed
 o

n
 p

ag
e 

5

•
M

an
ag

em
e

nt
ov

e
r-

ri
de

 o
f c

on
tr

ol
s

•
T

he
va

lu
at

io
n

 o
f L

ev
e

l 3
 in

ve
st

m
e

nt
s 

is
 in

co
rr

e
ct

W
e 

w
ill

 c
o

m
m

u
ni

ca
te

 s
ig

n
ifi

ca
nt

 fi
n

di
n

g
s 

o
n 

th
es

e 
a

re
as

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
si

g
ni

fic
an

t m
at

te
rs

 a
ri

si
n

g
 fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 a

u
di

t t
o 

yo
u

 in
 o

ur
 A

ud
it 

F
in

d
in

gs
 (

IS
A

 2
6

0)
 R

e
po

rt
.

M
at

er
ia

li
ty

W
e 

ha
ve

 d
et

er
m

in
e

d 
pl

a
n

ni
n

g 
m

a
te

ria
lit

y 
to

 b
e

 £
1

4
.9

50
m

 (
P

Y
 £

1
2.

56
4m

),
 w

h
ic

h 
eq

u
at

e
s 

to
 1

%
 o

f 
yo

u
r

ne
t

as
se

ts
. W

e
 a

re
 o

bl
ig

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

p
or

t 
u

nc
or

re
ct

ed
 o

m
is

si
on

s 
o

r 
m

is
st

a
te

m
e

nt
s 

o
th

er
 th

an
 th

o
se

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 ‘c
le

ar
ly

 t
ri

vi
al

’ t
o 

th
os

e 
ch

ar
g

e
d 

w
ith

 g
ov

e
rn

a
n

ce
. C

le
a

rly
 t

riv
ia

l h
as

 b
e

e
n 

se
t 

at
£7

4
7k

 (
P

Y
 £

6
28

k)
.

A
u

d
it

 l
o

g
is

ti
c

s
O

ur
 in

te
rim

 v
is

it 
w

ill
 t

a
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 F
e

br
ua

ry
a

nd
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

8
an

d 
ou

r 
fin

a
l v

is
it 

w
ill

 t
a

ke
 p

la
ce

 in
Ju

n
e/

Ju
ly

. 
 O

ur
 k

ey
 d

e
liv

e
ra

b
le

s 
a

re
 t

hi
s 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

 a
n

d 
o

ur
 A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

e
po

rt
.

O
ur

 f
e

e
 fo

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it 
w

ill
 b

e 
n

o 
le

ss
 th

an
 £

2
1

,0
00

 (
P

Y
: 

£
21

,0
00

) 
fo

r 
th

e 
F

un
d.

W
he

re
 r

eq
u

es
ts

 a
re

re
ce

iv
e

d 
fr

o
m

 o
th

e
r 

a
ud

ito
rs

 o
f o

th
er

 b
o

di
es

 
fo

r 
a

ss
u

ra
nc

e 
in

 r
es

p
ec

t o
f i

n
fo

rm
a

tio
n 

h
e

ld
 b

y 
th

e 
F

un
d

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 t

o 
th

e
 a

ct
ua

ry
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t t
he

ir 
in

d
iv

id
u

al
 IA

S
 1

9
 c

al
cu

la
tio

ns
 th

es
e 

w
ill

 
b

e 
bi

lle
d

 in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e

 a
u

di
t f

ee
 o

n
 a

 c
as

e 
b

y 
ca

se
 b

as
is

.

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
W

e 
ha

ve
 c

om
p

lie
d 

w
ith

 t
h

e 
F

in
a

n
ci

a
l R

e
po

rt
in

g
 C

ou
nc

il'
s 

E
th

ic
a

l S
ta

nd
ar

d 
a

n
d 

w
e 

a
s 

a
 f

irm
, a

nd
 e

a
ch

 c
o

ve
re

d
 p

e
rs

on
, c

on
fir

m
 th

at
w

e
 a

re
 

in
de

pe
n

de
nt

 a
n

d 
ar

e 
a

b
le

 t
o

 e
xp

re
ss

 a
n

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

 o
pi

n
io

n 
on

 th
e

 fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
e

nt
s

91



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

4

D
e

ep
 b

us
in

e
ss

 u
nd

e
rs

ta
n

di
ng

•
W

e 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

w
he

th
er

 y
o

ur
 f

in
an

ci
a

l p
o

si
tio

n 
le

ad
s 

to
 u

n
ce

rt
ai

nt
y 

a
bo

ut
 th

e 
go

in
g

 c
on

ce
rn

 a
ss

um
p

tio
n 

a
nd

 w
ill

 r
e

vi
ew

 a
ny

 r
e

la
te

d 
d

is
cl

os
ur

es
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
a

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

•
W

e 
w

ill
 k

ee
p

 y
ou

 in
fo

rm
e

d 
of

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e
 R

e
gu

la
tio

ns
 a

nd
 a

ny
 a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d 

ch
a

ng
e

s 
to

 f
in

an
ci

al
  r

e
po

rt
in

g
 o

r 
pu

b
lic

 in
sp

ec
tio

n
 r

eq
u

ire
m

e
n

ts
 fo

r 
2

01
7/

18
 th

ro
ug

h
 o

n
-g

oi
n

g
 

d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

.

•
A

s 
p

ar
t o

f o
ur

 o
pi

ni
o

n 
on

 y
o

ur
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e

nt
s,

 w
e 

w
ill

 c
o

n
si

d
er

 w
h

et
he

r 
yo

u
r 

fin
a

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
nt

s 
re

fle
ct

 th
e

 fi
n

an
ci

al
re

po
rt

in
g

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 t

h
e

 2
0

17
/1

8 
C

IP
F

A
 C

o
d

e.

C
h

a
n

g
es

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

el
iv

e
ry

O
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

K
ey

 c
h

a
ll

en
g

e
s

C
h

a
n

g
es

 t
o

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
ep

o
rt

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
em

e
n

ts

P
o

o
lin

g

A
rr

a
ng

e
m

en
ts

 f
or

 th
e 

po
ol

in
g

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

e
nt

s 
co

n
tin

u
e

 t
o

 d
ev

el
o

p.
 T

h
e 

D
C

LG
 

h
av

e 
re

p
or

te
d 

o
n 

th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
f 

p
oo

ls
 a

n
d 

n
ot

ed
 t

h
e 

p
ac

e
 o

f 
d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

in
cl

u
di

n
g 

th
e

 la
u

nc
h

in
g 

of
 p

ro
cu

re
m

e
nt

s 
fo

r 
po

ol
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

, 
ap

po
in

tin
g

 s
e

ni
or

 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n

d 
pr

ep
ar

in
g

 a
p

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 f

o
r 

F
in

an
ci

a
l C

o
nd

u
ct

 A
ut

ho
ri

ty
 

a
ut

ho
ri

sa
tio

n.
 T

hi
s 

re
m

ai
ns

 a
 c

h
a

lle
ng

in
g

 a
ge

nd
a,

 w
ith

 a
rr

a
ng

em
e

nt
s 

re
qu

ir
ed

 t
o

 b
e

 in
 p

la
ce

 f
ro

m
 1

 A
p

ril
 2

01
8

. 
T

he
se

 a
rr

a
n

ge
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 h
a

ve
 a

 
si

g
ni

fic
a

nt
 im

p
ac

t 
on

 h
o

w
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

re
 m

an
a

ge
d 

an
d 

m
on

ito
re

d
, 

w
ith

 
m

u
ch

 o
f 

th
e

 o
pe

ra
tio

n
al

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

bi
lit

y 
m

ov
in

g 
to

 t
he

 p
oo

l o
pe

ra
to

r.
  

It
 

re
m

ai
ns

 k
ey

 t
h

at
 a

dm
in

is
te

rin
g 

a
ut

h
or

iti
es

 (
th

ro
ug

h
 P

en
si

o
n 

C
o

m
m

itt
e

es
 a

nd
 

P
en

si
o

n 
B

o
ar

ds
) 

co
nt

in
ue

 t
o 

o
p

er
a

te
 s

tr
o

ng
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

, 
p

ar
tic

u
la

rly
 d

u
rin

g 
th

e
 t

ra
ns

iti
o

n 
p

ha
se

 w
he

re
 f

u
nd

s 
a

re
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

h
av

e 
a 

m
ix

 
o

f 
in

ve
st

m
e

nt
 m

a
na

g
em

e
nt

 a
rr

an
g

em
e

nt
s.

In
 r

es
p

e
ct

 o
f 

th
is

 a
re

a
, 

w
e 

u
nd

er
st

a
nd

 t
he

re
 h

av
e 

b
e

en
 c

o
ns

id
e

ra
bl

e
 

ch
al

le
n

ge
s 

at
 t

h
e 

L
on

d
on

 C
o

m
m

on
 I

n
ve

st
m

e
nt

 V
eh

ic
le

 (
C

IV
),

 w
ith

 s
ev

er
al

 
ke

y 
m

em
b

er
s 

o
f 

M
an

ag
em

e
nt

 h
av

in
g 

b
ee

n
 r

e
p

la
ce

d 
in

 r
e

ce
n

t 
m

on
th

s.
 T

hu
s 

th
e

 C
ou

nc
il 

n
ee

ds
 t

o 
o

bt
a

in
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

nt
 a

ss
ur

a
n

ce
 o

ve
r 

its
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 t

he
 

C
IV

 in
 te

rm
s 

o
f 

th
e

 c
o

nt
ro

ls
 in

 p
la

ce
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e
 c

ou
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.
 T

he
re

 is
 

a
ls

o 
a 

n
ee

d 
to

 m
a

ke
 s

u
re

 t
he

 v
a

lu
e 

o
f 

as
se

ts
 h

e
ld

 w
ith

 t
he

 C
IV

 is
 c

le
a

rl
y 

d
is

cl
o

se
d

 in
 t

he
 A

cc
ou

n
ts

 a
n

d
 A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

. 

M
ar

k
et

s 
in

 F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
In

st
ru

m
en

t 
D

ir
ec

ti
ve

 (
M

iF
ID

 II
)

Ja
nu

ar
y 

2
01

8 
se

e
 t

h
e 

im
pl

em
e

nt
a

tio
n

 o
f 

M
iF

ID
 I

I. 
T

he
 im

p
ac

t 
fo

r 
F

u
nd

 is
 t

h
at

 
to

 b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 c

on
tin

u
e

 t
o

 a
cc

es
s 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
in

ve
st

m
e

nt
s 

as
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y,
 t

he
y 

n
ee

d 
to

 a
pp

ly
 t

o 
‘o

p
t 

up
’ a

nd
 g

ai
n 

e
le

ct
io

n
 t

o
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l s

ta
tu

s.
  

W
ith

o
ut

 
th

is
 c

ha
ng

e
 in

 s
ta

tu
s 

so
m

e 
fin

an
ci

a
l i

ns
tit

u
tio

n
s 

co
u

ld
 t

er
m

in
a

te
 t

he
ir

 
re

la
tio

n
sh

ip
 w

ith
 t

h
e

 f
un

d
, 

w
hi

ch
 m

a
y 

h
av

e 
a

n
 a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

ac
t 

o
n

 t
he

 
a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
st

ra
te

g
y 

A
c

co
u

n
ts

 a
n

d
 A

u
d

it
 R

eg
u

la
ti

o
n

s
 2

01
5 

(t
h

e 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s)

T
he

 D
ep

ar
tm

e
nt

 o
f 

C
om

m
u

ni
tie

s 
a

nd
 L

o
ca

l 
G

ov
er

nm
e

nt
 (

D
C

LG
) 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 u
nd

e
rt

ak
in

g
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 
o

f 
th

e 
R

e
gu

la
tio

n
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 m
ay

 b
e

 s
u

bj
e

ct
 t

o
 c

ha
n

ge
. 

T
he

 d
a

te
 f

or
 a

ny
 p

ro
p

os
e

d 
ch

an
ge

s 
ha

s 
ye

t 
to

 b
e 

co
nf

ir
m

ed
, 

so
 it

 is
 n

o
t 

ye
t 

cl
ea

r 
o

r 
w

he
th

e
r 

th
e

y 
w

ill
 

a
pp

ly
 t

o
 t

he
 2

01
7/

1
8 

fin
a

n
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.

U
n

de
r 

th
e 

20
1

5 
R

eg
u

la
tio

ns
 lo

ca
l a

u
th

o
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 t
o

 p
u

bl
is

h 
th

e
ir 

a
cc

ou
nt

s 
a

lo
n

g
 w

ith
 t

h
e

 
a

ud
ito

rs
 o

pi
n

io
n 

by
 3

1
 J

ul
y 

20
1

8.

C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
to

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
 2

01
7/

1
8 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

C
IP

F
A

 h
a

ve
 in

tr
od

uc
e

d
 m

in
o

r 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 t
h

e 
20

17
/1

8
 

C
o

de
, 

th
es

e
 in

cl
u

de
 a

 n
e

w
 d

is
cl

o
su

re
 o

f 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
m

a
na

ge
r 

tr
a

ns
a

ct
io

n
 c

os
ts

 a
nd

 c
la

ri
fic

at
io

n
 o

n
 t

he
 

a
pp

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
co

nc
e

nt
ra

tio
n

 d
is

cl
o

su
re

.

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
p

re
s

s
u

re
s

T
he

 2
0

16
 T

rie
nn

ia
l V

a
lu

at
io

n 
h

ig
hl

ig
h

te
d

 t
ha

t 
th

e
 F

u
nd

’s
 d

e
fic

it 
h

ad
 r

ed
uc

e
d 

by
 £

4
3m

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
th

re
e

 y
e

a
r 

p
e

rio
d 

si
n

ce
 2

01
3,

 
a

nd
 t

h
e 

F
u

n
d 

ha
s 

an
 u

pd
at

e
d 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n
 p

la
n 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 
m

a
na

ge
 t

h
is

 p
o

si
tio

n
 o

ve
r 

th
e

 c
o

m
in

g 
ye

a
rs

. 

G
en

e
ra

l 
D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

(G
D

P
R

)

G
D

P
R

 c
om

e
s 

in
to

 e
ff

ec
t 

in
 M

a
y 

2
01

8 
a

nd
 r

ep
la

ce
s 

th
e 

D
a

ta
 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n

 A
ct

 1
99

8.
 I

t 
in

tr
od

uc
e

s 
ne

w
 o

bl
ig

a
tio

n
s 

on
 d

at
a 

co
nt

ro
lle

rs
. 

T
h

e 
F

u
nd

 is
 b

o
th

 a
 d

a
ta

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

an
d 

a
 d

a
ta

 
p

ro
ce

ss
o

r 
a

n
d 

n
ee

d
s 

to
 e

ns
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
it 

ha
s 

a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
p

ro
ce

ss
e

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 t

o 
co

m
p

ly
 w

ith
 t

he
 c

h
a

ng
es

 b
e

in
g 

in
tr

od
u

ce
d

.

T
h

e
 P

en
s

io
n

s 
R

e
g

u
la

to
r 

(t
P

R
) 

20
16

 G
o

ve
rn

a
n

c
e 

a
n

d
 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
 S

u
rv

ey

T
he

 r
es

u
lts

 o
f 

th
is

 S
ur

ve
y 

w
e

re
 p

ub
lis

h
e

d 
in

 M
ay

 2
01

7
, 

fr
om

 
w

hi
ch

 it
 w

a
s 

n
o

te
d 

w
hi

ls
t 

sh
o

w
in

g 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 in
 

g
ov

er
n

a
nc

e
, 

tP
R

 n
o

te
d

 t
ha

t 
its

 f
oc

u
s 

fo
r 

20
17

-1
8 

w
o

ul
d

 b
e

 
sc

h
em

e
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e
, 

re
co

rd
 k

e
ep

in
g

, 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

a
nd

 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
co

m
m

u
ni

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
th

a
t 

to
le

ra
nc

e
 f

or
 s

ch
em

e
 

sh
or

tc
o

m
in

gs
 in

 t
he

se
 a

re
a

s 
w

a
s 

re
du

ci
ng

 a
nd

 t
ha

t 
th

e
y 

w
e

re
 

m
o

re
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

u
se

 t
he

ir 
e

nf
or

ce
m

e
nt

 p
o

w
er

s 
w

h
er

e 
sc

he
m

e 
m

a
na

ge
rs

 h
av

e 
n

ot
 t

a
ke

n
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t a

ct
io

n
 t

o
 a

dd
re

ss
 is

su
es

 o
r 

m
e

et
 t

h
ei

r 
d

ut
ie

s.

O
n

-g
o

in
g

 M
a

tt
e

rs

•
In

d
ex

a
tio

n
 a

n
d 

e
qu

a
lis

a
tio

n
 o

f 
G

M
P

 in
 p

ub
lic

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pe

n
si

on
s 

sc
h

e
m

e
s

•
R

e
fo

rm
s 

to
 p

u
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r 
e

xi
t 

pa
ck

a
ge

s 
a

nd
 t

h
e 

a
pp

lic
a

tio
n

, 
or

 n
ot

, 
o

f 
th

e
 2

01
3

 F
a

ir 
D

e
al

 c
ha

n
ge

s 
to

 t
h

e 
L

G
P

S
•

S
A

B
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 o
p

tio
n

s 
fo

r 
a

ca
d

e
m

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 

L
G

P
S

 a
nd

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

T
ie

r 
3 

e
m

pl
oy

er
 r

is
ks

92



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

5

S
ig

n
ifi

ca
nt

 r
is

ks
 id

en
tif

ie
d

S
ig

n
ifi

ca
n

t r
is

ks
 a

re
 d

ef
in

e
d 

by
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 s
ta

n
da

rd
s 

a
s 

ris
ks

 th
at

, i
n

 t
he

 ju
d

ge
m

en
t 

of
 th

e 
au

di
to

r,
 r

e
q

ui
re

 s
p

ec
ia

l a
u

d
it

co
ns

id
e

ra
tio

n
 b

e
ca

us
e

 th
ey

 h
a

ve
 a

 h
ig

he
r 

ri
sk

 o
f m

at
er

ia
l 

m
is

st
at

em
en

t.
 S

u
ch

 r
is

ks
 o

ft
en

 r
e

la
te

 to
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

nt
 n

o
n-

ro
ut

in
e

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 a
n

d 
ju

d
gm

en
ta

l m
a

tt
er

s.
 In

 id
en

tif
yi

n
g 

ris
ks

, a
ud

it 
te

a
m

s 
co

ns
id

er
 t

h
e 

n
at

ur
e 

o
f 

th
e

 r
is

k,
 th

e
 p

ot
e

n
tia

l 
m

ag
ni

tu
de

 o
f m

is
st

at
em

e
nt

, a
n

d 
its

 li
ke

lih
o

o
d.

R
is

k
R

e
a

so
n

 f
o

r 
ri

s
k 

id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
K

e
y 

as
p

e
ct

s 
o

f 
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k

T
h

e
 r

ev
e

n
u

e 
c

yc
le

 i
n

c
lu

d
es

 f
ra

u
d

u
le

n
t 

tr
an

sa
c

ti
o

n
s

U
nd

er
IS

A
(U

K
)

2
40

th
e

re
is

a
re

b
ut

ta
bl

e
p

re
su

m
ed

ris
k

th
a

t
re

ve
n

u
e

m
ay

b
e

m
is

st
a

te
d

d
ue

to
th

e
im

pr
op

er
re

co
g

ni
tio

n
o

fr
ev

en
u

e.

T
hi

s 
p

re
su

m
pt

io
n

 c
an

 b
e 

re
b

ut
te

d 
if 

th
e

 a
u

di
to

r 
co

n
cl

ud
es

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

ris
k 

o
f m

a
te

ria
l m

is
st

at
em

e
nt

 d
u

e 
to

 f
ra

ud
 r

e
la

tin
g 

to
 r

e
ve

nu
e 

re
co

g
ni

tio
n.

H
av

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 th

e 
ri

sk
 f

ac
to

rs
 s

e
t o

ut
 in

 IS
A

2
4

0 
a

nd
 t

he
 n

at
u

re
o

f t
he

 r
e

ve
nu

e
 s

tr
e

am
s 

at
 th

e 
F

un
d

, w
e

 h
a

ve
 d

et
er

m
in

e
d 

th
a

t t
he

 
ri

sk
 o

f f
ra

u
d 

ar
is

in
g

 fr
om

 r
e

ve
n

ue
 r

e
co

g
ni

tio
n

 c
an

 b
e 

re
b

ut
te

d,
 

b
ec

au
se

:

•
th

er
e

 is
 li

tt
le

 in
ce

n
tiv

e
 to

 m
a

n
ip

u
la

te
 r

e
ve

nu
e 

re
co

gn
iti

on

•
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 m
a

n
ip

u
la

te
 r

e
ve

n
ue

 r
e

co
g

ni
tio

n
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 li
m

ite
d

•
th

e 
cu

ltu
re

 a
n

d 
et

h
ic

al
 fr

am
ew

or
ks

 o
f l

oc
al

 a
u

th
or

iti
e

s,
 in

cl
u

di
ng

 
S

ou
th

w
a

rk
 C

ou
nc

il 
as

 th
e

 A
d

m
in

is
te

ri
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
o

f S
o

ut
hw

a
rk

 
P

en
si

on
 F

u
nd

, 
m

ea
n 

th
at

 a
ll 

fo
rm

s 
of

 fr
a

u
d 

a
re

 s
ee

n 
a

s 
u

na
cc

ep
ta

b
le

T
he

re
fo

re
 w

e
 d

o 
no

t c
on

si
de

r 
th

is
 to

 b
e 

a 
si

g
ni

fic
an

t r
is

k 
fo

r 
S

ou
th

w
a

rk
P

en
si

on
 F

u
nd

.

M
an

ag
em

e
n

t
o

ve
r-

ri
d

e 
o

f 
c

o
n

tr
o

ls
U

nd
er

 I
S

A
 (

U
K

) 
2

40
 t

he
re

 is
 a

 n
o

n-
re

b
u

tt
a

bl
e 

p
re

su
m

ed
 r

is
k 

th
at

 th
e 

ri
sk

 o
f m

an
ag

e
m

e
nt

 o
ve

r-
rid

e 
o

f 
co

nt
ro

ls
 is

 p
re

se
nt

 in
 a

ll 
e

nt
iti

e
s.

 

M
an

ag
em

e
nt

 o
ve

r-
rid

e 
o

f c
o

nt
ro

ls
 is

 a
 r

is
k 

re
qu

iri
ng

 s
pe

ci
al

 a
u

di
t 

co
n

si
de

ra
tio

n.

W
e 

w
ill

:

•
g

ai
n

 a
n 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
n

tin
g 

e
st

im
at

es
, j

ud
g

em
en

ts
 

a
pp

lie
d 

an
d 

d
e

ci
si

o
ns

 m
ad

e 
by

 m
an

ag
em

e
nt

 a
nd

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e
ir 

re
as

o
na

bl
en

es
s 

•
o

bt
ai

n
 a

 f
u

ll 
lis

tin
g 

o
f j

o
ur

na
l e

n
tr

ie
s,

 id
e

nt
ify

 a
n

d 
te

st
 u

n
us

ua
l 

jo
ur

n
a

l e
n

tr
ie

s 
fo

r 
a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
n

es
s

•
e

va
lu

at
e

 t
he

 r
a

tio
na

le
 fo

r 
a

n
y 

ch
a

n
ge

s 
in

 a
cc

o
un

tin
g

 p
o

lic
ie

s 
o

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
n

t u
n

u
su

al
 t

ra
ns

a
ct

io
n

s.

93



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

6

R
is

k
R

e
as

o
n

 f
o

r 
ri

s
k 

id
en

ti
fi

c
a

ti
o

n
K

e
y 

as
p

e
ct

s 
o

f 
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k

T
h

e
 v

a
lu

at
io

n
 o

f 
L

ev
e

l 
3 

in
ve

st
m

e
n

ts
is

 
in

co
rr

e
ct

U
nd

er
 I

S
A

 3
1

5
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

nt
 r

is
ks

 o
ft

e
n 

re
la

te
 t

o 
si

g
ni

fic
an

t n
on

-r
o

ut
in

e 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 a

n
d 

ju
d

ge
m

en
ta

l m
a

tt
e

rs
. L

ev
e

l 3
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 b

y 
th

ei
r 

ve
ry

 
n

at
ur

e
 r

e
q

ui
re

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t d
eg

re
e 

o
f 

ju
d

ge
m

e
n

t 
to

 r
e

ac
h 

an
 

a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 v
a

lu
a

tio
n

 a
t 

ye
ar

 e
nd

.

W
e 

w
ill

•
ga

in
 a

n
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

F
u

nd
’s

 p
ro

ce
ss

 fo
r 

va
lu

in
g 

le
ve

l 3
 in

ve
st

m
e

n
ts

a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e
 d

e
si

gn
 o

f 
th

e
 a

ss
o

ci
at

ed
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls

•
re

vi
e

w
 t

h
e 

na
tu

re
 a

n
d 

b
a

si
s 

o
f e

st
im

at
ed

 v
a

lu
es

 a
nd

 c
on

si
d

e
r 

w
h

a
t 

a
ss

u
ra

nc
e 

m
an

ag
em

e
nt

 h
as

 o
ve

r 
th

e
 y

e
ar

 e
nd

 v
al

ua
tio

ns
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 fo
r 

 t
h

es
e

 ty
p

es
 o

f 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
.

•
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

p
e

te
nc

e,
 e

xp
e

rt
is

e
 a

n
d

 o
bj

e
ct

iv
ity

 o
f 

an
y 

m
an

ag
em

e
nt

 e
xp

er
ts

 u
se

d
.

•
re

vi
e

w
 t

h
e 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

F
un

d 
M

a
n

ag
er

s 
to

 v
a

lu
e 

L
e

ve
l 3

 in
ve

st
m

e
n

ts
 

a
t y

e
ar

 e
nd

 a
n

d 
g

ai
n 

an
 u

n
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 h
o

w
 t

h
e 

va
lu

a
tio

n
 o

f 
th

es
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 h
a

s 
be

en
 r

e
ac

h
ed

.

•
fo

r
a

 s
am

pl
e 

o
f i

nv
es

tm
e

nt
s,

 te
st

 th
e

 v
al

u
at

io
n 

b
y 

ob
ta

in
in

g
 a

nd
 r

e
vi

ew
in

g
 t

he
 

a
ud

ite
d 

ac
co

un
ts

, (
w

he
re

 a
va

ila
b

le
) 

a
t t

he
 la

te
st

 d
a

te
 fo

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

n
d 

ag
re

ei
n

g 
th

es
e

 to
 t

h
e 

fu
n

d 
m

a
na

ge
r 

re
po

rt
s 

a
t t

ha
t d

at
e.

 
R

ec
on

ci
le

 th
os

e 
va

lu
e

s 
to

 th
e 

va
lu

e
s 

at
 3

1
 M

ar
ch

 w
ith

 r
e

fe
re

nc
e

 to
 k

n
o

w
n 

m
ov

em
e

nt
s 

in
 t

h
e 

in
te

rv
e

ni
n

g 
p

er
io

d.

S
ig

n
ifi

ca
nt

 r
is

ks
 id

en
tif

ie
d

94



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

7

R
e

as
o

na
b

ly
 p

os
si

b
le

 r
is

ks
 id

e
n

tif
ie

d

R
ea

so
na

b
ly

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 r

is
ks

 (
R

P
R

s)
 a

re
, 

in
 t

he
 a

ud
ito

r's
 ju

d
gm

e
nt

, 
o

th
er

 r
is

k 
ar

ea
s 

w
hi

ch
 t

he
 a

u
d

ito
r 

h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 a
n

 a
re

a 
w

he
re

 t
he

 li
ke

lih
oo

d 
of

 m
a

te
ri

al
 m

is
st

a
te

m
e

nt
 c

a
nn

o
t b

e 
re

du
ce

d
 to

 r
e

m
ot

e,
 w

ith
o

ut
 t

he
 n

e
ed

 f
or

 g
a

in
in

g 
a

n 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

o
f t

he
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
co

n
tr

ol
 e

nv
ir

on
m

e
n

t,
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 t
he

 p
er

fo
rm

a
n

ce
 o

f 
a

n 
a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 le

ve
l o

f 
su

b
st

an
tiv

e
 w

or
k.

 T
he

 r
is

k 
o

f m
is

st
at

em
en

t f
or

 a
n

 R
P

R
 is

 lo
w

er
 t

ha
n 

th
a

t 
fo

r 
a

 s
ig

n
ifi

ca
nt

 r
is

k,
 a

n
d 

th
e

y 
ar

e 
n

ot
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
to

 b
e

 a
re

a
s 

th
a

t 
ar

e
 h

ig
h

ly
ju

dg
m

e
nt

al
, 

o
r 

un
us

u
al

 in
 r

el
at

io
n

 to
 t

he
 d

a
y 

to
 d

a
y 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 o
f 

th
e

 b
u

si
ne

ss
.

R
is

k
R

e
a

so
n

 f
o

r 
ri

s
k 

id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
K

e
y 

as
p

e
ct

s 
o

f 
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

C
on

tr
ib

u
tio

n
s 

fr
o

m
 e

m
pl

o
ye

rs
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

o
ye

es
’ r

e
pr

es
en

ts
 a

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
n

t p
e

rc
en

ta
g

e 
(7

4%
) 

o
f t

he
 F

u
nd

’s
 r

e
ve

n
ue

. 
W

e
w

ill
:

•
ev

al
ua

te
th

e
F

u
nd

's
ac

co
u

n
tin

g
p

ol
ic

y
fo

r
re

co
gn

iti
o

n
o

f
co

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

s
fo

r
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ne
ss

;

•
ga

in
a

n
un

d
er

st
a

n
di

n
g

of
th

e
F

un
d'

s
sy

st
e

m
fo

r
a

cc
ou

nt
in

g
fo

r
co

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

in
co

m
e

an
d

ev
a

lu
a

te
th

e
d

es
ig

n
of

th
e

as
so

ci
at

e
d

co
n

tr
o

ls
;

•
te

st
a

sa
m

pl
e

of
co

nt
rib

u
tio

ns
to

so
ur

ce
d

at
a

to
g

ai
n

as
su

ra
n

ce
o

ve
r

th
e

ir
a

cc
u

ra
cy

an
d

oc
cu

rr
en

ce
;

•
ra

tio
na

lis
e

co
nt

rib
u

tio
ns

re
ce

iv
ed

w
ith

re
fe

re
nc

e
to

ch
an

ge
s

in
m

em
b

er
b

od
y

pa
yr

ol
ls

a
nd

th
e

n
um

b
er

o
f

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g

pe
ns

io
n

e
rs

to
en

su
re

th
at

a
n

y
u

nu
su

a
l

tr
e

nd
s

ar
e

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
ily

ex
pl

ai
n

e
d.

T
hi

s
w

ill
p

ro
vi

d
e

a
ss

ur
a

nc
e

ov
er

th
e

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s
of

th
e

C
on

tr
ib

u
tio

n
s

in
cl

ud
e

d
w

ith
in

th
e

A
cc

ou
nt

s.

P
en

si
o

n
 B

en
ef

it
s 

P
a

ya
b

le
P

en
si

on
 b

e
n

ef
its

 p
a

ya
b

le
 r

ep
re

se
n

ts
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
(9

5
%

) 
o

f t
he

 F
u

nd
’s

 e
xp

en
d

itu
re

.
W

e
w

ill
:

•
ev

al
ua

te
th

e
F

u
nd

's
ac

co
un

tin
g

po
lic

y
fo

r
re

co
g

n
iti

o
n

of
p

e
ns

io
n

b
en

ef
its

ex
p

en
di

tu
re

fo
r

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e
n

es
s;

•
ga

in
a

n
un

d
er

st
a

n
di

n
g

of
th

e
F

un
d'

s
sy

st
e

m
fo

r
a

cc
ou

nt
in

g
fo

r
p

en
si

on
be

n
ef

its
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

a
nd

ev
a

lu
a

te
th

e
de

si
gn

of
th

e
a

ss
oc

ia
te

d
co

n
tr

ol
s;

•
te

st
a

sa
m

p
le

of
in

d
iv

id
u

al
p

e
ns

io
n

s
in

p
ay

m
e

nt
b

y
re

fe
re

nc
e

to
m

em
b

er
fil

es
;

•
ra

tio
na

lis
e

pe
ns

io
ns

p
ai

d
w

ith
re

fe
re

nc
e

to
ch

a
ng

es
in

pe
ns

io
ne

r
n

um
be

rs
an

d
in

cr
ea

se
s

ap
p

lie
d

in
ye

a
r

to
en

su
re

th
a

t
an

y
u

nu
su

al
tr

e
nd

s
ar

e
sa

tis
fa

ct
o

ril
y

e
xp

la
in

ed
.

T
h

is
w

ill
p

ro
vi

d
e

a
ss

ur
an

ce
ov

er
th

e
co

m
p

le
te

n
e

ss
of

th
e

B
en

ef
its

pa
id

in
cl

u
de

d
w

ith
in

th
e

A
cc

ou
nt

s.

95



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

8

R
e

as
o

na
b

ly
 p

os
si

b
le

 r
is

ks
 id

e
n

tif
ie

d
R

is
k

R
e

a
so

n
 f

o
r 

ri
s

k 
id

e
n

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

K
ey

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 r

es
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k

T
h

e
va

lu
at

io
n

 o
f 

L
ev

e
l 

2 
in

ve
s

tm
e

n
ts

 i
s

 
in

co
rr

e
ct

W
hi

le
 le

ve
l 2

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 d
o

 n
ot

 c
a

rr
y 

th
e

 s
a

m
e 

le
ve

l o
f i

n
he

re
nt

 
ri

sk
s 

a
ss

o
ci

at
e

d
 w

ith
 le

ve
l 3

 in
ve

st
m

e
n

ts
, t

h
er

e
 is

 s
til

l a
n

 e
le

m
e

nt
 o

f 
ju

dg
em

en
t 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 t

h
e

ir 
va

lu
a

tio
n

 a
s 

th
ei

r 
ve

ry
 n

at
ur

e 
is

 s
u

ch
 th

at
 

th
e

y 
ca

n
n

ot
 b

e
 v

al
u

ed
 d

ire
ct

ly
.

W
e 

w
ill


g

ai
n

 a
n 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
o

f t
he

 F
un

d’
s 

p
ro

ce
ss

 fo
r 

va
lu

in
g

 L
e

ve
l 2

 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
an

d 
ev

al
ua

te
 th

e 
d

e
si

g
n 

of
 th

e 
a

ss
o

ci
at

ed
 c

o
nt

ro
ls

.


re

vi
ew

 t
he

 n
at

u
re

 a
nd

 b
a

si
s 

of
 e

st
im

a
te

d 
va

lu
e

s 
an

d 
co

ns
id

e
r 

w
h

at
 a

ss
u

ra
nc

e 
m

a
na

ge
m

en
t 

ha
s 

o
ve

r 
th

e 
ye

a
r 

en
d 

va
lu

a
tio

n
s 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 f

or
 t

h
es

e 
ty

pe
s 

o
f i

n
ve

st
m

en
ts

.


co

n
si

de
r 

th
e

 c
o

m
pe

te
nc

e
, e

xp
er

tis
e 

a
nd

 o
bj

e
ct

iv
ity

 o
f 

an
y 

m
an

ag
em

e
nt

 e
xp

er
ts

 u
se

d
.


re

vi
ew

 t
he

 q
ua

lif
ic

a
tio

n
s 

of
 th

e
 e

xp
e

rt
 [i

n
se

rt
 fu

nd
 m

an
ag

e
r 

o
r 

cu
st

o
di

an
 if

 u
se

d
] t

o 
va

lu
e

 th
e 

le
ve

l 2
 in

ve
st

m
e

nt
s 

a
t 

ye
a

r 
en

d 
a

nd
 g

ai
n

 a
n 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
o

f h
ow

 t
he

 v
al

u
a

tio
n 

o
f 

th
e

se
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
ac

he
d.


fo

r
a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, t

e
st

 th
e 

va
lu

a
tio

n
 b

y 
o

bt
ai

n
in

g 
in

de
pe

n
de

nt
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 fr

om
 c

u
st

od
ia

n
/m

a
na

ge
r 

o
n 

u
n

its
 a

nd
 

u
ni

t 
pr

ic
es

.

96



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

9

O
th

e
r

m
a

tte
rs

O
th

er
m

a
te

ri
a

lb
al

an
ce

s
an

d
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
s

U
nd

er
In

te
rn

at
io

n
al

S
ta

n
da

rd
s

on
A

u
d

iti
n

g,
"i

rr
es

p
ec

tiv
e

of
th

e
a

ss
es

se
d

ri
sk

s
of

m
a

te
ria

l
m

is
st

at
em

en
t,

th
e

au
d

ito
r

sh
a

ll
de

si
gn

a
nd

p
e

rf
o

rm
su

b
st

an
tiv

e
pr

oc
e

du
re

s
fo

r
ea

ch
m

at
er

ia
l

cl
as

s
o

f
tr

a
ns

ac
tio

ns
,

ac
co

un
t

ba
la

n
ce

an
d

di
sc

lo
su

re
".

A
ll

ot
h

e
r

m
a

te
ria

l
b

al
a

nc
e

s
a

nd
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
st

re
am

s
w

ill
th

er
e

fo
re

b
e

a
ud

ite
d

.
H

ow
ev

er
,

th
e

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
w

ill
n

ot
be

a
s

ex
te

ns
iv

e
as

th
e

pr
oc

e
du

re
s

a
do

p
te

d
fo

r
th

e
ri

sk
s

id
e

n
tif

ie
d

in
th

is
re

po
rt

.

G
o

in
g

c
o

n
ce

rn

A
s

a
ud

ito
rs

,
w

e
ar

e
re

qu
ire

d
to

“o
bt

a
in

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
au

d
it

e
vi

de
nc

e
ab

ou
t

th
e

a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

n
es

s
of

m
a

n
ag

em
en

t's
u

se
o

f
th

e
go

in
g

co
nc

er
n

a
ss

um
p

tio
n

in
th

e
p

re
p

a
ra

tio
n

a
nd

p
re

se
nt

at
io

n
of

th
e

fin
a

nc
ia

ls
ta

te
m

en
ts

a
nd

to
co

n
cl

ud
e

w
h

e
th

er
th

e
re

is
a

m
at

er
ia

l
un

ce
rt

ai
n

ty
ab

ou
t

th
e

e
nt

ity
's

ab
ili

ty
to

co
nt

in
u

e
as

a
g

oi
n

g
co

nc
er

n”
(I

S
A

(U
K

)
5

70
).

W
e

w
ill

re
vi

ew
m

an
ag

e
m

e
nt

's
a

ss
es

sm
e

nt
of

th
e

go
in

g
co

nc
e

rn
a

ss
um

p
tio

n
a

n
d

e
va

lu
at

e
th

e
di

sc
lo

su
re

s
in

th
e

fin
a

nc
ia

ls
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

O
th

er
w

o
rk

T
he

F
un

d
is

a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

b
y

S
ou

th
w

a
rk

C
ou

nc
il]

(t
he

‘C
ou

nc
il’

),
an

d
th

e
F

u
n

d’
s

a
cc

ou
nt

s
fo

rm
p

ar
t

o
f

th
e

C
o

un
ci

l’s
fin

a
nc

ia
l

st
at

em
en

ts
.

T
h

e
re

fo
re

as
w

e
ll

a
s

o
u

r
g

en
er

al
re

sp
o

ns
ib

ili
tie

s
un

de
r

th
e

C
od

e
of

P
ra

ct
ic

e
a

nu
m

be
r

o
f

ot
he

r
au

di
t

re
sp

o
ns

ib
ili

tie
s

a
ls

o
fo

llo
w

in
re

sp
e

ct
of

th
e

F
un

d,
su

ch
as

:

•
W

e
 c

o
ns

id
er

 o
u

r 
o

th
er

 d
u

tie
s 

un
de

r 
th

e
 A

ct
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

o
de

, 
as

 a
n

d
 w

h
en

 r
eq

ui
re

d,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g:

•
gi

vi
n

g 
el

e
ct

or
s 

th
e

 o
pp

or
tu

n
ity

 t
o 

ra
is

e
 q

u
es

tio
n

s 
a

bo
u

t y
o

ur
 2

01
7

/1
8

 
fin

a
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
e

nt
s,

 c
o

ns
id

er
 a

n
d 

de
ci

d
e

 u
p

on
 a

ny
 o

bj
e

ct
io

n
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
2

01
7

/1
8 

fin
a

n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
; 

•
is

su
e 

o
f a

 r
ep

or
t i

n
 t

he
 p

u
b

lic
 in

te
re

st
; a

n
d 

•
m

a
ki

ng
 a

 w
ri

tt
en

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n

 t
o

 t
he

 C
o

u
nc

il,
 c

o
pi

ed
 to

 th
e

 S
e

cr
et

ar
y 

o
f 

S
ta

te
.

•
W

e
 c

a
rr

y 
o

ut
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 s
at

is
fy

 o
ur

se
lv

es
 o

n
 t

he
 c

on
si

st
e

n
cy

 o
f t

he
 p

en
si

on
 fu

nd
 

fin
a

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
nt

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 t
he

 p
en

si
o

n
 fu

nd
 a

nn
ua

l r
e

p
or

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 a

u
d

ite
d 

F
u

n
d 

ac
co

un
ts

.

97



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

10

M
a

te
ri

al
ity

T
h

e
c

o
n

ce
p

t
o

f
m

a
te

ri
al

it
y

T
he

co
n

ce
pt

of
m

a
te

ri
al

ity
is

fu
nd

a
m

e
nt

al
to

th
e

p
re

pa
ra

tio
n

of
th

e
fin

a
nc

ia
l

st
at

em
en

ts
a

nd
th

e
au

d
it

pr
oc

es
s

a
nd

a
pp

lie
s

n
ot

o
n

ly
to

th
e

m
on

et
ar

y
m

is
st

a
te

m
e

n
ts

b
ut

a
ls

o
to

d
is

cl
o

su
re

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

a
nd

a
dh

er
en

ce
to

ac
ce

pt
a

bl
e

a
cc

o
un

tin
g

pr
ac

tic
e

an
d

a
pp

lic
ab

le
la

w
.

M
is

st
at

em
e

nt
s,

in
cl

ud
in

g
om

is
si

o
n

s,
a

re
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

to
be

m
at

er
ia

l
if

th
ey

,
in

di
vi

d
u

al
ly

or
in

th
e

ag
gr

eg
at

e,
co

ul
d

re
as

on
ab

ly
b

e
e

xp
e

ct
ed

to
in

flu
e

nc
e

th
e

ec
on

o
m

ic
d

ec
is

io
n

s
o

f
us

er
s

ta
ke

n
o

n
th

e
b

as
is

of
th

e
fin

an
ci

al
st

at
e

m
en

ts
.

M
at

er
ia

li
ty

fo
r

p
la

n
n

in
g

p
u

rp
o

se
s

W
e

p
ro

po
se

to
ca

lc
u

la
te

fin
an

ci
al

st
at

e
m

en
t

m
a

te
ri

al
ity

b
a

se
d

on
a

p
ro

po
rt

io
n

of
th

e
n

et
a

ss
et

s
of

th
e

F
u

nd
fo

r
th

e
fin

a
nc

ia
ly

ea
r.

In
th

e
pr

io
r

ye
a

r
w

e
us

ed
th

e
sa

m
e

be
nc

hm
ar

k.
W

e
h

av
e

de
te

rm
in

ed
p

la
n

n
in

g
m

a
te

ri
a

lit
y

(t
he

fin
a

nc
ia

ls
ta

te
m

en
ts

m
at

e
ri

al
ity

de
te

rm
in

e
d

a
t

th
e

p
la

nn
in

g
st

a
ge

of
th

e
au

di
t)

to
b

e
£

14
.9

50
m

(P
Y

£
12

.5
64

m
),

w
hi

ch
eq

ua
te

s
to

1
%

o
f

yo
ur

n
et

as
se

ts
fo

r
th

e
pr

io
r

ye
a

r.
W

e
d

es
ig

n
ou

r
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

to
d

et
ec

t
er

ro
rs

in
sp

e
ci

fic
ac

co
u

nt
s

at
a

lo
w

e
r

le
ve

lo
fp

re
ci

si
o

n.

W
e

re
co

n
si

de
r

p
la

nn
in

g
m

a
te

ria
lit

y
if,

d
ur

in
g

th
e

co
u

rs
e

of
o

ur
a

ud
it

e
ng

ag
em

e
nt

,
w

e
b

ec
om

e
a

w
ar

e
of

fa
ct

s
a

nd
ci

rc
u

m
st

an
ce

s
th

at
w

o
ul

d
h

a
ve

ca
us

e
d

us
to

m
a

ke
a

d
iff

e
re

nt
d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n
o

fp
la

nn
in

g
m

a
te

ria
lit

y

M
at

te
rs

w
e

w
il

lr
ep

o
rt

to
th

e
A

u
d

it
,

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

an
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

W
hi

ls
t

ou
r

a
ud

it
p

ro
ce

du
re

s
a

re
de

si
gn

ed
to

id
e

nt
ify

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
w

h
ic

h
a

re
m

a
te

ria
lt

o
o

ur
o

p
in

io
n

on
th

e
fin

a
nc

ia
l

st
at

e
m

en
ts

as
a

w
ho

le
,

w
e

n
ev

er
th

el
es

s
re

po
rt

to
th

e
A

u
di

t
G

ov
e

rn
a

n
ce

a
nd

S
ta

n
da

rd
s

C
om

m
itt

e
e

an
y

un
ad

ju
st

ed
m

is
st

at
em

e
nt

s
of

le
ss

er
a

m
o

un
ts

to
th

e
e

xt
e

nt
th

at
th

es
e

ar
e

id
e

nt
ifi

e
d

by
ou

r
au

di
t

w
or

k.
U

nd
er

IS
A

2
60

(U
K

)
‘C

om
m

u
ni

ca
tio

n
w

ith
th

o
se

ch
a

rg
ed

w
ith

g
ov

er
na

nc
e

’,
w

e
ar

e
o

b
lig

ed
to

re
po

rt
u

nc
or

re
ct

ed
om

is
si

o
ns

or
m

is
st

a
te

m
e

nt
s

o
th

er
th

a
n

th
os

e
w

h
ic

h
a

re
‘c

le
ar

ly
tr

iv
ia

l’
to

th
o

se
ch

a
rg

ed
w

ith
g

ov
er

na
n

ce
.

IS
A

2
60

(U
K

)
d

ef
in

es
‘c

le
a

rly
tr

iv
ia

l’
a

s
m

a
tte

rs
th

at
a

re
cl

ea
rl

y
in

co
n

se
q

ue
nt

ia
l,

w
h

et
h

e
r

ta
ke

n
in

d
iv

id
ua

lly
o

r
in

a
gg

re
ga

te
an

d
w

h
et

he
r

ju
dg

ed
b

y
a

n
y

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e

o
r

q
ua

lit
a

tiv
e

cr
ite

ri
a.

In
th

e
co

n
te

xt
o

f
th

e
F

u
nd

,
w

e
p

ro
po

se
th

at
an

in
di

vi
d

u
al

di
ff

e
re

nc
e

co
u

ld
no

rm
al

ly
be

co
ns

id
e

re
d

to
b

e
cl

ea
rly

tr
iv

ia
l

if
it

is
le

ss
th

an
£

74
7k

(P
Y

£
62

8k
).

If
m

a
na

ge
m

en
t

h
av

e
co

rr
ec

te
d

m
a

te
ria

lm
is

st
a

te
m

e
nt

s
id

en
tif

ie
d

du
rin

g
th

e
co

u
rs

e
of

th
e

a
ud

it,
w

e
w

ill
co

n
si

de
r

w
h

e
th

er
th

o
se

co
rr

ec
tio

ns
sh

ou
ld

b
e

co
m

m
un

ic
a

te
d

to
th

e
A

ud
it,

G
ov

e
rn

a
n

ce
a

nd
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

C
o

m
m

itt
e

e
to

as
si

st
it

in
fu

lfi
lli

ng
its

go
ve

rn
a

n
ce

re
sp

o
ns

ib
ili

tie
s.

N
et

 a
s

s
et

s

£
1,

56
0,

89
3m

 (
a

t 
M

o
nt

h 
9)

(P
Y

: £
1,

49
4,

99
2m

)

M
at

er
ia

li
ty

N
e

t a
ss

e
ts

M
a

te
ri

al
ity

£
14

.9
50

m

W
ho

le
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
a

te
m

e
nt

s 
m

a
te

ria
lit

y

(P
Y

: £
12

.5
64

m
)

£
74

7k

M
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 r

e
po

rt
ed

 
to

 t
he

 A
u

d
it,

 
G

ov
e

rn
a

n
ce

 a
n

d
 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

(P
Y

: £
62

8k
)

98



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

11

A
ud

it 
lo

g
is

tic
s,

 t
ea

m
 &

 a
u

di
t 

fe
es

A
u

d
it

 f
e

es

T
he

 p
la

n
ne

d
 a

ud
it 

fe
e

s 
a

re
 n

o 
le

ss
 th

an
 £

21
,0

00
 (

P
Y

: £
21

,0
00

) 
fo

r 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
a

te
m

e
nt

s 
a

ud
it.

 In
 s

et
tin

g 
yo

ur
 f

ee
, 

w
e 

h
av

e 
as

su
m

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
sc

op
e 

o
f 

th
e

 a
ud

it,
 a

n
d 

th
e

 F
u

nd
 a

nd
 it

s 
a

ct
iv

iti
es

, d
o 

n
ot

 s
ig

n
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 c

h
an

ge
.

W
he

re
 r

eq
ue

st
s 

a
re

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fr

om
 o

th
e

r 
a

ud
ito

rs
 o

f 
ot

he
r 

b
o

di
e

s 
fo

r 
a

ss
ur

an
ce

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 

o
f i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n 

h
el

d 
by

 t
h

e 
F

u
nd

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 t

o 
th

e
 a

ct
u

a
ry

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t t

he
ir 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
IA

S
 1

9
 c

a
lc

u
la

tio
ns

 th
es

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
bi

lle
d

 in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 t
he

 a
u

di
t f

ee
 o

n
 a

 c
as

e 
by

 c
as

e 
b

as
is

.

O
u

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
en

ts

T
o 

e
n

su
re

 th
e 

a
u

di
t 

is
 d

e
liv

e
re

d 
o

n 
tim

e
 a

n
d 

to
 a

vo
id

 a
n

y 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

e
e

s,
 w

e 
h

av
e 

d
et

ai
le

d
 o

u
r 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 a
n

d 
re

q
ui

re
m

e
nt

s 
in

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 s
e

ct
io

n
 ‘E

ar
ly

 C
lo

se
’. 

If
 th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 d

et
ai

le
d

 o
ve

rle
af

 a
re

 n
o

t m
et

, w
e 

re
se

rv
e 

th
e 

ri
gh

t 
to

 p
o

st
po

ne
 o

u
r 

au
di

t 
vi

si
t a

nd
 c

ha
rg

e 
fe

e
s 

to
 r

ei
m

b
ur

se
 u

s 
fo

r 
a

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
o

st
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

. W
e 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 

co
n

si
de

r 
th

e
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

nd
 A

n
nu

al
 R

e
po

rt
 a

lo
n

gs
id

e 
ou

r 
A

cc
o

un
ts

 w
o

rk
 w

h
er

e 
th

is
 is

 
a

va
ila

bl
e,

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

 w
e 

w
ill

 h
a

ve
 to

 h
ol

d
 o

ur
 C

e
rt

ifi
ca

te
 o

p
en

 u
nt

il 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
n 

th
is

 is
 

co
m

pl
et

e.
 

P
au

l 
D

o
ss

et
t,

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
en

t 
L

e
ad

P
au

l w
ill

 b
e 

th
e

 m
ai

n
 p

o
in

t 
of

 c
on

ta
ct

 fo
r 

th
e

 C
h

ie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e

, t
he

 
S

ec
tio

n
 1

5
1 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
an

d 
M

em
be

rs
. P

a
ul

 w
ill

 s
h

ar
e 

h
is

 w
e

al
th

 o
f 

kn
o

w
le

dg
e

 a
nd

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e

 s
ec

to
r 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

ch
al

le
n

ge
, 

sh
a

rin
g 

go
od

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
, p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
p

ra
gm

a
tic

 s
ol

ut
io

n
s 

a
nd

 a
ct

in
g 

a
s 

a
 s

ou
nd

in
g 

b
oa

rd
 w

ith
 M

em
b

er
s 

an
d 

th
e

 A
ud

it,
 G

ov
e

rn
a

n
ce

 a
n

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
. P

au
l w

ill
 e

ns
u

re
 o

u
r 

a
ud

it 
is

 ta
ilo

re
d 

sp
e

ci
fic

al
ly

 t
o 

yo
u 

a
nd

 is
 d

el
iv

e
re

d 
ef

fic
ie

n
tly

. P
au

l w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
ll 

re
po

rt
s 

an
d 

th
e

 te
a

m
’s

 w
or

k.

M
at

t 
D

ea
n

, 
A

u
d

it
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

M
at

t w
ill

 w
o

rk
 w

ith
 t

he
 s

en
io

r 
m

em
b

er
s 

o
f 

th
e 

fin
a

n
ce

 te
am

 
e

ns
ur

in
g

 e
ar

ly
 d

e
liv

er
y 

o
f 

te
st

in
g

 a
n

d 
ag

re
em

en
t 

of
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g
 

is
su

e
s 

o
n 

a 
tim

el
y 

b
as

is
. M

at
t w

ill
 a

tt
e

nd
 A

ud
it,

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e

 a
n

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
s,

 u
n

d
er

ta
ke

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
o

f t
he

 te
am

’s
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d 
d

ra
ft

 r
ep

or
ts

 e
n

su
ri

ng
 th

ey
 r

e
m

ai
n

 c
le

ar
, c

on
ci

se
 a

n
d 

u
nd

er
st

an
da

bl
e 

to
 a

ll.
 M

at
t w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
ith

 I
nt

er
na

l A
u

d
it 

to
 s

e
cu

re
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

e
s 

a
nd

 a
vo

id
 a

ny
 d

u
p

lic
at

io
n

ac
ro

ss
 th

e
 a

u
di

t.
 

L
iu

lu
 C

h
en

, 
A

u
d

it
 I

n
-C

h
ar

g
e

L
iu

lu
 w

ill
 le

a
d 

th
e

 o
n

si
te

 te
am

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

th
e

 d
ay

 t
o

 d
ay

 c
on

ta
ct

 fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

t.
 L

iu
lu

 w
ill

 
m

on
ito

r 
th

e 
d

e
liv

er
a

b
le

s,
 m

a
na

ge
 t

he
 q

u
e

ry
 lo

g
 w

ith
 y

o
u

r 
fin

an
ce

 te
am

 a
n

d 
h

ig
hl

ig
h

t a
ny

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
n

t i
ss

u
es

 a
nd

 a
d

ju
st

m
e

nt
s 

to
 s

e
ni

or
 m

a
na

ge
m

en
t.

 L
iu

lu
 w

ill
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 th
e 

m
o

re
 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 a

sp
e

ct
s 

o
f t

he
 a

u
d

it,
 c

o
ac

h 
th

e
 ju

ni
o

r 
m

e
m

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 te

a
m

 a
n

d 
re

vi
e

w
 t

h
e 

te
a

m
’s

 w
or

k.
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
ri

sk
 a

ss
es

s
m

e
n

t 

In
te

ri
m

 a
u

d
it

M
ar

ch
 2

01
8

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 a

u
d

it
Ju

n
e/

Ju
ly

 2
0

18

A
u

d
it

, 
G

o
ve

rn
a

n
c

e
a

n
d

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

1
9 

F
e

b 
20

18

A
u

d
it

, 
G

o
ve

rn
a

n
c

e
a

n
d

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

A
pr

il 
2

0
18

A
u

d
it

, 
G

o
ve

rn
a

n
c

e
a

n
d

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

Ju
ly

 2
01

8

A
u

d
it

, 
G

o
ve

rn
a

n
c

e
a

n
d

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

S
ep

te
m

b
e

r 
2

01
8

A
u

d
it

 
F

in
d

in
g

s
 

R
ep

o
rt

A
u

d
it

 
O

p
in

io
n

A
u

d
it

 
P

la
n

In
te

ri
m

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s 
R

ep
o

rt

A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 
L

e
tt

er

99



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

12

E
ar

ly
 c

lo
se

O
u

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
en

ts
 

T
o 

m
in

im
is

e 
th

e 
ri

sk
 o

f a
 d

el
a

ye
d 

au
d

it 
o

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

ud
it 

fe
es

 b
e

in
g 

in
cu

rr
e

d,
 y

ou
 n

e
ed

 t
o

 
e

ns
ur

e 
th

a
t y

ou
:

•
pr

od
uc

e 
dr

a
ft

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
nt

s 
o

f g
oo

d 
qu

al
ity

 b
y 

th
e

 e
n

d 
of

 M
a

y 
a

s 
yo

u
 h

av
e

 
a

gr
e

e
d 

w
ith

 u
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a

ll 
no

te
s

•
en

su
re

 th
at

 g
oo

d 
q

u
al

ity
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
ap

e
rs

 a
re

 a
va

ila
b

le
 a

t 
th

e 
st

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

a
u

di
t 

in
 e

a
rl

y 
Ju

n
e,

 in
 a

cc
or

d
a

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 w
o

rk
in

g 
pa

pe
r 

re
qu

ire
m

e
n

ts
 s

ch
ed

ul
e

 th
at

 w
e

 h
a

ve
 

sh
a

re
d 

w
ith

 y
ou

•
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e

 a
g

re
ed

 d
at

a
 r

ep
or

ts
 a

re
 a

va
ila

b
le

 t
o 

us
 a

t t
h

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f t

h
e

 a
u

di
t a

nd
 a

re
 

re
co

n
ci

le
d

 to
 th

e
 v

a
lu

es
 in

 t
h

e 
ac

co
u

nt
s,

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
ou

r 
se

le
ct

io
n

 o
f 

sa
m

pl
es

•
en

su
re

 th
at

 a
ll 

a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

va
ila

b
le

 o
n

 s
ite

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 (

o
r 

a
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e
 

a
gr

e
e

d)
 t

h
e 

pl
a

nn
e

d 
p

er
io

d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

ud
it 

in
 J

u
ne

 a
nd

 J
ul

y.
 

•
re

sp
on

d 
pr

o
m

pt
ly

 a
n

d 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 t
o

 a
u

d
it 

q
ue

ri
es

.

In
 r

e
tu

rn
, w

e 
w

ill
 e

n
su

re
 th

at
:

•
th

e 
a

ud
it 

ru
ns

 s
m

o
ot

hl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 m
in

im
u

m
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n
 to

 y
o

ur
 s

ta
ff

•
yo

u
 a

re
 k

e
pt

 in
fo

rm
e

d 
of

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e
 u

se
 o

f a
n 

is
su

es
 tr

ac
ke

r 
a

nd
 w

e
ek

ly
 

m
ee

tin
g

s 
d

ur
in

g 
th

e
 a

ud
it

•
w

e
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 is

su
es

 w
ith

 y
o

u 
p

rio
r 

to
 a

nd
 d

ur
in

g 
yo

u
r 

pr
e

p
ar

a
tio

n
 o

f 
th

e 
fin

a
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
e

nt
s.

 

M
ee

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
ar

ly
 c

lo
se

 t
im

e
fr

a
m

e

B
rin

gi
ng

 f
o

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
st

a
tu

to
ry

 d
at

e 
fo

r 
p

ub
lic

at
io

n
 o

f a
ud

ite
d

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

e
nt

 
a

cc
ou

nt
s 

to
 3

1
 J

u
ly

 t
h

is
 y

ea
r,

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e

 w
ho

le
 s

ec
to

r,
 is

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
h

a
lle

ng
e 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
ri

tie
s 

a
nd

 a
ud

ito
rs

 a
lik

e.
 F

o
r 

au
th

or
iti

e
s,

 th
e 

tim
e 

av
ai

la
b

le
 to

 p
re

p
ar

e 
th

e
 

a
cc

ou
nt

s 
is

 c
u

rt
a

ile
d,

 w
h

ile
, 

a
s 

au
di

to
rs

 w
e

 h
av

e
 a

 s
h

or
te

r 
p

er
io

d
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
o

ur
 w

or
k 

a
nd

 f
a

ce
 a

n 
ev

en
 m

or
e 

si
g

n
ifi

ca
nt

 p
ea

k 
in

 o
u

r 
w

or
kl

oa
d 

th
an

 p
re

vi
o

us
ly

.

W
e 

ha
ve

 c
ar

ef
ul

ly
 p

la
nn

ed
 h

ow
 w

e 
ca

n
 m

a
ke

 t
he

 b
es

t u
se

 o
f t

he
 r

e
so

u
rc

es
 a

va
ila

b
le

 
to

 u
s 

d
u

rin
g 

th
e 

fin
a

l a
cc

o
un

ts
 p

e
rio

d.
 A

s 
w

el
l a

s 
in

cr
e

a
si

n
g 

th
e 

o
ve

ra
ll 

le
ve

l o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es
 a

va
ila

b
le

 to
 d

el
iv

e
r 

a
ud

its
, w

e 
h

av
e 

fo
cu

se
d 

o
n:

•
br

in
g

in
g 

fo
rw

a
rd

 a
s 

m
u

ch
 w

or
k 

as
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 to
 in

te
rim

 a
ud

its

•
st

ar
tin

g 
w

or
k 

on
 fi

na
l a

cc
ou

n
ts

 a
u

di
ts

 a
s 

ea
rly

 a
s 

p
o

ss
ib

le
, b

y 
a

gr
e

e
in

g
 w

hi
ch

 
a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
w

ill
 h

a
ve

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
p

re
pa

re
d 

si
g

n
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 b

ef
or

e
 t

he
 e

n
d 

of
 M

ay

•
se

ek
in

g 
fu

rt
h

er
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

ci
es

 in
 t

h
e 

w
ay

 w
e 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t o
ur

 a
ud

its

•
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
ith

 y
ou

 t
o 

a
g

re
e

 d
et

ai
le

d
 p

la
n

s 
to

 m
ak

e 
th

e
 a

ud
its

 r
un

 s
m

o
ot

hl
y,

 in
cl

u
di

n
g 

e
ar

ly
 a

g
re

e
m

en
t 

of
 a

u
di

t d
at

es
, w

or
ki

n
g 

pa
pe

r 
an

d 
da

ta
 r

e
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 e

ar
ly

 
d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 o

n
 p

ot
e

n
tia

lly
 c

o
nt

en
tio

u
s 

ite
m

s.

W
e 

ar
e 

sa
tis

fie
d

 th
a

t,
 if

 a
ll 

th
es

e
 p

la
ns

 a
re

 im
pl

em
en

te
d

, w
e

 w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

yo
ur

 a
ud

it 
an

d 
th

os
e 

o
f o

u
r 

o
th

er
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
e

nt
 c

lie
n

ts
 in

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t t
im

e
 t

o 
m

e
et

 th
e 

e
ar

lie
r 

d
ea

dl
in

e
. 

C
li

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

W
he

re
 in

d
iv

id
u

al
 c

lie
n

ts
 d

o
 n

ot
 d

el
iv

e
r 

to
 t

he
 ti

m
e

ta
bl

e 
a

gr
ee

d,
 w

e
 n

e
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

a
t 

th
is

 d
oe

s 
n

o
t i

m
p

ac
t o

n 
au

di
t 

q
ua

lit
y 

o
r 

a
bs

o
rb

 a
 d

is
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

at
e 

a
m

o
un

t 
of

 ti
m

e
, 

th
e

re
b

y 
di

sa
dv

an
ta

gi
ng

 o
th

e
r 

cl
ie

nt
s.

 W
e

 w
ill

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 c
o

nd
uc

t a
ud

its
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 t
h

e
 

tim
e

ta
bl

e 
se

t o
ut

 in
 a

u
di

t p
la

n
s 

(a
s 

d
e

ta
ile

d 
o

n 
th

e 
p

re
vi

ou
s 

p
ag

e
).

 W
h

er
e 

th
e 

e
la

ps
ed

 
tim

e
 t

o 
co

m
p

le
te

 a
n

 a
ud

it 
e

xc
e

ed
s 

th
a

t 
ag

re
ed

 d
u

e 
to

 a
 c

lie
n

t n
o

t m
ee

tin
g

s 
its

 
o

bl
ig

a
tio

ns
 w

e 
w

ill
 n

o
t b

e 
a

bl
e 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 t

e
am

 o
n 

si
te

. S
im

ila
rl

y,
 w

h
er

e 
a

dd
iti

o
n

al
 

re
so

u
rc

es
 a

re
 n

e
ed

ed
 to

 c
om

p
le

te
 t

he
 a

ud
it 

du
e 

to
 a

 c
lie

n
t n

ot
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

ei
r 

o
bl

ig
a

tio
ns

 w
e 

ar
e 

n
ot

 a
bl

e
 t

o 
g

u
ar

a
n

te
e

 t
he

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e 
a

ud
it 

by
 t

h
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

d
ea

dl
in

e
. S

u
ch

 a
u

d
its

 a
re

 u
n

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e

 r
e

-s
ta

rt
e

d 
u

nt
il 

ve
ry

 c
lo

se
 to

, 
or

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 
st

a
tu

to
ry

 d
ea

dl
in

e
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 it

 is
 h

ig
hl

y 
lik

e
ly

 t
h

at
 th

es
e

 a
u

di
ts

 w
ill

 in
cu

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

a
ud

it 
fe

e
s.

100



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

13

In
d

ep
e

nd
en

ce
 &

 n
on

-a
ud

it 
se

rv
ic

e
s

A
u

d
it

o
r 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
en

c
e

E
th

ic
a

l S
ta

n
da

rd
s 

a
nd

 I
S

A
 (

U
K

) 
2

6
0 

re
q

ui
re

 u
s 

to
 g

iv
e 

yo
u

 t
im

el
y 

d
is

cl
o

su
re

 o
f 

a
ll 

si
g

ni
fic

an
t f

a
ct

s 
a

nd
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 th
at

 m
ay

 b
e

a
r 

u
po

n
 th

e 
in

te
g

rit
y,

 o
b

je
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 in
de

pe
n

de
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

fir
m

 
o

r 
co

ve
re

d 
p

er
so

ns
. r

e
la

tin
g

 to
 o

u
r 

in
d

e
pe

nd
en

ce
. W

e
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 y
o

u 
to

 c
on

ta
ct

 u
s 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

es
e 

or
 a

n
y 

o
th

e
r 

in
de

pe
n

de
nc

e 
is

su
es

 w
ith

 u
s.

 W
e

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 d

is
cu

ss
 w

ith
 y

ou
 if

 w
e 

m
a

ke
 

a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

nt
 ju

dg
e

m
e

nt
s 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 m

at
te

rs
.

W
e 

co
n

fir
m

 t
ha

t t
he

re
 a

re
 n

o
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

n
t f

a
ct

s 
o

r 
m

at
te

rs
 th

at
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

ou
r 

in
de

p
en

de
nc

e
 a

s 
a

ud
ito

rs
 th

at
 w

e
 a

re
 r

eq
ui

re
d

 o
r

w
is

h
 t

o 
dr

a
w

 t
o

 y
o

ur
 a

tt
en

tio
n

. W
e

 h
a

ve
 c

om
p

lie
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 
F

in
a

nc
ia

l R
e

po
rt

in
g

 C
o

u
nc

il'
s 

E
th

ic
a

l S
ta

nd
ar

d 
a

nd
 w

e 
as

 a
 fi

rm
, a

nd
 e

ac
h 

co
ve

re
d 

p
er

so
n

, c
on

fir
m

 t
h

at
 w

e 
a

re
 in

de
pe

nd
e

nt
 a

n
d

a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 e
xp

re
ss

 a
n 

ob
je

ct
iv

e
 o

pi
n

io
n 

o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

a
te

m
e

nt
s.

 F
ur

th
er

, w
e 

ha
ve

 c
om

p
lie

d 
w

ith
 t

h
e 

re
q

ui
re

m
e

nt
s 

o
f t

he
 N

at
io

n
a

l A
ud

it 
O

ff
ic

e
’s

 A
ud

ito
r 

G
u

id
an

ce
 N

ot
e 

01
 is

su
e

d 
in

D
ec

e
m

b
er

 2
01

6 
w

h
ic

h
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t s
up

p
le

m
e

nt
ar

y 
g

ui
da

nc
e 

o
n 

et
h

ic
al

 r
eq

u
ire

m
e

nt
s 

fo
r 

a
ud

ito
rs

 o
f l

o
ca

l p
u

bl
ic

 b
o

di
e

s.
 

W
e 

co
n

fir
m

 t
ha

t w
e 

h
av

e 
im

p
le

m
e

nt
ed

 p
o

lic
ie

s 
an

d
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
re

q
u

ire
m

e
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

n
da

rd
. F

or
 t

h
e

 p
u

rp
os

es
 o

f o
ur

 a
ud

it 
w

e 
h

av
e 

m
a

de
 e

nq
ui

rie
s 

of
 a

ll 
G

ra
n

t 
T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

 te
a

m
s 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
to

 t
he

 F
un

d.
 

N
o

n
-a

u
d

it
 s

er
vi

c
es

N
o 

no
n-

au
di

t 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

w
e

re
 id

e
nt

ifi
ed

 in
 r

e
sp

ec
t o

f 
th

e
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d.

 A
n

y 
ch

a
ng

es
 a

nd
 fu

ll 
d

et
ai

ls
 o

f 
al

l f
e

es
 c

ha
rg

ed
 fo

r 
au

di
t 

re
la

te
d 

a
nd

 n
on

-a
ud

it 
re

la
te

d
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

b
y 

G
ra

n
t T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 b
y 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n

 I
nt

er
n

a
tio

na
l L

im
ite

d 
n

et
w

o
rk

 m
em

b
er

 F
irm

s 
w

ill
 b

e
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 o
ur

 A
u

di
t F

in
d

in
gs

 r
ep

or
t a

t t
he

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

o
f t

he
 a

u
d

it.

101



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

A
pp

en
di

ce
s

A
.

R
ev

is
ed

 I
S

A
s

102



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

15

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

: 
 R

ev
is

e
d 

IS
A

s

D
et

ai
le

d
 b

el
o

w
 is

 a
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f t
he

 k
ey

 c
h

an
g

es
 im

pa
ct

in
g 

th
e

 a
ud

ito
r’s

 r
e

po
rt

 fo
r 

a
ud

its
 o

f 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

t f
o

r 
p

e
rio

ds
 c

om
m

en
ci

ng
 o

n 
o

r 
af

te
r 

17
 J

un
e

 2
0

16
.

S
ec

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
au

d
it

o
r'

s 
re

p
o

rt
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
en

ts

C
o

n
cl

u
s

io
n

s
 r

el
at

in
g

 t
o

 g
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c

er
n

W
e 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

qu
ir

ed
 to

 c
on

cl
u

d
e 

a
nd

 r
e

p
or

t 
w

h
et

he
r:

•
T

h
e 

di
re

ct
o

rs
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e 
g

oi
ng

 c
on

ce
rn

 b
a

si
s 

of
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g
 is

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e

 

•
T

h
e 

di
re

ct
o

rs
 h

a
ve

 d
is

cl
o

se
d

 id
e

nt
ifi

ed
 m

at
er

ia
l u

n
ce

rt
ai

n
tie

s 
th

at
 m

a
y 

ca
st

 s
ig

n
ifi

ca
nt

 d
o

ub
t a

bo
u

t t
he

 F
u

nd
’s

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 a

s 
a 

g
oi

n
g 

co
n

ce
rn

. 

M
at

er
ia

l u
n

c
er

ta
in

ty
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 g
o

in
g

 
c

o
n

ce
rn

W
e 

w
ill

 n
e

ed
 t

o
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

b
rie

f 
de

sc
rip

tio
n

 o
f 

th
e 

e
ve

n
ts

 o
r 

co
n

di
tio

ns
 id

en
tif

ie
d

 th
at

 m
ay

 c
as

t s
ig

ni
fic

an
t d

ou
bt

 o
n

 th
e

 F
u

nd
's

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 

co
n

tin
ue

 a
s 

a 
g

oi
ng

 c
on

ce
rn

w
h

en
 a

 m
a

te
ria

l u
nc

er
ta

in
ty

 h
a

s 
b

ee
n

 id
e

n
tif

ie
d

 a
nd

 a
d

e
qu

at
el

y 
d

is
cl

o
se

d
 in

 t
h

e 
fin

a
n

ci
a

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

G
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 m

a
te

ri
al

 u
n

ce
rt

ai
nt

ie
s 

ar
e

 n
o

 lo
n

g
er

 r
e

po
rt

ed
 in

 a
n

 E
m

ph
as

is
 o

f M
at

te
r 

se
ct

io
n

 in
 o

u
r 

a
u

di
t 

re
po

rt
.

O
th

er
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

W
e 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

qu
ir

ed
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

a
 s

ec
tio

n
 o

n
 o

th
er

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 w
h

ic
h 

in
cl

u
de

s:

•
R

e
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 m

an
ag

em
e

nt
 a

nd
 a

ud
ito

rs
 r

e
ga

rd
in

g
 o

th
er

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

•
A

 s
ta

te
m

en
t t

ha
t t

he
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
a

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 d
o

es
 n

o
t 

co
ve

r 
th

e
 o

th
er

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 u
n

le
ss

 r
e

qu
ire

d
 b

y 
la

w
 o

r 
re

g
ul

a
tio

n

•
R

e
po

rt
in

g
 in

co
n

si
st

en
ci

es
 o

r 
m

is
st

a
te

m
e

nt
s 

w
h

e
re

 id
en

tif
ie

d

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it

o
r

W
e 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

qu
ir

ed
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e

 r
e

sp
e

ct
iv

e
 r

e
sp

o
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

fo
r 

d
ire

ct
or

s 
a

nd
 u

s,
 a

s 
a

ud
ito

rs
, r

eg
ar

di
n

g 
go

in
g 

co
nc

er
n.

F
o

rm
a

t 
o

f 
th

e 
re

p
o

rt
T

he
 o

pi
n

io
n 

se
ct

io
n 

a
pp

ea
rs

 fi
rs

t f
o

llo
w

e
d 

by
 t

h
e

 b
a

si
s 

o
f 

op
in

io
n

 s
ec

tio
n.

103



©
 2

0
18

 G
ra

nt
 T

h
or

nt
o

n 
U

K
 L

LP
  

|  
E

xt
e

rn
al

 A
u

di
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ou

th
w

a
rk

 P
e

n
si

on
 F

u
nd

  
|  

20
1

7/
18

D
R

A
FT

©
 2

01
7 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

gh
ts

 r
es

e
rv

e
d.

‘G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n’

 r
e

fe
rs

 t
o

 th
e 

b
ra

nd
 u

nd
e

r 
w

hi
ch

 t
he

 G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e,
 t

a
x 

an
d 

ad
vi

so
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

s
to

th
ei

r 
cl

ie
nt

s 
a

nd
/o

r 
re

fe
rs

 to
 o

ne
 o

r 
m

o
re

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 a

s 
th

e
 c

o
nt

e
xt

 r
eq

ui
re

s.

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

 is
 a

 m
e

m
b

er
 f

ir
m

 o
f 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
a

tio
na

l 
L

td
 (

G
T

IL
).

 G
T

IL
 a

nd
 t

he
 m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

a
re

 n
o

t 
a

 w
or

ld
w

id
e

p
ar

tn
e

rs
hi

p.
 G

T
IL

 a
nd

 e
ac

h 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
 is

 a
 

se
pa

ra
te

 le
g

al
 e

nt
ity

. S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

e
re

d 
by

 t
he

 m
e

m
b

er
 f

ir
m

s.
 G

T
IL

 d
o

es
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o

 c
lie

nt
s.

 G
T

IL
 a

nd
 i

ts
 m

e
m

be
r 

fir
m

s 
ar

e
 n

o
t 

a
ge

nt
s 

o
f, 

an
d

 d
o 

no
t 

ob
lig

at
e,

 o
ne

 
a

no
th

e
r 

an
d 

ar
e 

no
t 

lia
b

le
 fo

r 
o

ne
 a

no
th

er
’s

 a
ct

s 
o

r 
om

is
si

on
s.

 

g
ra

n
tt

h
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k

104



Item No:
11.

Classification:
Open

Date:
19 February 2018

Meeting Name:
Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee  

Report title: Internal Audit and anti-fraud update

Wards or Groups affected: All

From: Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That the audit, governance and standards committee note the update on 
internal audit work attached as Appendix A.

2. That the audit, governance and standards committee note the update on anti-
fraud work attached as Appendix B.

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

3. The role of internal auditors is to provide independent, objective assurance 
designed to add value and improve the council’s performance.  It assists the 
council to achieve its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach 
to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes.  An update on the work of internal audit is attached as 
Appendix A.

4. The anti-fraud service has established three key areas of work:

 Reactive – work which focuses on investigating and pursuing those who 
commit fraud against the council.

 Proactive – work which focuses on the identification, deterrence and 
prevention of fraud.

 Financial – work which focuses on recovery of the proceeds of crime.

Community impact statement

5. This report is not considered to have a direct impact on local people and 
communities. 

Resource implications

6. The cost of the internal audit and anti-fraud service is contained within existing 
budgets for 2017-18.

Consultation

7. The 2017-18 internal audit plan was subject to consultation with strategic 
directors, directors and key staff.

105
Agenda Item 11



SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

8. None required.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held at Contact
None

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix A Internal Audit 
Appendix B Anti-fraud update report

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Jennifer Seeley, Director of Finance
Report Author Jennifer Seeley, Director of Finance

Version Final 
Version Date 7 February 2018
Key Decision No

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /
 CABINET MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included
Director of Law and 
Democracy

N/A N/A

Strategic Director of 
Finance and Governance

N/A N/A

Cabinet Member N/A N/A
Final report sent to Constitutional Team 7 February 2018

106



 
 

     

 

 
 

 
 

 

   LO
N

D
O

N
 B

O
RO

U
G

H
 O

F 
SO

U
TH

W
A

RK
 

IN
TE

RN
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 P

RO
G

RE
SS

 R
EP

O
RT

 

A
ud

it
, 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e 
 

19
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
18

 

APPENDIX A107



Pa
ge
 |
 2
  

 CO
N

TE
N

TS
 

1.
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
ga

in
st

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 p

la
n 

   
   

  
3 

2.
 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 p

la
n 

20
17

-1
8 

– 
st

at
us

 r
ep

or
t 

4 

3.
 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 f

in
di

ng
s 

20
17

-1
8 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
la

st
 m

ee
ti

ng
  

9 

4.
 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
st

at
us

   
  

17
 

5.
 

O
ve

rd
ue

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
18

 

6.
 

Ke
y 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 

32
 

Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 

 

I -
 D

ef
in

it
io

ns
 o

f 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 
33

 

108



Pa
ge
 |
 3
  

 1.
 P

RO
G

RE
SS

 A
G

A
IN

ST
 IN

TE
RN

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 P
LA

N
 

Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 t

he
 r

ep
or

t 

Th
is

 r
ep

or
t 

in
fo

rm
s 

So
ut

hw
ar

k 
Co

un
ci

l’
s 

au
di

t,
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
st

an
da

rd
s 

co
m

m
it

te
e 

of
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
ad

e 
by

 B
D

O
 f

or
 w

or
k 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

ga
in

st
 t

he
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
20

17
-1

8 
si

nc
e 

th
e 

la
st

 m
ee

ti
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
it

te
e 

on
 2

2 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
17

. 
It

 
su

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

he
 w

or
k 

w
e 

ha
ve

 d
on

e,
 t

og
et

he
r 

w
it

h 
ou

r 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 s
ys

te
m

s 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 t

he
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

w
e 

ha
ve

 
ra

is
ed

. 
O

ur
 w

or
k 

co
m

pl
ie

s 
w

it
h 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

ec
to

r 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it

 
St

an
da

rd
s.

  

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

an
d 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 

As
 p

ar
t 

of
 o

ur
 a

ud
it

 a
pp

ro
ac

h,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 a

gr
ee

d 
te

rm
s 

of
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 p

ie
ce

 o
f 

w
or

k 
w

it
h 

m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 id
en

ti
fy

in
g 

th
e 

he
ad

lin
e 

an
d 

su
b-

ri
sk

s 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ov
er

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
as

si
gn

m
en

t.
 

Th
is

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
is

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

us
 t

o 
gi

ve
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o 
m

it
ig

at
e 

th
e 

ri
sk

s 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

. 
 

O
ur

 m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

fo
ur

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 le

ve
ls

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f 
ou

r 
ov

er
al

l c
on

cl
us

io
ns

 a
s 

to
 t

he
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
op

er
at

io
na

l 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

sy
st

em
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 -
 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l,

 m
od

er
at

e,
 li

m
it

ed
 o

r 
no

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
. 

Th
e 

fo
ur

 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

le
ve

ls
 a

re
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

he
 o

pi
ni

on
 g

iv
en

 
do

es
 n

ot
 g

ra
vi

ta
te

 t
o 

a 
"s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y"

 o
r 

m
id

dl
e 

ba
nd

 g
ra

di
ng

. 
U

nd
er

 a
ny

 s
ys

te
m

 w
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
a 

ju
dg

em
en

t 
w

he
n 

m
ak

in
g 

ou
r 

ov
er

al
l a

ss
es

sm
en

t.
  T

he
 d

ef
in

it
io

ns
 f

or
 o

ur
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 
le

ve
ls

 a
re

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 t

he
 a

pp
en

di
x 

to
 t

hi
s 

re
po

rt
. 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 p

la
n 

20
17

-1
8 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
ga

in
st

 t
he

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 p

la
n 

fo
r 

20
17

-1
8 

is
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 
se

ct
io

n 
2.

 W
he

re
 r

ep
or

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 f
in

al
is

ed
, 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
fi

nd
in

gs
 

fr
om

 e
ac

h 
au

di
t 

ar
e 

su
m

m
ar

is
ed

 in
 s

ec
ti

on
 3

. 

Ch
an

ge
s 

to
 t

he
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 p
la

n 
20

17
-1

8 

Fi
ve

 a
dd

it
io

na
l a

ud
it

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
qu

es
te

d:
 

- 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 –
 a

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
m

ee
ti

ng
 o

n 
22

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

17
 

- 
Ch

ar
ge

ba
ck

s 
– 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
op

er
at

io
na

l 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

ch
ar

ge
ba

ck
 p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 w
it

h 
re

ga
rd

s 
to

 h
ou

si
ng

 r
en

ts
. 

- 
Ve

tt
in

g 
– 

cr
im

in
al

 c
on

vi
ct

io
ns

 –
 t

o 
re

vi
ew

 t
he

 a
de

qu
ac

y 
of

 t
he

 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
an

d 
ve

tt
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
 

- 
Le

db
ur

y 
es

ta
te

 –
 c

as
h 

pa
ym

en
ts

 –
 t

o 
re

vi
ew

 t
he

 a
de

qu
ac

y 
of

 t
he

 
co

nt
ro

ls
  

- 
H

ou
si

ng
 e

st
at

e 
ac

ce
ss

 lo
ck

s 
– 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 o
ve

r 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

re
st

ri
ct

ed
 a

re
as

. 

Tw
o 

au
di

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ef

er
re

d 
to

 2
01

8-
19

: 

- 
Es

ta
te

s 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Po

lic
y 

– 
th

e 
sy

st
em

s 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

la
ye

d,
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
th

e 
au

di
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 in

 q
ua

rt
er

 o
ne

 o
f 

20
18

-1
9.

 
- 

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

 w
as

te
 (

du
e 

to
 r

es
tr

uc
tu

ri
ng

 u
nd

er
w

ay
) 

w
ill

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t 

in
 2

01
8-

19
. 

Th
e 

au
di

t 
ha

s 
be

en
 r

ep
la

ce
d 

w
it

h 
Fo

od
 S

af
et

y,
 a

t 
th

e 
re

qu
es

t 
of

 m
an

ag
em

en
t.

 

Fo
llo

w
 u

p 
 

D
et

ai
ls

 o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
 u

p 
of

 a
ll 

hi
gh

 a
nd

 m
ed

iu
m

 p
ri

or
it

y 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 s

ec
ti

on
 4

. 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

au
di

ts
  

Th
e 

au
di

t 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
is

 p
ro

gr
es

si
ng

 a
s 

pl
an

ne
d.

 W
he

re
 a

 f
in

al
 r

ep
or

t 
ha

s 
be

en
 is

su
ed

, 
th

e 
au

di
t 

op
in

io
ns

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 s

ec
ti

on
 2

. 
 

N
on

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

BD
O

 

BD
O

 h
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 s
in

ce
 t

he
 la

st
 m

ee
ti

ng
: 

- 
Fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 a
 r

is
k 

w
or

ks
ho

p 
on

 v
io

le
nt

 w
ar

ni
ng

 m
ar

ke
rs

 
- 

Su
pp

or
te

d 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

an
ti

-f
ra

ud
 t

ea
m

 o
n 

an
 o

ng
oi

ng
 in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

109



Pa
ge
 |
 4
  

 2.
 IN

TE
RN

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 P
LA

N
 2

01
7-

18
 –

 S
TA

TU
S 

RE
PO

RT
 

A
ud

it
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
/ 

au
di

t 
sp

on
so

r 
D

ay
s 

Ti
m

el
in

es
 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 o

pi
ni

on
 

St
ar

t 
Cl

os
in

g 
m

ee
ti

ng
 /

 
St

at
us

 
D

ra
ft

 
Fi

na
l 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

D
es

ig
n 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

IT
 n

et
w

or
k 

se
cu

ri
ty

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 

m
od

er
ni

se
 

25
 

6/
4/

20
17

 
14

/4
/2

01
7 

25
/4

/2
01

7 
16

/5
/2

01
7 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

17
 

Li
m

it
ed

 
N

o 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
en

er
gy

 
H

ea
d 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

15
 

24
/4

/2
01

7 
15

/6
/2

01
7 

16
/6

/2
01

7 
23

/6
/2

01
7 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

17
 

M
od

er
at

e 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 

H
om

e 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

ch
ar

ge
s 

to
 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 o

f 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

an
d 

as
se

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

15
 

10
/4

/2
01

7 
7/

6/
20

17
 

16
/6

/2
01

7 
26

/6
/2

01
7 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

17
 

M
od

er
at

e 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 

H
ou

si
ng

 
ad

ap
ta

ti
on

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 a

ss
et

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
10

 
10

/4
/2

01
7 

8/
6/

20
17

 
20

/6
/2

01
7 

1/
8/

20
17

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
17

 
M

od
er

at
e`

 
M

od
er

at
e 

Ap
ex

 a
ss

et
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 a
ss

et
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

15
 

20
/6

/2
01

7 
27

/7
/2

01
7 

1/
8/

20
17

 
2/

8/
20

17
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

17
 

Li
m

it
ed

 
M

od
er

at
e 

El
ec

to
ra

l 
se

rv
ic

es
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 

20
 

24
/7

/2
01

7 
24

/8
/2

01
7 

13
/9

/2
01

7 
16

/1
0/

20
17

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
17

 
M

od
er

at
e 

M
od

er
at

e 

H
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
m

od
er

ni
se

 
20

 
11

/4
/2

01
7 

9/
6/

20
17

 
14

/8
/2

01
7 

16
/8

/2
01

7 
1/

11
/2

01
7 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

17
 

Li
m

it
ed

 
Li

m
it

ed
 

Re
gu

la
to

ry
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

15
 

2/
5/

20
17

 
19

/6
/2

01
7 

1/
8/

20
17

 
8/

11
/2

01
7 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

17
 

M
od

er
at

e 
 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

Su
sp

en
se

 
ac

co
un

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

se
rv

ic
es

  

15
 

3/
7/

20
17

 
1/

11
/2

01
7 

6/
11

/2
01

7 
9/

11
/2

01
7 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

17
 

Li
m

it
ed

 
Li

m
it

ed
 

M
aj

or
 

re
ge

ne
ra

ti
on

 –
 

pr
im

ar
y 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
re

ge
ne

ra
ti

on
 

20
 

16
/7

/2
01

7 
31

/1
0/

20
17

 
2/

11
/2

01
7 

9/
11

/2
01

7 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
17

 
M

od
er

at
e 

M
od

er
at

e 

110



Pa
ge
 |
 5
  

 A
ud

it
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
/ 

au
di

t 
sp

on
so

r 
D

ay
s 

Ti
m

el
in

es
 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 o

pi
ni

on
 

St
ar

t 
Cl

os
in

g 
m

ee
ti

ng
 /

 
St

at
us

 
D

ra
ft

 
Fi

na
l 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

D
es

ig
n 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
pa

ne
l 

15
 

24
/7

/2
01

7 
24

/8
/2

01
7 

6/
9/

20
17

 
23

/1
0/

20
17

 
10

/1
1/

20
17

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
17

 
M

od
er

at
e 

Li
m

it
ed

 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
pa

ne
l 

25
 

6/
4/

20
17

 
16

/6
/2

01
7 

an
d 

25
/7

/2
01

7 

1/
8/

20
17

 
22

/1
1/

20
17

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
17

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
Li

m
it

ed
 

D
at

a 
pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

di
re

ct
or

 f
in

an
ce

 
an

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 

20
 

1/
12

/2
01

7 
18

/1
2/

20
17

 
22

/1
2/

20
17

 
9/

1/
20

18
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

18
 

n/
a 

 
Ad

vi
so

ry
 R

ev
ie

w
 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
15

 
14

/8
/2

01
7 

20
/1

1/
20

17
 

4/
12

/2
01

7 
10

/1
/2

01
8 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

18
 

M
od

er
at

e 
Li

m
it

ed
 

Co
un

ci
l t

ax
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
 

ex
ch

eq
ue

r 
se

rv
ic

es
 

10
 

23
/1

0/
20

17
 

12
/1

2/
20

17
 

19
/1

2/
20

17
 

25
/1

/2
01

8 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
18

 
M

od
er

at
e 

M
od

er
at

e 

Tr
ea

su
ry

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 

fi
na

nc
e 

5 
16

/1
0/

20
17

 
18

/1
2/

20
17

 
10

/1
/2

01
8 

30
/1

/2
01

8 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
18

 
M

od
er

at
e 

M
od

er
at

e 

H
ou

si
ng

 
be

ne
fi

ts
  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 

20
 

16
/1

0/
20

17
 

12
/1

2/
20

17
 

10
/1

/2
01

7 
 

1/
2/

20
18

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
18

 
M

od
er

at
e 

Li
m

it
ed

 

Re
gi

st
er

 o
f 

in
te

re
st

s 
Co

rp
or

at
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

pa
ne

l 

15
 

15
/7

/2
01

7 
11

/1
0/

20
17

 
an

d 
7/

11
/2

01
7 

10
/1

1/
20

17
 

an
d 

22
/1

/2
01

8 

2/
2/

20
18

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
18

 
Li

m
it

ed
 

Li
m

it
ed

 

N
on

 d
om

es
ti

c 
ra

te
s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 

10
 

13
/1

1/
20

17
 

21
/1

2/
20

17
 

10
/1

/2
01

8 
5/

2/
20

18
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

18
 

M
od

er
at

e 
Li

m
it

ed
 

La
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
15

 
24

/1
0/

20
17

 
22

/1
/2

01
8 

1/
2/

20
18

 
5/

2/
20

18
 

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
18

 
Li

m
it

ed
 

M
od

er
at

e 

Ch
ild

re
n 

w
it

h 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s 
se

rv
ic

e 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 

ca
re

 

15
 

26
/1

0/
20

17
 

14
/1

/2
01

8 
31

/1
/2

01
8 

 
 

 
 

111



Pa
ge
 |
 6
  

 A
ud

it
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
/ 

au
di

t 
sp

on
so

r 
D

ay
s 

Ti
m

el
in

es
 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 o

pi
ni

on
 

St
ar

t 
Cl

os
in

g 
m

ee
ti

ng
 /

 
St

at
us

 
D

ra
ft

 
Fi

na
l 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

D
es

ig
n 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

Ca
sh

le
ss

 
sy

st
em

s 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

ex
ch

eq
ue

r 
se

rv
ic

es
  

20
 

12
/6

/2
01

7 
17

/1
0/

20
17

 
31

/1
0/

20
17

 
Re

po
rt

 b
ei

ng
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

co
m

m
en

t 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
 

 

H
ou

si
ng

 r
en

ts
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
ex

ch
eq

ue
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 

20
 

30
/1

0/
20

17
 

16
/1

/2
01

8 
31

/1
/2

01
8 

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
8 

 
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 c

om
m

un
it

y 
gr

an
ts

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
co

m
m

un
it

ie
s 

15
 

14
/1

2/
20

17
 

29
/1

/2
01

8 
Re

po
rt

in
g 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
8 

 
 

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

sa
fe

ty
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
co

m
m

un
it

ie
s 

15
 

16
/1

0/
20

17
 

18
/1

/2
01

8 
Re

po
rt

in
g 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
8 

 
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
pl

an
ni

ng
/ 

bu
dg

et
 

m
on

it
or

in
g 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
fi

na
nc

e 
/ 

ch
ie

f 
of

fi
ce

r’
s 

te
am

 

25
 

04
/9

/2
01

7 
Re

po
rt

in
g 

 
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
 

 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

– 
de

ci
si

on
 

m
ak

in
g 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
pa

ne
l 

25
 

2/
10

/2
01

7 
Re

po
rt

in
g 

 
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
 

 

H
ou

si
ng

 
st

ra
te

gy
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 –
 

m
ul

ti
-a

ge
nc

y 
w

or
ki

ng
 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 o

f 
re

si
de

nt
 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
ad

ul
ts

’ 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

ch
ild

re
ns

’ 
se

rv
ic

es
 

15
 

26
/6

/2
01

7 
Re

po
rt

in
g 

 
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
 

 

Ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
pa

ne
l 

25
 

19
/6

/2
01

7 
Fi

el
dw

or
k 

 
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
 

 

H
ou

si
ng

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 a

ss
et

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
/ 

10
 

24
/1

0/
20

17
 

Fi
el

dw
or

k 
 

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
8 

 
 

112



Pa
ge
 |
 7
  

 A
ud

it
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
/ 

au
di

t 
sp

on
so

r 
D

ay
s 

Ti
m

el
in

es
 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 o

pi
ni

on
 

St
ar

t 
Cl

os
in

g 
m

ee
ti

ng
 /

 
St

at
us

 
D

ra
ft

 
Fi

na
l 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

D
es

ig
n 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

de
ci

si
on

 
m

ak
in

g 
di

re
ct

or
 o

f 
re

si
de

nt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

M
yS

ou
th

w
ar

k 
ho

m
e 

ow
ne

rs
 

ag
en

cy
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
cu

st
om

er
 

se
rv

ic
es

 

15
 

1/
2/

20
18

 
Fi

el
dw

or
k 

 
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
 

 

Fo
od

 s
af

et
y 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
10

 
2/

1/
20

18
 

Fi
el

dw
or

k 
 

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
8 

 
 

Le
is

ur
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
le

is
ur

e 
15

 
22

/1
/2

01
8 

Fi
el

dw
or

k 
 

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
8 

 
 

G
ro

un
ds

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

co
nt

ra
ct

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
le

is
ur

e 
15

 
22

/1
/2

01
8 

Fi
el

dw
or

k 
 

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
8 

 
 

IT
 d

is
as

te
r 

re
co

ve
ry

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 

m
od

er
ni

se
 

20
 

30
/1

/2
01

8 
Fi

el
dw

or
k 

 
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
 

 

Ca
se

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 la
w

 
an

d 
de

m
oc

ra
cy

 
15

 
1/

2/
20

18
 

Fi
el

dw
or

k 
 

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
8 

 
 

G
oo

ds
 s

to
ra

ge
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
re

si
de

nt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

10
 

1/
2/

20
18

 
Fi

el
dw

or
k 

 
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
 

 

  
 

113



Pa
ge
 |
 8
  

 Sc
ho

ol
s 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 p

la
n 

20
17

-1
8 

In
 a

dd
it

io
n 

to
 t

he
 a

ud
it

s 
ab

ov
e,

 w
e 

ha
ve

 p
ro

gr
am

m
ed

 in
 t

he
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
sc

ho
ol

s 
on

 b
eh

al
f 

of
 t

he
 d

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 e

du
ca

ti
on

, 
to

 t
ak

e 
pl

ac
e 

du
ri

ng
 t

er
m

 t
im

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

M
ay

 2
01

7 
an

d 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8.
  

To
 d

at
e 

w
e 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 1

4 
ou

t 
of

 t
he

 p
la

nn
ed

 2
2 

au
di

ts
, 

si
x 

re
po

rt
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
fi

na
lis

ed
 a

nd
 w

e 
ar

e 
aw

ai
ti

ng
 a

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 t
he

 o
th

er
 s

ix
 

re
po

rt
s.

  

Th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
pi

ni
on

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 f

or
 t

he
 s

ch
oo

ls
 w

he
re

 t
he

 r
ep

or
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 f

in
al

is
ed

 a
re

: 

Sc
ho

ol
 

D
es

ig
n 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

Re
po

rt
ed

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

Al
fr

ed
 S

al
te

r 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

 
M

od
er

at
e 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

Ca
th

ed
ra

l S
ch

oo
l o

f 
St

 S
av

io
ur

 a
nd

  
St

 M
ar

y 
O

ve
ri

e 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
M

od
er

at
e 

Ev
el

in
a 

H
os

pi
ta

l S
ch

oo
l 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

M
od

er
at

e 

G
oo

dr
ic

h 
Co

m
m

un
it

y 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 

G
ra

ng
e 

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

M
od

er
at

e 

St
 G

eo
rg

e'
s 

Ca
th

ed
ra

l R
C 

Pr
im

ar
y 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

M
od

er
at

e 

Ro
be

rt
 B

ro
w

ni
ng

 P
ri

m
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
M

od
er

at
e 

Ri
ve

rs
id

e 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

 
M

od
er

at
e 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

Cr
am

pt
on

 P
ri

m
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

 
M

od
er

at
e 

M
od

er
at

e 

Ph
oe

ni
x 

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

Li
m

it
ed

 
Li

m
it

ed
 

Ild
er

to
n 

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

Li
m

it
ed

 
Li

m
it

ed
 

Cr
aw

fo
rd

 P
ri

m
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

 
Li

m
it

ed
 

Li
m

it
ed

 

Fi
na

l r
ep

or
ts

 is
su

ed
 s

in
ce

 t
he

 la
st

 m
ee

ti
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

au
di

t,
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

co
m

m
it

te
e 

St
 J

am
es

 C
E 

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

M
od

er
at

e 
M

od
er

at
e 

Br
un

sw
ic

k 
Pa

rk
 P

ri
m

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

  
 

114



Pa
ge
 |
 9
  

 3.
 S

U
M

M
A

RY
 O

F 
IN

TE
RN

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S 

 
FG

01
 

D
at

a 
Pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

18
 

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TR
A

VE
L 

A
RE

A
S 

FO
R 

CO
N

SI
D

ER
A

TI
O

N
  

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
m

ak
in

g 
go

od
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 c
om

pl
yi

ng
 w

it
h 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 D
at

a 
Pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 b
y 

M
ay

 
20

18
, 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

r 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t 
is

 
re

qu
ir

ed
. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 f

ou
r 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 t

he
 w

or
k 

be
in

g 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l.

 

Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 a

ud
it

 
Th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 t
hi

s 
re

vi
ew

 is
 t

o 
as

se
ss

 t
he

 a
de

qu
ac

y 
of

 t
he

 a
ct

io
ns

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

ta
ke

n 
by

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

to
 p

re
pa

re
 f

or
 t

he
 in

tr
od

uc
ti

on
 

of
 t

he
 G

D
PR

 o
n 

25
 M

ay
 2

01
8.

 T
hi

s 
w

as
 a

n 
ad

vi
so

ry
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
, 

as
 s

uc
h,

 w
e 

w
ill

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
pi

ni
on

. 

Th
e 

G
en

er
al

 D
at

a 
Pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

(t
he

 G
D

PR
),

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 s

up
er

se
de

 t
he

 D
at

a 
Pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 A
ct

 f
ro

m
 2

5 
M

ay
 2

01
8.

 A
s 

w
el

l a
s 

cl
ar

if
yi

ng
 

ex
is

ti
ng

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
, 

th
e 

G
D

PR
 in

tr
od

uc
es

 n
ew

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 f
or

 d
at

a 
co

nt
ro

lle
rs

 a
nd

 d
at

a 
pr

oc
es

so
rs

. 
Th

e 
G

D
PR

 r
ai

se
s 

th
e 

th
re

sh
ol

d 
fo

r 
fi

ne
s 

w
he

re
 a

 b
re

ac
h 

ha
s 

oc
cu

rr
ed

 f
ro

m
 £

50
0,

00
0 

to
 u

p 
to

 2
0 

m
ill

io
n 

eu
ro

s.
 A

s 
w

it
h 

th
e 

D
PA

, 
th

e 
G

D
PR

 w
ill

 r
eg

ul
at

e 
ho

w
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 
co

lle
ct

, 
pr

oc
es

s 
an

d 
st

or
e 

pe
rs

on
al

 id
en

ti
fi

ab
le

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 t

he
 r

ig
ht

s 
of

 t
he

 in
di

vi
du

al
 t

o 
re

vi
ew

 h
ow

 t
he

ir
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 
be

in
g 

us
ed

. 
Th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 m
an

ag
er

, 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 t

he
 h

ea
d 

of
 f

in
an

ci
al

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
, 

is
 le

ad
in

g 
on

 t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

G
D

PR
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
, 

w
hi

ch
 s

et
s 

ou
t 

ac
ti

on
s 

to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

fr
om

 A
pr

il 
20

17
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

o 
M

ay
 2

01
8.

 L
in

k 
of

fi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 n
om

in
at

ed
 

w
it

hi
n 

ea
ch

 o
f 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 t

he
y 

ar
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

co
-o

rd
in

at
in

g 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
 t

o 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
G

D
PR

. 
 

G
oo

d 
Pr

ac
ti

ce
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t:

 E
ac

h 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
se

t 
au

di
t 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

id
en

ti
fy

 t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 t
he

y 
ho

ld
 a

nd
 t

he
 s

ou
rc

e 
of

 t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

m
an

da
te

d 
th

at
 d

ir
ec

to
rs

 id
en

ti
fy

 a
nd

 a
pp

oi
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
se

t 
ow

ne
rs

. 
Pr

iv
ac

y 
by

 d
es

ig
n:

 A
 d

at
a 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 r

ec
or

d 
is

 b
ei

ng
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
se

t 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
se

t 
au

di
t.

 T
hi

s 
re

co
rd

 in
cl

ud
es

 w
he

th
er

 t
he

re
 is

 a
n 

ex
is

ti
ng

 p
ri

va
cy

 n
ot

ic
e 

or
 w

he
th

er
 t

he
re

 is
 a

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
to

 c
re

at
e 

on
e.

  
D

at
a 

pr
ot

ec
ti

on
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s:
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ex
is

ti
ng

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

fo
r 

re
sp

on
di

ng
 t

o 
su

bj
ec

t 
ac

ce
ss

 r
eq

ue
st

s 
un

de
r 

th
e 

D
PA

 w
ill

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

fo
r 

re
sp

on
se

s 
w

it
hi

n 
a 

ca
le

nd
ar

 m
on

th
 f

ro
m

 2
5 

M
ay

 2
01

8.
 P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
fo

r 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 t
o 

re
qu

es
ts

 r
ai

se
d 

by
 a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 u
nd

er
 t

he
 n

ew
ly

 d
ef

in
ed

 
ri

gh
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 d

ef
in

ed
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 f

or
 r

es
po

nd
in

g 
to

 d
at

a 
br

ea
ch

es
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
ns

 r
ec

or
ds

. 
 

Aw
ar

en
es

s:
 T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 m
an

ag
er

 is
 c

o-
or

di
na

ti
ng

 t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 t
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

to
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
st

af
f 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il.
 

An
 e

-l
ea

rn
in

g 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

la
tf

or
m

 w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 t
o 

de
liv

er
 G

D
PR

 s
pe

ci
fi

c 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 f

ur
th

er
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

So
ur

ce
. 

A
re

as
 id

en
ti

fi
ed

 t
ha

t 
w

ill
 s

up
po

rt
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
in

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 a
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

th
at

 is
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

 w
it

h 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
G

D
PR

: 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t:
 A

 li
nk

 o
ff

ic
er

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
ap

po
in

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

an
d 

ad
ul

ts
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t.

 H
av

in
g 

a 
lin

k 
of

fi
ce

r 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t 

w
ill

 h
el

p 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
ct

io
n 

is
 t

ak
en

 w
it

hi
n 

ea
ch

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

a.
  

G
D

PR
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s:

 W
hi

ls
t 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
G

D
PR

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 s
et

s 
ou

t 
th

e 
ac

ti
on

s 
re

qu
ir

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

it
h 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

G
D

PR
, 

w
e 

fo
un

d 
th

at
 t

he
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
da

te
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

Pl
an

 h
av

e 
no

t 
be

en
 a

gr
ee

d.
  

In
di

vi
du

al
 r

eq
ue

st
s:

 In
di

vi
du

al
s 

ar
e 

ab
le

 t
o 

ra
is

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
ac

ce
ss

 r
eq

ue
st

s 
(S

AR
) 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
w

eb
si

te
. 

W
e 

fo
un

d 
th

at
 t

he
 w

eb
si

te
 c

ou
ld

 
be

 c
on

fi
gu

re
d 

to
 c

ol
le

ct
 a

ll 
re

qu
es

ts
 r

ai
se

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

G
D

PR
, 

so
 t

ha
t 

th
ey

 c
ou

ld
 t

he
n 

be
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 C

ou
nc

il 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t.
 

D
at

a 
Pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 O
ff

ic
er

: 
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
ad

 n
ot

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

 s
en

io
r 

m
em

be
r 

of
 s

ta
ff

 t
o 

ac
t 

as
 t

he
 D

at
a 

Pr
ot

ec
ti

on
 O

ff
ic

er
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 2
5 

M
ay

 2
01

8.
  

115



Pa
ge
 |
 1
0 
 

 EL
01

 
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

18
 

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
A

SS
U

RA
N

CE
 

SU
M

M
A

RY
 O

F 
RE

CO
M

M
EN

D
A

TI
O

N
S 

 

D
es

ig
n 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 

H
ig

h 
0 

M
ed

iu
m

 
5 

M
O

D
ER

A
TE

 
LI

M
IT

ED
 

Lo
w

 
3 

Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 a

ud
it

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 t
he

 m
on

it
or

in
g 

an
d 

ch
ec

ki
ng

 
of

 d
at

a 
pr

ov
id

ed
 t

o 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
nd

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
. 

Ad
de

d 
va

lu
e 

A 
w

ea
kn

es
s 

in
 t

er
m

s 
of

 r
es

po
ns

e 
fr

om
 c

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

yi
ng

 
w

it
h 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 w

as
 id

en
ti

fi
ed

, 
w

it
h 

th
e 

ne
ed

 t
o 

fo
rm

al
is

e 
ac

ti
on

s 
ra

is
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

w
it

h 
cl

ea
r 

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
es

 f
or

 n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e.

  

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 t
ea

m
 c

ov
er

s 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 t
he

 p
hy

si
ca

l s
ta

te
 o

f 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ig
hw

ay
 n

et
w

or
k,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
fl

oo
d 

an
d 

w
in

te
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
th

e 
sc

he
du

le
 f

or
 a

ll 
ca

pi
ta

l r
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 h
ig

hw
ay

s.
 A

 s
ix

-y
ea

r 
co

nt
ra

ct
 (

w
it

h 
an

 
op

ti
on

 t
o 

ex
te

nd
 f

or
 a

 f
ur

th
er

 t
w

o 
ye

ar
s)

 f
or

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 h
ig

hw
ay

s 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, 

pr
oj

ec
t 

de
liv

er
y 

an
d 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 w

as
 

aw
ar

de
d 

to
 C

on
w

ay
 A

ec
om

 f
ro

m
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

13
. 

Th
e 

bu
dg

et
 f

or
 2

01
7-

18
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

re
ac

ti
ve

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
gu

lli
es

, 
w

in
te

r 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
is

 £
2,

03
5K

. 
  

Ke
y 

fi
nd

in
gs

 
• 

Fo
rm

al
 a

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
no

t 
be

en
 t

ak
en

 w
he

n 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 f
ai

le
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 r

es
po

ns
es

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t 
ac

ti
on

s 
w

he
n 

KP
Is

 a
re

 is
su

ed
  

• 
Jo

bs
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
m

m
it

te
d 

to
 t

he
 C

on
fi

rm
 s

ys
te

m
 w

it
ho

ut
 h

av
in

g 
a 

ti
m

ef
ra

m
e 

fo
r 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

ag
re

ed
 

• 
Th

e 
Co

nf
ir

m
 s

ys
te

m
 g

en
er

at
ed

 t
he

 in
co

rr
ec

t 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

a 
jo

b,
 d

es
pi

te
 t

hi
s 

be
in

g 
se

t 
w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s 
• 

In
vo

ic
es

 w
er

e 
re

qu
es

te
d 

fo
r 

pa
ym

en
t 

ou
ts

id
e 

of
 t

he
 s

ch
em

e 
of

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

• 
KP

I d
at

a 
co

ul
d 

no
t 

be
 v

er
if

ie
d 

du
e 

to
 a

 la
ck

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
ta

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

te
am

. 
G

oo
d 

pr
ac

ti
ce

 
• 

Bu
dg

et
 m

on
it

or
in

g 
is

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

on
 a

 r
eg

ul
ar

 b
as

is
, 

w
it

h 
m

on
it

or
in

g 
re

po
rt

s 
pr

od
uc

ed
 a

nd
 v

ar
ia

nc
es

 a
de

qu
at

el
y 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
• 

Th
e 

ke
y 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 d
at

a 
w

as
 h

el
d 

in
 t

he
 C

on
fi

rm
 s

ys
te

m
 a

s 
re

qu
ir

ed
. 

Lo
ok

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d:

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
jo

ur
ne

y 
fr

om
  m

od
er

at
e 

/ 
lim

it
ed

 t
o 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

ss
ur

an
ce

 

D
es

ig
n 

M
od

er
at

e 
 S

ub
st

an
ti

al
 

Re
qu

ir
in

g 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 t
o 

su
bm

it
 f

or
m

al
 r

es
po

ns
es

 a
nd

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
Ev

id
en

ce
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
up

 o
f 

ac
ti

on
s 

ra
is

ed
 w

he
re

 r
ep

ea
t 

no
n-

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 

Re
ta

in
 t

he
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
KP

I d
at

a.
 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

Li
m

it
ed

 
 S

ub
st

an
ti

al
 

U
pd

at
e 

th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

of
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
to

 r
ef

le
ct

 t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 s
ta

ff
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

au
th

or
is

at
io

n 
lim

it
s 

Re
vi

ew
 t

he
 C

on
fi

rm
 s

ys
te

m
 t

o 
id

en
ti

fy
 t

he
 r

ea
so

n 
be

hi
nd

 t
he

 v
ar

ia
nc

es
 in

 t
he

 p
ri

ce
 p

ai
d 

En
su

re
 q

uo
te

s 
ar

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
 f

or
 a

ll 
w

or
ks

 o
ut

si
de

 o
f 

th
e 

sc
he

du
le

 o
f 

ra
te

s.
 

Fo
llo

w
 u

p 
In

 li
ne

 w
it

h 
ag

re
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 d

at
es

, 
th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 u

p 
in

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
8.

 

116



Pa
ge
 |
 1
1 
 

 M
A

01
 

Co
un

ci
l T

ax
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
18

 

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
A

SS
U

RA
N

CE
 

SU
M

M
A

RY
 O

F 
RE

CO
M

M
EN

D
A

TI
O

N
S 

 

D
es

ig
n 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 

H
ig

h 
0 

M
ed

iu
m

 
1 

M
O

D
ER

A
TE

 
M

O
D

ER
A

TE
 

Lo
w

 
2 

Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 a

ud
it

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
it

h 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

on
 t

he
 c

on
ti

nu
in

g 
ad

eq
ua

cy
 o

f 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s,

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 r

ec
or

ds
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o 
m

it
ig

at
e 

th
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 r

is
ks

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 t
he

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

of
 c

ou
nc

il 
ta

x.
 

Ad
de

d 
va

lu
e 

Th
ro

ug
h 

te
st

in
g 

on
 a

 la
rg

e 
sa

m
pl

e 
of

 t
ra

ns
ac

ti
on

s,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 a
bl

e 
to

 c
on

fi
rm

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

l f
ra

m
ew

or
ks

 in
 p

la
ce

 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

o 
w

or
k 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y.

 

Co
un

ci
l t

ax
 is

 c
ha

rg
ed

 o
n 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 b
or

ou
gh

 o
f 

So
ut

hw
ar

k,
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
a 

fi
xe

d 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
va

lu
e 

as
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

O
ff

ic
e 

Ag
en

cy
 (

VO
A)

. 
Ch

ar
ge

s 
fo

r 
20

17
-1

8 
w

er
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

Ca
bi

ne
t 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 a

nn
ua

l c
yc

le
 in

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

17
. 

In
 2

01
6-

17
 a

 t
ot

al
 o

f 
£1

17
m

 w
as

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
; 

fo
r 

20
17

-1
8 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
fo

re
ca

st
in

g 
£1

20
.5

m
 t

o 
be

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
. 

Re
si

de
nt

s 
m

ay
 p

ay
 t

he
ir

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

in
 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 w
ay

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

vi
a 

te
le

ph
on

e,
 o

nl
in

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
, 

ba
nk

 t
ra

ns
fe

rs
 a

nd
 d

ir
ec

t 
de

bi
t 

an
d 

pa
ym

en
t 

m
ay

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
in

 e
it

he
r 

fi
xe

d 
in

st
al

m
en

ts
 o

r 
an

 a
nn

ua
l l

um
p 

su
m

. 
Th

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
se

rv
ic

e 
fo

r 
un

co
lle

ct
ed

 d
eb

ts
 h

as
 r

ec
en

tl
y 

be
en

 b
ro

ug
ht

 in
 h

ou
se

 w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l,

 a
ft

er
 

ha
vi

ng
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
be

en
 o

ut
so

ur
ce

d.
  R

es
id

en
ts

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 e
nt

it
le

d 
to

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 e
xe

m
pt

io
ns

 o
r 

di
sc

ou
nt

s 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 p

er
so

na
l 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

si
ng

le
 p

er
so

n 
di

sc
ou

nt
, 

st
ud

en
t 

di
sc

ou
nt

 a
nd

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

rs
on

 d
is

co
un

t.
 S

uf
fi

ci
en

t 
ev

id
en

ce
 m

us
t 

be
 s

up
pl

ie
d 

to
 t

he
 

co
un

ci
l p

ri
or

 t
o 

th
e 

di
sc

ou
nt

 b
ei

ng
 a

w
ar

de
d,

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

 f
or

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

. 
 

Ke
y 

fi
nd

in
g 

• 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 t

he
 r

et
en

ti
on

 o
f 

su
pp

or
ti

ng
 d

oc
um

en
ta

ti
on

 f
or

 c
ha

rg
eb

ac
ks

, 
m

an
ua

l a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 a
nd

 r
ef

un
ds

. 
G

oo
d 

pr
ac

ti
ce

 
• 

O
ve

ra
ll,

 t
he

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 o

f 
co

nt
ro

ls
 w

as
 s

ho
w

n 
to

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

w
it

h 
so

m
e 

sm
al

l c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

is
su

es
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
st

or
in

g 
of

 
su

pp
or

ti
ng

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 N
or

th
ga

te
, 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

@
 W

or
k 

an
d 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l t

ax
 t

ea
m

’s
 S

ha
re

d 
D

ri
ve

. 
• 

In
 t

he
 a

re
as

 o
f 

ne
w

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s,

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

, 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

, 
in

sp
ec

ti
on

s,
 u

se
r 

ac
ce

ss
, 

di
sc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
w

ri
te

 o
ff

s 
w

e 
fo

un
d 

th
at

 t
he

re
 w

as
 a

 
ro

bu
st

 s
et

 o
f 

co
nt

ro
ls

 t
ha

t 
w

er
e 

be
in

g 
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
it

h.
 

Lo
ok

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d:

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
jo

ur
ne

y 
fr

om
  m

od
er

at
e 

to
 s

ub
st

an
ti

al
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

M
od

er
at

e 
  S

ub
st

an
ti

al
 

Cl
ar

if
y 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 f
or

 t
he

 r
eg

ul
ar

it
y 

of
 c

ha
rg

eb
ac

k 
re

po
rt

s 
Re

vi
ew

 t
he

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 f

or
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
fr

om
 t

he
 C

al
l C

en
tr

e 
En

su
re

 P
ro

-f
or

m
a 

au
th

or
is

at
io

ns
 a

re
 f

ul
ly

 c
om

pl
et

ed
. 

W
he

n 
m

an
ua

l a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 a
re

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 b

y 
ot

he
r 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

 t
he

n 
su

pp
or

ti
ng

 d
oc

um
en

ta
ti

on
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

lle
ct

ed
, 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 t
he

n 
sa

ve
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 a
ct

io
ni

ng
 t

he
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t.
 

Fo
llo

w
 u

p 
Th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 u

p 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 a
nn

ua
l i

nt
er

na
l a

ud
it

 t
o 

be
 c

ar
ri

ed
 o

ut
 in

 q
ua

rt
er

 3
 o

f 
20

18
-1

9.
 

117



Pa
ge
 |
 1
2 
 

 M
A

08
 

Tr
ea

su
ry

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

17
 

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
A

SS
U

RA
N

CE
 

SU
M

M
A

RY
 O

F 
RE

CO
M

M
EN

D
A

TI
O

N
S 

 

D
es

ig
n 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 

H
ig

h 
0 

M
ed

iu
m

 
2 

M
O

D
ER

A
TE

 
M

O
D

ER
A

TE
 

Lo
w

 
2 

Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 a

ud
it

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
it

h 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

on
 t

he
 c

on
ti

nu
in

g 
ad

eq
ua

cy
 o

f 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s,

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 r

ec
or

ds
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o 
m

it
ig

at
e 

th
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 r

is
ks

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 t
re

as
ur

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t.
 

Ad
de

d 
va

lu
e 

A 
re

vi
ew

 w
as

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

co
m

pa
ri

ng
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

tr
ea

su
ry

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 P

ru
de

nt
ia

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s 

ag
ai

ns
t 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 t
he

 in
du

st
ry

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

ri
ti

es
. 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
le

ve
l o

f 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
an

d 
bo

rr
ow

in
gs

 w
er

e 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
ri

ti
es

 in
 G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
to

 c
on

fi
rm

 h
ow

 t
he

 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 t
o 

lim
it

 e
xt

er
na

l b
or

ro
w

in
gs

 c
om

pa
re

d.
 

Th
e 

re
vi

ew
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
in

 2
01

5-
16

 b
y 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

n 
ov

er
 r

el
ia

nc
e 

on
 a

 s
m

al
l n

um
be

r 
of

 s
ta

ff
. 

Su
bs

eq
ue

nt
ly

, 
th

e 
tr

ea
su

ry
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
te

am
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
ed

 a
nd

 e
xp

an
de

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

de
le

ga
ti

on
 o

f 
da

y-
to

-d
ay

 t
as

ks
 t

o 
m

or
e 

ju
ni

or
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
st

af
f 

al
on

gs
id

e 
th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
ti

on
 o

f 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
sc

ru
ti

ny
 a

nd
 a

ut
ho

ri
sa

ti
on

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 
At

 t
he

 t
im

e 
of

 t
he

 a
ud

it
, 

th
es

e 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

w
er

e 
st

ill
 b

ei
ng

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 e

m
be

dd
ed

 t
o 

co
nf

ir
m

 t
he

ir
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

ne
ss

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ne
ss

. 
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

ca
sh

 b
al

an
ce

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 6
5%

, 
fr

om
 £

30
0m

 
to

 £
10

5m
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 a

do
pt

io
n 

of
 a

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

 u
ti

lis
e 

ex
is

ti
ng

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 t

o 
lim

it
 t

he
 e

xt
en

t 
of

 e
xt

er
na

l b
or

ro
w

in
g 

re
qu

ir
ed

. 
C

as
h 

fl
ow

 
fo

re
ca

st
in

g 
is

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

by
 t

he
 t

ea
m

 t
o 

m
on

it
or

 t
he

 le
ve

l o
f 

ca
sh

 h
el

d 
an

d 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 p

os
it

io
n 

of
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 p
er

io
ds

, 
on

 a
 lo

ng
 

te
rm

 a
nd

 s
ho

rt
 t

er
m

 b
as

is
. 

Th
e 

tr
ea

su
ry

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

te
am

 u
se

s 
th

e 
sy

st
em

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
Bl

ac
kr

oc
k 

an
d 

G
ol

dm
an

 S
ac

hs
 t

o 
re

co
rd

 t
he

ir
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

de
ci

si
on

s 
an

d 
m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
w

or
kf

lo
w

 f
or

 t
he

 a
ut

ho
ri

sa
ti

on
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

Ke
y 

fi
nd

in
gs

 
• 

Th
e 

sh
or

t 
te

rm
 c

as
h 

fl
ow

 f
or

ec
as

ti
ng

 s
pr

ea
ds

he
et

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ev

id
en

ce
 w

he
n 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
as

 la
st

 u
pd

at
ed

 a
nd

 t
he

 f
ig

ur
es

 u
se

d 
in

 t
he

 c
as

h 
fl

ow
 f

or
ec

as
ti

ng
 c

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
w

it
h 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 d
oc

um
en

ta
ry

 e
vi

de
nc

e.
 T

he
 c

as
h 

fl
ow

 p
ro

ce
ss

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

. 
• 

Va
ri

an
ce

s 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 in
 r

ec
on

ci
lia

ti
on

s 
w

er
e 

no
t 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
in

 a
 t

im
el

y 
m

an
ne

r.
 

G
oo

d 
pr

ac
ti

ce
 

• 
St

af
f 

w
er

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 t
o 

be
 f

ol
lo

w
ed

 
• 

A 
tr

ea
su

ry
 m

an
ua

l i
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
st

af
f 

w
hi

ch
 d

et
ai

le
d 

th
e 

de
al

er
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 t
o 

be
 f

ol
lo

w
ed

 
• 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 s

tr
ic

t 
au

th
or

is
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

in
 p

la
ce

, 
re

qu
ir

in
g 

ap
pr

ov
al

 b
y 

a 
m

em
be

r 
of

 t
he

 t
re

as
ur

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
te

am
 a

nd
 a

 s
ec

on
d 

ap
pr

ov
al

 b
y 

th
e 

fi
na

nc
e 

te
am

 p
ri

or
 t

o 
an

y 
de

al
s 

be
in

g 
m

ad
e 

• 
Th

er
e 

w
as

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

hi
ch

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 in

 li
ne

 w
it

h 
co

un
ci

l p
ol

ic
y.

 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

M
od

er
at

e 
  S

ub
st

an
ti

al
 

Th
e 

sh
or

t 
te

rm
 c

as
h 

fl
ow

 f
or

ec
as

ti
ng

 s
ys

te
m

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 u

pd
at

ed
 t

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
ve

rs
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l a
nd

 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 r

et
ai

ne
d 

to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
e 

fi
gu

re
s 

us
ed

 
Va

ri
an

ce
s 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 in

 t
he

 r
ec

on
ci

lia
ti

on
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

rr
ec

te
d 

 in
 t

he
 m

on
th

 in
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
st

af
f 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 a

ut
ho

ri
sa

ti
on

 le
ve

ls
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

 

Fo
llo

w
 u

p 
In

 li
ne

 w
it

h 
ag

re
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 d

at
es

, 
th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

fo
llo

w
ed

 u
p 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
18

. 
  

118



Pa
ge
 |
 1
3 
 

 M
A

09
 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it

s 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
8 

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
A

SS
U

RA
N

CE
 

SU
M

M
A

RY
 O

F 
RE

CO
M

M
EN

D
A

TI
O

N
S 

 

D
es

ig
n 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 

H
ig

h 
1 

M
ed

iu
m

 
4 

M
O

D
ER

A
TE

 
LI

M
IT

ED
 

Lo
w

 
5 

Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 a

ud
it

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
it

h 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

on
 t

he
 c

on
ti

nu
in

g 
ad

eq
ua

cy
 o

f 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 

co
nt

ro
ls

, 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

an
d 

re
co

rd
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o 

m
it

ig
at

e 
th

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 r
is

ks
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 h

ou
si

ng
 b

en
ef

it
s 

an
d 

un
iv

er
sa

l c
re

di
t.

 

Ad
de

d 
va

lu
e 

A 
la

ck
 o

f 
st

af
f 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
w

as
 id

en
ti

fi
ed

 in
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 

ar
ea

s,
 in

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

th
e 

w
ri

te
-o

ff
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 t

he
 

ac
ti

on
in

g 
of

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

re
du

ct
io

n 
cl

ai
m

s 
w

it
h 

un
iv

er
sa

l 
cr

ed
it

 e
le

m
en

ts
. 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
Su

pp
or

t 
(L

CT
S)

 is
 a

 k
ey

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l,
 t

hr
ou

gh
 w

hi
ch

 s
ig

ni
fi

ca
nt

 s
um

s 
of

 p
ub

lic
 f

un
ds

 a
re

 
pr

oc
es

se
d.

 T
he

 e
st

im
at

ed
 f

ig
ur

es
 f

or
 2

01
7-

18
 a

re
: 

H
ou

si
ng

 b
en

ef
it

 s
ub

si
dy

 -
 £

18
0 

to
 £

19
0m

 a
ri

si
ng

 f
ro

m
 2

8,
00

0 
cl

ai
m

s,
 C

ou
nc

il 
ta

x 
re

du
ct

io
n 

su
pp

or
t 

- 
£2

1m
 a

ri
si

ng
 f

ro
m

 2
2,

00
0 

cl
ai

m
s.

 A
s 

U
ni

ve
rs

al
 C

re
di

t 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
ro

lle
d 

ou
t,

 t
hi

s 
ha

s 
re

su
lt

ed
 in

 a
 £

60
m

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 t
he

 v
al

ue
 o

f 
cl

ai
m

s 
pr

oc
es

se
d 

in
 t

he
 p

as
t 

tw
o 

ye
ar

s,
 a

nd
 t

he
 b

en
ef

it
s 

te
am

 a
t 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
du

ce
d 

by
 3

0%
. 

Th
e 

ri
sk

 b
as

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 v

al
id

at
in

g 
th

e 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ch
ec

ki
ng

 o
f 

su
pp

or
ti

ng
 d

oc
um

en
ta

ti
on

 h
as

 c
on

ti
nu

ed
. 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l c

on
ti

nu
es

 t
o 

be
 o

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
au

th
or

it
ie

s 
su

pp
or

ti
ng

 t
he

 
D

W
P 

in
 it

s 
tr

ia
lli

ng
 a

nd
 t

es
ti

ng
 o

f 
sy

st
em

s 
re

la
ti

ng
 t

o 
U

ni
ve

rs
al

 C
re

di
t.

  
Ke

y 
fi

nd
in

gs
 

• 
N

o 
an

nu
al

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

us
er

 a
cc

es
s 

le
ve

ls
 is

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

• 
N

o 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

cl
ai

m
an

ts
 f

or
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

ho
us

in
g 

be
ne

fi
ts

 is
 r

ou
ti

ne
ly

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

 
• 

O
ve

rp
ay

m
en

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
 r

ai
se

d 
an

d 
re

co
ve

re
d 

in
 a

 t
im

el
y 

m
an

ne
r 

• 
U

ni
ve

rs
al

 c
re

di
t 

(C
TR

1)
 f

or
m

s 
ar

e 
in

co
rr

ec
tl

y 
re

co
rd

ed
, 

re
su

lt
in

g 
in

 in
co

rr
ec

t 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

ns
. 

W
e 

fo
un

d 
19

 e
rr

or
s 

in
 a

 s
am

pl
e 

of
 2

5 
cl

ai
m

s.
 

• 
Lo

gs
 h

av
e 

no
t 

be
en

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

by
 a

ll 
te

am
s 

to
 r

ec
on

ci
le

 m
an

ua
l a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 a

nd
 w

ri
te

-o
ff

s 
pr

oc
es

se
d 

w
it

h 
th

e 
N

or
th

ga
te

 s
ys

te
m

. 
G

oo
d 

pr
ac

ti
ce

 
• 

Re
al

 t
im

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
(R

TI
) 

an
d 

op
ti

on
al

 a
dd

it
io

na
l r

ea
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
re

 r
ec

or
de

d,
 m

on
it

or
ed

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 in
 a

 t
im

el
y 

m
an

ne
r 

• 
M

an
ua

l a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 t
o 

ho
us

in
g 

be
ne

fi
ts

 o
w

ed
 a

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

an
d 

au
th

or
is

ed
 u

si
ng

 a
 p

ro
-f

or
m

a 
• 

Th
e 

pa
ra

m
et

er
s 

sp
re

ad
sh

ee
t 

w
as

 lo
ck

ed
 f

or
 e

di
ti

ng
 a

nd
 a

 p
ro

 f
or

m
a 

w
as

 in
 p

la
ce

 f
or

 t
he

 t
es

ti
ng

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

th
e 

ne
w

 p
ar

am
et

er
s 

• 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

w
as

 in
 p

la
ce

 d
et

ai
lin

g 
th

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

fo
r 

ne
w

 h
ou

si
ng

 b
en

ef
it

 a
pp

lic
an

ts
 

• 
Re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
AI

M
, 

SA
P 

an
d 

iW
or

ld
 a

re
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n.
 

Lo
ok

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d:

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
jo

ur
ne

y 
fr

om
  m

od
er

at
e 

/ 
lim

it
ed

 t
o 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

ss
ur

an
ce

 

D
es

ig
n 

M
od

er
at

e 
  S

ub
st

an
ti

al
 

En
su

re
 a

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l f

or
 t

he
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 p
ro

 f
or

m
a 

fo
r 

w
ri

te
-o

ff
s 

 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

a 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
w

ri
te

-o
ff

s 
an

d 
m

an
ua

l a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 p
ro

ce
ss

ed
 b

y 
al

l t
ea

m
s,

 
en

su
ri

ng
 t

he
 r

ec
on

ci
lia

ti
on

 is
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

an
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
of

fi
ce

r 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

Li
m

it
ed

  
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
Pr

ov
id

e 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 t
ra

in
in

g 
to

 t
he

 c
la

im
s 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 t

ea
m

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 t
he

 a
cc

ur
ac

y 
of

 c
la

im
s 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

n 
on

go
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

vi
ew

 o
n 

a 
sa

m
pl

e 
of

 c
as

es
 t

o 
id

en
ti

fy
 e

rr
or

s 
 

Re
vi

ew
 a

cc
es

s 
le

ve
ls

 f
or

 t
he

 N
or

th
ga

te
 s

ys
te

m
 

Fo
llo

w
 u

p 
Th

e 
hi

gh
 a

nd
 m

ed
iu

m
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

fo
llo

w
ed

 u
p 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 a

nn
ua

l i
nt

er
na

l 
au

di
t 

to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 
in

 q
ua

rt
er

 3
 o

f 
20

18
-1

9.
 

119



Pa
ge
 |
 1
4 
 

 TR
13

 
Re

gi
st

er
 o

f 
In

te
re

st
s 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

8 

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
A

SS
U

RA
N

CE
 

SU
M

M
A

RY
 O

F 
RE

CO
M

M
EN

D
A

TI
O

N
S 

 

D
es

ig
n 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 

H
ig

h 
2 

M
ed

iu
m

 
2 

LI
M

IT
ED

 
LI

M
IT

ED
 

Lo
w

 
0 

Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 a

ud
it

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

ti
m

el
y 

re
co

rd
in

g 
of

 
fi

du
ci

ar
y 

an
d 

pe
rs

on
al

 in
te

re
st

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ac

ti
on

 t
ak

en
 t

o 
m

an
ag

e 
th

os
e 

in
te

re
st

s 
in

 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g.
 

Ad
de

d 
va

lu
e 

W
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
a 

su
rv

ey
 o

f 
st

af
f 

to
 id

en
ti

fy
 c

ur
re

nt
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

, 
th

e 
re

su
lt

s 
of

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 in
 t

he
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

in
 t

he
 r

ep
or

t.
 In

 
fo

rm
ul

at
in

g 
ou

r 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

an
d 

in
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
w

it
h 

m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 w
e 

ha
ve

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

IT
 e

na
bl

ed
 m

et
ho

ds
 f

or
 t

he
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
of

 d
ec

la
ra

ti
on

s 
of

 
in

te
re

st
s 

in
 li

ne
 w

it
h 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l’

s 
di

gi
ta

l b
y 

de
fa

ul
t 

ai
m

s.
 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l r

eq
ui

re
s 

al
l r

el
ev

an
t 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f 

st
af

f 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

 a
nn

ua
l d

ec
la

ra
ti

on
 o

f 
in

te
re

st
s 

(D
O

I)
 f

or
m

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 A

pr
il 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r.
 A

n 
an

nu
al

 e
m

ai
l i

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

di
re

ct
or

 o
f 

la
w

 a
nd

 d
em

oc
ra

cy
 t

o 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ta
l d

ir
ec

to
rs

, 
w

ho
 a

re
 r

eq
ue

st
ed

 t
o 

fo
rw

ar
d 

on
 t

he
 e

m
ai

l t
o 

th
ei

r 
te

am
s 

w
it

h 
a 

re
m

in
de

r 
th

at
 s

ta
ff

 s
ub

m
it

 t
he

ir
 D

O
Is

 t
o 

th
e 

na
m

ed
 c

on
ta

ct
 w

it
hi

n 
ea

ch
 o

f 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

fi
ve

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

. 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

n 
th

at
 a

ny
 n

ew
 c

on
fl

ic
ts

 o
f 

in
te

re
st

 a
ri

si
ng

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 a
re

 n
ot

if
ie

d 
to

 t
he

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l c
on

ta
ct

. 
Ke

y 
fi

nd
in

gs
 

• 
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l a
ss

ig
ns

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 f

or
 c

ol
le

ct
in

g 
D

O
Is

 t
o 

ea
ch

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

in
di

vi
du

al
ly

. 
Th

is
 h

as
 le

d 
to

 in
co

ns
is

te
nc

ie
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

ho
w

 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
 c

ol
le

ct
, 

m
on

it
or

 a
nd

 r
et

ai
n 

D
O

Is
. 

 
• 

A 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 D
O

Is
 w

er
e 

re
tu

rn
ed

 a
ft

er
 t

he
 d

ea
dl

in
e 

of
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
Ap

ri
l 2

01
7.

 T
he

 e
xa

ct
 n

um
be

r 
is

 n
ot

 d
is

ce
rn

ib
le

 d
ue

 t
o 

th
e 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 

m
on

it
or

in
g 

re
co

rd
s 

be
in

g 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 s
om

e 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
. 

• 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 f
or

 w
ha

t 
st

af
f 

sh
ou

ld
 d

o 
if

 t
he

re
 is

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 c
ir

cu
m

st
an

ce
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 p

ro
ce

ss
 is

 n
ot

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed
  

• 
Th

e 
de

-c
en

tr
al

is
ed

 n
at

ur
e 

of
 t

he
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
of

 D
O

Is
 a

ls
o 

m
ak

es
 it

 h
ar

de
r 

to
 id

en
ti

fy
 c

on
fl

ic
ts

 o
f 

in
te

re
st

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

• 
Th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 f

or
 w

ho
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

m
pl

et
e 

a 
D

O
I w

as
 n

ot
 c

le
ar

 t
o 

24
% 

of
 t

he
 6

5 
st

af
f 

w
ho

 r
es

po
nd

ed
 t

o 
ou

r 
su

rv
ey

 
• 

43
% 

of
 t

he
 6

5 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
st

af
f 

su
rv

ey
ed

 w
er

e 
no

t 
aw

ar
e 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
ce

du
re

 f
or

 w
he

n 
th

ey
 n

ee
d 

to
 u

pd
at

e 
th

ei
r 

D
O

I d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 
G

oo
d 

pr
ac

ti
ce

 
• 

D
O

I f
or

m
s 

w
he

n 
re

tu
rn

ed
 a

re
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
cc

ur
at

el
y 

• 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 
ar

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 s

ub
m

it
 a

 D
O

I f
or

m
 a

nd
 a

re
 p

ro
m

pt
ed

 t
o 

do
 s

o 

Lo
ok

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d:

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
jo

ur
ne

y 
fr

om
  l

im
it

ed
 t

o 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l a
ss

ur
an

ce
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

Li
m

it
ed

 
  S

ub
st

an
ti

al
 

M
ov

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

 c
en

tr
al

is
ed

 s
ys

te
m

 o
f 

co
lle

ct
in

g 
an

d 
m

on
it

or
in

g 
D

O
Is

 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
st

af
f 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 w

ho
 n

ee
ds

 t
o 

co
m

pl
et

e 
a 

D
O

I 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ta
l m

on
it

or
s 

of
 D

O
Is

 a
re

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
st

an
da

rd
is

ed
  

Re
-s

ta
te

 t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f 
w

ho
 n

ee
ds

 t
o 

co
m

pl
et

e 
a 

de
cl

ar
at

io
n 

of
 in

te
re

st
s 

to
 s

ta
ff

 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
no

n-
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

th
e 

re
tu

rn
s 

de
ad

lin
e 

is
 f

ol
lo

w
ed

 u
p 

an
d 

ci
rc

ul
at

ed
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

er
e 

is
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 s
ig

n 
of

f 
on

 t
he

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 D

O
Is

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
a 

qu
ar

te
rl

y 
re

m
in

de
r 

to
 s

ta
ff

 o
f 

th
e 

ne
ed

 t
o 

up
da

te
 D

O
Is

 m
id

-y
ea

r 
 

Fo
llo

w
 u

p 
In

 li
ne

 w
it

h 
ag

re
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 d

at
es

, 
th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

fo
llo

w
ed

 u
p 

in
 M

ay
 2

01
8.

  
 

120



Pa
ge
 |
 1
5 
 

 M
A

02
 

N
N

D
R 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

8 

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
A

SS
U

RA
N

CE
 

SU
M

M
A

RY
 O

F 
RE

CO
M

M
EN

D
A

TI
O

N
S 

 

D
es

ig
n 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 

H
ig

h 
0 

M
ed

iu
m

 
4 

M
O

D
ER

A
TE

 
LI

M
IT

ED
 

Lo
w

 
3 

Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 a

ud
it

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
it

h 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

on
 t

he
 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
op

er
at

io
na

l e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s,

 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

an
d 

re
co

rd
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o 

m
it

ig
at

e 
th

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 r
is

ks
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 t

he
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
of

 
N

at
io

na
l n

on
 d

om
es

ti
c 

ra
te

s.
 

Ad
de

d 
va

lu
e 

Re
vi

ew
s 

of
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 p
ot

en
ti

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 is
su

es
 in

 a
re

as
 

w
it

h 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

no
t 

be
in

g 
sh

ar
ed

 in
 t

ea
m

s 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

a 
co

nt
in

ua
ti

on
 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 in

 t
he

 e
ve

nt
 o

f 
an

 is
su

e 
ar

is
in

g.
 W

e 
ha

ve
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
a 

be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

 o
n 

N
N

D
R 

fo
r 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

 in
co

m
e,

 b
ed

 d
eb

t 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

an
d 

w
ri

te
 o

ff
s 

to
 g

iv
e 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l a

n 
in

di
ca

ti
on

 o
f 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 o

th
er

 m
aj

or
 L

on
do

n 
bo

ro
ug

hs
. 

 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l c

ol
le

ct
s 

N
at

io
na

l n
on

 d
om

es
ti

c 
ra

te
s 

fr
om

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
’s

 r
at

ea
bl

e 
va

lu
e 

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

O
ff

ic
e 

Ag
en

cy
 (

VO
A)

. 
Fo

r 
20

16
-1

7 
a 

to
ta

l o
f 

£2
50

m
 w

as
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

, 
w

it
h 

an
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 

£2
90

m
 t

o 
be

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 f

or
 2

01
7-

18
. 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
al

so
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 t

he
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
of

 a
 le

vy
 f

or
 t

he
 f

iv
e 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 (

BI
D

s)
 

in
 t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
, 

co
ve

ri
ng

 1
,9

14
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s.
 F

or
 2

01
6-

17
 a

 t
ot

al
 o

f 
£3

.7
m

 w
as

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 w

it
h 

an
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 £

3.
8m

 t
o 

be
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 f
or

 2
01

7-
18

. 
Th

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
se

rv
ic

e 
ha

s 
re

ce
nt

ly
 b

ee
n 

br
ou

gh
t 

ba
ck

 in
-h

ou
se

. 
At

 it
s 

m
ee

ti
ng

 o
n 

27
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

17
, 

Ca
bi

ne
t 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 t
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 f
or

 lo
ca

l 
di

sc
re

ti
on

ar
y 

re
lie

f,
 a

nn
ou

nc
ed

 b
y 

ce
nt

ra
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
in

 t
he

 s
pr

in
g 

bu
dg

et
, 

w
it

h 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 O
ct

ob
er

 
20

17
. 

 
Ke

y 
fi

nd
in

gs
 

• 
Re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

VO
A 

to
ta

l p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

an
d 

ra
te

ab
le

 v
al

ue
s 

to
 t

he
 t

ot
al

s 
re

co
rd

ed
 o

n 
N

or
th

ga
te

 a
re

 n
ot

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 w

it
hi

n 
tw

o 
w

ee
ks

 o
f 

th
e 

re
ce

ip
t,

 a
nd

 a
re

 n
ot

 a
lw

ay
s 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
el

y 
au

th
or

is
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

d.
 

• 
Th

er
e 

is
 o

nl
y 

on
e 

of
fi

ce
r 

w
it

h 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

ed
 le

ve
l o

f 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
 t

o 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 id
en

ti
fy

 a
lt

er
at

io
ns

 m
ad

e 
to

 b
us

in
es

s 
pr

op
er

ti
es

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 a

ff
ec

t 
ra

te
ab

le
 v

al
ue

s 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

af
fe

ct
 c

ha
ng

es
 t

o 
bu

si
ne

ss
 r

at
es

  
• 

Re
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

no
t 

al
w

ay
s 

au
th

or
is

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
of

fi
ce

rs
 w

ho
 a

re
 n

ot
 o

n 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l S

ch
em

e 
of

 M
an

ag
em

en
t.

 
• 

Su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 a

ct
io

n 
is

 n
ot

 b
ei

ng
 t

ak
en

 t
o 

fo
llo

w
 u

p 
de

bt
s 

to
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
• 

Ba
d 

de
bt

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
be

in
g 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 w
ri

tt
en

 o
ff

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
ba

si
s 

• 
Q

ua
lit

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

ch
ec

ks
 o

n 
al

l t
yp

es
 o

f 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 t
he

 N
N

D
R 

pr
oc

es
s 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 b

y 
al

l s
ta

ff
 a

re
 in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
Re

ve
nu

es
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t.
 

• 
A 

be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

ni
ne

 L
on

do
n 

bo
ro

ug
hs

 c
om

pa
ri

ng
 v

al
ue

 o
f 

w
ri

te
 o

ff
s,

 b
ad

 d
eb

t 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

, 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 f
or

 a
pp

ea
ls

 a
nd

 c
os

t 
of

 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 2

01
6/

17
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
of

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
fo

un
d 

So
ut

hw
ar

k 
Co

un
ci

l h
ad

 s
ig

ni
fi

ca
nt

ly
 h

ig
he

r 
va

lu
es

 o
f 

w
ri

te
 o

ff
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
..

 

D
es

ig
n 

M
od

er
at

e 
  S

ub
st

an
ti

al
 

Pr
oc

es
si

ng
 n

ew
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
an

d 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 t
o 

ra
te

ab
le

 v
al

ue
s 

fo
r 

al
te

ra
ti

on
s 

Co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

of
 q

ua
lit

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

Li
m

it
ed

  
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
En

su
re

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
it

h 
co

nt
ro

ls
 a

nd
 s

ta
te

 p
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

: 
ti

m
el

y 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f 
VO

A 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

, 
pr

oc
es

si
ng

 o
f 

re
fu

nd
s,

 d
eb

t 
re

co
ve

ry
 a

ct
io

n 
an

d 
w

ri
ti

ng
 o

ff
 o

f 
ba

d 
de

bt
s 

Fo
llo

w
 u

p 
Th

e 
hi

gh
 a

nd
 m

ed
iu

m
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

fo
llo

w
ed

 u
p 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 a

nn
ua

l i
nt

er
na

l 
au

di
t 

to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 
in

 q
ua

rt
er

 3
 o

f 
20

18
-1

9.
 

121



Pa
ge
 |
 1
6 
 

 CX
08

 
La

nd
 C

ha
rg

es
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

8 

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
A

SS
U

RA
N

CE
 

SU
M

M
A

RY
 O

F 
RE

CO
M

M
EN

D
A

TI
O

N
S 

 

D
es

ig
n 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 

H
ig

h 
1 

M
ed

iu
m

 
4 

LI
M

IT
ED

 
M

O
D

ER
A

TE
 

Lo
w

 
1 

Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 a

ud
it

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 o

n 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

la
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

tu
rn

ar
ou

nd
 o

f 
co

m
pl

et
in

g 
ch

ec
ks

 a
nd

 
is

su
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 o

ve
r 

da
ta

 t
ra

ns
fe

r 
an

d 
tr

an
si

ti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

in
 r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 t

he
 t

ra
ns

fe
r 

of
 

ce
rt

ai
n 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

to
 c

en
tr

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t.
 

Ad
de

d 
va

lu
e 

Th
e 

ne
ed

 f
or

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
hi

st
or

ic
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 w
as

 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 a
s 

pa
st

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 h

av
e 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
w

it
ho

ut
 a

ny
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 w

he
th

er
 t

he
se

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

an
d 

in
 li

ne
 w

it
h 

gu
id

an
ce

. 
W

e 
be

nc
hm

ar
ke

d 
th

e 
fe

es
 

ch
ar

ge
d 

by
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
ri

ti
es

. 

Th
e 

la
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 s
er

vi
ce

 is
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 in
to

 t
hr

ee
 s

tr
ea

m
s:

 lo
ca

l l
an

d 
ch

ar
ge

s 
(L

LC
1)

, 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

ri
ty

 e
nq

ui
ri

es
 (

CO
N

29
) 

an
d 

pe
rs

on
al

 s
ea

rc
he

s.
 

Th
e 

La
nd

 C
ha

rg
es

 A
ct

 1
97

2,
 w

it
h 

fu
rt

he
r 

su
pp

or
ti

ng
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n,

 s
ti

pu
la

te
s 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

ti
m

ef
ra

m
es

 t
ha

t 
m

us
t 

be
 a

dh
er

ed
 t

o.
 

Th
e 

fu
ll 

va
lu

e 
of

 la
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 in

 2
01

6-
17

 w
as

 £
68

7,
15

0,
 w

it
h 

£7
13

,0
00

 f
or

ec
as

t 
to

 b
e 

co
lle

ct
ed

 in
 2

01
7-

18
. 

Th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
lo

ca
l l

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 b

ei
ng

 t
ra

ns
fe

rr
ed

 t
o 

La
nd

 R
eg

is
tr

y,
 t

he
 t

im
el

in
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
no

t 
ye

t 
kn

ow
n.

 T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ut
ili

se
s 

th
e 

Ac
ol

ai
d 

so
ft

w
ar

e 
to

 r
ec

or
d 

al
l r

eq
ue

st
s,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 li
nk

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
‘P

ub
lic

 A
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

La
nd

 C
ha

rg
es

’ 
po

rt
al

 w
hi

ch
 e

na
bl

es
 u

se
rs

 t
o 

su
bm

it
 r

eq
ue

st
s 

an
d 

pa
y 

on
lin

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 t

o 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l.
 A

 n
ew

 s
ys

te
m

 is
 b

ei
ng

 p
ro

cu
re

d 
w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 d

iv
is

io
n,

 w
hi

ch
 it

 is
 e

nv
is

ag
ed

 w
ill

 a
dd

re
ss

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 t
he

 
is

su
es

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 in

 t
he

 a
ud

it
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 t
o 

of
fe

r 
on

lin
e 

pe
rs

on
al

 s
ea

rc
he

s 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

co
un

ci
l d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 

th
ro

ug
h 

au
to

m
at

ic
 u

pl
oa

ds
 o

f 
da

ta
 in

to
 t

he
 la

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 r

eg
is

te
r.

 It
 is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
sy

st
em

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
19

. 
  

Ke
y 

fi
nd

in
gs

 
• 

Se
ar

ch
es

 w
er

e 
re

tu
rn

ed
 w

it
ho

ut
 f

ul
l p

ay
m

en
t 

be
in

g 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

nd
 e

rr
or

s 
in

 t
he

 A
co

la
id

 s
ys

te
m

 m
ea

nt
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

un
de

rc
ha

rg
ed

  
• 

Th
er

e 
w

as
 n

o 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
ju

st
if

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

fe
es

 c
ha

rg
ed

 o
r 

ev
id

en
ce

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
fe

es
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

a 
co

st
 r

ec
ov

er
y 

ba
si

s 
• 

Th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 t
o 

of
fe

r 
a 

pe
rs

on
al

 s
ea

rc
h 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
as

 n
ot

 e
vi

de
nc

ed
 a

s 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 j

us
ti

fi
ed

 
• 

Se
rv

ic
es

 w
ho

 h
ol

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

dd
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

la
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 r
eg

is
te

r 
di

d 
no

t 
ho

ld
 a

 r
ec

or
d 

of
 t

he
se

  
• 

Th
er

e 
w

as
 in

ad
eq

ua
te

 b
ud

ge
t 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

tr
an

si
ti

on
 o

f 
lo

ca
l l

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
s 

to
 L

an
d 

Re
gi

st
ry

. 
G

oo
d 

pr
ac

ti
ce

 
• 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l r

es
po

nd
ed

 t
o 

se
ar

ch
 r

eq
ue

st
s 

w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

ag
re

ed
 t

im
ef

ra
m

es
 

• 
Se

ar
ch

es
 r

et
ur

ne
d 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 

Lo
ok

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d:

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
jo

ur
ne

y 
fr

om
  m

od
er

at
e 

/ 
lim

it
ed

 t
o 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

ss
ur

an
ce

 

D
es

ig
n 

Li
m

it
ed

 
 S

ub
st

an
ti

al
 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 r
eg

ul
ar

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
ic

es
 c

ha
rg

ed
 t

o 
co

nf
ir

m
 t

he
se

 a
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

  
Re

vi
ew

 t
he

 j
us

ti
fi

ca
ti

on
 t

o 
of

fe
r 

a 
pe

rs
on

al
 s

ea
rc

h 
se

rv
ic

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 in
it

ia
l b

ud
ge

ta
ry

 p
re

pa
ra

ti
on

 t
o 

id
en

ti
fy

 p
os

si
bl

e 
to

 m
ak

e 
up

 t
he

 f
al

l i
n 

in
co

m
e 

 
Li

ai
se

 w
it

h 
ot

he
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

en
su

re
 a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 b
ei

ng
 c

ap
tu

re
d 

on
 t

he
 r

eg
is

te
r 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

M
od

er
at

e 
 S

ub
st

an
ti

al
 

Is
su

e 
re

m
in

de
rs

 t
o 

st
af

f 
no

t 
to

 o
pe

n 
se

ar
ch

es
 u

nt
il 

fu
ll 

pa
ym

en
t 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
 

Co
m

pi
le

 r
ep

or
ts

 o
f 

lo
ng

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 b
al

an
ce

s 
to

 id
en

ti
fy

 a
ny

 s
ea

rc
he

s 
re

tu
rn

ed
 w

it
ho

ut
 f

ul
l p

ay
m

en
t 

 

Fo
llo

w
 u

p 
In

 li
ne

 w
it

h 
ag

re
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 d

at
es

, 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

fo
llo

w
ed

 u
p 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
18

. 

122



Pa
ge
 |
 1
7 
 

 4.
 S

U
M

M
A

RY
 O

F 
RE

CO
M

M
EN

D
A

TI
O

N
S 

ST
A

TU
S 

Th
e 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

su
m

m
ar

y 
pr

ov
id

ed
 h

er
e 

re
la

te
s 

to
 2

47
 h

ig
h 

an
d 

m
ed

iu
m

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
fo

llo
w

ed
 u

p 
in

 t
he

 p
er

io
d 

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
16

 t
o 

31
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
8.

 

W
e 

ha
ve

 c
on

fi
rm

ed
 t

ha
t 

19
4 

(7
9%

) 
of

 t
he

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

  

O
f 

th
os

e 
au

di
ts

 f
ol

lo
w

ed
 u

p 
si

nc
e 

ou
r 

la
st

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt

, 
w

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 t
ha

t 
32

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
ha

d 
no

t 
be

en
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
du

e 
da

te
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 f
ou

r 
w

er
e 

hi
gh

 p
ri

or
it

y 
an

d 
28

 w
er

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 p

ri
or

it
y.

 

Th
e 

su
m

m
ar

y 
fi

gu
re

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
re

su
lt

s 
of

 t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

of
 

th
e 

tw
o 

IT
 a

ud
it

s 
an

d 
th

e 
in

te
ri

m
 f

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
of

 t
he

 h
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 a

ud
it

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
co

m
m

it
te

e 
at

 it
s 

m
ee

ti
ng

 
on

 2
2 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

17
. 

Th
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e 
32

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
th

at
 a

re
 o

ve
rd

ue
 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 s

ec
ti

on
 5

 o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

or
t.

 

   

  

123



Pa
ge
 |
 1
8 
 

 5.
 O

VE
RD

U
E 

RE
CO

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S 
A

ud
it

 
Re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

 
Pr

io
ri

ty
  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
D

ue
 D

at
e 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 

20
16

-1
7 

au
di

t 
re

po
rt

s 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

 

Th
e 

m
ar

ke
t 

po
si

ti
on

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

fi
na

lis
ed

, 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 a

nd
 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 p

ar
ti

es
 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
s 

tr
an

sp
ar

en
t 

in
 

it
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
Au

gu
st

 
20

17
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

17
 

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

Th
e 

st
at

em
en

t 
ha

s 
no

t 
be

en
 f

in
al

is
ed

. 
 It

 is
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 t
o 

be
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ta

l m
an

ag
em

en
t 

te
am

s 
(D

M
T)

 
an

d 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

an
d 

ad
ul

ts
 b

oa
rd

 (
CA

B)
 f

or
 

29
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
17

. 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

W
or

k 
pl

an
s 

de
vi

se
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

sh
ou

ld
 r

ec
or

d 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 in

 a
 

pr
io

ri
ty

 o
rd

er
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

da
te

 d
ea

dl
in

es
 

se
t 

so
 t

he
 t

ea
m

’s
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

an
 b

e 
m

on
it

or
ed

 in
 im

pl
em

en
ti

ng
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
pr

io
ri

ti
es

. 
 

W
or

k 
pl

an
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
si

gn
ed

 o
ff

 b
y 

se
ni

or
 m

an
ag

em
en

t.
 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
Ju

ne
 2

01
7 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

18
 

Pa
rt

ia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 

Th
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
la

n 
w

as
 

si
gn

ed
 o

ff
 b

y 
pr

ev
io

us
 d

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

an
d 

th
e 

CC
G

’s
 d

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g.
 T

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 

di
re

ct
or

 h
as

 in
fo

rm
ed

 u
s 

th
at

 t
he

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 s
ig

n 
of

f 
is

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
D

M
T 

(C
D

M
T)

 m
ee

ti
ng

 m
in

ut
es

 a
nd

 t
he

y 
ev

id
en

ce
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

pl
an

 is
 m

on
it

or
ed

 a
t 

CD
M

T 
an

d 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 1
21

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

s.
  

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
tw

o 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

or
k 

pl
an

s.
 O

ne
 is

 
ow

ne
d 

by
 t

he
 s

en
io

r 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
m

an
ag

er
 h

ea
lt

h 
&

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 a

nd
 t

he
 o

th
er

 
is

 o
w

ne
d 

by
 t

he
 a

ss
is

ta
nt

 d
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g.
  

W
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
ot

h 
w

or
k 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
no

te
d 

th
at

 n
ot

 a
ll 

co
lu

m
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 
an

d 
w

e 
al

so
 f

ou
nd

 t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 b

e 
in

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 in

 d
et

ai
l.

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 s

om
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
ar

e 
m

is
si

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
su

ch
 a

s 
ke

y 
co

nt
ac

ts
 a

nd
 m

ile
st

on
es

, 
w

he
re

as
 

so
m

e 
bo

xe
s 

ar
e 

la
be

lle
d 

as
 T

BC
 w

it
ho

ut
 

an
y 

fu
rt

he
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 

124



Pa
ge
 |
 1
9 
 

 

A
ud

it
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
ue

 D
at

e 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Th
e 

ce
nt

ra
l r

ec
or

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

up
da

te
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
ac

cu
ra

te
 o

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 m
on

it
or

in
g 

un
de

rt
ak

en
. 

Th
e 

re
co

rd
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 t
o 

ca
pt

ur
e 

ag
re

ed
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 t

he
ir

 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 f
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

an
d 

re
so

lu
ti

on
. 

 
 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
Ju

ne
 2

01
7 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
18

 

Pa
rt

ia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

e 
W

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 t

he
 m

as
te

r 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

tr
ac

ke
r.

 W
e 

no
te

d 
th

at
 t

he
 

tr
ac

ke
r 

is
 b

ei
ng

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

 o
f 

ke
y 

is
su

es
 f

or
 e

ac
h 

co
nt

ra
ct

 a
nd

 r
ec

or
ds

 o
f 

ag
re

ed
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 f

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
is

 k
ep

t 
se

pa
ra

te
ly

. 
W

e 
ha

d 
a 

di
sc

us
si

on
 w

it
h 

th
e 

di
re

ct
or

 o
f 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
th

e 
tr

ac
ke

r 
to

ge
th

er
. 

W
e 

no
te

d 
th

at
 it

 is
 

no
t 

up
 t

o 
da

te
 a

nd
 t

he
 d

et
ai

l i
s 

no
t 

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
. 

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

in
fo

rm
ed

 t
ha

t 
ag

re
ed

 a
ct

io
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

su
m

m
ar

is
ed

. 
W

e 
fo

un
d 

th
at

 t
he

re
 a

re
 a

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 e
m

pt
y 

bo
xe

s 
an

d 
bo

xe
s 

fi
lle

d 
w

it
h 

on
e 

or
 t

w
o 

w
or

ds
 w

hi
ch

 d
o 

no
t 

pr
ov

id
e 

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 d

et
ai

l o
f 

th
e 

ag
re

ed
 

ac
ti

on
 o

r 
fo

llo
w

 u
p.

  

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Af
te

r 
ea

ch
 t

en
de

ri
ng

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 
id

en
ti

fy
in

g 
le

ss
on

s 
le

ar
ne

d.
 T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
sh

ar
ed

 w
it

h 
al

l 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
m

an
ag

er
s.

 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
Ju

ly
 2

01
7 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

17
 

Pa
rt

ia
lly

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

W
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 t
he

 t
em

pl
at

e 
an

d 
fo

un
d 

it
 t

o 
be

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 f
or

 c
ap

tu
ri

ng
 le

ss
on

s 
le

ar
ne

d 
fr

om
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

an
d 

te
nd

er
in

g 
ex

er
ci

se
s.

 W
e 

no
te

d 
th

at
 it

 w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 
fo

r 
th

e 
Ca

re
 a

t 
H

om
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 a
ft

er
 it

 h
as

 
be

en
 t

o 
Ca

bi
ne

t 
on

 3
1 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

7.
  T

hi
s 

is
 t

he
 f

ir
st

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
ex

er
ci

se
 t

o 
co

nc
lu

de
 s

in
ce

 t
he

 t
em

pl
at

e 
w

as
 c

re
at

ed
. 

Th
er

ef
or

e 
w

e 
ar

e 
no

t 
ab

le
 t

o 
ob

ta
in

 
ev

id
en

ce
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

te
m

pl
at

e 
is

 u
se

d 
an

d 
sh

ar
ed

 a
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 t
he

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
. 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

w
it

h 
th

e 
M

os
ai

c 
te

am
 a

s 
to

 w
he

th
er

 a
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

re
po

rt
 c

an
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 f

ro
m

 
th

e 
sy

st
em

 t
o 

av
oi

d 
th

e 
sp

re
ad

sh
ee

ts
 

ha
vi

ng
 t

o 
be

 u
se

d.
  

U
nt

il 
th

is
 is

su
e 

is
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 w
it

h 
th

e 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
17

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
18

 

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

W
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 t
he

 m
in

ut
es

 o
f 

th
e 

M
os

ai
c 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

te
am

 w
hi

ch
 in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 
th

e 
re

po
rt

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 t

es
te

d.
 

W
e 

no
te

d 
th

at
 t

he
 s

pr
ea

ds
he

et
 u

se
d 

by
 t

he
 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

’s
 t

ea
m

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 

125



Pa
ge
 |
 2
0 
 

 

A
ud

it
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
ue

 D
at

e 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

M
os

ai
c 

te
am

 t
he

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e’
s 

te
am

 
sh

ou
ld

 r
es

ta
rt

 t
he

 s
pr

ea
ds

he
et

 t
o 

en
su

re
 a

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 a
cr

os
s 

al
l b

ro
ke

ra
ge

 t
ea

m
s 

an
d 

to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 s
av

in
gs

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 a

ch
ie

ve
d.

 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 u
pd

at
ed

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
ha

s 
co

nf
ir

m
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
sp

re
ad

sh
ee

t 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

as
 o

nl
y 

re
st

ar
te

d 
in

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
17

. 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
an

d 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

Pr
ot

ec
ti

on
 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

sy
st

em
 a

cc
es

s 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

to
 r

es
tr

ic
te

d 
th

e 
cr

ea
ti

on
 o

f 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
AP

P 
sy

st
em

 t
o 

ju
st

 t
he

 a
dm

in
 t

ea
m

 t
o 

re
du

ce
 t

he
 r

is
k 

of
 d

up
lic

at
io

n 
an

d 
of

fi
ce

rs
 a

dd
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 w

it
ho

ut
 

th
e 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

te
am

’s
 k

no
w

le
dg

e.
 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
M

ay
 2

01
7 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
8 

N
ot

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

di
d 

no
t 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
lis

t 
of

 u
se

r 
ac

ce
ss

 le
ve

ls
. 

St
af

f 
re

po
rt

ed
 t

ha
t 

a 
sy

st
em

s 
su

pp
or

t 
of

fi
ce

r 
m

an
ag

es
 u

se
r 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

on
ly

 a
dm

in
 t

ea
m

 m
em

be
rs

 
ha

ve
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 c
re

at
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n,

 
ho

w
ev

er
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 t

hi
s 

w
as

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
as

 s
ys

te
m

s 
su

pp
or

t 
re

po
rt

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 r
ep

or
ti

ng
 f

ea
tu

re
 w

as
 n

ot
 

w
or

ki
ng

. 
 

Th
e 

sy
st

em
s 

su
pp

or
t 

of
fi

ce
r 

in
fo

rm
ed

 u
s 

th
at

 r
ep

or
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

to
 id

en
ti

fy
 

ac
co

un
ts

 t
ha

t 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

us
ed

 f
or

 a
 

gi
ve

n 
ti

m
e 

lim
it

 b
ut

 t
hi

s 
ha

s 
no

t 
be

en
 

ex
pl

or
ed

. 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
an

d 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

Pr
ot

ec
ti

on
 

A 
vi

si
t 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 t
o 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 t

o 
en

su
re

 c
or

re
ct

 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
. 

If
 a

 n
ew

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
w

as
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

it
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
lin

ke
d 

to
 t

he
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

to
 

sh
ow

 a
n 

au
di

t 
tr

ai
l.

 
In

 f
ut

ur
e,

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

os
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 o

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

he
re

 
an

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

is
 r

ej
ec

te
d 

ar
e 

fo
llo

w
ed

 u
p 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

ey
 a

re
 n

ot
 

tr
ad

in
g 

w
it

ho
ut

 t
he

 p
ro

pe
r 

do
cu

m
en

ta
ti

on
 in

 p
la

ce
. 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
M

ay
 2

01
7 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
8 

N
ot

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

Ev
id

en
ce

 w
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
of

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
pr

op
er

ti
es

 w
it

h 
pe

nd
in

g/
re

je
ct

ed
 li

ce
nc

es
. 

H
ow

ev
er

 t
hi

s 
w

as
 c

re
at

ed
 in

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

17
 a

nd
 t

he
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

re
vi

ew
 w

as
 in

 
Au

gu
st

 o
f 

20
16

. 
Th

er
ef

or
e 

th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f 

m
on

th
ly

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
of

 c
as

es
 

be
in

g 
un

de
rt

ak
en

. 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
an

d 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

Pr
ot

ec
ti

on
 

Th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
po

lic
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 t

o 
en

su
re

 it
 is

 s
ti

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 a

nd
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 f
or

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
by

 t
he

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 c
ou

nc
il 

co
m

m
it

te
e 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
17

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
18

 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

A 
dr

af
t 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

po
lic

y 
ha

s 
be

en
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

, 
th

e 
ne

xt
 s

ta
ge

s 
ar

e:
  

126



Pa
ge
 |
 2
1 
 

 

A
ud

it
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
ue

 D
at

e 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

to
 v

al
id

at
e 

it
 a

s 
cu

rr
en

t 
po

lic
y.

 
Th

e 
po

lic
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 o

n 
an

 
an

nu
al

 b
as

is
 t

o 
en

su
re

 it
 s

ta
ys

 
re

le
va

nt
 t

o 
cu

rr
en

t 
pr

ac
ti

ce
s 

w
it

h 
a 

ve
rs

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l p

ag
e.

 

 
In

te
rn

al
 c

on
su

lt
at

io
n 

 
Am

en
dm

en
ts

 
 

Ta
bl

ed
 a

t 
Co

rp
or

at
e 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Pa
ne

l 
 

ID
M

 f
or

 e
xt

er
na

l c
on

su
lt

at
io

n 
 

Am
en

dm
en

ts
 

Ca
bi

ne
t 

re
po

rt
 f

or
 f

or
m

al
 a

do
pt

io
n.

 
(S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

18
) 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
an

d 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

Pr
ot

ec
ti

on
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

he
ir

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 f

or
 id

en
ti

fy
in

g 
ca

se
s 

w
he

re
 a

ll 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 n
ot

 r
ec

or
de

d 
or

 d
ea

dl
in

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 m

et
. 

M
on

th
ly

 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

re
po

rt
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ru

n 
to

 
id

en
ti

fy
 c

as
es

 w
he

re
 a

ll 
re

qu
ir

ed
 d

at
a 

fi
el

ds
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

, 
ha

ve
 

no
t 

be
en

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 o

r 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
da

te
s 

ar
e 

m
is

se
d 

an
d 

in
ve

st
ig

at
e 

th
e 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r 

m
is

si
ng

 d
at

a 
or

 d
el

ay
s.

 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
17

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8 

W
e 

w
er

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
is

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
w

he
n 

th
e 

po
st

 o
f 

EP
T 

te
am

 le
ad

er
 (

va
ca

nt
 

si
nc

e 
Ju

ly
 2

01
7)

 is
 r

ec
ru

it
ed

, 
w

hi
ch

 is
 

an
ti

ci
pa

te
d 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
8.

   

Pa
ym

en
t 

Ca
rd

 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
/ 

PC
I 

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 e

ns
ur

e,
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
fo

rt
hc

om
in

g 
w

or
k 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 t

o 
m

an
ag

e 
PC

I D
SS

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e,

 t
ha

t 
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
is

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

to
 id

en
ti

fy
 a

nd
 d

oc
um

en
t 

al
l b

us
in

es
s 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
sy

st
em

s 
th

at
 

ha
nd

le
 p

ay
m

en
t 

ca
rd

 d
at

a.
  

Th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

sh
ou

ld
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ca

ti
on

 o
f 

al
l i

nt
er

fa
ce

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l’
s 

pa
ym

en
t 

ca
rd

 
sy

st
em

s 
an

d 
th

ir
d 

pa
rt

y 
ca

rd
 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d,

 w
he

re
 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e,

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 t
he

 la
tt

er
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ce

rt
if

ie
d 

as
 b

ei
ng

 P
CI

 D
SS

 
co

m
pl

ia
nt

. 

H
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
Ap

ri
l 2

01
7 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

17
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

18
 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

Ev
id

en
ce

 w
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

at
 s

ho
w

ed
 a

 
re

vi
ew

 h
as

 t
ak

en
 p

la
ce

 t
o 

id
en

ti
fy

 a
nd

 
do

cu
m

en
t 

al
l b

us
in

es
s 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
sy

st
em

s 
th

at
 h

an
dl

e 
pa

ym
en

t 
ca

rd
 d

at
a.

 
As

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 d
at

a 
ce

nt
re

 m
ig

ra
ti

on
 a

nd
 

tr
an

si
ti

on
 t

o 
th

e 
Sh

ar
ed

 IC
T 

Se
rv

ic
e,

 t
he

re
 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
re

vi
ew

 t
o 

id
en

ti
fy

 if
 t

hi
rd

 p
ar

ty
 

ca
rd

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

sy
st

em
s 

ar
e 

ce
rt

if
ie

d 
as

 
be

in
g 

PC
I D

SS
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

. 

Pa
ym

en
t 

Ca
rd

 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
/ 

PC
I 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
: 

 
Th

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 S
AQ

 A
 s

el
f-

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
17

 
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
Ev

id
en

ce
 w

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

 s
ho

w
ed

 e
m

ai
l 

127



Pa
ge
 |
 2
2 
 

 

A
ud

it
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
ue

 D
at

e 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n 
fo

rm
 is

 s
ig

ne
d 

of
f 

by
 

se
ni

or
 IT

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

is
su

ed
 

ac
co

rd
in

gl
y;

 a
nd

  
Co

nf
ir

m
at

io
n 

is
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fr
om

 
W

or
ld

pa
y 

of
 t

he
 c

or
re

ct
 s

el
f-

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n 
fo

rm
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 t
o 

fo
rm

 a
 m

aj
or

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 P
CI

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
re

fe
rr

ed
 t

o 
ab

ov
e.

 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

17
 

Ap
ri

l 2
01

8 

co
rr

es
po

nd
en

ce
 w

it
h 

th
e 

Ac
qu

ir
er

 t
o 

co
nf

ir
m

 w
hi

ch
 S

AQ
 s

el
f-

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

fo
rm

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ir

ed
. 

Th
is

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

 is
 

pe
nd

in
g 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
e 

of
 t

ha
t 

co
rr

es
po

nd
en

ce
. 

Pa
ym

en
t 

Ca
rd

 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
/ 

PC
I 

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 in

 s
ys

te
m

s 
m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
th

ir
d 

pa
rt

ie
s 

an
d 

up
on

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 

Co
un

ci
l h

as
 s

om
e 

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 in

 
re

la
ti

on
 t

o 
PC

I D
SS

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

ar
e 

m
ap

pe
d 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 P

CI
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 

ar
e 

m
on

it
or

ed
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
ar

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
as

 p
la

nn
ed

 
an

d 
th

at
 r

em
ed

ia
l a

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 

ta
ke

n 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 d
el

ay
 o

r 
fa

ilu
re

. 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
17

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
17

 
Ap

ri
l 2

01
8 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

Ev
id

en
ce

 w
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
of

 t
he

 c
re

at
io

n 
of

 a
 

ch
an

ge
 a

dv
is

or
y 

bo
ar

d.
 T

hi
s 

bo
ar

d 
w

ill
 

ex
is

t 
as

 a
 c

on
tr

ol
 f

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 c
ov

er
 P

CI
 D

SS
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
, 

am
on

g 
ot

he
r 

ar
ea

s.
 

 

Sh
el

te
re

d 
an

d 
Su

pp
or

te
d 

A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

Sh
el

te
re

d 
H

ou
si

ng
  

Co
ns

is
te

nt
 t

im
e 

fr
am

es
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 
in

sp
ec

ti
on

 d
at

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
dh

er
ed

 
to

. 
 

Ac
ti

on
 t

ak
en

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 r

ec
or

de
d 

ag
ai

ns
t 

is
su

es
 r

ai
se

d.
 A

ll 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 r
et

ai
ne

d 
w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 lo

ca
ti

on
. 

 
Su

pp
or

te
d 

Ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

H
os

te
ls

  
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

ti
m

es
ca

le
s.

 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
Re

si
de

nt
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Ju
ne

 2
01

7 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
17

 
Ju

ly
 2

01
8 

N
ot

 Im
pl

em
en

te
d 

Sh
el

te
re

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 

Fr
om

 a
 s

am
pl

e 
of

 t
hr

ee
 lo

ca
ti

on
s 

 w
e 

fo
un

d 
th

at
: 

• 
In

 o
ne

 in
st

an
ce

, 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 a
ud

it
 r

ep
or

t 
w

as
 d

ue
 t

o 
ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 in
 A

ug
us

t 
20

17
 b

ut
 

ha
d 

no
t 

be
en

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 (

Br
oo

k 
D

ri
ve

).
  

• 
In

 o
ne

 a
ud

it
 r

ep
or

t,
 a

 t
ar

ge
t 

da
te

 w
as

 
no

t 
re

co
rd

ed
 f

or
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g 
m

at
ri

x 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

 
• 

In
 o

ne
 a

ud
it

 r
ep

or
t,

 t
he

 r
is

k 
m

at
ri

x 
ha

d 
no

t 
be

en
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 t
he

 s
ec

ti
on

 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

re
fr

es
he

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 t

ra
in

in
g 

re
co

rd
s 

w
as

 in
co

m
pl

et
e 

Su
pp

or
te

d 
Ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
H

os
te

ls
 

Th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
w

it
ho

ut
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 h
an

do
ve

r.
 

Th
er

ef
or

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
w

as
 n

ot
 a

bl
e 

to
 

128



Pa
ge
 |
 2
3 
 

 

A
ud

it
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
ue

 D
at

e 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

pr
od

uc
e 

th
e 

re
qu

es
te

d 
do

cu
m

en
ts

. 

20
17

-1
8 

au
di

t 
re

po
rt

s 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l s

ho
ul

d 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

a 
re

vi
ew

 
of

 a
ll 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ta

l p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

, 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
it

h 
on

e 
an

ot
he

r.
 R

eq
ui

re
d 

pr
ac

ti
ce

s 
th

at
 a

re
 c

om
m

on
 a

cr
os

s 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 d
ra

w
n 

ou
t 

un
de

r 
se

pa
ra

te
 c

ov
er

 a
s 

th
e 

hi
gh

 le
ve

l 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 f

ro
m

 w
hi

ch
 in

di
vi

du
al

 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ta
l p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
th

en
 f

lo
w

. 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

up
da

te
d 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
ed

 o
n 

a 
se

t 
pe

ri
od

ic
 b

as
is

 (
w

e 
w

ou
ld

 s
ug

ge
st

 
an

nu
al

ly
).

 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

st
or

ed
 in

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

lo
ca

ti
on

s 
so

 s
ta

ff
 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 w
he

re
 t

o 
fi

nd
 h

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
18

 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

– 
de

la
y 

fr
om

 o
ri

gi
na

l 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 d
at

e,
 f

or
 t

he
 r

ea
so

ns
 s

et
 

ou
t 

be
lo

w
. 

Th
e 

in
it

ia
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
al

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 c

on
si

st
en

cy
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
8,

 w
it

h 
a 

vi
ew

 t
o 

ha
ve

 t
he

 a
ll 

up
da

te
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
18

. 
Th

is
 d

el
ay

 is
 b

ec
au

se
 t

he
 

w
ay

 h
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 is

 m
an

ag
ed

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
be

in
g 

re
m

od
el

le
d,

 s
o 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 w
ill

 
fo

llo
w

 t
hi

s 
re

vi
ew

. 
Th

e 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

an
d 

ad
ul

ts
’ 

po
lic

y 
ha

s 
be

en
 

up
da

te
d 

an
d 

is
 a

w
ai

ti
ng

 a
pp

ro
va

l f
ro

m
 t

he
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

or
. 

Th
e 

ot
he

r 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ta
l 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 h

ad
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
. 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 

Th
e 

ro
le

s 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ta

l l
ea

ds
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
cl

ea
rl

y 
ou

tl
in

ed
 a

t 
a 

co
rp

or
at

e 
le

ve
l t

o 
en

su
re

 c
on

si
st

en
cy

 
an

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il.
 

Th
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ca
n 

th
en

 b
e 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 o
n 

at
 a

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l l
ev

el
 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 f

or
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
sp

ec
if

ic
 

va
ri

an
ce

s 
an

d 
al

lo
w

 f
or

 t
he

 f
ur

th
er

 
de

le
ga

ti
on

 t
o 

di
vi

si
on

al
 le

ad
s,

 if
 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

an
d 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
. 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8 
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
– 

in
 li

ne
 w

it
h 

or
ig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 d
at

e 
Th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
im

pa
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

m
od

el
lin

g 
of

 h
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 r
es

ul
t 

in
 a

 
m

or
e 

ce
nt

ra
lis

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h.

 T
hi

s 
re

vi
ew

 
w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

fo
r 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
le

ad
s.

 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 

A 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 c
or

po
ra

te
 

an
d 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 

pl
an

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d,

 a
nd

 a
ll 

pl
an

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

up
da

te
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8 
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
– 

ah
ea

d 
of

 o
ri

gi
na

l 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 d
at

e 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 p
la

ns
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

t 
a 

co
rp

or
at

e 
le

ve
l a

nd
 f

or
 t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 

129



Pa
ge
 |
 2
4 
 

 

A
ud

it
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
ue

 D
at

e 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

an
y 

of
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
no

t 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 

pr
es

en
t,

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
be

fo
re

 t
he

 
st

ar
t 

of
 e

ac
h 

fi
na

nc
ia

l y
ea

r:
 

 
Th

e 
pe

ri
od

 o
f 

ti
m

e 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

co
ve

r 
(w

e 
w

ou
ld

 s
ug

ge
st

 a
nn

ua
l p

la
ns

) 
 

Th
e 

ti
m

e 
fr

am
es

 f
or

 im
pl

em
en

ti
ng

 
ea

ch
 a

ct
io

n 
an

d 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 f
or

 
m

on
it

or
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

 
D

et
ai

ls
 o

f 
th

e 
m

on
it

or
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 f

or
 e

ac
h 

ob
je

ct
iv

e/
ri

sk
, 

to
 c

on
fi

rm
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

ac
ti

on
s 

 
A 

se
t 

pe
ri

od
ic

 r
ev

ie
w

 (
w

e 
w

ou
ld

 
su

gg
es

t 
qu

ar
te

rl
y)

 t
o 

m
on

it
or

 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

nd
 a

ct
io

n 
an

y 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 
 

Ve
rs

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l t

o 
st

at
e 

w
he

n 
th

e 
m

os
t 

re
ce

nt
 r

ev
ie

w
 w

as
 

un
de

rt
ak

en
, 

w
he

n 
th

e 
ne

xt
 r

ev
ie

w
 

is
 d

ue
 a

nd
 t

he
 v

er
si

on
 o

f 
th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t 

 
A 

do
cu

m
en

t 
ow

ne
r 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

m
on

it
or

in
g 

an
d 

up
da

ti
ng

 o
f 

ea
ch

 p
la

n.
 

Th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
an

d 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
pl

an
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

on
it

or
ed

 o
n 

a 
se

t 
pe

ri
od

ic
 b

as
is

 (
w

e 
w

ou
ld

 s
ug

ge
st

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
) 

to
 r

ev
ie

w
 

th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 m
ad

e 
ag

ai
ns

t 
ta

rg
et

s.
 

Th
e 

pl
an

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

up
da

te
d 

to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

w
he

n 
an

 a
ct

io
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d,
 o

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

el
y 

if
 a

ny
 

de
la

ys
 h

av
e 

oc
cu

rr
ed

, 
a 

br
ie

f 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
no

te
 a

nd
 a

 r
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 d
at

e.
 

m
od

er
ni

sa
ti

on
 a

nd
 c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
an

d 
ad

ul
ts

’ 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
. 

Th
e 

pl
an

 is
 b

ei
ng

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 

fo
r 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 

re
ge

ne
ra

ti
on

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

an
d 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 f
or

 H
&

S 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
re

vi
ew

ed
/ 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
in

 C
E 

an
d 

F&
G

. 

130



Pa
ge
 |
 2
5 
 

 

A
ud

it
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
ue

 D
at

e 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 

A 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 p
ro

ac
ti

ve
 

m
on

it
or

in
g 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

, 
to

 
en

su
re

 s
uf

fi
ci

en
t 

m
on

it
or

in
g 

is
 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

t 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
in

te
rv

al
s.

 
Th

is
 s

ho
ul

d 
en

su
re

 s
uf

fi
ci

en
t 

br
ea

dt
h 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
pr

od
uc

ti
on

 o
f 

ac
ti

on
 p

la
ns

, 
w

it
h 

pr
e-

de
te

rm
in

ed
 m

on
it

or
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 t

o 
co

nf
ir

m
 a

ll 
ac

ti
on

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 a

 t
im

el
y 

m
an

ne
r.

 T
he

 a
ct

io
ns

 r
ai

se
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 a

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 o
ff

ic
er

 a
nd

 
in

cl
ud

e 
a 

ta
rg

et
 d

at
e 

fo
r 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
. 

Al
l s

up
po

rt
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ta

ti
on

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 m
on

it
or

in
g 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
re

ta
in

ed
. 

Le
ss

on
s 

le
ar

ne
d 

fr
om

 h
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 a

ud
it

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

do
cu

m
en

te
d 

an
d 

di
st

ri
bu

te
d 

to
 t

he
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

of
fi

ce
rs

 w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

. 
Th

e 
le

ss
on

s 
le

ar
ne

d 
at

 a
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

le
ve

l s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

ol
la

te
d 

at
 a

 
co

rp
or

at
e 

le
ve

l,
 a

lo
ng

si
de

 c
or

po
ra

te
 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
au

di
ts

 b
ei

ng
 

un
de

rt
ak

en
, 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t 

ac
ti

on
s 

co
un

ci
l-

w
id

e.
 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
18

 
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
– 

in
 li

ne
 w

it
h 

or
ig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 d
at

e 
So

ft
 t

es
ti

ng
 f

or
 t

he
 n

ew
 h

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 
so

ft
w

ar
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

w
it

h 
an

 a
im

 
fo

r 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
to

 b
eg

in
 in

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
8.

 
Th

is
 w

ill
 a

ss
is

t 
in

 t
he

 m
on

it
or

in
g 

an
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
up

 o
f 

ac
ti

on
 p

oi
nt

s 
ra

is
ed

. 
Ad

di
ti

on
al

ly
, 

th
e 

re
m

od
el

lin
g 

of
 t

he
 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

ho
w

 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

re
ac

ti
ve

 m
on

it
or

in
g 

is
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
 w

it
h 

a 
vi

ew
 

to
 a

lig
n 

th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
. 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 

Th
e 

ti
m

e 
fr

am
es

 f
or

 r
ep

or
ti

ng
 

ac
ci

de
nt

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
on

it
or

ed
 t

o 
en

su
re

 m
an

ag
er

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pl

yi
ng

 w
it

h 
th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
po

lic
y,

 a
nd

 m
it

ig
at

in
g 

sa
fe

gu
ar

ds
 p

ut
 

in
 p

la
ce

 in
 a

 t
im

el
y 

m
an

ne
r.

 If
 r

ep
or

ts
 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
re

ce
iv

ed
 o

ut
si

de
 o

f 
th

e 
48

 
ho

ur
 r

ep
or

ti
ng

 p
er

io
d,

 t
he

 r
ea

so
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

de
la

y 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
co

rd
ed

. 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
18

 
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
– 

in
 li

ne
 w

it
h 

or
ig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 d
at

e 
Th

is
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
an

d 
ad

ul
ts

’,
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 

m
od

er
ni

sa
ti

on
, 

ch
ie

f 
ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t 

an
d 

fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t,

 
Th

is
 is

 y
et

 t
o 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 f
or

 t
he

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
so

ci
al

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 

131



Pa
ge
 |
 2
6 
 

 

A
ud

it
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
ue

 D
at

e 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t.

 
Th

is
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 a

ss
is

te
d 

w
it

h 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

ne
w

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
sy

st
em

 w
hi

ch
 is

 in
 t

he
 p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 
be

in
g 

pr
oc

ur
ed

. 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 

U
nt

il 
a 

ne
w

 h
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
oc

ur
ed

, 
a 

sy
st

em
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
to

 a
llo

w
 f

or
 t

he
 s

ha
ri

ng
 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ac

ro
ss

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

, 
w

hi
ls

t 
en

su
ri

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
he

ld
 a

nd
 

sh
ar

ed
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

br
ea

ch
 d

at
a 

pr
ot

ec
ti

on
 p

ol
ic

ie
s.

 A
dv

ic
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
so

ug
ht

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 h

ea
d 

of
 f

in
an

ci
al

 a
nd

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 if
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fr

om
 t

he
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
he

ld
 in

 a
 c

en
tr

al
 lo

ca
ti

on
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 a

nd
 H

S1
 

an
d 

H
S2

 f
or

m
s 

to
 a

llo
w

 f
or

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
ac

ro
ss

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y.
 T

hi
s 

co
ul

d 
be

 in
 t

he
 f

or
m

 
of

 a
 s

ha
re

d 
fi

le
 w

it
h 

ac
ce

ss
 r

es
tr

ic
te

d 
to

 t
he

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l a
nd

 c
or

po
ra

te
 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
le

ad
s.

 T
hi

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
lla

te
d 

on
 a

 
re

gu
la

r 
ba

si
s 

(w
e 

w
ou

ld
 s

ug
ge

st
 

qu
ar

te
rl

y 
as

 a
 m

in
im

um
) 

an
d 

an
y 

tr
en

ds
 id

en
ti

fi
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
cr

ea
te

d 
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
. 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
18

 
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
– 

in
 li

ne
 w

it
h 

or
ig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 d
at

e 
Th

e 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

an
d 

ad
ul

ts
’ 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

m
od

er
ni

sa
ti

on
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 n

ow
 s

it
 w

it
hi

n 
co

rp
or

at
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 
al

lo
w

ed
 f

or
 a

 m
or

e 
ce

nt
ra

lis
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 d
oc

um
en

t 
st

or
ag

e.
  

Th
e 

ne
w

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
sy

st
em

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 f

or
 f

ul
l 

in
te

gr
at

io
n 

an
d 

ce
nt

ra
lis

at
io

n 
of

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il.

 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 

A 
st

an
da

rd
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 s
et

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
fo

r 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ta

l l
ea

ds
 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il.
 S

up
po

rt
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 f

or
 t

ho
se

 w
ho

 a
re

 y
et

 t
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 le

ve
l o

f 
tr

ai
ni

ng
. 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
el

y,
 c

on
si

de
ra

ti
on

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
18

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

– 
ah

ea
d 

of
 o

ri
gi

na
l 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 d

at
e 

A 
th

re
e 

da
y 

ac
cr

ed
it

ed
 IO

SH
 m

an
ag

in
g 

sa
fe

ly
 t

ra
in

in
g 

is
 b

ei
ng

 o
rg

an
is

ed
 t

o 
be

 
de

liv
er

ed
 in

 h
ou

se
 t

o 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 le
ad

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

ke
y 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ta

l s
ta

ff
 f

or
 d

el
iv

er
y 

be
fo

re
 t

he
 

132



Pa
ge
 |
 2
7 
 

 

A
ud

it
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
ue

 D
at

e 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 h
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 s

up
po

rt
 

fo
r 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

 t
ha

t 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 

do
 n

ot
 

ha
ve

 a
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l h

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 
le

ad
 in

 p
os

t.
 

Th
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 

qu
al

if
ic

at
io

ns
 h

el
d 

by
 a

ll 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ta
l l

ea
ds

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

re
co

rd
ed

, 
co

nf
ir

m
in

g 
th

at
 t

he
 n

ew
 

st
an

da
rd

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

et
, 

an
d 

an
y 

re
le

va
nt

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

re
m

ai
n 

va
lid

. 

en
d 

M
ar

ch
. 

A 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 
sa

fe
ty

 b
ri

ef
in

gs
 f

or
 m

an
ag

er
s,

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
an

d 
D

SE
 a

ss
es

so
r 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 h
as

 
an

d 
is

 c
on

ti
nu

in
g 

to
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
. 

Fi
rs

t 
ai

d 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
. 

H
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 e

-l
ea

rn
in

g 
m

od
ul

es
 a

re
 

un
de

r 
re

vi
ew

 f
or

 la
un

ch
 s

ho
rt

ly
. 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 

H
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 is

su
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

es
ca

la
te

d 
to

 t
he

 s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

te
am

 in
 a

ll 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
. 

Th
e 

su
bj

ec
ts

 
di

sc
us

se
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ev

id
en

ce
d 

in
 t

he
 

m
in

ut
es

 f
or

 t
he

 m
ee

ti
ng

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
y 

re
po

rt
s 

th
at

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 a

nd
 

re
su

lt
in

g 
ac

ti
on

s 
ar

is
in

g.
 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
18

 
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
– 

in
 li

ne
 w

it
h 

or
ig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 d
at

e 
Th

e 
he

ad
 o

f 
co

rp
or

at
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ta

ke
s 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
up

da
te

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

an
d 

ad
ul

ts
’ 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

m
od

er
ni

sa
ti

on
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
to

 
th

e 
di

re
ct

or
 o

f 
m

od
er

ni
sa

ti
on

’s
 D

M
T 

m
ee

ti
ng

. 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

di
ff

er
en

t 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ta
l 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 in

 p
la

ce
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

po
rt

in
g 

to
 D

M
Ts

, 
H

&
S 

co
m

m
it

te
es

 a
nd

 
se

ni
or

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

m
ee

ti
ng

s.
 A

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
an

d 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

ill
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t 
of

 t
he

 
re

m
od

el
lin

g 
of

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

. 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 

Al
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

 in
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

re
m

it
 

sh
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

a 
‘b

ui
ld

in
g 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

pe
rs

on
’ 

w
ho

 is
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 

ov
er

se
ei

ng
 t

he
 c

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

t 
th

e 
si

te
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l's
 h

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 p
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

st
at

ut
or

y 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n.

 
Th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
of

fi
ce

r 
sh

ou
ld

 r
ec

ei
ve

 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 t
ra

in
in

g 
fr

om
 t

he
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
co

rp
or

at
e 

he
al

th
 

H
 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
Ju

ly
 2

01
8 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

18
 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

– 
ah

ea
d 

of
 o

ri
gi

na
l 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 d

at
e 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ha
ve

 
m

ad
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 in
 id

en
ti

fy
in

g 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
pe

rs
on

s 
pe

r 
si

te
, 

w
it

h 
le

ad
s 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 f

or
 

90
% 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s.
 T

he
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

 1
0%

 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

so
lv

ed
 s

ho
rt

ly
. 

133



Pa
ge
 |
 2
8 
 

 

A
ud

it
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
ue

 D
at

e 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 t

ea
m

s 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
ov

er
si

gh
t.

 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
En

er
gy

 
Fo

r 
ea

ch
 o

f 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

bu
ild

in
gs

 in
 

th
e 

gr
ee

n 
bu

ild
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
a 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 t
ar

ge
t 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
se

t 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 k

ey
 a

re
a 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 a

n 
of

fi
ce

r 
w

ho
 s

ho
ul

d 
m

on
it

or
 a

nd
 

re
po

rt
 t

o 
se

ni
or

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

on
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 t
o 

en
ab

le
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
to

 
ev

id
en

ce
 h

ow
 it

 is
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

co
st

s 
an

d 
it

s 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
. 

 
Th

e 
en

er
gy

 t
ea

m
 s

ho
ul

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
en

ha
nc

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
w

it
h 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

 o
n 

ho
w

 t
he

 g
re

en
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

is
 p

ro
gr

es
si

ng
 

an
d 

ho
w

 s
ta

ff
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l c
an

 
pl

ay
 a

 r
ol

e 
in

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

ta
rg

et
s.

 

M
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

17
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

18
 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

A 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 t

ar
ge

t 
is

 s
et

 in
di

vi
du

al
ly

 f
or

 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
 in

 t
he

 g
re

en
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
  W

e 
co

nf
ir

m
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

er
e 

is
 r

ou
ti

ne
 m

on
it

or
in

g 
of

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il’

s 
en

er
gy

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
ag

ai
ns

t 
ta

rg
et

 w
hi

ch
 r

es
ul

ts
 in

 a
n 

en
er

gy
 

re
po

rt
 f

or
 e

ac
h 

bu
ild

in
g.

 
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
w

it
h 

th
e 

st
af

f 
on

 h
ow

 t
he

 
gr

ee
n 

bu
ild

in
gs

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

is
 p

ro
gr

es
si

ng
 

an
d 

ho
w

 s
ta

ff
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l c
an

 p
la

y 
a 

ro
le

 in
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il’

s 
ta

rg
et

s 
ca

n 
be

 f
ou

nd
 o

n 
th

e 
So

ur
ce

 a
lo

ng
 w

it
h 

ti
ps

 f
or

 
of

fi
ce

s 
sa

vi
ng

 e
ne

rg
y.

  
Th

e 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

en
er

gy
 o

ff
ic

er
 

ad
vi

se
d 

us
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

gr
ee

n 
bu

ild
in

gs
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 r

ev
am

pe
d 

an
d 

ad
di

ti
on

al
 c

or
re

sp
on

de
nc

e 
w

it
h 

th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 t

ea
m

s 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
sp

ec
if

ic
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 w
ill

 h
ap

pe
n 

on
ce

 t
hi

s 
ha

s 
ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e.
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
En

er
gy

 
A 

fo
rm

al
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
bu

dg
et

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
us

e 
of

 t
he

 c
ap

it
al

 c
ar

bo
n 

fu
nd

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 c
le

ar
ly

 s
ho

w
 

w
he

re
 f

un
ds

 h
av

e 
or

 a
re

 t
o 

be
 

al
lo

ca
te

d.
 T

hi
s 

ca
n 

th
en

 b
e 

m
on

it
or

ed
 

al
on

g 
w

it
h 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 

or
ig

in
al

 p
ro

po
sa

l t
o 

en
su

re
 t

he
 f

un
d 

w
as

 u
se

d 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

el
y.

  
To

 s
up

po
rt

 t
he

 a
bo

ve
, 

th
e 

en
er

gy
 

te
am

 s
ho

ul
d 

lia
is

e 
w

it
h 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

fo
ru

m
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

un
ci

l 
st

af
f 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 t
he

 c
ap

it
al

 f
un

di
ng

 
fo

r 
ca

rb
on

 r
ed

uc
ti

on
 a

nd
 h

ow
 

pr
op

os
al

s 
to

 o
bt

ai
n 

fu
nd

in
g 

M
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

17
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

18
 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

Th
e 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
en

er
gy

 m
an

ag
er

 
ad

vi
se

d 
th

at
 t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
bu

dg
et

 
pl

an
 f

or
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l c
ar

bo
n 

fu
nd

 is
 

st
ill

 in
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

st
ag

e 
an

d 
pe

nd
in

g 
ap

pr
ov

al
. 

W
e 

no
te

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l s
pe

nd
 is

 
m

on
it

or
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 u
su

al
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

ca
pi

ta
l m

on
it

or
 w

hi
ch

 is
 r

ep
or

te
d 

to
 

ca
bi

ne
t.

 
W

e 
no

te
d 

th
at

 a
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 f
or

um
 h

as
 

be
en

 s
et

 u
p 

an
d 

it
 w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
fo

r 
co

lle
ct

in
g 

id
ea

s 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
 c

ap
it

al
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r 

20
18

-1
9.

 T
he

 f
or

um
 is

 

134



Pa
ge
 |
 2
9 
 

 

A
ud

it
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
ue

 D
at

e 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

cu
rr

en
tl

y 
in

fo
rm

al
 in

 n
at

ur
e 

an
d 

is
 in

 t
he

 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

nd
 

po
lic

ie
s.

 

N
et

w
or

k 
Se

cu
ri

ty
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
, 

w
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, 
re

vi
se

 it
s 

ri
sk

 a
nd

 
im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

th
re

at
s 

to
 

th
e 

se
cu

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
IT

 
ne

tw
or

k.
 W

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, 
th

es
e 

ri
sk

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

ly
 r

ec
or

de
d 

on
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
co

rp
or

at
e 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r.
 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
17

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

Ev
id

en
ce

 w
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

at
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
s 

cu
rr

en
t 

w
or

k 
is

 b
ei

ng
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 
ri

sk
 a

nd
 im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ac
cu

ra
te

 r
ec

or
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l's
 

co
rp

or
at

e 
ri

sk
 r

eg
is

te
r.

 

N
et

w
or

k 
Se

cu
ri

ty
 

N
et

w
or

k 
ac

ti
vi

ty
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 b
as

el
in

ed
 

an
d 

pr
o-

ac
ti

ve
ly

 m
on

it
or

ed
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
id

en
ti

fy
 u

nu
su

al
 o

r 
su

sp
ic

io
us

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

Th
is

 m
on

it
or

in
g 

sh
ou

ld
 in

cl
ud

e,
 b

ut
 

no
t 

be
 li

m
it

ed
 t

o:
  

• 
A 

re
co

rd
 o

f 
th

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
of

 
ne

tw
or

k 
ac

ti
vi

ty
 a

nd
 e

xt
er

na
l 

tr
af

fi
c 

 
• 

A 
re

co
rd

 o
f 

al
l o

pe
n 

an
d 

cl
os

ed
 

po
rt

s 
an

d 
w

he
re

 t
he

se
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
ch

an
ge

d 
 

• 
A 

re
co

rd
 o

f 
st

an
da

rd
 n

et
w

or
k 

ac
ti

vi
ty

 f
or

 a
ny

 g
iv

en
 t

im
e,

 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 k
no

w
n 

pe
ak

s.
  

Fu
rt

he
rm

or
e,

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

to
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

he
 

ef
fi

ca
cy

 o
f 

th
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

se
cu

ri
ty

 
co

nt
ro

ls
 t

ha
t 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
de

pl
oy

ed
. 

 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
17

 
M

ay
 2

01
8 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

As
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 t

ra
ns

it
io

n 
to

 t
he

 S
ha

re
d 

IC
T 

Se
rv

ic
e 

al
l n

et
w

or
k 

m
on

it
or

in
g 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
. 

 

N
et

w
or

k 
Se

cu
ri

ty
 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l’

s 
IT

 n
et

w
or

k 
di

ag
ra

m
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

w
he

th
er

: 
 

• 
Co

nn
ec

ti
on

s 
to

 e
xt

er
na

l n
et

w
or

ks
 

ar
e 

se
cu

re
d 

 
• 

Ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

re
du

nd
an

ci
es

 e
xi

st
 

w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

IT
 n

et
w

or
k 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

 
lo

ss
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e.
  

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
M

ay
 2

01
7 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

18
 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

A 
cu

rr
en

t 
ne

tw
or

k 
di

ag
ra

m
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
an

d 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 a

s 
ev

id
en

ce
. 

As
 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

da
ta

 c
en

tr
e 

m
ig

ra
ti

on
, 

th
is

 
di

ag
ra

m
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 o
ng

oi
ng

 r
ev

ie
w

 
an

d 
am

en
dm

en
t.

  
 

135



Pa
ge
 |
 3
0 
 

 

A
ud

it
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
ue

 D
at

e 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Ac
ti

on
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 t
ak

en
 t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
an

y 
is

su
es

 w
it

h 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 
co

nf
ig

ur
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 IT

 n
et

w
or

k.
 

N
et

w
or

k 
Se

cu
ri

ty
 

Al
l d

ev
ic

es
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

ru
nn

in
g 

un
su

pp
or

te
d 

op
er

at
in

g 
sy

st
em

s 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 u
pg

ra
de

d 
to

 o
pe

ra
ti

ng
 s

ys
te

m
s 

th
at

 a
re

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
r.

  
W

he
re

 it
 is

 n
ot

 p
os

si
bl

e 
to

 u
pg

ra
de

 
th

e 
op

er
at

in
g 

sy
st

em
 o

f 
a 

de
vi

ce
, 

it
 

m
us

t 
be

 is
ol

at
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

IT
 

ne
tw

or
k 

an
d 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

se
cu

ri
ty

 
co

nt
ro

ls
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 

H
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
Ju

ly
 2

01
7 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

18
 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

Ev
id

en
ce

 w
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
of

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

de
liv

er
ed

 t
o 

da
te

 a
nd

 t
he

 r
oa

d 
m

ap
 t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
w

it
h 

no
n-

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 d

ev
ic

es
 b

y 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
18

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

da
ta

 c
en

tr
e 

m
ig

ra
ti

on
. 

N
et

w
or

k 
Se

cu
ri

ty
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

m
us

t 
ap

pl
y 

al
l m

is
si

ng
 

op
er

at
in

g 
sy

st
em

 a
nd

 f
ir

m
w

ar
e 

pa
tc

he
s 

to
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

IT
 e

st
at

e.
 

W
he

re
 a

n 
op

er
at

in
g 

sy
st

em
 o

r 
fi

rm
w

ar
e 

pa
tc

h 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 a

 
de

vi
ce

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 im

pl
em

en
t 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

se
cu

ri
ty

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
. 

 
Fu

rt
he

rm
or

e,
 t

he
re

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

 
de

fi
ne

d 
an

d 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

fo
r 

ap
pl

yi
ng

 o
pe

ra
ti

ng
 s

ys
te

m
 

an
d 

fi
rm

w
ar

e 
pa

tc
he

s 
as

 a
nd

 w
he

n 
th

ey
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
 

H
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
Ju

ly
 2

01
7 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

18
 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

A 
ri

sk
-b

as
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
is

 b
ei

ng
 t

ak
en

 t
o 

en
su

re
 c

on
ti

nu
it

y 
of

 s
ys

te
m

s.
  P

ro
ce

ss
es

 
w

er
e 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

ed
 f

or
 t

es
ti

ng
 

an
d 

ap
pl

yi
ng

 p
at

ch
es

. 
Th

is
 p

ro
ce

du
re

 is
 in

 
pl

ac
e.

 

N
et

w
or

k 
Se

cu
ri

ty
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
co

m
pl

et
e 

re
co

rd
 o

f 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

fi
re

w
al

l r
ul

es
, 

w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 b

ut
 is

 
no

t 
lim

it
ed

 t
o:

  
• 

Th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

th
at

 t
he

 f
ir

ew
al

l r
ul

e 
su

pp
or

ts
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ow

ne
r 

of
 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

 
• 

W
he

th
er

 t
he

 r
ul

e 
al

lo
w

s 
fo

r 
in

bo
un

d,
 o

ut
bo

un
d 

or
 b

ot
h 

co
nn

ec
ti

on
s 

 
• 

Th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 le
ve

ls
 o

f 
tr

af
fi

c 
fo

r 
th

e 
ru

le
. 

 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
Ju

ly
 2

01
7 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

18
 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

As
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 d

at
a 

ce
nt

re
 m

ig
ra

ti
on

 
pr

oj
ec

t,
 f

ir
ew

al
l r

ul
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
an

d 
ve

nd
or

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 r
ul

es
 f

or
 t

he
ir

 p
ro

du
ct

s.
 

Ev
id

en
ce

 w
as

 s
ho

w
n 

of
 t

he
 s

ec
ur

it
y 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

po
lic

y 
w

hi
ch

 a
dd

re
ss

es
 t

he
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

pu
t 

in
 p

la
ce

. 

136



Pa
ge
 |
 3
1 
 

 

A
ud

it
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
ue

 D
at

e 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 

Fu
rt

he
rm

or
e,

 a
 f

ul
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l’
s 

in
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l 
fi

re
w

al
l r

ul
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 
an

d,
 w

he
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
, 

in
se

cu
re

 o
r 

re
du

nd
an

t 
ru

le
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

m
ov

ed
. 

N
et

w
or

k 
Se

cu
ri

ty
 

Th
e 

an
ti

-m
al

w
ar

e 
si

gn
at

ur
es

 f
or

 a
ll 

co
un

ci
l I

T 
as

se
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 u

pd
at

ed
 

w
it

h 
th

e 
m

os
t 

re
ce

nt
 a

nt
i-

m
al

w
ar

e 
si

gn
at

ur
e.

 D
ev

ic
es

 t
ha

t 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

up
da

te
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
is

ol
at

ed
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 
co

un
ci

l’
s 

IT
 n

et
w

or
k.

  
Fu

rt
he

rm
or

e,
 C

ap
it

a 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 

th
e 

de
vi

ce
s 

ru
nn

in
g 

th
e 

M
ic

ro
so

ft
 

En
dp

oi
nt

 a
nt

i-
m

al
w

ar
e 

so
lu

ti
on

 h
av

e 
up

 t
o 

da
te

 a
nt

i-
m

al
w

ar
e 

si
gn

at
ur

es
. 

M
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
M

od
er

ni
se

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
17

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
18

 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

As
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 d

at
a 

ce
nt

re
 m

ig
ra

ti
on

, 
an

ti
-

m
al

w
ar

e 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
am

en
de

d 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

it
h 

th
at

 o
f 

th
e 

Sh
ar

ed
 IC

T 
Se

rv
ic

e.
 

  
 

137



Pa
ge
 |
 3
2 
 

 6.
 K

EY
 P

ER
FO

RM
A

N
CE

 IN
D

IC
A

TO
RS

 2
01

7-
18

 t
o 

da
te

 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

ua
l a

nd
 c

om
m

en
t 

RA
G

 R
at

in
g 

 

% 
of

 a
ud

it
s 

fr
om

 t
he

 p
la

n 
re

po
rt

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
m

ee
ti

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
au

di
t,

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

st
an

da
rd

s 
co

m
m

it
te

e 
(a

s 
pe

r 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

te
rm

s 
of

 r
ef

er
en

ce
).

 

90
% 

75
%.

  

Th
is

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

3 
re

po
rt

s 
ou

t 
of

 t
he

 2
0 

is
su

ed
 in

 f
in

al
 

w
he

re
 t

he
 a

ud
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 r

ep
or

te
d 

to
 t

he
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t 
m

ee
ti

ng
 t

o 
th

e 
on

e 
or

ig
in

al
ly

 p
la

nn
ed

. 
Th

e 
re

po
rt

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 t
he

m
at

ic
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

w
he

re
 c

om
un

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

of
 a

ll 
pa

rt
ie

s 
to

ok
 lo

ng
er

 t
ha

n 
w

e 
or

ig
in

al
ly

 e
nv

is
ag

ed
. 

 A
m

be
r 

% 
of

 h
ig

h 
an

d 
m

ed
iu

m
 r

at
ed

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 t
he

 a
gr

ee
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 d

at
e 

75
% 

78
% 

 

As
 r

ep
or

te
d 

in
 s

ec
ti

on
 4

 o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

or
t.

  

G
re

en
 

% 
of

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
in

 d
ra

ft
 r

ep
or

t 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 

by
 a

ud
it

 s
po

ns
or

 /
 o

w
ne

r 
90

% 
10

0%
 

G
re

en
 

% 
of

 d
ra

ft
 r

ep
or

ts
 is

su
ed

 w
it

hi
n 

10
 w

or
ki

ng
 

da
ys

 o
f 

th
e 

au
di

t 
cl

os
ur

e 
m

ee
ti

ng
. 

90
% 

83
% 

 t
hi

s 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 4
 r

ep
or

ts
 o

ut
 o

f 
th

e 
23

 is
su

ed
 in

 d
ra

ft
 

to
 d

at
e 

th
at

 b
ec

am
e 

ov
er

du
e 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 s

ta
ff

 a
bs

en
ce

s.
 

Am
be

r 

% 
of

 r
et

ur
ne

d 
au

di
t 

sa
ti

sf
ac

ti
on

 s
ur

ve
y 

fo
rm

s 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

a 
sc

or
e 

of
 4

 o
r 

5 
ou

t 
of

 5
 

75
% 

75
% 

W
e 

ha
ve

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fi

ve
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 s
ur

ve
ys

, 
tw

o 
ra

ti
ng

 u
s 

as
 

5 
ou

t 
of

 5
, 

fo
ur

 r
at

in
g 

us
 a

s 
4 

ou
t 

of
 5

 a
nd

 t
w

o 
ra

ti
ng

 u
s 

as
 

3 
ou

t 
of

 5
. 

G
re

en
 

An
nu

al
 c

hi
ef

 o
ff

ic
er

 a
nd

 a
ud

it
, 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 

st
an

da
rd

s 
sa

ti
sf

ac
ti

on
 s

ur
ve

y 
re

su
lt

s 
Av

er
ag

e 
of

 
75

% 
an

d 
ab

ov
e 

Th
e 

fi
rs

t 
su

rv
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

t 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 2
01

7-
18

. 
n/

a 

% 
of

 a
ud

it
s 

fr
om

 t
he

 p
la

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 t
o 

dr
af

t 
re

po
rt

 s
ta

ge
 b

y 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
8 

10
0%

 
To

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 2

01
7-

18
. 

n/
a 

 
 

138



Pa
ge
 |
 3
3 
 

 

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 –

 A
SS

U
RA

N
CE

 D
EF

IN
IT

IO
N

S 

LE
VE

L 
O

F 
A

SS
U

RA
N

CE
D

ES
IG

N
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 f

ra
m

ew
or

k
O

PE
RA

TI
O

N
A

L 
EF

FE
CT

IV
EN

ES
S 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s

Fi
nd

in
gs

 f
ro

m
 r

ev
ie

w
 

D
es

ig
n 

O
pi

ni
on

Fi
nd

in
gs

 f
ro

m
 r

ev
ie

w
 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
O

pi
ni

on

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

Ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

nd
 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
o 

m
it

ig
at

e 
th

e
ke

y 
ri

sk
s.

 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

 s
ou

nd
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
co

nt
ro

l 
de

si
gn

ed
 t

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
sy

st
em

ob
je

ct
iv

es
.

N
o,

 o
r 

on
ly

 m
in

or
, 

ex
ce

pt
io

ns
 f

ou
nd

in
 t

es
ti

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
nd

 
co

nt
ro

ls
.  

Th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 a

re
be

in
g 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 a
pp

lie
d.

M
od

er
at

e
In

 t
he

 m
ai

n 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

m
it

ig
at

e 
th

e 
ke

y 
ri

sk
s 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
al

be
it

 w
it

h 
so

m
e 

th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 f
ul

ly
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e.
 

G
en

er
al

ly
 a

 s
ou

nd
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 

ac
hi

ev
e 

sy
st

em
 o

bj
ec

ti
ve

s 
w

it
h

so
m

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
ns

.

A 
sm

al
l n

um
be

r 
of

 e
xc

ep
ti

on
s 

fo
un

d
in

 t
es

ti
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

nd
 

co
nt

ro
ls

.  
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 
no

n 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

so
m

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
, 

th
at

 m
ay

 p
ut

 s
om

e
of

 t
he

 s
ys

te
m

 o
bj

ec
ti

ve
s 

at
 r

is
k.

Li
m

it
ed

A 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
ig

ni
fi

ca
nt

 g
ap

s 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 in
 t

he
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

ls
 in

 k
ey

 a
re

as
. 

W
he

re
 

pr
ac

ti
ca

l,
 e

ff
or

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 m
ad

e
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 in
-y

ea
r.

 

Sy
st

em
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

is
 

w
ea

ke
ne

d 
w

it
h 

sy
st

em
 o

bj
ec

ti
ve

s
at

 r
is

k 
of

 n
ot

 b
ei

ng
 a

ch
ie

ve
d.

A 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 r
eo

cc
ur

ri
ng

 e
xc

ep
ti

on
s

fo
un

d 
in

 t
es

ti
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
ls

. 
W

he
re

 p
ra

ct
ic

al
, 

ef
fo

rt
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 

in
-y

ea
r.

N
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
it

h 
ke

y 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
pl

ac
es

 t
he

sy
st

em
 o

bj
ec

ti
ve

s 
at

 r
is

k.

N
o

Fo
r 

al
l r

is
k 

ar
ea

s 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

ga
ps

 in
 t

he
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

ls
. 

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
in

-
ye

ar
 a

ff
ec

ts
 t

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 t
he

 
or

ga
ni

sa
ti

on
’s

 o
ve

ra
ll 

in
te

rn
al

 
co

nt
ro

l f
ra

m
ew

or
k.

 

Po
or

 s
ys

te
m

 o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

.
D

ue
 t

o 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 

co
nt

ro
ls

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s,

 n
o 

re
lia

nc
e 

ca
n 

be
 p

la
ce

d 
on

 t
he

ir
 

op
er

at
io

n.
 F

ai
lu

re
 t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
in

-
ye

ar
 a

ff
ec

ts
 t

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 t
he

 
or

ga
ni

sa
ti

on
’s

 o
ve

ra
ll 

in
te

rn
al

 
co

nt
ro

l f
ra

m
ew

or
k.

 

N
on

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d/

or
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e
w

it
h 

in
ad

eq
ua

te
 c

on
tr

ol
s.

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

 S
ig

ni
fi

ca
nc

e

H
ig

h 
A 

w
ea

kn
es

s 
w

he
re

 t
he

re
 i

s 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
ri

sk
 o

f 
lo

ss
, 

fr
au

d,
 i

m
pr

op
ri

et
y,

 p
oo

r 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
, 

or
 f

ai
lu

re
 t

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
ti

on
al

 o
bj

ec
ti

ve
s.

 
Su

ch
 r

is
k

co
ul

d 
le

ad
 t

o 
an

 a
dv

er
se

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
. 

Re
m

ed
ia

l a
ct

io
n 

m
us

t 
be

 t
ak

en
 u

rg
en

tl
y.

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

A 
w

ea
kn

es
s 

in
 c

on
tr

ol
 w

hi
ch

, 
al

th
ou

gh
 n

ot
 f

un
da

m
en

ta
l,

 r
el

at
es

 t
o 

sh
or

tc
om

in
gs

 w
hi

ch
 e

xp
os

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 b
us

in
es

s 
sy

st
em

s 
to

 a
 l

es
s 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 l

ev
el

 o
f

th
re

at
en

in
g 

ri
sk

 o
r 

po
or

 v
al

ue
 f

or
 m

on
ey

. 
Su

ch
 a

 r
is

k 
co

ul
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
op

er
at

io
na

l 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 o

f 
co

nc
er

n 
to

 s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

re
qu

ir
es

 p
ro

m
pt

 s
pe

ci
fi

c 
ac

ti
on

. 
Lo

w
 

Ar
ea

s 
th

at
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

lly
 h

av
e 

no
 s

ig
ni

fi
ca

nt
 i

m
pa

ct
, 

bu
t 

w
he

re
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
w

ou
ld

 b
en

ef
it

 f
ro

m
 i

m
pr

ov
ed

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
an

d/
or

 h
av

e 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
it

y 
to

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
gr

ea
te

r 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

an
d/

or
 e

ff
ic

ie
nc

y.

139



APPENDIX B

Update on the work of anti-fraud

Anti-fraud
1. This section of the report provides a review of the anti-fraud work conducted.

2. The anti-fraud team work is split in to two categories:
 Reactive work, which is the response to reports and allegations of fraud.
 Proactive work, which includes initiatives to identify fraud and to prevent fraud.

3. The anti-fraud work is conducted by two anti-fraud teams, who are:
 Anti-fraud services based in Finance and Governance, which investigates all cases 

involving the council’s employees, agents, contractors, anyone else conducting business 
for or with the council, and members of the public. There are multiple types of fraud this 
could include, some of which are theft, council tax fraud, significant financial fraud, 
procurement fraud, grant fraud, national nondomestic rates fraud or evasion, false 
documents, identities and applications, and immigration offences.

 The special investigation team (SIT) based in Housing and Modernisation, which 
investigates housing tenancy fraud in respect of the housing stock owned and managed by 
the council and other social housing where legislation directs that a local authority has 
specific responsibility. This includes cases of unlawful subletting, non-occupation, 
succession, assignment, mutual exchange, and right to buy.

Reactive anti-fraud work
4. The number of referrals received through the council’s website, fraud email, fraud hotline and 

by letter for the two anti-fraud teams between 1 April 2017 and 31 January 2018 was 138 Anti 
fraud and 597 SIT referrals.

5. The anti-fraud team has issued 11 sanctions over this period

6. The Special Investigations Team has issued 38 sanctions over this period

7. Housing management has recovered an additional 70 properties, and the special investigations 
team has undertaken an additional 21 preventative actions, which can include a right to buy 
being stopped or a tenancy succession claim being cancelled, for example.

Proceeds of Crime Act
8. The Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (POCA) provides for the confiscation or civil recovery of the 

proceeds from crime and contains the principal money laundering legislation in the UK. This 
work acts as an important deterrent to show that crime against the council does not pay.

9. Between 1 April 2017 and 31 January 2018, work in this area, has resulted in the courts 
recognising that those we have prosecuted have benefited from their criminal conduct to the 
value of £199,241.75

Proactive anti-fraud work

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)
10. The Anti-Fraud service is now concentrating efforts on matches which have the potential to 

identify financial outcomes.  We are seeking to train a Benefits Officer to support undertaking 
NFI match investigations.

11. All key payroll reports are closed or in progress by Anti-Fraud.

12. An update on the NFI is shown below.

140



Match Type
Total 
NFIs as 
at 
01/02/18

Total 
Recom
mended 
Matche
s  

Total 
recomme
nded 
matches 
closed 

Total 
recomm
ended 
matche
s 'In 
progres
s' 

Total 
recomm
ended 
matche
s 'Not 
opened' 

Errors 
detected 
in all 
Closed 
Matches

Fraud 
detecte
d in all 
closed 
matche

s 

Referral
s to 

DWP
Outcome 
£

Council Tax 
Reduction 
Scheme

2809 137 133 4 0 2 0 16 £1,833

Council Tax  
SPD

12765
(5987 to 

action)
0 0 0 0 765 765 0 £782,673

Creditors 
History 7305 1734 423 0 1311 0 0 0 £-

Creditors 
Standing 10233 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 £-

HB Claimants 3815 370 360 10 0 24 0 14 £105,640
Payroll 833 80 56 24 0 0 1 0 £10,000
Market 
Traders 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £-

Personal 
Budgets 83 34 34 0 0 1 0 0 £-

Residential 
Care Homes 50 11 11 0 0 6 0 0 £75,134

Procurement 47 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 £-
Pensions 294 206 120 86 0 2 0 0 £5,457
Housing 
Tenants 1398 995 690 305 0 1 3 0 £-

Resident 
Parking 
Permits

36 33 31 2 0 11 0 0 £-

Blue Badge 
Permit 413 395 395 0 0 257 1 0 £148,350

Right to Buy 261 46 38 8 0 1 1 0 £208,000
Waiting List 877 806 692 114 0 60 9 0 £83,666
TOTAL 41220 4849 2983 555 1311 1131 780 30 £1,420,755

Anti-money laundering and Right to Buy

13. The council has introduced additional forms to check the veracity of sources of funding in order 
to purchase properties under the right to buy scheme.

14. From 1 April 2017 to 31 January 2018.  The following outcomes have been recorded for this 
period:

Outcome Number
Funded from legitimate sources 109
Withdrawn by applicant on receipt of the money laundering form 2
Withdrawn following consultation with the council based on the information 
provided on the form 25

Possible housing benefit fraud (referred to DWP) 0
Possible tenancy fraud (referred to housing special investigation team) 21
Under review and/or additional information requested 2

Fraud and verification
15. The anti-fraud service checks the veracity of waiting list and homelessness applications which 

have raised a cause for concern, and conduct a review to enable housing management to 
make an informed decision on the applicant’s eligibility to remain on the housing register.

16. From 1 April 2017 to 31 January 2018, 333 applications which have been referred to the team 
have been reviewed, of these 217 have been recommended for removal from the housing 
register and 75 have been recommended as being bona fides.

141



Item No.
12.

Classification:
Open

Date
19 February 2018

Meeting Name:
Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee

Report title: Annual report to the audit, governance and 
standards committee on the council’s risk register 
and refresh of the risk management policy statement 
and strategy

Ward(s) or groups affected: All

From: Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That the audit, governance and standards committee note the annual report on the 
council’s risk register and consider whether it would wish to propose any 
amendments for consideration.

2. That the audit, governance and standards committee note the refresh of the risk 
management policy statement and strategy.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3. The key corporate risks were last reported to the committee in February 2017 with 
the 2016 risks, and this report provides an annual update.  

4. Specifically, the report provides an overview of the council’s risk profile, risk 
categories and the key corporate risks for 2018 from across the council. Each 
department has reviewed their risk registers in advance of this report to ensure the 
report is as up to date as possible.

5. The council’s risk management strategy was formally approved by the then audit 
committee in February 2008, but as it has not been reviewed since 2014 when it 
was updated to reflect changes in terminology, it was felt timely to look at it again 
to ensure that it remains relevant. 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

Overview

6. The council’s risk profile is made up of key departmental risks and cross-
departmental risks that the council faces in achieving its corporate aims and 
objectives, and is derived from an identification, assessment and mitigation of risk 
at departmental level based on the council’s tolerance to these risks.

7. The departmental risk champions then collectively validated the individual 
departmental risk registers and completed a review and aggregation exercise to 
identify the key risks facing the council as a whole. This base exercise was 
repeated in November 2017 and the corporate risk register updated as 
appropriate.

142
Agenda Item 12



Risk categories

8. The council uses the following risk categories to capture risk:

 Economic (e.g. credit crunch impacting on service delivery)
 Financial (e.g. budgetary constraints)
 Reputational (e.g. failures of service delivery which hit the press)
 Staffing & Culture (e.g. recruitment & retention)
 Operational (e.g. services not being delivered)
 Legal & Regulatory (e.g. not complying with a statutory duty)

9. The 2018 split of number of risks by risk category is displayed in the diagram 
below with the split for 2017 included for comparison. There has been an increase 
in the number of operational, staffing/culture and legal/regulatory risks since 2017. 
Frequent risks across departments related to: the loss of key experienced staff and 
recruitment and retention; service and project delivery as a result of spending 
pressures, and an uncertain environment post Brexit Having reviewed these risk 
categories there is generally an increase surrounding the spending pressures 
across the council. In addition, there have been some new risks related to 
changing legal and regulatory environment and also governance.

Percentage Risk by Category

Corporate Risk Register

10. Each department has a departmental risk register. These are updated via the 
network of departmental risk champions who work with the departmental senior 
management teams to regularly update each risk register. Each risk register 
records the risk, assessment score, ownership and key controls and action plans 
to manage each risk.

143



11. Each risk contains a mitigation strategy that outlines both the current controls in 
place to manage the risk but also identifies where required any further controls 
needed to reduce the risk.

12. It is these individual risk registers stored on the council’s risk management 
software system that are used to build the corporate risk register.

13. The table below provides a breakdown of the number of risks (by their risk score 
range) across all council departments.

Number of RisksRisk Assessment Score Range
Jan 2017 Jan 2018

Red 76 - 100 13 19
Amber 37 - 75 70 111
Yellow 22 - 36 22 37
Green 1 - 21 9 17

14. The total number of risks in the database is currently 184 which is an increase in 
the number of risks reported in 2017. There has been an increase of risks in each 
assessment level, with a significant increase in the number of amber risks. The 
increase in risks is reflective of changing regulatory environments (for example, the 
introduction of GDPR in 2018) and continuing financial pressures. 

 
Key corporate risks

 
15. Following a review and validation of the combined departmental risk registers and 

an aggregation exercise, the top risks across the council have been identified. 
These top risks are attached in appendix 1.

16. The top risks are generally those that have been assessed as amber or red and 
which appear in more than one departmental risk register, and are therefore 
relevant to more than one department. These top risks are those risks which 
require most proactive management to ensure that all appropriate mitigation 
actions have been considered and are being implemented as far as possible.

17. The committee is asked to review the corporate risk register and to consider 
whether it would wish to propose any amendments. Over and above any 
observations that members may have on any issues, the corporate governance 
panel will be reviewing the register at their meeting in April 2018. Subject to these 
discussions, Strategic Directors and their teams will be invited to review risks, their 
weightings and mitigating actions to take account of any emerging issues. Areas 
which members may wish to consider are:
 Events last year at both Grenfell and Ledbury
 Children’s and Adults budgetary issues
 Local government finance developments including the London business rates pool 

etc.
 Failure of a major contractor delivering services to vulnerable service users.

144



Risk management policy statement and strategy

18. As noted above, the council’s risk management strategy was formally approved in 
2008 and updated in 2014. As a ‘standing’ document, much of it remains relevant 
but following a review and discussions with key officers, it has however been 
refreshed so that it reflects the current position and more closely aligns with the 
council plan and performance challenge arrangements. The refreshed document is 
attached at appendix 2. Work is also underway to review the more detailed risk 
management procedures referred to in it.

19. It has been considered by the corporate governance panel and the cabinet 
member for finance, management and performance and takes on board their 
comments. Members of this committee are asked to note this refresh of the risk 
management policy statement and strategy.

Policy implications

20. This report is not considered to have direct policy implications.

Community impact statement

21. This report is not considered to have direct impact on local people and 
communities; however the management of risk is key to the successful 
achievement of the council’s objectives.

Resource implications

22. This report is not considered to have direct impact on resource implications.

Consultation

23. Consultation has not been undertaken.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

24. None required.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
None

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 The Key Corporate Risks as at January 2018
Appendix 2 Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2018

145



AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Duncan Whitfield, Strategic Director of Finance and Governance
Report Author Jo Anson, Head of Financial and Information Governance

Version Final
Dated 8 February 2018

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy No No
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Governance

No No

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 8 February 2018

146



APPENDIX 1

The Key Corporate Risks as at January 2018 

Funding/Resource/Capacity

CR1. The continued uncertainty regarding local government funding beyond 2018-19 
presents the section 151 officer with a challenge in terms of being able to recommend 
balanced budget proposals which reflect the council’s priorities.
CR2. The cessation of or significant reduction in a council support service including key 
infrastructure now and in the future causes disruption to a range of front line and back office 
service delivery across the council arising especially as a consequence of budget reductions.
CR3. The increasing need for and cost of demand led services such as social care, housing, 
No Recourse to Public Funds and temporary accommodation results in significant 
overspends against budget.
CR4. The further roll-out of Universal Credit results in delays in paying claimants and direct 
payments  to these claimants results in housing rent and other personal debt, and increased 
demand for other council services and resulting unfunded pressures.

Service Delivery

CR4.  Core business systems are unavailable for prolonged and unpredictable periods of time 
across the whole council, impairing service delivery performance and impacting on resident 
satisfaction, the reputation of the council and staff health, well-being and motivation.
CR5. Unforeseen events and/or adverse public reaction to council programmes results in the 
failure of (or the serious delay to) key regeneration or direct delivery projects causing 
damage to the council’s ability to meet the borough’s long term housing and investment 
needs and resulting in short term financing or funding implications for the council.
CR6. The housing market in London adversely impacts on the council's financial 
arrangements and its ability to manage temporary accommodation, homelessness and 
housing investment. 
CR7. An emergency resulting in the need to initiate the council’s emergency and business 
continuity arrangements, to ensure as far as possible continuity of critical services, adversely 
affects the council’s ability to deliver business as usual.
CR8. Legislative changes affecting the council’s ability to meet the demand for services 
and/or take advantage of opportunities due to lack of capacity or unexpected increases in 
demand leading to reduced performance and increasing costs (for instance, Housing and 
Planning Act 2016, 2014 Care Act and Local Government Finance Bill).

Staffing and Culture
CR11. The data held and managed by council departments is not appropriately integrated 
nor being used in an optimal way, hindering possible improvements and efficiencies in 
service delivery and resulting in potential risks to service users or employees.
CR12. Process, control, or management failure leads to a fraudulent activity resulting in 
financial consequences for the council. 
CR13. Failure to ensure management action is taken, so that appropriate capacity and skills 
to deliver change are maintained during through periods of reorganising and downsizing, 
results in knowledge gaps, poor handover of contract management responsibilities or other 
business consequences. 

Data Protection

147



CR14. Failure to properly adhere to data processing legislation / regulation, results in 
breaches when data is shared inappropriately leading to risk to individuals, ICO intervention 
and consequential financial penalties and reputational damage.  

Asset Loss
CR15. Failure to invest appropriately in the maintenance or management of the council’s 
assets or a sudden and unforeseen event which may give rise to unacceptable future 
liabilities.

148



APPENDIX 2

Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2018

Risk Management Policy statement

Southwark Council believes that managing risk, both opportunity and threat, is essential to 
effective local government.  The council takes a proactive approach to the management of 
risks to support its strategies, day to day operations and overall achievement of the Council 
Plan and associated activities.

A certain amount of risk is necessary and unavoidable, but risk can be a positive force in 
developing and improving our services.  However, risks need to be managed and 
maintaining a robust system of risk management supports the council in delivering its fairer 
future promises.

In implementing this policy, the council will:

 Safeguard our residents, clients, service users, employees, members, pupils and all other 
persons to whom the council provides services and has a duty of care

 Protect our property, buildings, IT and other equipment, vehicles and all other assets 
and resources

 Ensure statutory compliance, and update practices when necessary

 Maintain and strengthen the services we deliver

 Maintain effective and efficient control of public funds by reducing waste, minimising 
our exposure to fraud and corruption, and delivering value for money

 Support the sustainability of the environment and minimise negative impacts

 Increase the likelihood of change initiatives being implemented effectively and in a 
timely manner

 Respond effectively in the event of an emergency.

Our success in dealing with risk has a major impact on achieving our key objectives and 
delivering our services.  The risk management strategy sets out our approach to managing 

149



risks and how risk management will be applied across the council. This document should be 
read in conjunction with the risk management procedures (supporting document i).

150



Risk Management Strategy

Introduction

Southwark is a continuously changing borough and this brings with it both challenges and 
opportunities. Southwark has the 9th highest population density in England and Wales at 
9,988 residents per square kilometre. There has been a 12.3% increase in the population 
since 2001; the population is growing and continues to get younger. A large percentage of 
the population (74%) is of working age.  Southwark also has an ethnically diverse population 
(54.3% white; 26.8% African, Caribbean and black British; 9.5% Asian; 6.2% mixed; 0.8% 
Arab and 3% other ethnicity). Over 120 languages are spoken in the borough, with 11% of 
households having no member of the household who has English as a first language. 44% of 
Southwark’s population live in socially rented accommodation and 7% of Southwark’s 
population provides unpaid care. Thanks in part to council-led regeneration projects across 
the borough, Southwark’s economy continues to grow, although it does still have pockets of 
deprivation. The council has invested in multi-million pound regeneration schemes, such as 
Aylesbury and Elephant and Castle.

Southwark Council is committed to delivering a fairer future for its residents as set out in 
the Council Plan, and this risk management strategy will allow the council to identify, assess 
and manage key risks effectively in order to achieve this objective.

Risk Management

Risk is the uncertainty of an event occurring that could have an impact on the achievement 
of objectives, and is measured in terms of impact and likelihood. 

For Southwark, risk management is the process whereby the council methodically addresses 
these risks to the council achieving its vision, corporate and operational objectives.

Effective risk management is also an essential and integral part of effective corporate 
governance. It is not a separate process. Instead, it is at its most effective as an integral part 
of the council’s business process and culture.

This risk management strategy outlines how the council will achieve its risk management 
objectives, whilst the detailed risk management procedures are contained in a separate 
document.

Risk Management Objectives

The risk management objectives are:

1. To continue to support the strategic aims and operational objectives of the council as 
defined through the Council Plan by supporting the management of risks. 

151



2. To ensure that risk management is embedded into all key council activities, including 
business planning and the budget process.

3. To embed and extend risk management procedures to include key partnerships.

4. To ensure that there is a transparent and prompt escalation and communication process 
through the council on risk management to key decision-makers, enabling them to make 
considered risk decisions. These will include the decision whether to eliminate where 
possible any unacceptable risk exposures.

5. To consider not only the risks that may affect the achievement of strategic aims and 
objectives but also to consider opportunities (positive risks) that may help improve the 
chances of succeeding in achieving those aims and objectives.

6. To achieve standards in risk management which are best practice in both the public and 
private sector, exceeding regulatory requirements. 

Achieving Our Risk Management Objectives

The following points set out how we will achieve our risk management objectives. 
Supporting document i (risk management procedures) provides further detail to the 
following where necessary.

Embedding risk management

The risk management process is embedded through the business planning, budgeting and 
performance review process, and is also applied if there is a major organisational change or 
key project. 

Risk register

The council maintains risk registers that capture the key departmental and corporate risks 
to the council, including areas of risk opportunity. Key risks are held on the council-wide risk 
management system (JCAD).

Risk identification and assessment

Risks are identified at least annually and are reviewed at least quarterly by each 
department, and consistently assessed using the council-wide risk assessment methodology. 
Risks are identified under the following risk categories: economic, financial, operational, 
staffing and culture, reputation and legal and regulatory compliance.

Risk assessment is measured by likelihood of occurrence and by potential impact. Impact to 
the council is measured under the key areas of ‘life and limb’, customer service, staffing and 
culture, compliance with regulations/ law, reputation and financial.

152



Risk opportunities

During the risk identification process, risk opportunities (positive risks) may also be 
identified. The risk management process enables opportunities to be managed alongside 
negative risks. Following initial identification of opportunities it may be appropriate to move 
these opportunities to other council business processes to maximise their positive impact.

The council’s risk appetite

At department level, risks are assessed based on each department’s individual tolerance to 
risk. At corporate level, risks are identified based on the council’s overall tolerance to risk as 
outlined in the risk management procedures document.

In addition, systems are in place to escalate risks to senior management level in situations 
where the risk is assessed above a pre-approved risk tolerance which is detailed as part of 
the risk assessment framework. 

Risk control

The council maintains an effective control framework designed to manage risks. Any risks 
that are an unacceptable exposure to the council are mitigated as far as possible. Where a 
proposed activity or venture has a residual risk that is considered unacceptable and there is 
no means of reducing the risk to an acceptable level the activity may be rejected. However, 
there may be occasions where there is a statutory obligation to undertake the activity 
despite the risk exposure.

There will be occasions where it is appropriate to take measured levels of risk in furtherance 
of the council’s strategic aims and objectives. Where it is feasible and cost effective to do so, 
the financial impact of risks may be minimised by insurance or other third party indemnities.

Risk monitoring and review

Risks are monitored and progress against them reviewed through the performance review 
and challenge process which includes a quarterly review of key risks by each cabinet 
member within their own portfolio.  Chief officers also monitor and review key council risks 
on a regular basis, and corporate risks are reported to the audit, governance and standards 
committee on an annual basis. Further details are contained within the risk management 
procedures (see supporting document i).

Risk and Issue escalation and reporting

There are procedures in place to ensure that chief officers, COT and relevant cabinet 
members receive the necessary information to monitor key risks and issues (those risks that 
materialise) and take considered decisions. Further details are contained within the risk 
management procedures. 

153



Programme and project management

All key projects will incorporate risk assessment at the project initiation phase and regularly 
through the life-time of the project. The council’s accepted robust project management 
methodology is used across the council to support the project management process 
including a requirement to identify and monitor risks. Key project risk registers are also 
captured and managed via JCAD to enable them to be considered at both a programme and 
corporate level.

Partnerships and contracts

Partnerships are an area of increasing importance to how the council operates and as such 
there may be key risks within the partnerships that could potentially have an adverse effect 
on the council. Therefore, the council will be working increasingly with partnerships to 
develop and implement robust risk identification and assessment arrangements. These will 
be recorded and monitored on JCAD.

Key contractual arrangements also form part of the risk identification and assessment 
process.

Emergency planning and business continuity planning

Key risks that may result in the council’s emergency arrangements being invoked are 
contained within the council’s risk register. The council has emergency and business 
continuity plans in place to reduce the potential impact to the council if these risks were to 
materialise.

Health and Safety

The Southwark Safety Management System has placed the identification of risk control 
strategies to eliminate or control hazards at the centre of our health and safety 
arrangements and processes. Significant identified risks are recorded on JCAD.

Performance management and external scrutiny

The risk management process will be regularly audited against industry best practice by 
internal audit. In addition, external audit will be undertaken by Grant Thornton. The process 
will be continuously improved in line with this feedback. In addition key risk management 
documents will be presented to the audit, governance and standards committee for formal 
review.

Risk management resource

Sufficient resources are devoted to risk management to ensure that it is effectively 
undertaken. The corporate risk and insurance manager reports to the head of financial and 
information governance who reports to the strategic director of finance and governance.

154



The corporate risk and insurance manager is supported by the network of departmental risk 
champions.

The JCAD system software stores the risk registers and supports the management of risk 
throughout the council, and is accessible to those with responsibility for risk management.

The risk-related disciplines such as internal audit, health and safety, insurance, emergency 
and business continuity planning, performance management and project management all 
contribute to the council’s risk management process.

At departmental level the risk management process is supported and actively promoted by 
a network of departmental risk champions. Risk champions across the council meet 
quarterly to discuss risk and update the corporate risk and insurance manager with any risk-
related developments within the department.

Risk management training is available to council staff and members commensurate with 
their role and their responsibility for risk management.

Responsibility and ownership for risk 

The authority for and responsibility to take decisions involving risk will be appropriate to the 
level of risk and is defined and communicated within the risk management procedures 
document. There are two council-wide risk champions, one at senior officer level and one 
cabinet member. The senior officer risk champion is currently the strategic director of 
finance and governance, Duncan Whitfield, whilst the cabinet member risk champion is the 
cabinet member for finance, modernisation and performance, councillor Fiona Colley.

Both risk champions have responsibility for overseeing risk management, and the senior 
officer risk champion has delegated specific responsibilities for components of the risk 
management process. Risk is aligned to the council’s performance review and challenge 
process, with relevant lead cabinet members and strategic directors taking ownership of, 
and being held accountable for, the delivery of council plan measures and milestones 
including the mitigation of risk that would limit achievement of priority outcomes.

The risk management policy statement and strategy are submitted to the council’s audit, 
governance and standards committee for review and then to the cabinet member for 
finance, modernisation and performance for formal approval. 

The information contained above forms part of the overall governance of the council. In 
addition a report is presented to the audit, governance and standards committee each year, 
to provide an annual update on key risks, and other reports on risk management are 
presented as needed.

155



Item No. 
13. 

Classification:
Open

Date:
19 February 2018

Meeting Name:
Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee

Report title: Southwark Member Induction Programme 2018

Ward(s) or groups affected: All

From: Director of Law and Democracy

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That AGS Committee note the progress which has been made in the implementation 
of Electronic Summons.

2. AGS Committee to note the completion of the project to roll out mobile technology to 
all Members.

3. AGS Committee to note and agree the draft Southwark Member Induction Programme 
2018.

BACKGROUND

4. On 27 February 2017 the Audit, Governance & Standards Committee received a report 
entitled ‘Digital Governance and Engagement’. The report detailed to members the 
work being undertaken by the Digital Governance and Engagement Project (DGEP), 
the aim of the group was to use the implementation of the council’s Digital strategy to 
change the way in which the Council and members engage with the community, 
partner organisations and key stakeholders. This included through the use of social 
media as well as offering an open, transparent and proactive dialogue with 
communities in an attempt to engage more hard to reach groups through transforming 
the way the council conducts it’s business. 

5. The audit governance and standards committee also noted that Organisational 
Transformation, the Group Whips, Constitutional Team and Member Services together 
with officers across the council would work together to develop a Member Induction 
Programme following the 2018 Local Elections. 

6. This report contains a draft Member Induction Programme for consideration by 
members and an update on the work streams contained in the February 2017 report.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

7. The purpose of the member induction programme is to induct newly-elected and re-
elected Members into their roles in council business, decision-making, and how to be 
effective councillors when exercise their community leadership role. The overarching 
objective of member induction is to provide elected members with an understanding of 
how to discharge their role as an elected representative of Southwark and provide a 
basic understanding of the governance framework of the council.

156
Agenda Item 13



8. The induction programme is therefore designed to support the promotion of effective 
community leadership and skilled decision making. It is also important, through 
induction, to promote ethical decisions and governance at a standard suitable for the 
office they hold.

9. It is important that the correct approach is set right from the moment of being elected 
through to the first months of the new council calendar. The approach should be 
welcoming, informal and engaging – noting councillors have just been elected to office 
with all the importance and responsibility that brings; our programme needs to feed off 
that positivity and underlining the seriousness that public office brings. Some newly-
elected members may be councillors from previous electoral cycles, and in this 
instance they are treated in the same way as new members (albeit being sensitive to 
the fact they will have previous experience with council business and decision 
making). 

10. Because ‘all out’ elections are held every 4 years, there has been significant change 
across the council, a major regeneration programme is taking place and there have 
been changes in the organisational structure of the council in response to budget 
pressures. Although the induction process from 2014 may therefore be a useful guide, 
we need to be cautious of an approach in 2018 that adopts and repeats what went 
before and rather ensure that we learn and adapt taking account of new realities. The 
biggest significant change since 2014 is roll out of iPhones and iPads for all elected 
councillors, replacing the old blackberry devices. This creates the opportunity to put 
much more material on-line and to promote self-selection and development to a 
greater extent than in any previous induction process.

11. The induction programme is key in setting the standards of behaviour required to 
support and maintain good governance from the outset, therefore being clear on core 
principles and intended outcomes over what period of time is critical to implementing a 
successful induction programme.

An evaluation of the 2014 member induction

12. In 2014 the then corporate strategy team undertook an evaluation of the induction 
process. Highlights from the summary document showed that:

 The programme documentation (then a “handbook”) in the Members Pack looked 
good and was clear, receiving positive feedback. 

 Many sessions were very well received by Members, specifically Safeguarding, 
Domestic Violence, Code of Conduct, Casework Management.

 There were some basic ‘process and planning’ issues in terms of delays in 
publishing final documents and checking that final content was in line with 
expectations; use of PowerPoint clunky and difficult to edit/navigate when 
synthesising all material.

 Important to get the right level of engagement across all departments and at the 
right stage in the planning process.

 Some training sessions were very poorly attended.

 There were technical and IT issues at some training sessions.

157



13. The evaluation work also posed a number of ideas in terms of “what might be 
important for members doing the task in 2018 to think about”. These were:
 Wide and early consultation on types of sessions that will be on offer.

 Begin well in advance (prep for 2014 began about four months prior to elections) 
giving little time to review material and plans.

 Prioritise the core critical areas for training and to phase ‘other’ training until later 
phases post summer 2018.

 Specialist training, dependent on committee membership should be delayed until 
we know which committees Members are on.

 Set a principle that the first phase of induction is very much about “taster” 
sessions rather than the only training that will take place.

 Coordinate with Whips as the Groups may have party specific training – i.e. media 
training – that might be otherwise duplicated in the induction programme.

14. A further reflection was about being clear on principles at the outset and setting out 
clear governance for delivery of the programme.

DESIGNING THE 2018 MEMBER INDUCTION PROGRAMME

Governance structure

15. To ensure a robust governance framework for the induction programme, a strategic 
board has been established consisting of senior officers from across the council. The 
board is lead by the Director of Law and Democracy, the Chief Executive is the project 
sponsor. Table A details the composition of the board.

16. The strategic board is supported by an operational board consisting of senior manager 
who will take responsibility for the operational delivery of the induction programme. 
Corporate Governance Panel will also have a role in reviewing and monitoring the 
Member Induction Programme.

Table A
Name Role Responsibility
Eleanor Kelly COT sponsor Other COT members all have specific roles to 

play with regards members.
Doreen Forrester-Brown Programme 

lead
As monitoring officer, is the first point of contact 
with new members and holds the ‘ring’ on 
standards/probity.

Chidi Agada
Constitutional Team

Senior Board 
member

Represents constitutional services who hold key 
day to day relationship with members in terms of 
executive and non-executive decision making 
processes, declaration of office, register of 
interest and committee attendance, governance 
and decision making.

Emma Marinos / Emily 
Nice
Modernise & 
Organisation 
Transformation Team

Senior Board 
members

Strategic lead for member training and 
development and IT/ digital support - critical to 
successful delivery of induction programme in 
terms of access to key resources e.g. Learning 
Pool, IT etc.

158



Name Role Responsibility
Stephen Gaskell / 
Shelley Burke

Senior Board 
member

Represents Chief Executive office and key 
strategic relationship holder with newly elected 
and re-elected members on how the council 
works/who’s who etc.; introducing scrutiny as a 
key part of the induction process.

Louise Neilan / Chris 
Page

Senior Board 
member

Holds the brief on external affairs, policy and 
communications.

Stephen Douglass Senior Board 
member

Council’s most senior strategic lead on 
engagement and responsibility with regards 
community councils.

Jo Anson (or 
representative from 
Finance & Governance)

Senior Board 
member

The induction needs to introduce the basics and 
fundamentals around information governance 
and broader link into finance.

Richard Selly, Genette 
Laws, Ian Smith and 
Simon Bevan.

Senior Board 
member

Acting in capacity of senior officers who will be 
engaged with members post-induction at a 
detailed day to day level (e.g. understanding of 
member enquiries and “how to get things done”, 
how some of the more regulatory committees like 
planning works or committees like health and 
well-being board with its emphasis on 
collaboration and multi-layered governance).

Core principles of the member induction programme

17. The following core principles have been established to drive the Member Induction 
Programme:

a. Digital by default; where possible, training and induction will be delivered through 
on-line courses which can be completed at a time convenient to members, using 
‘The Learning Pool’ application.

b. Self-managing by councillors Induction will based on a clear framework; 
members will be encouraged to take a pro-active approach to their induction 
designed by them, that works for them based on their lifestyle, day to day 
pressures and own learning styles.

c. Prioritised and phased; there will be clarity on what members absolutely must 
do and achieving excellence in this but recognising what is nice to have and so 
prioritising effort accordingly. This is about recognising that bombarding members 
with information and training in the days and weeks after the election may have 
the opposite effect to effective induction, instead the induction process should 
seek to phase activity prioritising the must do’s and important training early on, 
leaving nice to haves to later phases and making the transition to ‘business as 
usual’.

d. High quality; the quality of content of the induction must to be high in addition to 
the IT kit to support the training, significant improvements have been made in IT 
following the move to the shared service. 

e. Feedback and evaluation; throughout the induction members will be asked for 
constant feedback and more formally build in an evaluation point in delivery to 
help learn lessons for future programmes.

159



Draft member induction programme for 2018

18. Working from the member Induction programme for 2014 as a starting point, and 
following consultation with senior officers, the Member Induction Board and the Group 
Whips, a draft Member Induction Programme has been developed and is attached at 
Appendix 1. This is a draft programme which officers will continue to revise and revisit 
over the next 6-8 weeks, the programme is being submitted to members for their 
comments/feedback. The final programme for Member Induction will be agreed with 
the Whips, Member Induction Board and Corporate Governance Panel.

The structure of the 2018 induction

19. The induction will have practical elements, allowing members to complete the 
necessary paperwork (including Declaration of office and Declaration of interest), be 
provided with access to their digital equipment, email addresses, swipe cards and the 
elements needed to operate within the Southwark systems. 

20. The induction for the first 100 days – will cover a Member Handbook which can be 
accessed through MyLearningSource (Southwark’s learning management system 
which has a member-specific area) as well as:

 Overview of decision making
 Conducting case work and ward surgeries
 Overview of how the council works
 Meeting key council officers
 Member enquiries
 Equalities and unconscious bias
 Local government finance
 H&S
 Licensing
 Planning
 Data protection.

21. There will also be element of the induction which can be accessed as required with an 
on-line resource bank including Housing casework; Domestic abuse; Safeguarding 
and the Corporate parenting responsibility of members. Sessions to provide an insight 
into council service delivery which members may receive queries about will be 
provided such as the opportunity to spend a night with the noise patrol team and visits 
to service delivery offices to see and understand some of the detail of frontline service 
delivery.

Objectives of the 2018 post election member induction

22. The objective of the members’ induction is to provide a programme that inducts newly-
elected members into their relevant roles following the local government elections in 
May 2018. The induction will support the promotion of effective community and 
democratic leadership and skilled decision making.

23. We recognize that not all elected members will be new to Southwark, but it is important 
that there is a consistent baseline of understanding and knowledge of the organisation. 
Even members who are returning in 2018 may benefit from a refresher in key council 
functions and operations. Both anecdotal and structured feedback has been taken on 
board from the 2014 induction. Key findings were that the volume of induction activity 
immediately after the election was too intense. This 2018 induction focuses on the first 

160



100 days following the election but also offers significantly increased digital and e-
learning opportunities. 

24. This induction will take the form of an overview of the council, ward member 
responsibilities and those of specific committees, as well as signposting and 
introducing the support available from officers. Where possible, an e-learning online 
resource will be provided to supplement or take away the need for face to face 
training. It is recognised that other induction activities will also take place in this period, 
including those organised by Political Groups and also those by the different Council 
Departments (including organising introductory meetings with relevant Cabinet 
Members and Opposition Spokespeople).

25. The intention is that Organisation Transformation will support members as required in 
moving toward the “digital by default” approach which will create a template to be 
embedded into the Members’ induction which will take place following the elections in 
2018. Members will be able to access the core induction for topics such as council 
decision making, code of conduct, and an introduction to Finance and Resources 
through e-learning and video learning at a time that suits them, with supplementary 
workshops delivered by in-house experts as needed. Officers will review the operation 
of the member training budget to ensure that it is used to maximum effectiveness. 
Officers will continue to review the operation of the member training budget with the 
Group Whips, Constitutional Team and colleagues across the council to ensure that it 
is used to maximum effectiveness.

26. The programme will ensure that newly-elected members:

 have a robust understanding of local government and the processes involved in 
decision making and can discharge their responsibilities effectively.

 have access to relevant local, departmental and thematic information in order to 
perform their roles.

 are provided with developmental opportunities to acquire and further the skills 
needed to fulfil their roles.

 are provided with iPhones and iPads and are supported where needed in 
maximising the use of these devices, including developing the necessary 
technological skills to manage their roles.

 are introduced to chief, senior and other relevant officers and key partners.

 are given key and consistent messages that promote effective member and officer 
relationships.

27. Current Group whips and current members, as well as prospective candidates for 
election to Southwark Council, will be given early information of the planned dates of 
the induction to help to ensure both the correct structure for the induction and an 
appropriate turnout at events.

The current approach to member training and development

28. Organisation Transformation has worked closely with Member Services and the Group 
Whips to support member induction and development. Working with the group offices, 
a training needs analysis was undertaken to deliver a tailored programme for the 

161



member groups which meets the individual’s needs. Following the roll out of iPads and 
iPhones, it emerged that there are a number of members who are extremely digitally 
aware and who actively seek to use digital channels to support them in carrying out 
their duties as a member. Organisation Transformation have provided individual 
support so that all members can make the best use of these devices as they carry out 
their member duties, and will continue to do so where needed.

The modernisation programme

29. Southwark is aware that the move towards “digital by default” is not only about IT 
technologies and hardware but also about developing a culture internally and 
externally that embraces digital as the norm. The technologies we roll out and our 
ability to access them as an organisation are addressed by the Modernise programme, 
which was agreed at Cabinet on 1 November 2016 and is underpinned by a suite of 
action plans. In order to deliver this, the council will be working throughout 2018 to 
move to e-signature processes and paperless meetings, enabling members through 
the ability to annotate files.

WORK STREAM PROGRESS

Roll out of mobile technology

30. All councillors have been issued with iPhones and/or iPads to support mobile working. 
Training sessions and written support materials were offered at the time the devices 
were rolled out, in addition to technical support. Many councillors have commented 
anecdotally that their ability to conduct casework and stay on top of general 
correspondence has been improved by the new devices.

Live streaming for committees and other meetings

31. Further to the report to the committee on 27 February 2017, in developing a strategy 
for social media at committee meetings, a consultation paper and survey was 
circulated to all members in early January 2018. The questionnaire sought members’ 
views on what the council is doing and/or should be doing on social media with 
regards to meetings of the council. The deadline for responses was 2 February 2018. 

32. The questionnaire included the following questions, amongst others:
 Which meetings of the council do you think should be live streamed?
 Which meetings of the council do you think should be audio recorded?
 Which meetings of the council do you think should have live Tweets of its 

decisions?
 Would you require any support or training if a decision is taken to film a council 

meeting that you attend?

33. Officers are collating the responses to the consultation. There are cost implications in 
live streaming meetings. Officers will consider the various options available and the 
resource implications for the council.

Reducing paper at council meetings

34. The Local Government (Electronic Communications) (England) Order 2015, which 
came into effect on 30 January 2015, provides that members may only receive 
summonses electronically, where they consent to them being transmitted by this 
method, and may at any time withdraw their consent.

162



35. Constitutional Team and the Monitoring Officer have emailed all councillors inviting 
individual members to consent to receiving the summons (and open papers) by email. 
The summons consists of an email giving notification of a forthcoming meeting, which 
sets out the agenda titles with a web link to the reports. All open meeting agendas and 
reports can be accessed via the council’s website.

36. Following consideration of the report at audit, governance and standards committee on 
27 February 2017, officers wrote to members again to obtain their consent to receive 
summons electronically. There has been an increase in the number of members 
consenting. Ideally a 70% to 80% take up rate from members would assist in reducing 
printing costs. With the new mobile technology roll out, it is expected that take up 
should increase The take-up of electronic summons at present is as follows:

 33 councillors receive all their summonses electronically (52%)
 30 councillors receive paper copies only (48%)

37. The council’s new Shared IT Service are looking at the limitations of the council’s 
current IT systems and Wi-Fi accessibility which were raised by members as possible 
reasons for slow take up.

38. Following the local elections on 3 May 2018, all members will be encouraged to sign 
up for electronic summons via the induction process.

MYSOUTHWARK FOR MEMBERS

39. In supporting Members to manage their caseload, they will be encouraged to use 
digitally delivered services where possible and encourage others (particularly their 
constituents) to do the same. In particular, the council will be promoting the use of the 
MySouthwark account as the ‘usual’ way of carrying out transactions.

40. MySouthwark is the main way residents transact with the council online. With more 
than 200,000 account holders and 15,000 unique log ins each month, it is among the 
most widely used resident accounts in local government. It proves 24/7 access for 
residents to manage things like council tax, rent, service charges and housing repairs, 
as well as promoting services such as free swim and gym and registering to vote.

41. The council is also in negotiation with its current casework management system 
provider (iCasework) to update the system and move to a hosted service. The hosted 
service will provide a members’ portal where members can log on remotely and log 
and monitor their own casework. Moving to the hosted service will also make 
integration with MySouthwark viable in the future

Policy implications

42. The councils Digital Strategy was approved by Cabinet in February 2016. A Digital 
Transformation Programme has since been implemented by the Modernise Division to 
deliver the objectives within the strategy and to complement the other Modernise 
strategies for IT, Organisational Transformation, HR, and Facilities Management. All 
key projects across the Council are either managed or tracked within the Digital 
Transformation Programme. The recommendations and considerations in this report 
adhere closely to the Digital Strategy and match the digital changes being made to 
how officers carry out their work. Projects related to digital governance and 
engagement will be supported by officers who manage or are involved in the Digital 
Transformation Programme.

163



Community impact statement

43. The proposals in this report detail how the Member Induction process will support 
returning and new members in their role as democratic elected representatives of their 
communities. The induction programme is also important to ensure that good 
governance and high standards of behaviour are maintained by elected members. 
Following the implementation of the Council’s Digital Strategy, several work streams 
are progressing, these are intended to change the way in which members engage with 
community, partner agencies and key stakeholders. The use of social media at 
meetings of the council, offers an opportunity for the council, and members to engage 
in a more open and transparent way, particularly with more hard to reach groups.

Consultation and engagement

44. The Group Whips, senior officers and Member Induction Board have all been 
consulted on the proposals and work streams detailed in this report. The Director of 
Law and Democracy is currently consulting with all members on the use of social 
media at committee meetings. 

Resource implications

45. The cost of Member Induction Programme will be met from existing member 
development budget. There are likely to be cost implications from the wider use of 
social media at council meetings, following the close of consultation with members 
officers will review the proposals and seek to identify resources from existing budgets.

Legal implications

46. The Monitoring Officer has a legal responsibility to ensure good governance and that 
members adhere to high standards of conduct in discharging their duties as elected 
representatives. The Member Induction programme and the other work streams 
detailed in this report will support the council and the Monitoring officer in ensuring that 
this duty is discharged.

Financial implications

47. The financial implications relating to the proposals contained in this report will be met 
from existing resources.

SUPPLEMENTRY ADVICE FROM OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy

48. Article 10.3 of the Constitution provides that the Monitoring Officer will contribute to the 
promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct through the provision of 
support to the Audit, Governance & Standards Committee. The role of the AGS 
Committee is (amongst other things) to provide independent assurance of the 
adequacy of the Council’s governance arrangements. The Member Induction 
Programme has been developed to support good governance in decision making and 
ensure members are able to undertake their community representative role. 

164



Director of Modernise

49. The Modernise division covers Corporate Facilities Management, Organisation 
Transformation, HR and IT & Digital Services. Officers across the division will support 
the delivery of the activity outlined in this paper, in particular to make sure that 
members have the IT equipment, digital skills and training programme that they will 
require to carry out their democratic duties as soon as possible following the 2018 
local elections. Each team has allocated the required staff resource and activity will be 
delivered from within our existing resources.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
None. 

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Members Induction Programme – First phase

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Doreen Forrester-Brown, Director of Law and Democracy
Report Author Doreen Forrester-Brown, Director of Law and Democracy

Version Final
Dated 8 February 2018

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET

MEMBER
Officer title Comments sought Comments included

Director of Law and 
Democracy

Yes Yes

Strategic Director of Finance 
and  Governance

No No

Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 8 February 2018

 

165



APPENDIX 1

ILLUSTRATIVE DRAFT

Members Induction Programme – First phase

May-July 2018

Draft for discussion / amendment

166



Introduction
Southwark Council’s Members Induction programme (May-July 2018) has been designed to support all newly-
elected councillors – whether (a) this is the first time that you have been elected to Southwark Council, (b) you 
are returning after a period away from the Council, or (c) you have been re-elected from the 2014-2018 term.  
The purpose of the programme is to induct newly-elected and re-elected Members into your role in council 
business and decision-making and how to be effective councillors and exercise your community leadership role.  
The overarching objective is to provide you with an understanding of how to discharge your role as an elected 
representative of Southwark and provide you with a basic understanding of the governance framework of the 
council.  

The principles upon which the induction is based is for it to be: digital by default and self-managing, using online 
tools as much as possible and giving you as councillors a greater ability to ‘learn and discover’ at a time of your 
own choosing; prioritised and phased, focusing on the most essential sessions early on in your  term of office; 
high quality; refined through feedback and evaluation, learning as we go. 

Learning Pool is the Council’s self-service booking system for training and development.  The following [link] 
provides further details on all courses and the ability to book sessions to attend in person or, where applicable, 
to register and participate online.  All face to face training will take place in 160 Tooley Street unless 
otherwise advertised.

167



Southwark Council – Draft Member Induction, May-July 2018
Below sets out the programme for the first phase of induction from the point of election and signing the 
declaration of office through to the ‘summer recess’.  Newly-elected councillors should take the time to consider 
which sessions are essential to attend, and also any other sessions which they might also like to attend.  In 
some popular or essential cases (for instance, training on the Council’s safeguarding duties) the Council has 
timetabled a number of training sessions – however members need only attend one of these.

Key / what to attend

E Essential training sessions

R Recommended training sessions 

O Optional (areas of interest) training sessions

@ Available online via Learning Pool

168



Southwark Council – Draft Member Induction, May-July 2018
Who should attend?DATE Time Room Event

New Former 
(pre-
2014)

Continuing 
(2014-
2018)

Committee
Available 
online?

Further details of event / 
other information

Th 03 All day Local Government 
Elections & Count

Get basic contact details from 
all elected councillors so e-
form can be issued?

Fr 04
Sa 05

Week 
1 / 
May

Su 06
Mo 07 BANK HOLIDAY
Tu 08 6pm-

8pm
Welcome Session 
1ii E E E Signing of declaration of 

office, IT set up and ‘basics’ 
in place (e.g. building pass, 
health & safety basics etc.)

10:30am
-2pm

Welcome Session 
2iii E E E Signing of declaration of 

office, IT set up and ‘basics’ 
in place (e.g. building pass, 
health & safety basics etc.)

We 09

6pm-
8pm

Welcome Session 
3iv E E E Signing of declaration of 

office, IT set up and ‘basics’ 
in place (e.g. building pass, 
health & safety basics etc.)

Th 10 1pm – 
5:30pm

Welcome Session 
4v E E E Signing of declaration of 

office, IT set up and ‘basics’ 
in place (e.g. building pass, 
health & safety basics etc.)

Fr 11 8am – 
10am

Welcome Session 
5vi E E E Signing of declaration of 

office, IT set up and ‘basics’ 
in place (e.g. building pass, 
health & safety basics etc.)

Sa 12

Week 
2 / 
Mayi

Su 13

169



DATE Time Room Event Who should attend? Available 
online?

Further details of event / 
other informationNew Former 

(pre-
2014)

Continuing 
(2014-
2018)

Committee

Mo 14 Political group 
meetings (TBC)?

Tu 15 Start of Ramadan
10am How the Council 

Works/ Decision 
Making in 
Southwark 1vii

E E O What powers does the
Council have? How does it 
fulfil its duties? Who makes 
what decision? This session 
will provide an overview of 
the Council’s responsibilities 
and decision–making.

We 16

Early 
evening?

Personal safety for 
members E E E This session designed to 

complement the mandatory 
e-learning course and also 
covers the purpose of health 
and safety regulations, plus 
lone working.

Th 17 Ward Member 101 
– casework 
management etc

E E R An overview on how you can 
effectively manage member 
enquiries.  It will include 
training on how the Council 
will support you to manage 
your casework effectively.

Fr 18
Sa 19

Week 
3 / 
May

Su 20
Mo 21 160 

Tooley 
St

6pm (or 
at the 
rise of 
Civic 
Awards)

Council Annual 
Meeting

IT drop-in desk / other basic 
drop-in desk for queries?

Tu 22

Week 
4 / 
May

We 23 Code of Conduct 
and Standards E E E All councillors should attend 

one of the sessions on the 

170



DATE Time Room Event Who should attend? Available 
online?

Further details of event / 
other informationNew Former 

(pre-
2014)

Continuing 
(2014-
2018)

Committee

Training for 
Members 

Council’s code of Conduct.  
This session includes a 
briefing on standards and 
how members can work 
effectively with officers.

Planning 
Committee Training O O O E Detailed expertise training for 

members and reserves of the 
Planning Committee These 
Members must attend one of 
these detailed sessions.

Note: Planning Committee 
scheduled for 6pm.

Licensing – 
overview and 
training

R O O E An overview of the Council’s 
role, responsibilities and 
powers related to licensing.  
The session is useful for 
those new to licensing and as 
a refresher.  Licensing 
Committee Members should 
attend one session.

Equalities and 
unconscious bias - 
training

E E E An introduction to the Council 
and members role in terms of 
fulfilling public sector 
equalities duties – and the 
important role of members

Th 24

Local Government 
Finance E E O An overview of Local 

Government finance, 
especially in the context of 
Southwark’s 2018/19 budget.  

171



DATE Time Room Event Who should attend? Available 
online?

Further details of event / 
other informationNew Former 

(pre-
2014)

Continuing 
(2014-
2018)

Committee

It includes the role of finance 
in member decision making, 
and the impact of wider 
changes attached to local 
government finance.

The councillor as 
an effective 
community leader

E R R An overview of the 
importance of the community 
leadership role of a local 
councillor and the key 
essential skills that this 
entails.

Local Government 
Finance E E O An overview of Local 

Government finance, 
especially in the context of 
Southwark’s 2018/19 budget.  
It includes the role of finance 
in member decision making, 
and the impact of wider 
changes attached to local 
government finance.

Fr 25
Sa 26 Half Term
Su 27 Half Term
Mo 28 BANK HOLIDAY Half Term
Tu 29 Half Term
We 30 Half Term
Th 31 Half Term
Fr 01 Half Term
Sa 02 Half Term

Week 
5 / 
May & 
June

Su 03 Half Term

172



DATE Time Room Event Who should attend? Available 
online?

Further details of event / 
other informationNew Former 

(pre-
2014)

Continuing 
(2014-
2018)

Committee

How the Council 
Works/ Decision 
Making in 
Southwark 2viii

E E O What powers does the 
Council have? How does it 
fulfil its duties? Who makes 
what decision? This session 
will provide an overview of 
the Council’s responsibilities 
and decision making.

Mo 04

Planning 
Committee Training O O O E Detailed expertise training for 

members and reserves of the 
Planning Committee.  These 
Members must attend one of 
these detailed sessions.

Note: Planning Committee 
scheduled for 6pm

Tu 05
We 06 Community 

Councils – what, 
where, when, why

R R O An overview of the role of all 
councillors on their local 
Community Council.  It 
outlines Community Councils’ 
remit and how ward 
councillors can make use of 
them.

Th 07
Fr 08 Community 

Councils – what, 
where, when, why

R R O An overview of the role of all 
councillors on their local 
Community Council.  It 
outlines Community Councils’ 
remit and how ward 
councillors can make use of 
them.

Week 
6 / 
June

Sa 09 Safeguarding 
Training E E E E This session is set-up to help 

councillors find out more 

173



DATE Time Room Event Who should attend? Available 
online?

Further details of event / 
other informationNew Former 

(pre-
2014)

Continuing 
(2014-
2018)

Committee

about their roles, and what 
support is available to them in 
keeping people safe from 
harm and abuse.

Corporate 
Parenting Training O O O E This session will provide 

training on the Council’s role 
in enabling improvements in 
the life chances of looked 
after children.  Members of 
the Corporate Parenting 
committee should attend one 
of these sessions.

Su 10
Local Government 
Finance R R O An overview of Local 

Government finance, 
especially in the context of 
Southwark’s 2018/19 budget.  
It includes the role of finance 
in member decision making, 
and the impact of wider 
changes attached to local 
government finance

Community Council 
Training for Chairs 
& Vice Chairs

O O O E This session is specifically 
aimed at training the chairs 
and vice-chairs of the 
community councils.  Other 
members interested in this 
are also welcome to attend.

Week 
7 / 
June

Mo 11

Code of Conduct 
and Standards 
Training for 
Members 

E E E All councillors should attend 
one of the sessions on the 
Council’s code of Conduct.  
This session includes a 
briefing on standards and 

174



DATE Time Room Event Who should attend? Available 
online?

Further details of event / 
other informationNew Former 

(pre-
2014)

Continuing 
(2014-
2018)

Committee

how members can work 
effectively with officers.

Health & Well-
being R R O E An overview of the role of the 

health and well-being board 
and the importance of health 
and well-being on council 
delivery.

Tu 12 Introduction to 
scrutiny R R O E An introductory session on 

the Council’s scrutiny role, 
including how councillors can 
make the most out of 
scrutiny.

Equalities and 
unconscious bias E E E An introduction to the Council 

and members role in terms of 
fulfilling public sector 
equalities duties – and the 
important role of members
.

Ward Member 101 
– casework 
management, 
boundary change 
implications

E E R An overview on how you can 
effectively manage member 
enquiries.  It will include 
training on how the Council 
will support you to manage 
your casework effectively.

We 13

An Overview of 
Planning O O O E An opportunity to come to a 

session on the Council’s role, 
responsibilities and powers 
related to planning.

175



DATE Time Room Event Who should attend? Available 
online?

Further details of event / 
other informationNew Former 

(pre-
2014)

Continuing 
(2014-
2018)

Committee

Code of Conduct 
and Standards 
Training for 
Members

E E E All councillors should attend 
one of the sessions on the 
Council’s code of Conduct.  
This session includes a 
briefing on standards and 
how members can work 
effectively with officers.

End of Ramadan

World Cup Commences

Local Government 
Finance R R O An overview of Local 

Government finance, 
especially in the context of 
Southwark’s 2018/19 budget.  
It includes the role of finance 
in member decision making, 
and the impact of wider 
changes attached to local 
government finance.

Th 14

Health and well-
being R R O E An overview of the role of the 

health and well-being board 
and the importance of health 
and well-being on council 
delivery.

Fr 15 Corporate 
Parenting Training O O O E Council’s role in enabling 

Improvements in the life 
chances of looked after 
children.

Sa 16

176



DATE Time Room Event Who should attend? Available 
online?

Further details of event / 
other informationNew Former 

(pre-
2014)

Continuing 
(2014-
2018)

Committee

Su 17
Code of Conduct 
and Standards 
Training for 
Members

E E E All councillors should attend 
one of the sessions on the 
Council’s code of Conduct.  
This session includes a 
briefing on standards and 
how members can work 
effectively with officers.

World Cup: Tunisia vs 
England (7pm)

Being an effective 
scrutiny member 
and core 
questioning skills

R O O E What does it mean to be an 
effective scrutiny member?  
What are does a good 
question look like? This 
interactive training session 
will support members in 
improving their scrutiny skills.

Safeguarding – 
councillors and the 
Council’s role in 
keeping people 
safe from harm / 
abuse

E E E E This session is set-up to help 
councillors find out more 
about their roles, and what 
support is available to them in 
keeping people safe from 
harm and abuse.

Week 
8 / 
June

Mo 18

Audit and 
Governance 
overview and 
training

O O O E An overview of the role of 
Audit and Governance in 
providing independent 
assurance of the Council’s 
governance and risk 
management.

177



DATE Time Room Event Who should attend? Available 
online?

Further details of event / 
other informationNew Former 

(pre-
2014)

Continuing 
(2014-
2018)

Committee

Community Council 
Training for Chairs 
& Vice Chairs

O O O E This session is specifically 
aimed at training the chairs 
and vice-chairs of the 
community councils.  Other 
members interested in this 
are also welcome to attend.

Licensing – 
overview and 
training

R O O E An overview of the Council’s 
role, responsibilities and 
powers related to licensing.  
The session is useful for 
those new to licensing and as 
a refresher.  Licensing 
Committee Members should 
attend one session.

Tu 19

Personal safety E E E This session designed to 
complement the mandatory 
e-learning course and also 
covers the purpose of health 
and safety regulations plus 
lone working.

Audit and 
Governance 
overview and 
training

O O O E An overview of the role of 
Audit and Governance in 
providing independent 
assurance of the Council’s 
governance and risk 
management.

We 20

Being an effective 
scrutiny member 
and core 
questioning skills

R O O E What does it mean to be an 
effective scrutiny member ?  
What are does a good 
question look like? This 
interactive training session 

178



DATE Time Room Event Who should attend? Available 
online?

Further details of event / 
other informationNew Former 

(pre-
2014)

Continuing 
(2014-
2018)

Committee

will support members in 
improving their scrutiny skills.

Equalities and 
unconscious bias E E E An introduction to the Council 

and members role in terms of 
fulfilling public sector 
equalities duties – and the 
important role of members

Th 21

Planning 
Committee Training O O O E Detailed expertise training for 

members and reserves of the 
Planning Committee These 
Members must attend one of 
these detailed sessions.

Fr 22
Sa 23
Su 24 World Cup: England vs 

Panama (1pm)
Safeguarding – 
councillors and the 
Council’s role in 
keeping people 
safe from harm / 
abuse

E E E E This session is set-up to help 
councillors find out more 
about their roles, and what 
support is available to them in 
keeping people safe from 
harm and abuse.

Mo 25

Health and well-
being (NEW) R R O E An overview of the role of the 

health and well-being board 
and the importance of health 
and well-being on council 
delivery.

Week 
9 / 
June 
& July

Tu 26 The councillor as 
an effective E R R An overview of the 

importance of the community 

179



DATE Time Room Event Who should attend? Available 
online?

Further details of event / 
other informationNew Former 

(pre-
2014)

Continuing 
(2014-
2018)

Committee

community leader leadership role of a local 
councillor and the key 
essential skills that this 
entails

We 27 Unity 
Cafe

5.30pm-
7.30pm

Informal meeting 
and greeting with 
Directors Forum / 
Top 100 Managers 

R R R All councillors invited to 
attend an open, informal 
session over tea/coffee/cake.

Th 28 World Cup: England vs 
Belgium (7pm)

Fr 29
Sa 30
Su 01

SUMMER (Jul/Aug/Sep) School Holidays begin on or around Friday 20 July/ ‘summer recess’ commences
Sep/Oct Party Conference season
Oct Half Term 20-28 October
Nov 2018 Second / mini refresh phase of induction?

180



i This is the week also for prioritizing reclaiming IT kit from outgoing members
ii This repeats and modifies the 2014 format whereby a number of timeslots are offered to try and ensure maximum accessibility.  If basic member contact details are 
established, they could be encouraged to select a session allowing officers to cancel any sessions that are less popular / not opted for.
iii See i
iv See i
v See i
vi See i
vii This repeats the 2014 programme where a daytime and evening session was offered
viii See vii

181



Item No. 
14. 

Classification:
Open

Date:
19 February 2018

Meeting Name:
Audit, governance and standards 
committee

Report title: Draft work programme for 2018-19

Ward(s) or groups affected: All

From: Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That the audit, governance and standards committee consider the proposed draft 
work programme for 2018-19 and whether they would wish to make amendments to 
arrangements as set out in paragraphs 8 and 9 of this report, or in respect of any 
other matters.

2. That the audit, governance and standards committee, subject to any requested 
changes, agree the work programme for 2018-19 set out in Appendix 2. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

3. Since its establishment in March 2007, the committee has agreed a work programme 
for the forthcoming year. Amendments to the programme to take account of changing 
circumstances can be made throughout the year. 

4. The purpose of this report is to set out possible areas of work for consideration to 
enable members to agree a programme for 2018-19.   

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

5. In considering items for inclusion, it may be helpful to do this within the framework of 
the committee’s purpose, as set out in the constitution. This was amended in 2016-17 
when the committee was renamed and is stated to be:

 Independent assurance of the adequacy of the council’s governance 
arrangements, including the risk management framework and the associated 
control environment

 Independent scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non-financial performance to 
the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control 
environment

 Oversight of the financial reporting process

 Scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies

 A framework to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by councillors, 
co-opted members and church and parent governor representatives.

6. The committee’s revised terms of reference, as approved by council assembly, cover 

182
Agenda Item 14



functions relating to audit activity, the regulatory framework, accounts, treasury 
management and the council’s standards framework. They are attached at Appendix 
1 as they may further help the committee to determine items to be included in its work 
programme. 

7. Using the 2017-18 revised work programme as a starting point, a draft programme for 
2018-19 has been included at Appendix 2 for the committee’s consideration. Items 
shown in brackets are standing items which will be brought forward as they arise. The 
draft programme is based on meetings of the committee being held in June 2018, July 
2018, September 2018, November 2018, February 2019 and June 2019. 

8. During 2017-18, the committee decided that it would review a range of governance 
issues through the year and received reports on the following:

 Equalities impacts on the council (Stephen Douglass, director of communities)
 IT (Emma Marinos, director of modernise, and Mark Compton-James, head of 

IT and digital services)
 The Better Care Fund (Duncan Whitfield, strategic director of finance and 

governance, and David Quirke-Thornton, strategic director of children's and 
adults' services)

 HR (Emma Marinos, director of modernise, and Julie Foy, head of human 
resources)

9. Members are asked to consider whether they would wish to continue this approach 
and, if so, to identify further governance topics for consideration in the coming year. If 
they do not wish to continue this approach, they are asked to identify an alternative 
approach to the review of governance.  

10. There remains a need to ensure flexibility in terms of emerging issues which come to 
light through items already on the committee’s agenda. For example, a review of audit 
recommendations and progress on their implementation may highlight a need to 
request the attendance of individuals at a future meeting to help explain action taken. 
The draft programme therefore includes a standing item relating to review of the 
committee’s work plan. There may also be a need to review the work programme to 
take account of any changes which may be agreed to the council’s constitution during 
the year.

11. Items have been grouped in line with its functions, in order to ensure that there is 
appropriate coverage of the committee’s key roles as defined in its terms of reference. 

12. Training will continue to be provided for members on the role of the committee, and 
development needs will continue to be monitored to enable appropriate training to be 
provided as opportunities arise.  

13. The committee is asked to consider whether the attached draft work programme 
reflects its priorities for the next year or whether there are other amendments which it 
would wish to see included. 

Policy implications

14. This report is not considered to have direct policy implications. 

183



Community impact statement

15. The decision to agree a work programme for next year is considered not to have a 
significant impact on any particular community or group.

Resource implications

16. There are no direct resource implications in this report. 

Consultation 

17. There has been no consultation on this report. 

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

18. None required.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
None.

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Extract from the constitution – Part 3K Audit and governance
Appendix 2 Draft work programme for 2018-19

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Duncan Whitfield, Strategic Director of Finance and Governance
Report Author Virginia Wynn-Jones, Principal Constitutional Officer 

Version Final
Dated 8 February 2018

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments sought Comments included

Director of Law and Democracy No No
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Governance

No No

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 8 February 2018

184



APPENDIX 1

Extract from the constitution – Part 3K Audit and governance committee

ROLE AND FUNCTIONS

Introduction

The purpose of the audit, governance and standards committee is to provide:

1. Independent assurance of the adequacy of the council’s governance 
arrangements, including its standards regime, the risk management framework 
and the associated control environment.

2. Independent scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non-financial performance to 
the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control 
environment.

3. Oversight of the financial reporting process.

4. Scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies.

5. A framework to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by councillors, 
co-opted members and church and parent governor representatives.

Audit activity

6. To approve the internal audit charter

7. To approve the risk based internal audit plan, including resource requirements.

8. To approve any significant proposed advisory services, additional to those 
included in the audit plan.

9. To receive information on the appointment, departure, resignation or change in 
chief audit executive.

10. To receive in-year summaries of internal audit and anti-fraud activity and the 
internal audit annual report and opinion and to consider the level of assurance it 
can give over the council’s corporate governance arrangements.  

11. To receive reports dealing with the management and performance of the provider 
of internal audit services, including the performance of the chief audit executive.

12. To receive reports from internal audit on agreed recommendations not 
implemented within a reasonable timescale.

13. To consider the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports and the report to 
those charged with governance.

14. To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.

15. To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives 
value for money.

185



16. To have oversight over the appointment of the external auditor.

17. To commission work from internal and external audit.

Accounts

18. To review and approve the annual statement of accounts and specifically to 
consider compliance with appropriate accounting policies and whether there are 
any concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit that need to 
be brought to the attention of the council.

19. To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on 
issues arising from the audit of the accounts.

Treasury management

20. To review and scrutinise the treasury management strategy and policies.

Governance activity

21. To review any issue referred to it by the chief executive or a strategic director, or 
any council body.

22. To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management in the 
council.

23. To monitor the effective development and operation of corporate governance in 
the council and to agree actions necessary to ensure compliance with best 
practice.

24. To monitor council policies on ‘whistle-blowing’, the ‘corporate anti-fraud strategy’ 
and the council’s complaints processes.

25. To receive reports from the statutory officers under the council’s whistle blowing 
policy.

26. To provide strategic oversight on the use of the powers regulated by the 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 and to receive in-year reports on 
operational use.

27. To oversee the production of and agree the council’s annual governance 
statement.

28. To review the council’s compliance with its own and other published standards 
and controls.

29. To receive reports on retrospective contract related decisions as set out in 
contract standing orders.

30. To receive reports from the monitoring officer on any serious breach of the 
contract standing orders or procurement guidelines.

186



Standards activity
 
31. To advise the council on the adoption or revision of the members’ code of 

conduct, the member and officer protocol and the communication protocol.

32. To monitor the operation of the members’ code of conduct, the member and 
officer protocol and the communication protocol.

33. To monitor and advise on training provided for councillors, co-opted members 
and church and parent governor representatives.

34. To deal with any standards related complaints referred to it and any report from 
the monitoring officer on any matter which is referred to him or her.

35. To receive reports from the monitoring officer on unlawful expenditure and 
probity issues.

36. To consider the withholding of allowances from individual members (including 
elected members and co-opted members) in whole or in part for non-attendance 
at meetings, or, for elected members only, for failure to attend required training.

37. To establish the following sub-committees: 

 to consider complaints of misconduct against elected councillors and co-
opted members

 to consider civic awards.

Annual report

38. To report annually to all councillors on its work and performance during the year.

MATTERS RESERVED FOR DECISION

Matters reserved for decision by the main committee

39. The matters reserved for decision to the committee are as set out in the role and 
functions, other than those functions delegated to the relevant sub-committee.

Matters reserved for decision by the conduct sub-committee

40. To consider complaints of misconduct against elected councillors and co-opted 
members. 

Matters reserved for decision by the civic awards sub-committee

41. To grant civic awards.

42. To consider the process by which the decisions with respect to civic awards 
applications are to be taken and to make recommendations to the standards 
committee.

43. To appoint non-voting co-opted members of the civic awards sub-committee.

187



APPENDIX 2
Draft Work Programme for 2018-19

Items shown in brackets () are standing items which will be brought forward as they arise

Item Meeting date Commentary

June 2018 July 2018 September 
2018

November 
2018

Feb 2019 June 
2019

General
Annual work programme for 
following year

 Draft work programme for the committee 
– Constitutional Officer

In-year review of work 
programme

() () () () () () Standing item – to pick up emerging 
issues

Annual report of audit, 
governance and standards 
committee

 Report on committee’s work and 
performance to be submitted to all 
councillors each year – Constitutional 
Officer

Internal Audit activity
Internal audit charter  To review and approve changes, if 

needed, to the internal audit charter – 
Director of Finance 

Internal audit plan and strategy 
for internal audit

 Proposed internal audit programme for 
future years – Director of Finance 

Annual report and opinion on 
internal audit and fraud 

 Including review of effectiveness of 
system of internal audit and Director of 
Finance’s opinion on system of internal 
control and report on internal audit 
contractor and Director of Finance (chief 
audit executive) performance – Director 
of Finance 

188



Item Meeting date Commentary

June 2018 July 2018 September 
2018

November 
2018

Feb 2019 June 
2019

Progress report on the work of 
internal audit and anti-fraud

     Issues raised and progress on 
implementation of recommendations, 
including approval of any significant 
additional advisory services – Director of 
Finance

Chief audit executive 
information

() () () () () () Report on appointment, departure, 
resignation or change in chief audit 
executive – Director of Finance

External Audit activity
Audit fee letters (including 
pension fund)

  Annual fee letters setting out indicative 
fees and planned work/outputs for 2018-
19 in July 2018 and for 2019-20 in 
February 2019 for the council and 
pension fund – Grant Thornton

Audit plans (including pension 
fund)

  Audit plans setting out audit work to be 
undertaken for audit of financial 
statements 2017-18 for the council and 
pension fund, including approval of any 
significant additional advisory services – 
Grant Thornton

Annual Audit letter (Grant 
Thornton)

 Annual audit letter (AAL) providing a 
summary of Grant Thornton’s 
assessment of the council for 2016-17, 
drawing from audit of financial statements 
and work undertaken to assess VfM – 
Grant Thornton

189



Item Meeting date Commentary

June 2018 July 2018 September 
2018

November 
2018

Feb 2019 June 
2019

Audit findings reports (ISA 260) 
– including pension fund)

 Annual governance report (AGR) 
summarising findings from 2017-18 audit 
of financial statements and work to 
assess VfM arrangements – Grant 
Thornton 

Informing the audit risk 
assessment for the council 
(including pension fund)

  Item on oversight of management’s 
processes in relation to risks of 
fraud/error, compliance with relevant laws 
and regulations and gong concern – 
Grant Thornton

Certification of claims and 
returns annual report

 Annual report summarising findings from 
the certification of 2017-18 grant claims – 
Grant Thornton

Audit update report () () () () () ()  Standing item – update on work being 
planned or undertaken – Grant Thornton

Governance and standards activity
Annual governance statement   Annual governance statement (AGS) is a 

mandatory statement setting out the 
council’s governance arrangements – 
Departmental Finance Manager 
(Corporate and Central Services)

Retrospective approvals to 
contract decisions

() () () () () () Standing item – contract standing orders 
require retrospective contract decisions 
over £100k to be reported for the purpose 
of obtaining guidance to inform future 
decision making – Director of Finance

Risk management and 
insurance

 Report on key risks in November – Head 
of Financial and Information Governance

190



Item Meeting date Commentary

June 2018 July 2018 September 
2018

November 
2018

Feb 2019 June 
2019

Progress report on 
implementation of external audit 
recommendations

() () () () () () Standing item – progress made in 
implementing external audit 
recommendations (including audit 
findings) – Director of Finance

Outcomes of the whistleblowing 
policy

 Annual report to consider outcomes of the 
whistleblowing policy – Director of Law 
and Democracy

Review of complaints made 
under Code of Conduct

 Annual report on complaints made under 
Code of Conduct – Head of Corporate 
Team

Report on operational use of 
Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000

 Annual report on use of powers under 
RIPA – Head of Corporate Team

Review of member and officer 
protocol and communications 
protocol

 Annual review of protocols, with 
recommendations for changes as needed 
– Head of Corporate Team

Establishment of sub-
committees for 2018-19 

 Report to establish sub-committees in line 
with committee’s role and functions – 
Principal Constitutional Officer

Appointment of non-voting co-
opted members of the civic 
awards sub-committee for 
2018-19

 Report to appoint the non-voting co-opted 
members of the civic awards sub-
committee for 2018-19 – Principal 
Constitutional Officer

Member induction and training  Report on member induction and training
Areas of governance for 
review during year 

() () () () For consideration

191



Item Meeting date Commentary

June 2018 July 2018 September 
2018

November 
2018

Feb 2019 June 
2019

Corporate governance 
framework

() () () () () () Standing item – to include e.g. council 
policies within remit of audit, governance 
and standards committee; other areas as 
identified:  pensions governance; code of 
governance

Budget challenge and 
governance

() () () () () () Standing item – to monitor budget 
challenges as required, including 
processes and governance, throughout 
the year

Accounts
Statement of accounts   2017-18 statement of accounts for 

consideration and approval – Director of 
Finance

Treasury Management
Review of the policy and 
strategy

 Review of treasury management policy 
and strategy – Director of Finance

192



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017-18

COMMITTEE: AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE (OPEN AGENDA)
NOTE: Original held in Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to Virginia Wynn-Jones, 

Constitutional Team on 020 7525 7055 or virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk  

COPIES

COUNCILLORS
Councillor Paul Fleming (Chair) By email
Councillor James Barber (Vice Chair) 1
Councillor Catherine Dale By email
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE 1
Councillor Renata Hamvas 1
Councillor David Hubber By email
Councillor Andy Simmons 1

 
RESERVES
Councillor Evelyn Akoto By email
Councillor Nick Dolezal By email
Councillor Karl Eastham By email
Councillor Sarah King By email
Councillor Hamish McCallum By email
Councillor Rosie Shimell By email
Councillor Cleo Soanes By email

OTHER COUNCILLORS
Councillor Fiona Colley By email 

LAW AND DEMOCRACY
Norman Coombe / Tom Crisp 1
Doreen Forrester-Brown                                              1

COMMUNICATIONS
Louise Neilan By email

CONSTITUTIONAL TEAM
Virginia Wynn-Jones 3

INDEPENDENT PERSONS

Mr William Dee By email

Mr Charles Wynn-Evans By email

FINANCE AND GOVERNANCE
Duncan Whitfield  1   
Jo Anson 1
Jennifer Seeley 1
Fay Hammond 1

BDO (Internal Auditors) – Greg Rubins      By email

GRANT THORNTON

Paul Dossett 1
Grant Thornton
5th Floor, Grant Thornton House
Melton Street
Euston Square
London NW1 2EP

Nick Taylor 1
Audit Office
Ground floor, 160 Tooley Street
London SE1 2QH

Total Print Run: 15
61

61
                            List Updated: 8 February 2018 

mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk

	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Governance Topic: Update on HR
	7 Internal Audit Operational Plan 2018-19 and Strategic Plan 2018-19 to 2020-21
	Appendix A: Internal Audit Operational Plan 2018-19 and Strategic Plan 2018-19 to 2020-21

	8 Grant Thornton - Informing the audit risk assessment for Southwark Council and Southwark Pension Fund
	Appendix A: Grant Thornton - Informing the Audit Risk Assessment

	9 Grant Thornton - External audit certification letter
	Appendix A: GT Certification Letter 2017

	10 Grant Thornton Audit Plans for Southwark Council and Southwark Pension Fund 2017-18
	Appendix A: Grant Thornton Audit Plan for Southwark Council year ended 31 March 2018
	Appendix B: Grant Thornton Draft Audit Plan for Southwark Pension Fund year ended 31 March 2018

	11 Internal Audit and anti-fraud update
	Appendix A: Internal Audit
	Appendix B: Anti-fraud update report

	12 Annual report on the council's risk register and refresh of the risk management policy statement and strategy
	Appendix 1: The Key Corporate Risks as at January 2018
	Appendix 2: Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2018

	13 Southwark Member Induction Programme 2018
	14 Draft work programme for 2018-19
	 



